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PART

References in this Annual Report on Form 10-K to the terms we us our the company or other

similar terms mean the consolidated operations of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Swiss

holding company and our consolidated subsidiaries unless the context requires otherwise References in this

Form 10-K to the terms Allied World Switzerland or Holdings means only Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG References to our insurance subsidiaries may include our reinsurance subsidiaries

References in this Form 10-K to are to the lawful currency of the United States and to CHF are to the lawful

currency of Switzerland References in this Form 10-K to Holdings common shares means its registered

voting shares For your convenience we have included glossary beginning on page 51 of selected insurance

and reinsurance terms

Item Business

Overview

We are Swiss-based insurance and reinsurance company that underwrites diverse portfolio of
property

and casualty lines of business through offices located in Bermuda Hong Kong Ireland Singapore Switzerland

the United Kingdom and the United States For the year ended December 31 2012 our U.S insurance

international insurance and reinsurance segments accounted for 42.7% 24.7% and 32.6% respectively of our

total gross premiums written of $2329.3 million As of December 31 2012 we had $12.0 billion of total assets

and $3.3 billion of shareholders equity

We were formed in Bermuda in 2001 and we redomesticated to Switzerland in December 2010 at which

time Holdings became the ultimate parent company of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd the

former publicly-traded Bermuda holding company Allied World Bermuda and its subsidiaries Since our

formation we have focused primarily on the direct insurance markets We offer our clients and producers

significant capacity in both the direct property and casualty insurance markets as well as in the reinsurance

market We have expanded since our formation and now have 17 offices located in seven different countries

Internationally we first established presence in Europe when Allied World Assurance Company Europe
Limited was approved to carry on business in the European Union E.U from its office in Dublin Ireland in

October 2002 and from branch office in London England in May 2003 Allied World Assurance Company
Reinsurance Limited was approved to write reinsurance in the E.U from its office in Ireland in July 2003 and

from branch office in London England in August 2004 In recent years we have further expanded our

European presence first in October 2008 when Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited opened
branch office in Zug Switzerland to further penetrate the European market and later in March 2011 when we

received an insurance and reinsurance license for Allied World Assurance Company AG Swiss-domiciled

company located in Zug Switzerland

In July 2002 we established presence in the United States when we acquired two insurance companies
Allied World Assurance Company U.S Inc and Allied World National Assurance Company We have made

substantial investments to expand our North American business which has grown significantly since 2009 and

which we expect will continue to grow in size and importance in the coming years In February 2008 we
acquired U.S reinsurance company which we operated under the name Allied World Reinsurance Company
until December 2012 when it was renamed Allied World Insurance Company We write our U.S reinsurance

business through this company In October 2008 we acquired Darwin Professional Underwriters Inc and its

subsidiaries collectively Darwin to further expand our U.S insurance platform We currently have eleven

offices in the United States and are licensed in Canada

Our corporate expansion continued into Asia when Allied World Assurance Company Ltd opened branch

offices in Hong Kong in March 2009 and in Singapore in December 2009 In July 2011 we received license to

write reinsurance business in Labuan financial center in Malaysia

In early 2010 we received approval from Lloyds to establish syndicate Our Lloyds syndicate Syndicate

2232 commenced underwriting in June 2010 Syndicate 2232 is managed by Capita Managing Agency Limited

subsidiary of The Capita Group PLC which is authorized by the Financial Services Authority in the United



Kingdom the FSA In July 2010 we received approval from the Monetary Authority of Singapore and

Lloyds Asia to register and operate service company Capita 2232 Services Pte Ltd As part of the Lloyds

Asia platform the service company underwrites exclusively on behalf of Syndicate 2232 Syndicate 2232 via the

service company offers broad range of insurance and reinsurance treaty products from Singapore including

property casualty and specialty lines to clients in the Asia Pacific Middle East and Africa regions In September

2012 Allied World Reinsurance Management Company received approval to act as Lloyds coverholder to

underwrite Latin American and Caribbean treaty business from our Miami office on behalf of Syndicate 2232

Available information

We maintain website at www.awac.com The information on our website is not incorporated by reference

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K

We make available free of charge through our website our financial information including the information

contained in our Annual Reports on Form 10-K Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on

Form 8-K filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13a or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as

amended the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with

or furnish such material to the U.S Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC We also make available

free of charge through our website our Audit Committee Charter Compensation Committee Charter Investment

Committee Charter Nominating Corporate Governance Committee Charter Enterprise Risk Committee

Charter Corporate Governance Guidelines Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financial Officers and Code of

Business Conduct and Ethics Such information is also available in print for any
shareholder who sends request

to Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Lindenstrasse 6340 Baar Zug Switzerland attention

Wayne Dati Corporate Secretary or via e-mail to secretary@awac.com Reports
and other information we

file with the SEC may also be viewed at the SECs website at www.sec.gov or viewed or obtained at the SEC

Public Reference Room at 100 Street N.E Washington DC 20549 Information on the operation of the SEC

Public Reference Room may be obtained by calling the SEC at l-800-SEC-0330

Our Strategy

Our business objective is to generate
attractive returns on equity and book value per share growth for our

shareholders We seek to achieve this objective by executing the following strategies

Capitalize on profitable underwriting opportunities Our experienced management and underwriting

teams are positioned to locate and identify business with attractive risklreward characteristics We pursue

strategy that emphasizes profitability not market share Key elements of this strategy are prudent risk

selection appropriate pricing and adjusting our business mix to remain flexible and opportunistic We

seek ways to take advantage of underwriting opportunities that we believe will be profitable

Exercise underwriting and risk management discipline We believe we exercise underwriting and risk

management discipline by maintaining diverse spread of risk across product lines and geographic

zones ii managing our aggregate property catastrophe exposure through the application of sophisticated

modeling tools iii monitoring our exposures on non-property catastrophe coverages iv adhering to

underwriting guidelines across our business lines and fostering culture that focuses on enterprise risk

management and strong internal controls

Maintain conservative investment strategy We believe that we follow conservative investment

strategy designed to emphasize the preservation of our capital and provide adequate liquidity for the

prompt payment of claims Our investment portfolio consists primarily of investment-grade fixed-

maturity securities of short-to medium-term duration

Our premium revenues are generated by operations conducted from our corporate headquarters in

Switzerland aiid cur other offices in Bermuda Europe Hong Kong Singapore and the United States For

information concerning our gross premiums written by geographic location of underwriting office see Item



Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Results of

Operations Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011 and Comparison of Years Ended

December 31 2011 and 2010

Our Operating Segments

We have three business segments U.S insurance international insurance and reinsurance These segments

and their respective lines of business and products may at times be subject to different underwriting cycles We
modify our product strategy as market conditions change and new opportunities emerge by developing new

products targeting new industry classes or de-emphasizing existing lines Our diverse underwriting skills and

flexibility allow us to concentrate on the business lines where we expect to generate the greatest returns

Financial data relating to our three segments is included in Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations and in our consolidated financial statements included in this

report

The
gross premiums written in each segment for the

years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 were as

follows

Year Ended Year Ended Year Ended
December 31 2012 December 31 2011 December 31 2010

Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total

in millions

U.S insurance 993.9 42.7% 838.6 43.3% 729.3 41.5%

International insurance 575.1 24.7% 530.4 27.3% 504.9 28.7%

Reinsurance 760.3 32.6% 570.5 29.4% 524.2 29.8%

Total $2329.3 lOftO% $1939.5 100.0% $1758.4 100.0%

U.S Insurance Segment

General

The U.S insurance segment includes our direct insurance operations in the United States Within this

segment we provide an increasingly diverse range of specialty liability products with particular emphasis on

coverages for healthcare and professional liability risks Additionally we offer selection of direct general

casualty insurance and general property insurance products We generally target small- and middle-market non-

Fortune 1000 accounts domiciled in North America including public entities private companies and non-profit

organizations In recent years we have enhanced our U.S insurance operating platform principally through

hiring underwriting talent through an expanded network of branch offices located in strategically important

locations across the country and through upgrades to our information technology platform to accommodate our

increasing business demands Our underwriters are spread among our locations in the United States because we
believe it is important to be physically present in the major insurance markets where we compete for business

We believe improvements to our operating platform have allowed us to assume and maintain significant role as

writer of primary professional liability and other specialty liability coverage for small firms We will continue

to seek attractive opportunities in the U.S market



Products and Cusioiner Base

Our casualty operations within our international insurance provide general casualty products professional

liability products such as directors and officers employment practices fiduciary and errors and omissions

liability insurance ad healthcare liability products Our focus with respect to general casualty products is on

complex risks in variety of industries including manufacturing energy chemicals transportation real estate

consumer products medical and healthcare services and construction We also offer diverse mix of
coverages

for number of industries including law firms technology companies financial institutions insurance companies

and brokers manufacturing and energy and engineering and construction firms Our healthcare underwriters

provide risk transfer products to numerous healthcare institutions such as hospitals managed care organizations

and hcalthcarc systenis We olfcr both primary and excess coverage with the latter focused primarily on insuring

excess layers with
LI

median attachment point of $80 million Otir international insurance segment utilizes

significant gross limit capacity

We ofThr general property products from our underwriting platforms in Bermuda and Europe Our

international property insurance operations provide direct coverage of physical properly and business interruption

coverage for commercial property risks and mining risks We write solely commercial coverages and focus on

the insurance of the primary risk layer The types of commercial properly risks we cover include retail chains

real estate manufacturers hotels and casinos

In 2010 we commenced writing trade credit insurance by offering short- and medium-term credit insurance

for clients that export primarily 10 and from Latin America and the Caribbean

For more information on our gross premiums written by line of business in our international insurance

segment see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Results of Operations International Insurance Segment Comparison of Years Ended

December 2012 and 2011 and Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Distribution

With regard to our international insurance segment we utilize our relationships with insurance

intermediaries as our principal method for obtaining business Our international insurance segment maintains

significant relationships with Marsh Aon Corporation Aon and Willis Group Holdings Willis which

accounted for 29% 25% and respectively of our gross premiums written in this segment during 2012

Reinsurance Segment

General

Our reinsuranec segment includes the reinsurance of property general casualty professional liability

specialty lines and property catastrophe coverages written by other insurance companies In order to diversify our

portfolio arid complement our direct insurance business we target the overall contribution from reinsurance to be

approximately 30% cf our total annual gross premiums written

We presently write reinsurance on both treaty and facultative basis targeting several niche markets

including professional liability lines specialty casualty property for U.S regional insurers accident and health

marine aerospace and crop risks Overall we strive to diversify our reinsurance portfolio through the appropriate

combination of business lines ceding source geography and contract configuration Our primary customer focus

is on highly-rated carriers with proven underwriting skills and dependable operating models

We determine appropriate pricing either by using pricing models built or approved by our actuarial staff or

by relying on established pricing set by one of our pricing actuaries for specific treaty Pricing models are

generally used for facultative reinsurance property catastrophe reinsurance property per risk reinsurance and

workers compensation and personal accident catastrophe reinsurance Other types of reinsurance rely on

actuarially-established pricing On written basis our business mi is more heavily weighted to reinsurance

during the first three months of the year Our reinsurance segment operates from our offices in Bermuda

London Miami New York Singapore and Switzerland



The table below illustrates the breakdown of the companys reinsurance gross premiums written by line of

business for the year ended December 31 2012

Year Ended

December 31 2012

Amount of Total

in millions

Property $354.6 46.7%

Casualty 254.3 33.4%

Specialty 151.4 19.9%

$760.3 100.0%

Product Lines and Customer Base

Property casualty and specialty reinsurance is the principal source of revenue for this segment The insurers

we reinsure range from single state to nationwide insurers located in the United States as well as specialty

carriers or the specialty divisions of standard lines carriers For our international treaty unit our clients include

multi-national insurers single territory insurers niche carriers and Lloyds syndicates We focus on niche

programs and coverages frequently sourced from excess and surplus lines insurers In October 2008 we

expanded our international reach by opening branch office in Switzerland that offers property general casualty

and professional liability products throughout Europe This business is now being written by Allied World

Assurance Company AG our Swiss licensed insurance and reinsurance company Syndicate 2232 also offers

international treaty reinsurance During 2009 we expanded our reinsurance operations both in Asia where we

opened branch office in Singapore that serves as the companys hub for all classes of treaty reinsurance

business for the region and in the United States where we added property underwriting team to our

reinsurance platform In December 2010 we expanded our specialty reinsurance offerings by launching marine

and specialty division In 2011 we added crop
reinsurance offerings In September 2012 our Miami operations

received approval to act as Lloyds coverholder to underwrite treaty business in Latin America and the

Caribbean on behalf of Syndicate 2232 We target portfolio of well-rated companies that are highly

knowledgeable in their product lines have the financial resources to execute their business plans and are

committed to underwriting discipline throughout the underwriting cycle

Our property reinsurance underwrites treaties which protect insurers who write residential commercial and

industrial accounts in North America Europe Asia and Latin America Our predominant exposure to loss is in

North America We also write Euro-centric business including Lloyds syndicates and Continental European

companies and are expanding our capabilities in Asia and Latin America We emphasize monoline per
risk

accounts which are structured as either quota share or excess-of-loss reinsurance Monoline reinsurance applies

to one kind of coverage and per risk reinsurance coverage applies to particular risk for example building and

its contents rather than on per accident event or aggregate basis Where possible coverage
is provided on

losses occurring basis which limits coverage to property losses occurring within the treaty year We
selectively write industry loss warranties where we believe market opportunities justify the risks

Our casualty reinsurance business consists of general casualty and professional liability lines and writes

both treaty and facultative business Our general casualty treaties cover working layer intermediate layer and

catastrophe exposures We sell both quota share and excess-of-loss reinsurance We principally underwrite

general liability auto liability and commercial excess and umbrella liability for both admitted and non-admitted

companies Our general casualty facultative business is principally comprised of lower-attachment individual-

risk reinsurance covering automobile liability general liability and workers compensation risks for many of the

largest U.S property-casualty and surplus lines insurers Our professional liability treaties cover several

products primarily directors and officers liability but also attorneys malpractice medical malpractice

miscellaneous professional classes and transactional risk liability The complex exposures undertaken by this unit

demand highly technical underwriting and pricing analysis

For our specialty reinsurance business we underwrite on global basis crop marine and aviation and other

specialty lines of business including accident and health business with an emphasis on catastrophe personal

accident programs and workers compensation catastrophe business



For more information on our gross premiums written by line of business in our reinsurance segment see

Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Results of

Operations Reinsurance Segment Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011 and

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Distribution

Due to number of factors including transactional size and complexity the distribution infrastructure of the

reinsurance marketplace is characterized by relatively few intermediary firms As result we have close

business relationships with small number of reinsurance intermediaries and our business during 2012 was

primarily with affiliates of Marsh Aon and Willis accounting for 41% 27% and 14% respectively of total gross

premiums written in this segment during 2012 Due to the substantial percentage of premiums produced in our

reinsurance segment by the top three intermediaries the loss of business from any one of them could have

material adverse effect on our business

Security Arrangements

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd our Bermuda insurance and reinsurance company is not admitted

as an insurer nor is it accredited as reinsurer in any jurisdiction in the United States although it is qualified as

an eligible reinsurer in several U.S states Except in states where it has qualified as an eligible reinsurer Allied

World Assurance Company Ltd is generally required to post collateral security with respect to any
reinsurance

liabilities it assumes from ceding insurers domiciled in the United States in order for these cedents to obtain

credit on their U.S statutory
financial statements with respect to insurance liabilities ceded by them Under

applicable statutory provisions the security arrangements may be in the form of letters of credit reinsurance

trusts maintained by trustees or funds-withheld arrangements where assets are held by the ceding company For

description of the security arrangements used by us see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources Pledged Assets

Enterprise Risk Mrinagement

General

While the assumption of risk is inherent in our business we believe we have developed strong risk

management culture that is fostered and maintained by our senior management Our enterprise risk management

ERM consists of numerous processes and controls that have been designed by our senior management with

oversight by our Board of Directors including through its Enterprise Risk Committee and implemented by

employees across our organization One key element of our ERM is our economic capital model Utilizing this

modeling framework we review the relative interaction between risks impacting us from underwriting through

investment risks Our ERM supports our firm-wide decision making process by aiming to provide reliable and

timely risk information Our primary ERM objectives are to

protect our capital position

ensure that our assumed risks individually and in the aggregate are within our firm-wide risk appetite

maximize our risk-adjusted returns on capital and

manage our earnings volatility

We have identified the following six major categories of risk within our business

Underwriting risk Encompasses risks associated with entering into insurance and reinsurance

transactions and includes frequency and severity assessments pricing adequacy issues and exposures posed

by new products For more information concerning our management of underwriting risk see Underwriting

Risk Management below

Catastrophe and Aggregate Accumulation risk Addresses the organizations exposure to natural

catastrophes such as windstorms earthquakes or floods particularly with regard to managing the



concentration of exposed insurance limits within coastal or other areas that are more prone to severe

catastrophic events For more information concerning our management of catastrophe risk see

Underwriting Risk Management below

Reserving risk The risks associated with overestimating or underestimating required reserves is

significant risk for any company that writes long-tailed casualty business

investment risk Addresses risks of market volatility and losses associated with individual investments

and investment classes as well as overall portfolio risk associated with decisions as to asset mix geographic

risk duration and liquidity

Reinsurance risk The ceding of policies we write to other reinsurers is principal risk management

activity and it requires careful monitoring of the concentration of our reinsured
exposures and the

creditworthiness of the reinsurers to which we cede business

Operational risk Encompasses wide
range

of risks related to our operations including corporate

governance claims settlement processes regulatory compliance employment practices and IT exposures

including disaster recovery and business continuity planning

Our risk governance structure includes committees comprised of senior underwriting actuarial finance

legal investment and operations staff that identify monitor and help manage each of these risks Our

management-based Risk Management Committee chaired by our Chief Risk Officer focuses primarily on

identifying correlations among our primary categories of risk developing metrics to assess our overall risk

position performing an annual risk assessment and reviewing continually factors that may impact our

organizational risk This risk governance structure is complemented by our internal audit department which

assesses the adequacy and effectiveness of our internal control systems and coordinates risk-based audits and

compliance reviews and other specific initiatives to evaluate and address risk within targeted areas of our

business Our ERM is dynamic process with periodic updates being made to reflect organizational processes

and the recalibration of our models as well as staying current with changes within our industry and the global

economic environment

Our managements internal ERM efforts are overseen by our Board of Directors primarily through its

Enterprise Risk Committee This committee comprised of independent directors is charged with reviewing and

recommending to the Board of Directors our overall firm-wide risk appetite as well as overseeing managements

compliance therewith Our Enterprise Risk Committee reviews our risk management methodologies standards

tolerances and risk strategies and assesses whether management is addressing risk issues in timely and

appropriate manner Our Audit Committee Investment Committee and Compensation Committee also oversee

aspects of our financial investment and compensation risks respectively Internal controls and ERM can provide

reasonable but not absolute assurance that our control objectives will be met The possibility of material

financial loss remains in spite of our ERM efforts

Underwriting Risk Management

Underwriting insurance and reinsurance coverage which is our primary business activity entails the

assumption of risk Therefore protecting corporate assets from an unexpected level of loss related to

underwriting activities is major area of focus We emphasize careful risk selection by evaluating potential

insureds risk management practices loss history and adequacy of retention Other factors that go into the

effective management of underwriting risk may differ depending on the line of business involved and the type of

account being insured or reinsured

In our direct insurance casualty products we strive to write diverse business across variety of product lines

and industry classes and we review business concentrations on regular basis with the objective of creating

balanced portfolios By maintaining balanced casualty portfolio we believe we are less vulnerable to adverse

market changes in any one product or industry In addition because of the large limits we often deploy for

casualty business written in the U.S insurance segment and the international insurance segment we utilize both

facultative and treaty reinsurance to reduce our net exposure For more information on the reinsurance we

purchase for the casualty business written in the U.S insurance and international insurance segments see Item

Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Critical

Accounting Policies Ceded Reinsurance



In our direct insurance property products we have historically managed our property catastrophe exposure

by closely monitoring our policy limits in addition to utilizing complex risk models that analyze the locations

covered by each insurance policy enabling us to obtain more accurate assessment of our property catastrophe

cxposure In addition to our continued focus on aggregate limits and modeled probable maximum loss we have

implemented gross exposed policy limits approach that focuses on exposures in catastrophe-prone geographic

zones and takes into consideration flood severity demand surge
and business interruption exposures for each

critical area We cloely monitor our gross accumulations in each zone and restrict our gross exposed policy

limits in each critical property catastrophe zone to an amount consistent with our probable
maximum loss

Subsequent to catastrophic event we reassess our risk appetite and risk tolerances to ensure they are aligned

with our capital preservation targets Additionally for our direct property workers compensation accident and

health catastrophe and property reinsurance business we seek to manage our risk exposure so that our probable

maximum losses for single catastrophe event after all applicable reinsurance in any one-in-250-year event

does not exceed approximately 20% of our total capital

Before we review the specifics of any proposal in our reinsurance segment we consider the attributes of the

client including the experience and reputation of its management and its risk management strategy We also

examine the level of shareholders equity industry ratings length of incorporation duration of business model

portfolio profitability types of exposures and the extent of its liabilities To identify manage and monitor

accumulations of exposures from potential property catastrophes we employ industry-recognized
software Our

underwriters actuaries and claims personnel collaborate throughout the reinsurance underwriting process For

property proposals we also obtain information on the nature of the perils to be included and the policy

information on locations to be covered under the reinsurance contract If program meets our underwriting

criteria we then asses the adequacy of its proposed pricing terms and conditions and its potential impact on our

profit targets and risk objectives

Competition

The insurance and reinsurance industry is highly competitive Insurance and reinsurance companies compete

on the basis of many factors including premium rates general reputation and perceived financial strength the

terms and conditions of the products offered ratings assigned by independent rating agencies speed of claims

payments and reputation and experience in risks underwritten

We compete with major U.S and non-U.S insurers and reinsurers many of which have greater financial

marketing and management resources than we do Some of these companies have more capital than our

company In our direct insurance business we compete with insurers that provide property and casualty-based

lines of insurance such as ACE Limited Arch Capital Group Ltd Axis Capital Holdings Limited American

International Group Inc The Chubb Corporation Endurance Specialty Holdings Ltd Factory Mutual Insurance

Company HCC Insurance Holdings Inc Ironshore Inc Liberty Mutual Insurance Company Lloyds Markel

Insurance Company Munich Re Group The Navigators Group Inc OneBeacon Insurance Group Ltd Swiss

Reinsurance Company W.R Berkeley Corporation XL Capital Ltd and Zurich Financial Services In our

reinsurance business we compete with reinsurers that provide property and casualty-based lines of reinsurance

such as ACE Limited Alterra Capital Holdings Ltd Arch Capital Group Ltd Berkshire Hathaway Inc

Everest Re Group Ltd Lloyds Montpelier Re Holdings Ltd Munich Re Group PartnerRe Ltd Platinum

Underwriters Holdings Ltd RenaissanceRe Holdings Ltd Swiss Reinsurance Company Transatlantic

Holdings Inc and XL Capital Ltd

In addition risk-linked securities derivatives and other non-traditional risk transfer vehicles are being

developed and offered by other parties including entities other than insurance and reinsurance companies The

availability of these non-traditional products could reduce the demand for traditional insurance and reinsurance

Our Financial Strength Ratings

Ratings are an important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance and reinsurance

companies A.M Best Moodys Standard Poors and Fitch Ratings have each developed rating system to

provide an opinion of an insurers or reinsurers financial strength and ability to meet ongoing obligations to its

policyholders Each rating reflects the rating agencys opinion of the capitalization management and sponsorship
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of the entity to which it relates and is neither an evaluation directed to investors in our common shares nor

recommendation to buy sell or hold our common shares A.M Best ratings currently range from

Superior to In Liquidation and include 15 separate ratings categories Moodys maintains letter scale

rating system ranging from Aaa Exceptional to Lowest-rated and includes 21 separate ratings

categories Standard Poors maintains letter scale rating system ranging from AAA Extremely Strong to

under regulatory supervision and includes 21 separate ratings categories Fitch Ratings maintains letter

scale rating system ranging from AAA Extremely Strong to Distressed and includes 19 separate

ratings categories Our principal operating subsidiaries and their respective ratings from each rating agency are

provided in the table below

Rated Rated A2 Rated Rated

Excellent from Good from Strong from Strong from
Subsidiary A.M Best1 Moodys2 Standard Poors3 Fitch Ratings4

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd

Allied World Assurance Company U.S Inc

Allied World National Assurance Company

Allied World Insurance Company

Darwin National Assurance Company

Darwin Select Insurance Company

Allied World Assurance Company AG
Allied World Assurance Company Europe

Limited

Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance

Limited

Third highest of 15 available ratings from A.M Best

Sixth highest of 21 available ratings from Moodys

Sixth highest of 21 available ratings from Standard Poors

Fifth highest of 19 available ratings from Fitch Ratings

In addition to the above-named subsidiaries we underwrite through our Lloyds Syndicate 2232 All

Lloyds syndicates benefit from Lloyds central resources including Lloyds brand its network of global licenses

and the central fund As all of Lloyds policies are ultimately backed by this common security single market

rating can be applied A.M Best has assigned Lloyds financial strength rating of Excellent and

Standard Poors and Fitch Ratings have assigned Lloyds financial strength rating of Strong These

ratings are subject to periodic review and may be revised upward downward or revoked at the sole discretion of

the rating agencies

Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses

We are required by applicable insurance laws and regulations in the countries in which we operate and

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States U.S GAAP to establish loss reserves to cover

our estimated liability for the payment of all losses and loss expenses incurred with respect to premiums earned

on the policies and treaties that we write These reserves are balance sheet liabilities representing estimates of

losses and loss
expenses we are required to pay for insured or reinsured claims that have occurred as of or before

the balance sheet date It is our policy to establish these losses and loss expense reserves using prudent actuarial

methods after reviewing all information known to us as of the date they are recorded For more specific

information concerning the statistical and actuarial methods we use to estimate ultimate expected losses and loss

expenses see Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Critical Accounting Policies Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses

The following tables show the development of gross and net reserves for losses and loss expenses

respectively The tables do not present accident or policy year development data Each table begins by showing

11



the original year-end reserves recorded at the balance sheet date for each of the years presented as originally

estimated This represents
the estimated amounts of losses and loss expenses arising in all prior years that are

unpaid at the balance sheet date including reserves for losses incurred but not reported IBNR The re

estimated liabilities reflect additional information regarding claims incurred prior to the end of the preceding

financial year redundancy or deficiency arises when the re-estimation of reserves recorded at the end of each

prior year
is less than or greater than its estimation at the preceding year-end The cumulative redundancies or

deficiencies represent
cumulative differences between the original reserves and the currently re-estimated

liabilities over all prior years
Annual changes in the estimates are reflected in the consolidated statement of

operations and comprehensive income for each year as the liabilities are re-estimated

The lower sections of the tables show the portions of the original reserves that were paid claims paid as of

the end of subsequent years
This section of each table provides an indication of the portion of the re-estimated

liability that is settled and is unlikely to develop in the future For our quota share treaty reinsurance business we

have estimated the allocation of claims paid to applicable years
based on review of large losses and earned

premium percentages

Development of Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses Cumulative Deficiency Redundancy

Gross Losses

Reserve for losses and loss expenses
includes the reserves for losses and loss expenses

of Finial Insurance

Company now renamed Allied World Insurance Company which we acquired in February 2008 and

Darwin which we acquired in October 2008

As riginall

Estimated

Liability Re-estimated

as of

One Year later

T.so Year l.ate

lhree Year Later

tour Year .al er

Fix Year later

Six Year later

Seven Year t..alei

Fight Year Later

Nine Year Later

len Years later

Cumulative

Redundancy

.umulative Claims

Paid as of

One Year Later

Year Later

Three Years Later

tour Year .ate

Five Years later

Six Year Later

Seven Year later

Fight Year Later

Nine Years Later

Ten Year Later

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 20081 2009 2010 2011 2012

1$ in thousands

310.508 $1062 38 $2084331 $3543.8 3900546 4307637 4576828 4761772 $4879188 $5225143 $5645549

293.69 981713 1.961172 3403.274 3.622721 3484894 4290335 4329254 4.557847 4991161

226.943 899.176 .873599 3.249.2633.247858 3149.303 3877832 3975195 4.246518

217.712 845162 .733.707 2894460 29 1300 2.791110 3576846 3.67031

39860 810 183 1.513.697 2558600 2605.76 2533557 3295723

245432 704.666 .306.220 2.315913 2432597 2.300062

96495 626818 1235.604 2.191.495 2314204

79.752 619903 1207675 2.168471

184.117 618248 1199.686

184.104 618.607

88.482

122.026 44353 884645 1375340 1586342 2007575 1281105 1091461 632670 233982

574823 634463 656.568 85209

1089540 1036171 1242079

1391252 1.408.003

.681698

54.2 88

83 .465

100.978

124.09

163.5

184.691

195 .68

211.516

149.044

56529

138843

237.949

301.264

37287

425.394

456652

478 .05

499459

514.811

374605

574.399

25 .955

842.93

911.393

971953

994769

1.031.853

718263

1154901

15215 86

1.662.811

.828.977

1.864.918

1.916912

560163

1.002503

1252921

1531 899

1622.539

170592

583447

943879

1311398

1469345

1.634536
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Liability Re-estimated as of

One Year Later

Two Years Later

Three Years Later

Four Years Later

Five Years Later

Six Years Later

Seven Years Later

Eight Years Later

Nine Years Later

Ten Years Later

Cumulative Redundancy

17% 13% 18%

27% 22% 28%

33% 28% 35%

40% 35% 40%

53% 40% 44%

59% 43% 47%

63% 45% 48%

65% 47% 50%

48% 48%

50%

96% 93% 81% 94% 91% 93% 96%

92% 83% 73% 85% 83% 87%

82% 75% 65% 78% 77%

72% 67% 59% 72%

65% 62% 53%

62% 59%

61%

20% 14% 14% 13% 13% 13% 16%

33% 26% 22% 24% 22% 25%

43% 32% 30% 30% 30%

47% 39% 34% 37%

52% 42% 38%

53% 44%

54%

Development of Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses Cumulative Deficiency Redundancy

Gross Losses

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

82%

73%

70%

64%

66%

63%

58%

59%

59%

61%

92% 94%

85% 90%

80% 83%

76% 73%

66% 63%

59% 59%

58% 58%

58% 58%

58%

39% 42% 42% 39% 41% 47% 28% 23% 13% 4%

Gross Loss and Loss Expense Cumulative Paid as Percentage of Originally Estimated Liability

Cumulative Claims Paid as of

One Year Later

Two Years Later

Three Years Later

Four Years Later

Five Years Later

Six Years Later

Seven Years Later

Eight Years Later

Nine Years Later

Ten Years Later
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Development of Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses Cumulative Deficiency Redundancy

Losses Net of Reinsurance

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 20081 2009 2010 2011 2012

1$ in thousands

As Originall

Estimated 299946 967315 $1809588 2.826.930 3211441 3624.872 3.688514 $3841781 83.95600 84222224 $4504439

Liability kr-estimated

as of

One Year later .. 243129 88787 1.760469 2.662723 2978320 332218 3.440522 3528.426 3.698.072 4051875

Lw Years 11cc 216381 833496 1655675 2.55 1.946 2.699585 3.032063 3128342 3255966 3.474313

flitee Years l.ler 207945 773967 1.551115 2.281007 2416966 2742484 2882645 3.020103

lout Years I.aler 191.471 746355 .353988 .986782 215222 2518524 2655736

Five Years later ... 197656 648469 1162263 1776483 1997008 2326535

Sis Years alec .. 88733 574.803 1.l98702 1.663577 1895963

Seven Years laId 7229 568273 1075318 .644204

Light Yea Later 76582 566.975 1.16718

Nine Years alec 76579 567813

Teii Years alec 80956

umulative

kedundancrl 118.99 399502 742518 1182726 1315478 l298377 1032778 82778 477.287 170349

Cumulative laims

Paid as of

One Year I.iter 52.077 133336 306865 46130 377250 415214 4I5902 498084 542649 743.844

Iwo Years Later 76843 214939 482038 759276 698959 681332 811697 843697 1.050845

Fhree Years laId 93037 272.028 624894 99054 884077 964.791 1069303 1171454

Four Years Later 116.491 342.898 733.286 1090679 .0941 1199.913 1.318.773

Five Yeais Late 155.904 407.712 783.09 1.219997 116758 1.244.936

Siv Yeats late 172974 426354 833.9 1248296 1241.493

Seven Years l.iler 176.391 440812 851.32 1.293137

liighl
Yeaiv late 177880 455.27 883.239

Nine Years later 141.517 467305

Ten Yea ale 145.698

Reserve for losses and loss
expenses net includes the reserves for losses and loss expenses of Finial

Insurance Company now renamed Allied World Insurance Company which we acquired in February 2008

and Darwin which we acquired in October 2008
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Liability Re-estimated as of

One Year Later

Two Years Later

Three Years Later

Four Years Later

Five Years Later

Six Years Later

Seven Years Later

Eight Years Later

Nine Years Later

Ten Years Later

Cumulative Redundancy

Year Ended December 31

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

81%

72%

69%

64%

66%

63%

57%

59%

59%

60%

Net Loss and Loss Expense Cumulative Paid as Percentage of Originally Estimated Liability

Cumulative Claims Paid as of

One Year Later

Two Years Later

Three Years Later

Four Years Later

Five Years Later

Six Years Later

Seven Years Later

Eight Years Later

Nine Years Later

Ten Years Later

17% 14% 17% 16% 12% 11% 11% 13% 14% 18%

27% 22% 27% 27% 22% 19% 22% 22% 27%

33% 28% 35% 35% 28% 27% 29% 30%

40% 35% 41% 39% 34% 30% 36%

53% 42% 43% 43% 36% 34%

59% 44% 46% 44% 39%

63% 46% 47% 46%

65% 47% 49%

48% 48%

49%

Development of Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses Cumulative Deficiency Redundancy

Losses Net of Reinsurance

92% 97% 94% 93% 91% 93% 92% 94% 96%

86% 91% 90% 84% 84% 85% 85% 88%

80% 86% 81% 75% 76% 78% 79%

77% 75% 70% 67% 69% 72%

67% 64% 63% 62% 64%

59% 61% 59% 59%

59% 59% 58%

59% 59%

59%

40% 41% 41% 42% 41% 36% 28% 21% 12% 4%
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Losses Net of Reinsurance

The table below is reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for unpaid losses and loss expenses

for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 Losses incurred and paid are reflected net of reinsurance

recoveries

Year Ended 1ecember 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Net reserves for losses and loss expenses January $4222.2 $3951.6 $3841.8

Incurred related to

Commutation of variable rated reinsurance contracts II .5 8.9

Current year non-catastrophe 1130.0 909.0 913.9

Current year property catastrophe 179.6 292.2 98.4

Prior
year

170.3 253.5 313.3

Total incurred 1139.3 959.2 707.9

Paid related to

Current year non-catastrophe 99.1 72.1 61 .0

Current year properLy catastrophe 18.1 70 37.6

Prior year
743.8 542.6 498.1

Total paid
861.0 684.8 596.7

Foreign exchange revaluation 3.9 3.8 1.4

Net reserve for losses and loss expenses December 4504.4 4222.2 3951 .6

Losses and loss expenses recoverable 1141.1 1002.9 927.6

Reserve for losses and loss expenses December31 $5645.5 $5225.1 $4879.2

Investments

Investment Strategy and Guidelines

We believe that we follow conservative investment strategy designed to emphasize the preservation of our

invested assets and provide adequate liquidity for the prompt payment of claims To help ensure adequate

liquidity for payment of claims we take into account the maturity and duration of our investment portfolio and

our general liability profile In making investment decisions we consider the impact of various catastrophic

events to which we may be exposed As of December 31 2012 investment grade fixed-maturity securities and

cash and cash equivalents represented 77% of our total investments and cash and cash equivalents with the

remainder invested in non-investment grade securities and loans equities hedge funds and other alternative

investments Our current Investment Policy Statement contains restrictions on the maximum amount of our

investment portfolio that may be invested in alternative investments such as hedge funds and private equity

vehicles as well as minimum amount that must be maintained in investment grade fixed income securities and

cash Beginning in 2012 two new subsidiaries Allied World Financial Services Ltd and Allied World Financial

Services Inc collctive1y AWFS invest in nonpublic entities that we believe will complement our core

insurance and reinsurance operations and diversify our revenues These investments do not and are not expected

to represent material part
of the companys total investment portfolio

In an effort to meet business needs and mitigate risks our investment guidelines provide restrictions on our

portfolios composition including limits on the type of issuer sector limits credit quality limits portfolio

duration limits on the amount of investments in approved countries and permissible security types We may

direct our investment managers to invest some of the investment portfolio in currencies other than the U.S dollar

based on the business we have written the currency in which our loss reserves are denominated on our hooks or

regulatory requirements
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Our investment performance is subject to variety of risks including risks related to general economic

conditions market volatility interest rate fluctuations liquidity risk and credit and default risk Investment

guideline restrictions have been established in an effort to minimize the effect of these risks but may not always

be effective due to factors beyond our control Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors including

governmental monetary and fiscal policies domestic and international economic and political conditions and

other factors beyond our control significant increase in interest rates could result in significant losses realized

or unrealized in the value of our investment portfolio Similarly given our portfolios exposure to credit assets

significant increase in credit spreads could result in significant losses to our investment portfolio Additionally

with respect to some of our investments we are subject to prepayment and therefore reinvestment risk

Alternative investments such as our hedge fund and private equity investments subject us to restrictions on sale

transfer and redemption which may limit our ability to withdraw funds or realize gains on such investments for

some period of time after our initial investment The values of and returns on such investments may also be

more volatile

Investment Committee and Investment Managers

The Investment Committee of our Board of Directors has approved an Investment Policy Statement that

contains investment guidelines and supervises our investment activity The Investment Committee regularly

monitors our overall investment results and compliance with investment objectives and guidelines and ultimately

reports our overall investment results to the Board of Directors

For our fixed income assets and loans we have engaged six outside investment managers to provide us with

certain discretionary investment management services We have agreed to pay investment management fees

based on the market values of the investments in the portfolio The fees which
vary depending on the amount of

assets under management are included as deduction to net investment income These investment management

agreements may generally be terminated by either party upon 30 days prior written notice

Our Portfolio

Composition as of December 31 2012

As of December 31 2012 we had total investments and cash and cash equivalents of $8.8 billion including

restricted cash fixed-maturity securities equity securities hedge fund private equity investments and other

securities The average credit quality of our investments is rated AAby Standard Poors and Aa3 by

Moodys Short-term instruments must be rated minimum of A-i F-l or P-l by Standard Poors Moodys or

Fitch The target duration range is 1.00 to 4.25 years The portfolio has total return rather than income

orientation The average duration of our investment portfolio was 2.1 years as of December 31 2012
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The following table shows the types of securities in our portfolio their fair market values average rating

and portfolio percentage as of December 31 2012

Average Portfolio

Fair Value Rating Percentage

in millions

Type of Investment

Cash and cash equivalents
865.4 AAA 9.8%

U.S government securities 1529.2 AA 17.3%

U.S government agencies
336.8 AA 3.8%

Non-U.S government and government agencies
261.6 AA 3.0%

State municipalities and political subdivisions 40.4 AA- 0.5%

Mortgage-backed securities

Agency mortgage-backed securities 1400.9 AA 15.9%

Non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities 90.3 BBB 1.0%

Non-agency mortgage-backed securities non-investment grade strategy 176.8 CCC 2.0%

Commercial mortgage-backed securities 290.4 AA 3.4%

Total mortgage-backed securities 1958.4 22.3%

Corporate securities

Financial institutions 866.1 9.8%

Industrials 1153.9 BBB- 13.1%

Utilities 69.2 BBB ft8%

Total corporate secuLrities 2089.2 23.7%

Asset-backed securities

Credit card receivables 24.9 AAA 0.3%

Automobile loan receivables 31.3 AAA 0.4%

Student loan receivables 133.0 AA 1.5%

Collateralized loan obligations
190.2 AA 2.2%

Other 31.5 AAA ft3%

Total asset-backed securities 410.9 4.7%

Other invested assets

Hedge funds 151.0 N/A 1.7%

Private equity funth 504.9 N/A 5.7%

Other private securities 127.6 N/A 1.5%

Total other invested assets 783.5 8.9%

Equity securities 523.9 N/A

Total investment portfolio $8799.3 lOftO%

For more information on the securities in our investment portfolio please see Item Managements

Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Critical Accounting Policies

Fair Value of Financial Instruments
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Ratings as of December 31 2012

The investment ratings provided by Standard Poors and Moodys for fixed-maturity securities held as

of December 31 2012 and the percentage of our total fixed-maturity securities they represented on that date were

as follows

Percentage

of Total

Fair Value Fair Value

in millions

Ratings

U.S government and government agencies $1865.9 28.2%

AAA/Aaa 866.7 13.1%

AA/Aa 1905.3 28.8%

A/A 876.1 13.2%

BBB/Bbb 393.9 5.9%

BB/Bb 245.9 3.7%

B/B 262.3 4.0%

CCC and below 210.4 3.1%

Total $6626.5 100.0%

Maturity Distribution as of December 31 2012

The maturity distribution for our fixed-maturity securities held as of December 31 2012 was as follows

Percentage

of Total

Fair Value Fair Value

in millions

Maturity

Due within one year 573.9 8.6%

Due after one year through five years 2835.9 42.8%

Due after five
years through ten years 774.4 11.7%

Due after ten years 73.0 1.1%

Mortgage-backed 1958.4 29.6%

Asset-backed 410.9 6.2%

Total $6626.5 10110%

Investment Returns for the Year Ended December 31 2012

Our investment returns for
year ended December 31 2012 in millions

Net investment income
$167.1

Net realized investment gains 306.4

Net change in unrealized gains 17.6

Total net investment return $455.9

Total financial statement portfolio returnl 5.5%

Effective annualized yield2 2.1%

Total financial statement portfolio return for our investment portfolio is calculated using beginning and

ending market values adjusted for external cash flows and includes the net change in unrealized gains and

losses
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Effective annualized yield is calculated by dividing net investment income by the average balance of

aggregate
invested assets on an amortized cost basis

Our Principal Operating Subsidiaries

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is registered Class Bermuda insurance and reinsurance company

that began operations in November 2001 It carries on business from its offices in Bermuda and from branch

offices licensed in Hong Kong and Singapore as well as under its license from Labuan Allied World Assurance

Company Europe Limited was incorporated as wholly-owned subsidiary of Allied World Assurance Holdings

Ireland Ltd and has been approved to carry on business in the E.U from its office in Dublin Ireland since

October 2002 and from branch office in London England since May 2003 Since its formation Allied World

Assurance Company Europe Limited has written business primarily originating from Dublin Ireland the

United Kingdom and Continental Europe Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited was

incorporated as wholly-owned subsidiary of Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd and has been

approved to carry on business in the E.U from its office in Ireland since July 2003 from branch office in

London England since August 2004 and from branch office in Zug Switzerland since October 2008 We

include the business produced by Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited in our international

insurance segment other than reinsurance business written through its Swiss branch office even though the

majority of coverages are structured as facultative reinsurance Allied World Assurance Company AG is direct

subsidiary of Holdings which was formed in Switzerland in May 2010 and licensed by the Swiss Financial

Market Supervisory Authority FINMA to write insurance and reinsurance from our office in Zug

Switzerland and approved to operate branch from our office in Bermuda

We write direct insurance in the United States primarily through four subsidiaries Allied World Assurance

Company U.S Inc and Allied World National Assurance Company which we acquired in July 2002 and

Darwin National Assurance Company and Darwin Select InsurarLce Company which we acquired in October

2008 These companies are authorized or eligible to write insurance on both surplus lines and admitted basis

throughout the United States In February 2008 we also acquired fully licensed subsidiary which we operated

as Allied World Reinsurance Company until late 2012 when it was renamed Allied World Insurance Company

It offers primarily reinsurance although it also writes direct insurance Lastly Allied World Reinsurance

Management Company was formed in Delaware in February 2012 It is licensed to write as managing general

underwriter for our U.S reinsurance business

The activities of AWAC Services Company Bermuda Ltd AWAC Services Company Ireland Limited

and AWAC Services Company are limited to providing certain administrative services to various subsidiaries of

Holdings During 2010 we formed new subsidiary 2232 Services Limited in the United Kingdom in order to

administratively support
the operations of Syndicate 2232 at Lloyds Allied World Financial Services Ltd and

Allied World Financial Services Inc were incorporated in Bermuda and Delaware respectively during 2012 to

engage in investment transactions intended to complement the Companys core property and casualty business

Our Employees

As of February Il 2013 we had total of 818 full-time employees We believe that our employee relations

are good No employees are subject to collective bargaining agreements

Regulatory Matters

General

The business of insurance and reinsurance is regulated in most countries and our operating subsidiaries are

required to comply with wide variety of laws and regulations both in the jurisdictions in which they are

organized and where they sell their products The insurance regulatory environment has become subject to

increased scrutiny in many jurisdictions globally
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Allied World Assurance Company AG obtained its license from FINMA in March 2011 and is approved to

carry on insurance and reinsurance business in specific lines of non-life business Allied World Assurance

Company AG is required to comply with the Federal Insurance Supervision Act the ISA the Federal

Insurance Supervision Ordinance and regulations and guidance issued by FINMA The following are some

significant aspects of the Swiss regulatory framework

Capital and Solvency Requirements Allied World Assurance Company AG is required to satisfy minimum

capital and solvency requirements Solvency is determined based on two independent methodologies

Solvency This involves calculating solvency margin by applying defined percentages to

base of the higher of gross annual premium or gross claims over prescribed period of time and

comparing coverage in terms of the companys admissible funds against the required solvency

margin determined in accordance with the ISA

Swiss Solvency Test the SST The SST is similar in nature to the methodology that will be

applied under the E.U.s Solvency II regime Under this approach capital adequacy is achieved if

risk bearing capital exceeds the required solvency capital

The SST model involves more sophisticated analysis by providing for market-consistent valuation

of all assets and liabilities of the firm with methodological approach to risk categories insurance risk

credit risk etc subjecting them to scenario stress tests at basic level in the context of the use of standard

regulatory model or internal model validated by FINMA

Allied World Assurance Company AG is also required to satisfy technical provisions with regard to its

assets which include restrictions concerning the investment of tied assets which are assets that are secured to

ensure the claims of the companys insurance clients

Corporate Governance Risk Management and Internal Controls In addition to quantitative risk measures

FINMA requires full qualitative governance and control of risk in the firm This includes requirements as to the

ongoing fitness propriety and competence of the directors and senior management observance of ethical

standards objective and appropriate remuneration procedures management of conflicts of interests the

institution of compliance function independence and adequate resourcing of control functions including the

responsible actuary the risk management function and the internal audit function Insurance companies are

required to implement documented procedures for risk management and internal control

In addition Allied World Assurance Company AG is subject to annual reporting requirements enacted by

FINMA

Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited also operates branch office in Zug Switzerland

As this subsidiary is domiciled outside of Switzerland conducts only reinsurance business in Switzerland and is

regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland CBI as reinsurance undertaking it is not required to be licensed by

FINMA

Bermuda

The Insurance Act 1978 of Bermuda the Insurance Act regulates the insurance and reinsurance business

of Allied World Assurance Company Ltd and provides that no person may carry on any insurance business in or

from Bermuda unless registered as an insurer by the Bermuda Monetary Authority the BMA Allied World

Assurance Company Ltd has been registered as Class insurer by the BMA and approved to carry on general

insurance and reinsurance business The Insurance Act also imposes solvency and liquidity standards and

auditing and reporting requirements on Bermuda insurance and reinsurance companies and grants the Bermuda

Monetary Authority powers to supervise and investigate the affairs of these companies
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The following are some significant aspects of the Bermuda insurance and reinsurance regulatory framework

Solvency and Capital Standards As Class insurer Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is required

to maintain minimum solvency margin and to hold available statutory capital and surplus equal to or exceeding

its enhanced capital requirement and target capital level as determirLed by the BMA under the Bermuda Solvency

Capital Requirement model BSCR model The BSCR model is risk-based capital model that provides

method for determining an insurers enhanced capital requirement and total capital level taking into account the

risk characteristics of different aspects of an insurers business Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is

required to maintain minimum solvency margin that is equal to the greatest ofl $100000000 50% of net

premiums written being gross premiums written less any premiums ceded but the company may not deduct

more than 25% of gross premiums written when computing net premiums written and 15% of net losses and

loss expense reseres

Eligible Capital Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is now required to disclose the makeup of its

capital in accordance with the recently introduced three-tiered capital system Under this system all of the

insurers capital instruments will be classified as either basic or ancillary capital which in turn will be classified

into one of three tiers based on their loss absorbency characteristics Highest quality capital will be classified

tier capital lesser quality capital will be classified as either tier capital or tier capital The maximum of tier

and capital that may be used to support the companys minimum solvency margin enhanced capital

requirement and target capital level will be determined in accordance with the BMAs rules

Liquidity Allied World Assurance Company Ltd must maintain minimum liquidity ratio at least equal

to the value of its relevant assets at not less than 75% of the amount of its relevant liabilities

Dividends Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is prohibited from declaring or paying any dividends

during any financial year
if it is or would be after such dividend in breach of its minimum solvency margin

minimum liquidity ratio or enhanced capital requirements Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is also

prohibited without prior BMA approval from declaring or paying
in any financial year dividends of more than

25% of its total statutory capital and surplus or from reducing by 15% or more its total statutory capital Under

the Companies Act Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd and each of its Bermuda subsidiaries may

not declare or pay
dividend if such company has reasonable grounds for believing that it is or would after the

payment be unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due or that the realizable value of its assets would

thereby be less than its liabilities

Principal oftice and representatives Allied World Assurance Company Ltd must maintain principal

office and appoint principal representative loss reserve specialist and independent auditor approved by the

BMA

Filings Allied World Assurance Company Ltd must file with the BMA annual and quarterly statutory

financial returns annual GAAP financial statements and an annual capital and solvency return

Group Superision In 2011 the BMA notified Allied World Assurance Company Ltd that it intended to

act as group supervisor of our insurance and reinsurance companies and that Allied World Assurance Company

Ltd had been desLgnated as the designated insurer in respect thereof in accordance with the current group

supervision
and solvency rules Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is now required to prepare and submit

annual audited group U.S GAAP financial statements annual group statutory
financial statements an annual

group statutory financial return an annual group capital and solvency return and quarterly group
unaudited

financial returns Enhanced group capital requirements will come into effect in 2014

Currency matters As the BMA has classified each of our Bermuda subsidiaries as non-residents of

Bermuda these subsidiaries may engage in transactions in currencies other than Bermuda dollars and there are

no restrictions on our ability to transfer funds other than funds denominated in Bermuda dollars in and out of

Bermuda
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Code of Conduct Allied World Assurance Company Ltd must comply with the Insurance Code of

Conduct which prescribes the duties standards procedures and sound business principles with which all

companies registered under the Insurance Act must comply Failure to comply with the requirements of the

Insurance Code of Conduct will be taken into account by the BMA in determining whether an insurer is

conducting its business in sound and prudent manner as prescribed by the Insurance Act and may result in the

BMA exercising its powers of intervention and investigation and will be factor in calculating the operational

risk charge under the insurers BSCR model

Shareholder notfication requirements The BMA also requires written notification from any person who
directly or indirectly becomes holder of at least 10% 20% 33% or 50% of the voting shares of Allied World

Assurance Company Ltd or its parent within 45 days of becoming such holder The BMA may object to such

person if it appears to the BMA that the
person

is not fit and proper to be such holder and/or require the

shareholder to reduce its holdings or voting rights person that does not give the required notification or

comply with such notice or direction from the BMA will be guilty of an offense

If it appears to the BMA that there is risk of Allied World Assurance Company Ltd becoming insolvent

or that Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is in breach of the Insurance Act or any conditions imposed upon
its registration the BMA may take numerous restrictive actions to protect the public interest including

cancelling our registration under the Insurance Act

Ireland

Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited is authorized as non-life insurance undertaking and is

regulated by the CBI pursuant to the Insurance Acts 1909 to 2011 the Central Bank Acts 1942 to 2010 and all

statutory instruments relating to insurance made or adopted under the European Communities Acts 1972 to 2009

the Irish Insurance Acts and Regulations The Third Non-Life Directive of the European Union the Non
Life Directive established common framework for the authorization and regulation of non-life insurance

undertakings within the E.U The Non-Life Directive permits non-life insurance undertakings authorized in

member state of the E.U to operate in other member states of the E.U either directly from the home member

state on freedom to provide services basis or through local branches by way of permanent establishment

Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited
operates branch office in the United Kingdom and

operates on freedom to provide services basis in other European Union member states

Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited is authorized and regulated by the CBI pursuant

to the Central Bank Acts 1942 to 2010 all statutory instruments relating to reinsurance made or adopted under

the European Communities Acts 1972 to 2009 and the provisions of the European Communities Reinsurance

Regulations 2006 which transposed the E.U Reinsurance Directive into Irish law and operates branches in

London England and Zug Switzerland Pursuant to the provisions of these regulations reinsurance undertakings

may subject to the satisfaction of certain formalities carry on reinsurance business in other E.U member states

either directly from the home member state on freedom to provide services basis or through local branches

by way of permanent establishment

United States

Our U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are admitted or surplus line eligible in all 50 states and the

District of Columbia Allied World Assurance Company U.S Inc is admitted in three states including

Delaware its state of domicile surplus lines eligible in 49 jurisdictions including the District of Columbia and

Puerto Rico and an accredited reinsurer in 38 jurisdictions including the District of Columbia Allied World

National Assurance Company is admitted in 44 jurisdictions including New Hampshire its state of domicile

surplus lines eligible in three states and an accredited reinsurer in one state Allied World Insurance Company ft

k/a Allied World Reinsurance Company is admitted to write insurance and reinsurance in all 50 states including

New Hampshire its state of domicile and the District of Columbia Darwin National Assurance Company is

domiciled in Delaware and admitted to write in all other U.S jurisdictions except Arkansas Darwin Select
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Insurance Company which is an Arkansas company is admitted in that state and is an eligible surplus lines

writer in all other states and the District of Columbia and Vantapro Specialty Insurance Company which is an

inactive Arkansas company is currently admitted only in Arkansas and Illinois

Our U.S admitted and authorized insurers and reinsurers are subject to considerable regulation and

supervision by state insurance regulators The extent of regulation varies but generally has its source in statutes

that delegate regulatory supervisory and administrative authority to department of insurance in each state

Among other things state insurance commissioners regulate inter-affiliate transactions and dividend payments

insurer solvency standards insurer and agent licensing authorized investments premium rates restrictions on

the size of risks that may be insured under single policy loss and expense reserves and provisions for unearned

premiums and deposits of securities for the benefit of policyholders The states regulatory schemes also extend

to policy form approval and market conduct regulation In addition some states have enacted variations of

competitive rate making laws which allow insurers to set premium rates for certain classes of insurance without

obtaining the prior approval ol the state insurance department State insurance departments also conduct periodic

examinations of the affairs of authorized insurance companies and require the filing of annual and other reports

relating to the financial condition of companies and other matters

Holding Company Regulation Insurance holding company laws vary by state but generally require

admitted insurers that are subsidiaries of insurance holding companies to register and file with state regulatory

authorities certain reports including information concerning their capital structure ownership financial condition

and general business operations Generally all transactions involving the insurers in holding company system

and their affiliates must be fair and if material require prior notice and approval or non-disapproval by the state

insurance department In addition insurance holding company laws limit the amount of inter-company dividend

payments which may be paid without regulator approval as well as restricting any change of control transactions

involving more than 10% of an insurance companys voting securities

Guaranty Fund Assessments and Involuntary Pools Virtually all states require admitted insurers to

participate in various forms of guaranty
associations in order to bear portion of the loss suffered by certain

insureds caused by the insolvency of other insurers Depending upon state law insurers can be assessed an

amount that is generally equal to between 1% and 2% of the annual premiums written for the relevant lines of

insurance in that state to pay the claims of insolvent insurers Most of these assessments are recoverable through

premium rates premium tax credits or policy surcharges Many states also require participation in assigned risk

pools involving workers compensation and automobile insurance

Risk-Based Capital U.S insurers are also subject to risk-based capital or RBC guidelines that provide

method to measure the total adjusted capital statutory capital and surplus plus other adjustments of insurance

companies taking into account the risk characteristics of the companys investments and products The RBC

formulas establish capital requirements for four categories of risk asset risk insurance risk interest rate risk and

business risk As of December 31 2012 we believe all of our U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries had

adjusted capital in excess of amounts requiring company or regulatory action

NAIC Ratios The National Association of Insurance Commissioners NAIC Insurance Regulatory

Information System or IRIS was developed to help state regulators identify companies that may require special

attention IRIS is comprised of statistical and analytical phases consisting of key financial ratios whereby

financial examiners review annual statutory basis statements and financial ratios As of December 31 2012 we

do not believe that any
of our U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries had an IRIS ratio range warranting any

regulatory action

Surplus Lines Regulation The regulation of our U.S subsidiaries excess and surplus lines insurance

business differs significantly from their regulation as admitted or authorized insurers These companies are

subject to the surplus lines regulation and reporting requirements of the jurisdictions in which they are eligible to

write surplus lines insurance Allied World Assurance Company U.S Inc and Darwin Select Insurance

Company which conduct business on surplus lines basis in particular state are generally exempt from that

states guaranty fund laws and from participation in its involuntary poo1s
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Lloyds

General Syndicate 2232 was licensed to start underwriting certain lines of insurance and reinsurance

business effective June 2010 Allied World Capital Europe Limited is the sole corporate member of Syndicate

2232 Syndicate 2232 is managed by Capita Managing Agency Limited an unaffiliated entity Capita

Lloyds intervention powers As member of Lloyds Allied World Capital Europe Limited is obliged

to comply with Lloyds bye laws and applicable provisions of the Financial and Services and Markets Act 2000
The Council of Lloyds has wide discretionary powers to regulate members underwriting at Lloyds and its

exercise of these powers might affect the return on an investment of the corporate member in given

underwriting year

Capital requirements The capital required to support syndicates underwriting capacity referred to as

funds at Lloyds is assessed annually and is determined by Lloyds in accordance with the capital adequacy

rules established by the FSA If member of Lloyds is unable to pay its debts to policyholders such debts may
be payable from the Lloyds Central Fund which in many respects acts as an equivalent to state guaranty fund

in the United States The Council of Lloyds has discretion to call or assess up to 3% of members underwriting

capacity in any one year as Central Fund contribution

Our business plan including the maximum underwriting capacity for Syndicate 2232 requires annual

approval by Lloyds The Lloyds Franchise Board may require changes to any business plan and may also

require the provision of additional capital to support an approved business plan If material changes in the

business plan for Syndicate 2232 were required by Lloyds or if charges and assessments payable by Allied

World Capital Europe Limited to Lloyds were to increase significantly these events could have an adverse

effect on the operations and financial results of Allied World Capital Europe Limited

The Company has provided capital to support the underwriting of Syndicate 2232 in the form of letter of

credit An underwriting year of account is closed by way of reinsurance to close on the third anniversary of the

inception of the relevant underwriting year Upon the closing of an underwriting year profit or loss will be

declared for the closed year of account Prior to the closure of an underwriting year funds at Lloyds cannot

typically be reduced unless the consent of Lloyds is obtained and such consent will only be considered where

member has surplus funds at Lloyds Lloyds approval is also required before any person can acquire control

of Lloyds managing agent or Lloyds corporate member

FSA regulation Lloyds is authorized by the FSA and required to implement certain rules prescribed by

the FSA under the Lloyds Act of 1982 regarding the operation of the Lloyds market With respect to managing

agents and corporate members Lloyds prescribes certain minimum standards relating to management and

control solvency and other requirements and monitors managing agents compliance with such standards Future

regulatory changes or rulings by the FSA could impact the business strategy or financial assumptions made by

Capita and/or Allied World Capital Europe Limited and such impact could adversely affect the Syndicate

2232s financial conditions and results

Other applicable laws Lloyds worldwide insurance and reinsurance business is subject to various laws

regulations treaties and policies of the EU as well as each jurisdiction in which it operates Material changes in

governmental requirements or laws could have an adverse effect on Lloyds and its member companies

including Allied World Capital Europe Limited

Asia

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd received regulatory approval to operate branch offices in Hong
Kong Singapore and Labuan the Malaysian financial district in March 2009 December 2009 and July 2011

respectively
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Latin America

In connection with the opening in 2012 of Miami office to service primarily markets in Latin America and

the Caribbean Allied World Insurance Company has become registered as foreign reinsurer in number of

Latin American countries

Item IA Risk Factors

Factors that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking statements

contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and other documents we file with the SEC include the following

Risks Related to Our Company

Downgrades or the revocation of our financial strength ratings would affect our standing among brokers

and customers and may cause our premiums and earnings to decrease significantly

Ratings have become an increasingly important factor in establishing the competitive position of insurance

and reinsurance companies Each rating is subject to periodic review by and may be revised downward or

revoked at the sole discretion of the rating agency The ratings are neither an evaluation directed to our investors

nor recommendation to buy sell or hold our securities For the financial strength rating of each of our principal

operating subsidiaries please see Item Business Our Financial Strength Ratings

If the rating of any
of our subsidiaries is revised downward or revoked our competitive position in the

insurance and reinsurance industry may suffer and it may be more difficult for us to market our products

Specifically any revision or revocation of this kind could result in significant reduction in the number of

insurance and reinsurance contracts we write and in substantial loss of business as customers and brokers that

place this business move to competitors with higher financial strength ratings

Additionally it is common for our reinsurance contracts to contain terms that would allow the ceding

companies to cancel the contract for the portion of our obligations if our insurance subsidiaries are downgraded

below an Aby either AM Best or Standard Poors Whether ceding company would exercise the

cancellation right and in the case of our U.S reinsurance business as described in the paragraph below the

right to require the posting of security would depend among other factors on the reason for such downgrade

the extent of the downgrade the prevailing market conditions arid the pricing and availability of replacement

reinsurance coverage Therefore we cannot predict in advance the extent to which these rights would be

exercised if at all or what effect any
such cancellations or security postings would have on our financial

condition or future operations but such effect could be material

For example if all ceding companies for which we have in force business as of December 31 2012 were to

exercise their cancellation rights or require the posting of security the estimated impact could result in the return

of premium the commutation of loss reserves the posting of collateral or combination thereof The unearned

premium and reserve for losses and loss expenses associated with our reinsurance segment was $323.1 million

and $1480.6 million at December 31 2012 respectively

Our U.S reinsurance subsidiary does not typically post security for the reinsurance contracts it writes In

addition to the cancellation right discussed above should the companys A.M Best rating or Standard Poors

rating be downgraded below A- some ceding companies would have the right to require the subsidiary to post

security for its portion of the obligations under such contracts If this were to occur our U.S reinsurance

subsidiary may not have the liquidity to post security as stipulated in such reinsurance contracts

All Lloyds syndicates benefit from Lloyds central resources including the Lloyds brand its network of

global licenses and the central fund The central fund is available at the discretion of the Council of Lloyds to

meet any valid claim that cannot be met by the resources of any
member Because all Lloyds policies are

ultimately backed by the central fund single market rating can be applied The ability of Lloyds syndicates to

trade in certain classes of business at current levels is dependent on the maintenance of satisfactory credit rating

issued by an accredited rating agency Best has assigned Lloyds financial strength rating of

Excellent and Standard Poors and Fitch Ratings have assigned Lloyds financial strength rating of

Strong Syndicate 2232 benefits from Lloyds current ratings and would be adversely affected if the current

ratings were downgraded from their present levels
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We also cannot assure you that A.M Best Standard Poors Moodys or Fitch Ratings will not

downgrade our insurance subsidiaries

Actual claims may exceed our reserves for losses and loss expenses

Our success depends on our ability to accurately assess the risks associated with the businesses that we
insure and reinsure We establish loss reserves to cover our estimated liability for the payment of all losses and

loss expenses incurred with respect to the policies we write Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation

of liability Rather loss reserves are estimates of what we expect the ultimate resolution and administration of

claims will cost These estimates are based on actuarial and statistical projections and on our assessment of

currently available data as well as estimates of future trends in claims severity and frequency judicial theories of

liability and other factors Loss reserve estimates are refined as experience develops and claims are reported and

resolved Establishing an appropriate level of loss reserves is an inherently uncertain process It is therefore

possible that our reserves at any given time will prove to be inadequate

To the extent we determine that actual losses or loss expenses exceed our expectations and reserves

reflected in our financial statements we will be required to increase our reserves to reflect our changed

expectations This could cause material increase in our liabilities and reduction in our profitability including

operating losses and reduction of capital Our results for the year ended December 31 2012 included

$298.6 million and $128.3 million of favorable i.e loss reserve decrease and adverse development i.e
loss reserve increase respectively of reserves relating to losses incurred for prior loss

years In comparison our

results for the year-ended December 31 2011 included $362.2 million and $108.7 million of favorable and

adverse development respectively of reserves relating to losses incurred for prior loss years Our results for the

year ended December 31 2010 included $358.8 million and $45.5 million of favorable and adverse development

respectively of reserves relating to losses incurred for prior loss
years

We have estimated our net losses from catastrophes based on actuarial analyses of claims information

received to date industry modeling and discussions with individual insureds and reinsureds Accordingly actual

losses may vary from those estimated and will be adjusted in the period in which further information becomes

available

We may experience significant losses and volatility in our financial results from catastrophic events

As casualty and property insurer and reinsurer we may experience significant losses from claims arising

out of catastrophic events Catastrophes can be caused by various unpredictable events including earthquakes

volcanic eruptions hurricanes windstorms hailstorms drought severe winter weather floods fires tornadoes

explosions and other natural or man-made disasters including oil spills and other environmental contamination

The international geographic distribution of our business subjects us to catastrophe exposure from natural events

occurring in number of areas throughout the world examples of which include floods and windstorms in

Europe hurricanes and windstorms in Mexico Florida the Gulf Coast and the Atlantic Coast regions of the

United States typhoons and earthquakes in Japan and Taiwan and earthquakes in California and parts of the

Midwestern United States known as the New Madrid zone Our largest exposure to wind events is concentrated

in the Southeast and Gulf Coast of the United States Our largest exposure to earthquake events is concentrated in

California The loss experience of catastrophe insurers and reinsurers has historically been characterized as low

frequency but high severity in nature In recent years the frequency of major catastrophes appears to have

increased and may continue to increase as result of global climate change and other factors Increases in the

values and concentrations of insured property and the effects of inflation have resulted in increased severity of

losses to the industry in recent years and we expect this trend to continue

The loss limitation methods we employ such as establishing maximum aggregate exposed limits on policies

written in key coastal and other defined geographical zones restrictive underwriting guidelines and purchasing

reinsurance may not be sufficient protection against losses from catastrophes In the event we do not accurately

estimate losses from catastrophes that have already occurred there is possibility that loss reserves for such

catastrophes will be inadequate to cover the losses Because U.S GAAP does not permit insurers and reinsurers

to reserve for catastrophes until they occur claims from these events could cause substantial volatility in our
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financial results for any fiscal quarter or year and could have material adverse effect on our financial condition

and results of operations In addition losses from catastrophic events could result in downward revisions to our

financial strength ratings from the various rating agencies that cover us

The risk models we use to quantify catastrophe exposures and risk accumulations may prove inadequate in

predicting all outcomes from potential catastrophe events

We use widely accepted and industry-recognized catastrophe risk modeling programs to help us quantify

our aggregate exposure to any one event As with any model of physical systems particularly those with low

frequencies of occurrence and potentially high severity of outcomes the accuracy of the models predictions is

largely dependent on the accuracy and quality of the data provided in the underwriting process and the judgments

of our employees and other industry professionals These models do not anticipate all potential perils or events

that could result in catastrophic loss to us Furthermore it is often difficult for models to anticipate and

incorporate events that have not been experienced during or as result of prior catastrophes Accordingly it is

possible for us to he subject to events or contingencies that have not been anticipated by our catastrophe risk

models and which could have material adverse effect on our reserves and results of operations

We may be adversely impacted by inflation

Our operations like those of other property
and casualty insurers and reinsurers are susceptible to the

effects of inflation because premiums are established before the ultimate amounts of loss and loss adjustment

expense are known Although we consider the potential effects of inflation when setting premium rates our

premiums may not fully offset the effects of inflation and essentially result in our under pricing the risks we

insure and reinsure Our reserve for losses and loss adjustment expenses includes assumptions about future

payments for settlement of claims and claims-handling expenses such as the value of replacing property and

associated labor costs for the property business we write the value of medical treatments and litigation costs To

the extent inflation causes theses costs to increase above reserves established for these claims we will be

required to increase our loss reserves with corresponding reduction in our net income in the period in which the

deficiency is identified which may have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations

We could face losses from terrorism and political unrest

We have exposure to losses resulting from acts of terrorism arid political instability Although we generally

exclude acts of terrorism from our property insurance policies and property reinsurance treaties where

practicable we provide coverage in circumstances where we believe we are adequately compensated for

assuming those risks

Our trade credit and political risk insurance program protects
Lnsureds with interests in foreign jurisdictions

in the event governmental action prevents them from exercising their contractual rights and may also protect their

assets against physical damage perils This may include risks arising from expropriation forced abandonment

license cancellation trade embargo contract frustration non-payment war on land or political violence

including terrorism revolution insurrection and civil unrest Political risk insurance is typically provided to

financial institutions equity irLvestors exporters importers export credit agencies and multilateral agencies in an

array of industries in connection with investments and contracts in both emerging markets and developed

countries

Our trade credit and political risk insurance program also protects insureds in foreign jurisdictions against

non-payment coverage on specific loan obligations as result of commercial as well as political risk events We

attempt to manage our exposure by among other things setting credit limits by country region industry and

individual counterparty and regularly reviewing our aggregate exposures The occurrence of one or more large

losses in our credit and political risk insurance portfolio could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations or financial condition
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We couki face losses from pandemic diseases

pandemic disease could also cause us to suffer significantly increased insurance losses on variety of

coverages we offer Our reinsurance protections may only partially offset these losses Moreover even in cases

where we seek to exclude coverage we may not be able to completely eliminate our exposure to these events It

is impossible to predict the timing or severity of these events with statistical certainty or to estimate the amount

of loss that any given occurrence will
generate We could also suffer losses from disruption of our business

operations and our investments may suffer decrease in value due to the occurrence of any of these events To

the extent we suffer losses from these risks such losses could be significant

Our business and our financial results may be adversely affected by unexpected levels of loss due to climate

change

substantial portion of our revenues are derived from the underwriting of property insurance and

reinsurance around the world Therefore large scale climate change often referred to as global warming as

well as changing ocean temperatures could increase the frequency and severity of our loss costs related to

property damage and/or business interruption due to hurricanes windstorms flooding blizzards tornadoes or

other severe weather events particularly with respect to properties located in coastal areas Additionally if

changes in climatic patterns and ocean temperature conditions continue it is likely that such changes will further

impair the ability to predict the frequency and severity of future weather-related disasters in many parts of the

world Over the longer term such decreased predictability will create additional uncertainty as to future trends

and exposures In addition to unexpected increases in covered losses and decreased predictability global climate

change may also give rise to new environmental liability claims against policyholders that compete in the energy

automobile manufacturing and other industries that we serve There could be an increase in claims against

policyholders of directors and officers liability or related management liability policies alleging failure to

supervise manage or properly disclose climate change exposures We may also incur greater-than-expected

expense levels due to the costs involved in responding to regulators rating agencies and other interested

constituencies with respect to climate change and other environmental disclosures

The perceived effects of climate change on debt obligations can impact our investment mix in any one

issuer industry or region The largest per-issuer exposure outside of government and government-related

issuers represented less than 1% of our investment portfolio and the largest ten exposures represented less than

4% of the portfolio as of December 31 2012

The failure of any of the loss limitation methods we employ could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition or results of operations

We seek to limit our loss exposure by adhering to maximum limitations on policies written in defined

geographical zones which limits our exposure to losses in any one geographic area limiting program size for

each client which limits our exposure to losses with respect to any one client adjusting retention levels and

establishing per risk and per occurrence limitations for each event and establishing prudent underwriting

guidelines for each insurance program written all of which limit our liability on any one policy Many of our

direct liability insurance policies include maximum aggregate limitations We cannot assure you that any of these

loss limitation methods will be effective In particular geographic zone limitations involve significant

underwriting judgments including the determination of the areas of the zones and whether policy falls within

particular zone limits Disputes relating to coverage and choice of legal forum may also arise As result various

provisions of our policies that are designed to limit our risks such as limitations or exclusions from coverage

which limit the range and amount of liability to which we are exposed on policy or choice of forum which

provides us with predictable set of laws to govern our policies and the ability to lower costs by retaining legal

counsel in fewer jurisdictions may not be enforceable in the manner we intend and some or all of our other loss

limitation methods may prove to be ineffective One or more catastrophic or other events could result in claims

and expenses that substantially exceed our expectations and could have material adverse effect on our results of

operations
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Turmoil in the U.S and international financial markets could harm our business liquidity and financial

condition and our share price

Recent U.S debt ceiling and budget deficit concerns together with adverse sovereign debt conditions in

Europe have increased the possibility of further economic slowdowns These conditions including the

possibility of prolonged recession may potentially affect various aspects of our business including the demand

for and claims made under our products our counterparty credit risk and the ability of our customers

counterparties and others to establish or maintain their relationships with us our ability to access and efficiently

use internal and external capital resources and our investment performance Continued volatility in the U.S and

other securities markets may also adversely affect our share price

We may be adversely impacted by the European sovereign debt crisis

Developments in Europe have created uncertainty with respect to the ability of certain European countries to

continue to service their sovereign debt obligations The debt crisis and related European financial restructuring

efforts may cause the value of the Euro to deteriorate These factors could lead to an exit by member country

from the European Union countrys exit from the European Union could lead to devaluation of any currency

that such country introduces to replace the Euro Our customers or brokers located in the impacted country may

be unable to pay the monies due to us or may seek to renegotiate their insurance policies or reinsurance contracts

in the new currency at terms that are less favorable or unfavorable to us The resulting financial climate from

such an event could also lead to greater-than-expected losses on some of the in-force insurance policies or

reinsurance contracts For example directors and officers policies issued to financial institutions may experience

higher losses as result We may also experience increased loss activity in our trade credit and political risk

portfolio To the extent we suffer losses from the crisis in Europe such losses could be significant

For our reinsurance business we depend on the policies procedures and expertise of ceding companies

these companies may fail to accurately assess the risks they underwrite which may lead us to inaccurately

assess the risks we assume

Because we participate in reinsurance markets the success of our reinsurance underwriting efforts depends

in part Ofl the policies procedures and expertise of the ceding companies making the original underwriting

decisions when an insurer transfers some or all of its risk to reinsurer the insurer is sometimes referred to as

ceding company Underwriting is matter of judgment involving important assumptions about matters that

are inherently unpredictable arid beyond the ceding companies control and for which historical experience and

statistical analysis may not provide sufficient guidance We face the risk that the ceding companies may fail to

accurately assess the risks they underwrite which in turn may lead us to inaccurately assess the risks we assume

as reinsurance if this occurs the premiums that are ceded to us may not adequately compensate us and we could

face significant losses on these reinsurance contracts

The availability and cost of security arrangements for reinsurance transactions may materially impact our

ability to provide reinsurance from Bermuda to insurers domiciled in the United States

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd our Bermuda insurance and reinsurance company is not admitted

as an insurer nor is it accredited as reinsurer in any jurisdiction in the United States As result it is required

to post collateral security with respect to most reinsurance liabilities it assumes from ceding insurers domiciled in

the United States in order for U.S ceding companies to obtain credit on their U.S statutory financial statements

with respect to the insurance liabilities ceded to them Under applicable statutory provisions the security

arrangements may be in the form of letters of credit reinsurance trusts maintained by trustees or funds-withheld

arrangements where assets are held by the ceding company Allied World Assurance Company Ltd uses trust

accounts and has access to up to $1.45 billion in letters of credit under two letter of credit facilities The letter of

credit facilities impose restrictive covenants including restrictions on asset sales limitations on the incurrence of

certain liens and required collateral and financial strength levels Violations of these or other covenants could

result in the suspension of access to letters of credit or such letters of credit becoming due and payable Our

access to our existing letter of credit facilities is dependent on the ability of the banks that are parties to these

facilities to meet their commitments Our $1 billion letter of credit facility with Citibank Europe plc is on an

uncommitted basis which means Citibank Europe has agreed to offer us up to $1 billion in letters of credit hut
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they are not contractually obligated for that full amount Our $450 million syndicated letter of credit facility

expires in June 2016 The lenders under our letter of credit facilities may not be able to meet their commitments

if they become insolvent file for bankruptcy protection or if they otherwise experience shortages of capital and

liquidity If these letter of credit facilities are not sufficient or drawable or if Allied World Assurance Company
Ltd is unable to renew either or both of these facilities or to arrange for trust accounts or other types of security

on commercially acceptable terms its ability to provide reinsurance to U.S.-domiciled insurers may be severely

limited and adversely affected

In addition security arrangements with ceding insurers may subject our assets to security interests or may
require that portion of our assets be pledged to or otherwise held by third parties Although the investment

income derived from our assets while held in trust typically accrues to our benefit the investment of these assets

is governed by the terms of the letter of credit facilities and the investment regulations of the state of domicile of

the ceding insurer which generally regulate the amount and quality of investments permitted and which may be

more restrictive than the investment regulations applicable to us under Bermuda law These restrictions may
result in lower investment yields on these assets which could adversely affect our profitability

We depend on small number of brokers for large portion of our revenues The loss of business provided

by any one of them could adversely affect us

We market our insurance and reinsurance products worldwide through insurance and reinsurance brokers

For the year ended December 31 2012 our top three brokers represented approximately 55% of our total gross

premiums written Marsh Aon including Benfield Group Ltd and Willis were responsible for the distribution

of approximately 25% 19% and 11% respectively of our total gross premiums written for the
year ended

December 31 2012 Loss of all or substantial portion of the business produced by any one of those brokers

could have material adverse effect on our financial condition results of operations and business

Our reliance on brokers subjects us to their credit risk

In accordance with industry practice we frequently pay amounts owed on claims under our insurance and

reinsurance contracts to brokers and these brokers in turn pay these amounts to the customers that have

purchased insurance or reinsurance from us If broker fails to make such payment it is likely that in most

cases we will be liable to the client for the deficiency because of local laws or contractual obligations Likewise

when customer pays premiums for policies written by us to broker for further payment to us these premiums

are generally considered to have been paid and in most cases the client will no longer be liable to us for those

amounts whether or not we actually receive the premiums Consequently we assume degree of credit risk

associated with the brokers we use with respect to our insurance and reinsurance business

We may be unable to purchase reinsurance for our own account on commercially acceptable terms or to

collect under any reinsurance we have purchased

We acquire reinsurance purchased for our own account to mitigate the effects of large or multiple losses on

our financial condition From time to time market conditions have limited and in some cases prevented insurers

and reinsurers from obtaining the types and amounts of reinsurance they consider adequate for their business

needs For example following the events of September 11 2001 terms and conditions in the reinsurance markets

generally became less attractive to buyers of such coverage Similar conditions may occur at any time in the

future and we may not be able to purchase reinsurance in the areas and for the amounts required or desired Even

if reinsurance is generally available we may not be able to negotiate terms that we deem appropriate or

acceptable or to obtain coverage from entities with satisfactory financial resources

In addition the recent financial market turmoil may significantly adversely affect the ability of our

reinsurers and retrocessionaires to meet their obligations to us reinsurers insolvency or inability or refusal to

make payments under reinsurance or retrocessional reinsurance agreement with us could have material

adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations because we remain liable to the insured under

the corresponding coverages written by us
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Our investment performance may adversely affect our financial performance and ability to conduct

business

We derive significant portion of our income from our invested assets As result our operating results

depend in part on the performance of our investment portfolio Ongoing conditions in the U.S and international

financial markets have and could continue to adversely affect our investment portfolio Depending on market

conditions we could incur additional losses in future periods which could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition results of operations and business

Our investment portfolio is overseen by our Chief Investment Officer and managed by professional

investment management firms in accordance with the Investment Policy Statement approved by the Investment

Committee of the Board of Directors Our investment performance is subject to variety of risks including risks

related to general economic conditions market volatility and interest rate fluctuations liquidity risk and credit

and default risk Additionally with respect to some of our investments we are subject to pre-payment or

reinvestment risk our current Investment Policy Statement constrains the amount of our investment portfolio

that may be invested in alternatives such as hedge funds and private equity As result we may be subject to

restrictions on redemption which may limit our ability to withdraw funds or realize on such investments for

some period of time after our initial investment The values of and returns on such investments may also be

more volatile In addition investments in hedge funds may involve certain other risks including the limited

operating history of fund as well as risks associated with the strategies employed by the managers of the fund

Because of the unpredictable nature of losses that may arise under insurance or reinsurance policies written

by us our liquidity needs could be substantial and may arise at any time To the extent we are unsuccessful in

managing our investment portfolio within the context of our expected liabilities we may be forced to liquidate

our investments at limes and prices that are not optimal or we may have difficulty in liquidating some of our

alternative investments due to restrictions on sales transfers and redemptions noted above This could have

material adverse effect on the performance of our investment portfolio If our liquidity needs or general liability

profile unexpectedly change we may not be successful in continuing to structure our investment portfolio in its

current manner In addition investment losses could significantly decrease our book value thereby affecting our

ability to conduct business

While we maintain an investment portfolio with instruments rated highly by the recognized rating agencies

there are no assurances that these high ratings will be maintained Over the past several years companies with

highly-rated debt have filed for bankruptcy The assignment of high credit rating does not preclude the potential

for the risk of default on any investment instrument

Any increase in interest rates and/or credit spread levels could result in significant losses in the ftiir value of

our investment portfolio

Our investmertt portfolio contains interest-rate-sensitive instruments that may be adversely affected by

changes in interest rates Fluctuations in interest rates affect our returns on fixed income investments Generally

investment income will be reduced during sustained periods of lower interest rates as higher-yielding fixed

income securities are called mature or are sold and the proceeds reinvested at lower rates During periods of

rising interest rates prices of fixed income securities tend to fall arLd realized gains upon their sale are reduced

Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors including governmental monetary policies domestic and

international economic and political conditions and other factors beyond our control We may not be able to

effectively mitigate interest rate sensitivity In particular significant increase in interest rates could result in

significant losses realized or unrealized in the fair value of our investment portfolio and consequently could

have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations Additionally changes in the

credit spread the difference in the percentage yield between U.S Treasury securities and non-U.S Treasury

securities may negatively impact our investment portfolio as we may not be able to effectively mitigate credit

spread sensitivity In particular significant increase in credit spreads could result in significant losses realized

or unrealized in the fair value of our investment portfolio and consequently could have material adverse effect

on our financial condition and results of operations
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In addition our investment portfolio includes U.S government agency and non-agency commercial and

residential mortgage-backed securities As of December 31 2012 mortgage-backed securities constituted

approximately 22% of the fair value of our total investments and cash and cash equivalents of which 16% of the

fair value was invested in U.S government agency mortgage-backed securities Changes in interest rates can expose

us to prepayment risks on these investments In periods of declining interest rates mortgage prepayments generally

increase and mortgage-backed securities are generally prepaid more quickly requiring us to reinvest the proceeds at

the then current market rates In periods of rising interest rates mortgage-backed securities may have declining

levels of prepayments extending their maturity and duration thereby negatively impacting the securitys price

Our non-agency commercial and residential mortgage-backed securities are subject to delinquencies

defaults and losses on the underlying mortgage loans While many of the factors that led to such delinquencies

defaults and losses have moderated over the last 12 months further deterioration is possible Delinquencies

defaults and losses with regard to non-agency residential mortgage-backed securities are driven in part by
residential

property values decline or an extended flattening in property values may result in increased

delinquencies defaults and losses on residential mortgage loans generally especially with respect to second

homes and investor properties and with respect to any residential mortgage loans where the aggregate loan

amounts including any subordinate loans are close to or greater than the related property values This would

negatively impact the value of our securities

Our investment portfolio includes below investment-grade securities that have higher degree of credit or

default risk which could result in significant losses in the fair value of our investment portfolio

Our investment portfolio consists primarily of investment grade fixed-maturity securities We invest

smaller portion of the portfolio in below investment-grade securities As of December 31 2012 below

investment-grade securities comprised approximately 11 of our fixed-maturity portfolio These securities

which pay higher rate of interest also have higher degree of credit or default risk These securities may also

be less liquid and/or may experience default losses in times of economic weakness or market disruptions such as

recession which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

The valuation of our investments may include methodologies estimations and assumptions that are subject

to differing interpretations and could result in changes to investment valuations that may materially

adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations

During periods of market disruptions it may be difficult to value certain of our securities if trading becomes

less frequent or market data becomes less observable In addition there may be certain asset classes that were in

active markets with significant observable data that become illiquid due to the recent financial environment In

such cases the valuation of greater number of securities in our investment portfolio may require more

subjectivity and management judgment As such valuations may include inputs and assumptions that are less

observable or require greater estimation as well as valuation methods that are more sophisticated or require

greater estimation thereby resulting in values which may be less than the value at which the investments may be

ultimately sold Further rapidly changing and unpredictable credit and equity market conditions could materially

affect the valuation of securities as reported within our consolidated financial statements and the period-to-period

changes in value could vary significantly Decreases in value could have material adverse effect on our

financial condition and results of operations

We may be adversely affected by fluctuations in currency exchange rates

The U.S dollar is our reporting currency and the functional currency of all of our operating subsidiaries We
enter into insurance and reinsurance contracts where the premiums receivable and losses payable are

denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar In addition we maintain portion of our investments and

liabilities in currencies other than the U.S dollar Assets in non-U.S currencies are generally converted into U.S

dollars at the time of receipt When we incur liability in non-U.S currency we carry such liability on our

books in the original currency These liabilities are converted from the non-U.S currency to U.S dollars at the

time of payment We may incur foreign currency exchange gains or losses as we ultimately receive premiums

and settle claims required to be paid in foreign currencies
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We have currency hedges in place that seek to alleviate our potential exposure
to volatility in foreign

exchange rates and intend to consider the use of additional hedges when we are advised of known or probable

significant losses that will be paid in currencies other than the U.S dollar To the extent that we do not seek to

hedge our foreign currency risk or our hedges prove ineffective the impact of movement in foreign currency

exchange rates could adversely affect our financial condition or results of operations The sovereign debt crisis in

Europe and the related restructuring efforts may among other factors magnify the risk of exchange rate

volatility

We may require additional capital in the future that may not be available to us on commercially favorable

terms

Our future capital requirements depend on many factors including our ability to write new business and to

establish premium rates and reserves at levels sufficient to cover losses To the extent that the funds generated by

insurance premiums received arid sale proceeds and income from our investment portfolio are insufficient to fund

future operating requirements and cover losses and loss expenses we may need to raise additional funds through

financings or reduce our assets Financial market volatility since 2008 has created uncertainty in the equity and

credit markets and may have affected our ability and the ability of others within our industry to raise additional

capital in the public or private markets Any future financing if available at all may be on terms that are not

lavorable to us In the case of equity financing dilution to our shareholders could result and the securities issued

may have rights preferences and privileges that are senior or otherwise superior to those of our common shares

Our business could be adversely affected if we lose any member our management team or are unable to

attract and retain our personnel

Our success depends in substantial part on our ability to attract and retain our employees who generate and

service our business We rely substantially on the services of our executive management team If we lose the

services of any member of our executive management team our business could be adversely affected If we are

unable to attract and retain other talented personnel the further implementation of our business strategy could be

impeded This in iurn could have material adverse effect on our business We currently have written

employment agreements with our Chief Executive Officer General Counsel Chief Actuary and certain other

members of our exeoutive management team We do not maintain key man life insurance policies for any of our

employees

Employee error and misconduct may be difficult to detect and prevent and could adversely affect our

business results of operations and financial condition

We may experience losses from among other things fraud errors the failure to document transactions

properly or to obtain proper
internal authorization or the failure to comply with regulatory or legal requirements

It is not always possible to deter or prevent employee misconduct and the precautions we take to prevent and

detect this activity may not be effective in all cases Losses related to employee error or misconduct could

adversely affect our financial condition results of operations and business

If program administrator were to exceed its underwriting authority or otherwise breach obligations owed

to us we could be adversely affected

We write portion of our insurance business through relationships with program administrators under

contracts pursuant to which we authorize such program administrators to underwrite and bind business on our

behalf within guidelines we prescribe In this structure we rely on controls incorporated in the provisions of the

program administration agreement as well as on the administrators internal controls to limit the risks insured to

those which are within the prescribed parameters Although we monitor program administrators on an ongoing

basis our monitoring efforts may not be adequate or our program administrators could exceed their underwriting

authorities or otherwise breach obligations owed to us We are liable to policyholders under the terms of policies

underwritten by program administrators and to the extent such administrators exceed their authorities or

otherwise breach their obligations to us our financial condition or results of operations could be material

adversely affected
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If we experience dfficulties with our information technology and telecommunications systems and/or data

security our ability to conduct our business might be adversely affected

We rely heavily on the successful uninterrupted functioning of our information technology IT and

telecommunications systems Our business and continued expansion is highly dependent upon our ability to

perform in an efficient and uninterrupted fashion necessary business functions such as pricing quoting and

processing policies paying claims performing actuarial and other modeling functions failure of our IT and

telecommunication systems or the termination of third-party software licenses we rely on in order to maintain

such systems could materially impact our ability to write and process business provide customer service pay

claims in timely manner or perform other necessary actuarial legal financial and other business functions

Computer viruses hackers and other external hazards as well as internal exposures such as potentially dishonest

employees could
expose our IT and data systems to security breaches that may result in liability to us cause our

data to be corrupted and cause us to commit resources management time and money to prevent or correct

security breaches Some of our key business partners rely on our systems for critical underwriting and

administration functions and interruption and/or failure of these systems could cause significant liability to them
If we do not maintain adequate IT and telecommunications systems we could experience adverse consequences

including inadequate information on which to base critical decisions the loss of existing customers difficulty in

attracting new customers litigation exposures and increased administrative expenses As result our ability to

conduct our business might be adversely affected

The integration of acquired companies the growth of our operations through new lines of insurance or

reinsurance business the expansion into new geographic regions and/or the entering into joint ventures or

partnerships may expose us to operational risks

Acquisitions involve numerous risks including operational strategic and financial risks such as potential

liabilities associated with the acquired business We may experience difficulties in integrating an acquired

company which could adversely affect the acquired companys performance or prevent us from realizing

anticipated synergies cost savings and operational efficiencies Our existing businesses could also be negatively

impacted by acquisitions Expanding our lines of business expanding our geographic reach and entering into

joint ventures or partnerships also involve operational strategic and financial risks including retaining qualified

management and implementing satisfactory budgetary financial and operational controls Our failure to manage

successfully these risks may adversely affect our financial condition results of operations or business or we may
not realize any of the intended benefits

As result of the higher par value of our common shares and increased shareholder appro val power under

Swiss law we have less flexibility with respect to certain aspects of capital management

The par value of our common shares is CHF 12.64 per share as may be adjusted in connection with the

payment of dividends by virtue of par value reduction as approved by our shareholders Under Swiss law we

may not issue shares below par value In the event we need to raise common equity capital at time when the

trading price of our shares is below the par value of such shares we will be unable to do so As consequence we

would have to consider reducing the par value of our common shares which in turn would reduce our ability to

make tax-free distributions by par value reductions to our shareholders We would also need to obtain approval

of our shareholders to decrease the par value of our common shares which would require us to file proxy

statement with the SEC and convene meeting of shareholders This would delay any capital raising plans and

there is no assurance that we would be able to obtain such shareholder approval See Risks Related to

Taxation We may not be able to make distributions or repurchase shares without subjecting you to Swiss

withholding tax

Swiss law affords shareholders more powers and allows our shareholders to authorize share capital that can

be issued by the Board of Directors without shareholder approval Under Swiss law this authorization is limited

to 50% of companys existing registered share capital and must be renewed by the shareholders every two

years Under our Articles of Association this authorization is further limited to 20% of our existing registered

share capital Additionally subject to specified exceptions described in our Articles of Association Swiss law

grants preemptive rights to existing shareholders to subscribe for new issuances of shares and other securities
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Swiss law also does not provide as much flexibility in the various terms that can attach to different classes of

shares For example we will not be able to issue preferred stock without the approval of majority of the votes

cast at shareholder meeting Swiss law also reserves for approval by shareholders many corporate actions such

as that dividends must be approved by shareholders There may be situations where the restrictions on capital

management flexibility under Swiss law could have material adverse effect on us and our shareholders

We may become subject to additional Swiss regulation

Under so-called group supervision FINMA has the right to supervise us on group-wide basis On

December II 2009 we received non-binding written confirmation from FINMA that it will not subject us to

group supervision based primarily on the fact that most of our senior management will not reside in Switzerland

Factors which can cause FINMA to subject us to group supervision include the location of our top management

and corresponding requests by foreign regulators We cannot assure you that our future business needs may not

require us to have greater management presence in Switzerland or that FINMA will not otherwise determine to

exercise group supervision over us If subjected to group supervision we may incur additional costs and

administrative obligations These additional costs and administrative obligations may have substantial impact

on our organizational and operational flexibility

Risks Related to the Insurance and Reinsurance Business

The insurance and reinsurance business is historically cyclical and we expect to experience periods with

excess underwriting capacity and unfavorable premium rates and policy terms and conditions

Historically insurers and reinsurers have experienced significant fluctuations in operating results due to

competition frequency of occurrence or severity of catastrophic events levels of underwriting capacity general

economic conditions and other factors The supply of insurance and reinsurance is related to prevailing prices

the level of insured losses and the level of industry surplus which in turn may fluctuate in
response

to changes

in rates of return on investments being earned in the insurance and reinsurance industry The occurrence or non

occurrence of catastrophic events the frequency and severity of which are unpredictable affects both industry

results and consequently prevailing market prices for certain of our products As result of these factors the

insurance and reinsurance business historically has been cyclical industry characterized by periods of intense

competition on price and policy terms due to excessive underwriting capacity as well as periods when shortages

of capacity permit favorable premium rates and policy terms and conditions Increases in the supply of insurance

and reinsurance may have adverse consequences for us including fewer policies and contracts written lower

premium rates increased expenses for customer acquisition and retention and less favorable policy terms and

conditions

Increased competition in the insurance and reinsurance markets in which we operate could adversely

impact our operating margins

The insurance and reinsurance industry are highly compelitive We compete with major U.S and

international insurers and reinsurers Many of our competitors have greater financial marketing and management

resources We also compete with new companies that continue to be formed to enter the insurance and

reinsurance markets

In addition risk-linked securities and derivative and other non-traditional risk transfer mechanisms and

vehicles are being developed and offered by other parties including entities other than insurance and reinsurance

companies The availability of these non-traditional products could reduce the demand for traditional insurance

and reinsurance number of new proposed or potential industry or legislative developments could further

increase competition in our industry

New competition from these developments could result in fewer contracts written lower premium rates

increased expenses for customer acquisition and retention and less favorable policy terms and conditions which

could have material adverse effect on our growth financial condition or results of operations
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The effects of emerging claims and
coverage

issues on our business are uncertain

As industry practices and legal judicial social and other conditions change unexpected and unintended

issues related to claims and coverage may emerge These issues may adversely affect our business by either

extending coverage beyond our underwriting intent or by increasing the number or size of claims In some

instances these changes may not become apparent until some time after we have issued insurance or reinsurance

contracts that are affected by the changes As result the full extent of liability under our insurance and

reinsurance contracts may not be known for many years after contract is issued Examples of emerging claims

and
coverage

issues include

larger defense costs settlements and jury awards in cases involving professionals and corporate directors

and officers covered by professional liability and directors and officers liability insurance and

trend of plaintiffs targeting property and casualty insurers in class action litigation related to claims

handling insurance sales practices and other practices related to the conduct of our business

Risks Related to Laws and Regulations Applicable to Us

Compliance by our insurance subsidiaries with the legal and regulatory requirements to which they are

subject is expensive Any failure to comply could have material adverse effect on our business

Our insurance subsidiaries are required to comply with wide variety of laws and regulations applicable to

insurance or reinsurance companies both in the jurisdictions in which they are organized and where they sell

their insurance and reinsurance products The insurance and regulatory environment in particular for offshore

insurance and reinsurance companies has become subject to increased scrutiny in many jurisdictions including

the United States various states within the United States and the United Kingdom In the past there have been

Congressional and other initiatives in the United States regarding increased supervision and regulation of the

insurance industry It is not possible to predict the future impact of changes in laws and regulations on our

operations The cost of complying with any new legal requirements affecting our subsidiaries could have

material adverse effect on our business

In addition our subsidiaries may not always be able to obtain or maintain
necessary licenses permits

authorizations or accreditations They also may not be able to fully comply with or to obtain appropriate

exemptions from the laws and regulations applicable to them Any failure to comply with applicable law or to

obtain appropriate exemptions could result in restrictions on either the ability of the company in question as well

as potentially its affiliates to do business in one or more of the jurisdictions in which they operate or on brokers

on which we rely to produce business for us In addition any such failure to comply with applicable laws or to

obtain appropriate exemptions could result in the imposition of fines or other sanctions Any of these sanctions

could have material adverse effect on our business

Our Bermuda insurance subsidiary Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is registered as Class

Bermuda insurance and reinsurance company and is subject to regulation and supervision in Bermuda The

applicable Bermudian statutes and regulations generally are designed to protect insureds and ceding insurance

companies rather than shareholders or noteholders Among other things those statutes and regulations

require Allied World Assurance Company Ltd to maintain minimum levels of capital and surplus

impose liquidity requirements which restrict the amount and type of investments it may hold

prescribe solvency standards that it must meet and

restrict payments of dividends and reductions of capital and provide for the performance of periodic

examinations of Allied World Assurance Company Ltd and its financial condition

These statutes and regulations may in effect restrict the ability of Allied World Assurance Company Ltd to

write new business or distribute funds Although it conducts its operations from Bermuda Allied World

Assurance Company Ltd is not authorized to directly underwrite local risks in Bermuda

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd also operates branch offices in Hong Kong Singapore and Labuan

which offices are regulated by the Office of the Insurance Commissioner in Hong Kong the Monetary Authority

of Singapore and the Labuan Financial Services Authority respectively
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Our U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries Allied World Assurance Company U.S Inc and Darwin

National Assurance Company each Delaware domiciled subsidiary Allied World National Assurance

Company and Allied World Insurance Company each New Hampshire domiciled subsidiary and Darwin

Select Insurance Company and Vantapro Specialty Insurance Company each an Arkansas domiciled subsidiary

are subject to the statutes and regulations of their relevant state of domicile as well as any
other state in the

United States where they conduct business in the states where the companies are admitted the companies must

comply with all insurance laws and regulations including insurance rate and form requirements Insurance laws

and regulations may vary significantly from state to state In those states where the companies act as surplus lines

camers the states regulation focuses mainly on the companys solvency

Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited an Irish domiciled insurer operates within the E.U

non-life insurance legal and regulatory framework as established under the Non-Life Directive and operates

branch in London England Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited is required to operate in

accordance with the provisions of the Irish Insurance Acts and Regulations and the requirements of the CBI

Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited an Irish domiciled reinsurer is regulated by the

CBI pursuant to the Central Bank Acts 1942 to 2010 all statutory instruments relating to reinsurance made or

adopted under the European Communities Acts 1972 to 2009 and the provisions of the European Communities

Reinsurance Regulations 2006 which transposed the E.U Reinsurance Directive into Irish law and operates

branches in London England and Zug Switzerland Pursuant to the provisions of these regulations reinsurance

undertakings may subject to the satisfaction of certain formalities carry on reinsurance business in other E.U

member states either directly from the home member state on freedom to provide services basis or through

local branches by way of permanent establishment

Capita as the managing agent for our Lloyds Syndicate 2232 is regulated by the FSA and must adhere to

certain minimuni standards relating to management underwriting control and solvency as established by

Lloyds Capita niust also ensure that the underwriting activities of Lloyds Syndicate 2232 are in accordance

with the business plan approved by Lloyds annually

Allied World Assurance Company AG Swiss domiciled insurer and reinsurer located in Zug is regulated

by FINMA

Our Bermuda operating company could become subject to regulation in the United States

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd our Bermuda operating company is not admitted as an insurer nor

accredited as reinsurer in any jurisdiction in the United States For the
year

ended December 31 2012 more

than 70% of the gross premiums written by Allied World Assurance Company Ltd however arc derived from

insurance or reinsurance contracts entered into with entities domiciled in the United States The insurance laws of

each state in the United States regulate the sale of insurance and reinsurance within the states jurisdiction by

foreign insurers Allied World Assurance Company Ltd conducts its business through its Bermuda office and

does not maintain an office and its personnel do not solicit insurance business resolve claims or conduct other

insurance business in the United States While Allied World Assurance Company Ltd does not believe it is in

violation of insurane laws of any jurisdiction in the United States we cannot be certain that inquiries or

challenges to our insurance and reinsurance activities will not be raised in the future It is possible that if Allied

World Assurance Company Ltd were to become subject to any
laws of this type at any time in the future we

would not be in compliance with the requirements of those laws

Our holding company structure and regulatory and other constraints affect our ability to pay dividends and

make other payments

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG is holding company and as such has no substantial

operations of its own It does not have any significant assets other than its ownership of the shares of its direct

and indirect subsidiaries Dividends and other permitted distributions from subsidiaries are expected to be the

sole source of funds for Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG to meet any ongoing cash requirements

and to pay any dividends to shareholders
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Swiss Law

Under Swiss law dividends may be paid out only if we have sufficient distributable profits from previous

fiscal years or if we have legal reserves each as will be presented on Holdings audited statutory financial

statements prepared in accordance with Swiss law Payments out of the share capital in other words the

aggregate par value of our share capital in the form of dividends are not allowed however payments out of

share capital may be made by way of capital reduction to achieve similar result as the payment of dividends

The affirmative vote of shareholders holding majority of the votes cast at shareholder meeting must approve

reserve reclassifications and distributions of dividends Our Board of Directors may propose to shareholders that

dividend be paid but cannot itself authorize the dividend In addition our shareholders may propose dividends

without any dividend proposal by the Board of Directors Under Swiss law upon satisfaction of all legal

requirements we will be required to submit an application to the Swiss Commercial Register to register each

applicable par value reduction Without effective registration of the appropriate documentation with the Swiss

Commercial Register we will not be able to proceed with the payment of
any

installment of any dividend made

by par value reduction We cannot assure you that the Swiss Commercial Register will
approve

the registration of

any applicable par
value reduction

Under Swiss law if our general capital reserves amount to less than 20% of the share capital recorded in the

Swiss Commercial Register i.e 20% of the aggregate par value of our capital then at least 5% of our annual

profit must be retained as general reserves Swiss law permits us to accrue additional general reserves In

addition we are required to create special reserve on Holdings audited statutory financial statements in the

amount of the purchase price of common shares we or any of our subsidiaries repurchases which amount may
not be used for dividends

Swiss companies generally must maintain separate audited statutory financial statements for the purpose of

among other things determining the amounts available for the return of capital to shareholders including by way

of distribution of dividends Amounts available for the return of capital as indicated on Holdings audited

statutory financial statements may be materially different from amounts reflected in our consolidated U.S GAAP

financial statements Our auditor must confirm that dividend proposal made to shareholders complies with

Swiss law and our Articles of Association

We are required under Swiss law to declare any dividends and other capital distributions in Swiss francs

We have made and intend to continue to make any dividend payments to holders of our common shares in U.S

dollars Continental Stock Transfer Trust Company our transfer agent will be responsible for paying the U.S

dollars to registered holders of our common shares less amounts subject to withholding for taxes As result

shareholders may be exposed to fluctuations in the U.S dollarSwiss franc exchange rate between the date used

for purposes of calculating the Swiss franc amount of any proposed dividend or par value reduction and the

relevant payment date

Bermuda Law

Bermuda law including Bermuda insurance regulations and the Companies Act restricts the declaration and

payment of dividends and the making of distributions by our Bermuda entities unless specified requirements are

met Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is prohibited from paying dividends of more than 25% of its total

statutory capital and surplus as shown in its previous financial years statutory balance sheet without prior

BMA approval Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is also prohibited from declaring or paying dividends

without the approval of the BMA if Allied World Assurance Company Ltd failed to meet its minimum solvency

margin and minimum liquidity ratio on the last day of the previous financial year

Furthermore in order to reduce its total statutory capital by 15% or more Allied World Assurance

Company Ltd would require the prior approval of the BMA In addition Bermuda corporate law prohibits

company from declaring or paying dividend if there are reasonable grounds for believing that the company

is or would after the payment be unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or ii the realizable value of

the companys assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities its issued share capital and its

share premium accounts
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U.S and Iris/i Law

In addition our U.S and Irish insurance subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory restrictions

limiting their ability to declare and pay any dividends

In general U.S insurance company subsidiary may not pay an extraordinary dividend or distribution

until 30 days after the applicable insurance regulator has received notice of the intended payment and has not

objected to or has approved the payment within the 30-day period In general an extraordinary dividend or

distribution is defined by these laws and regulations as dividend or distribution that together with other

dividends and distributions made within the preceding 12 months exceeds the greater or in some jurisdictions

the lesser of 10% of the insurers statutory surplus as of the immediately prior year end or or the

statutory net income during the prior calendar year The laws and regulations of some of these U.S jurisdictions

also prohibit an insurer from declaring or paying dividend except out of its earned surplus For example

payments of dividends by U.S insurance companies are subject to restrictions on statutory surplus pursuant to

state law In addition insurance regulators may prohibit the payment of ordinary dividends or other payments by

our U.S insurance ubsidiaries such as payment under tax sharing agreement or for employee or other

services if they determine that such payment could be adverse to such subsidiaries policyholders

Without the consent of the CBI Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited and Allied World

Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited are not permitted to reduce the level of their capital may not make

any dividend payments may not make inter-company loans and must maintain minimum solvency margin

These rules and regulations may have the effect of restricting the ability of these companies to declare and pay

dividends

In addition we have insurance subsidiaries that are the parent company for other insurance subsidiaries and

dividends and other distributions are subject to multiple layers of the regulations discussed above as funds are

pushed up to our ult mate parent company The inability of any of our insurance subsidiaries to pay dividends in

an amount sufficient to enable Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG to meet its cash requirements at

the holding company level could have material adverse effect on our business our ability to transfer capital

from one subsidiary to another and our ability to declare and pay dividends to our shareholders Furthermore

Allied World Bermuda has senior notes outstanding The inability of any of our insurance subsidiaries to pay

dividends in an amount sufficient to enable Allied World Bermuda to make payments on the outstanding senior

notes could have material adverse effect on our business

In 2010 the U.S Congress enacted healthcare reform legislation that could have material impact on our

business

Our U.S insurance segment and our international insurance segment derive substantial revenues from

healthcare liability underwriting in the United States that is providing insurance to individuals and institutions

that participate in the U.S healthcare delivery infrastructure U.S healthcare legislation in 2010 has and will

continue to etTect far-reaching changes in the healthcare delivery system and the healthcare cost reimbursement

structure in the United States and could negatively impact our healthcare liability business Additionally future

healthcare proposals could include tort reform provisions under which plaintiffs would be restricted in their

ability to bring suit against healthcare providers which could negatively impact the demand for our healthcare

liability products While the impact of this healthcare legislation or future healthcare proposals on our business is

difficult to predict any material changes in how healthcare providers insure their malpractice liability risks could

have material adverse effect on our results of operations

In 2010 the U.S Congress enacted the Dodd Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

Dodd-Frank Act which could have an impact on our business

The Dodd-Frank Act which effects sweeping changes to financial services regulation in the United States

was enacted in July 2010 The Dodd-Frank Act establishes the Financial Services Oversight Council FSOC
and the Federal Insurance Office FlO and in limited instances authorizes the federal preemption of certain

state insurance laws The FSOC and FIO are authorized to study monitor and report to Congress on the U.S

insurance industry and the significance of global reinsurance to the U.S insurance market The potential impact
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of the Dodd-Frank Act on the U.S insurance business is not clear however our business could be affected by

changes to the U.S system of insurance regulation or the designation of insurers or reinsurers with which we do

business as systemically significant non-bank financial companies

Other legislative regulatory and industry initiatives could adversely affect our business

The insurance and reinsurance regulatory framework is subject to heavy scrutiny by U.S federal and

individual state governments as well as an increasing number of international authorities Government regulators

are generally concerned with the protection of policyholders to the exclusion of other constituencies including

shareholders Governmental authorities in the United States and worldwide seem increasingly interested in the

potential risks posed by the insurance industry as whole and to commercial and financial systems in general

While we do not believe these inquiries have identified meaningful new risks posed by the insurance and

reinsurance industry and while we cannot predict the exact nature timing or scope
of possible governmental

initiatives there may be increased regulatory intervention in our industry in the future For example the U.S

federal government has increased its scrutiny of the insurance regulatory framework in recent years and some

state legislators have considered or enacted laws that will alter and likely increase state regulation of insurance

and reinsurance companies and holding companies Moreover the NAIC which is an association of the

insurance commissioners of all 50 states and the District of Columbia and state insurance regulators regularly

reexamine existing laws and regulations

For example we could be adversely affected by proposals to

provide insurance and reinsurance capacity in markets and to consumers that we target

require our participation in industry pools and guaranty associations

expand the scope of coverage under existing policies

increasingly mandate the terms of insurance and reinsurance policies

establish new federal insurance regulator or financial industry systemic risk regulator

revise laws and regulations under which we operate including potential change to U.S tax laws to

disallow or limit the current tax deduction for reinsurance premiums paid by our U.S subsidiaries to our

Bermuda insurance subsidiary for reinsurance protections it provides to our U.S subsidiaries or

disproportionately benefit the companies of one country over those of another

With respect to international measures an E.U directive concerning the capital adequacy risk management

and regulatory reporting for insurers and reinsurers Solvency II which was adopted by the European

Parliament in April 2009 may affect our insurance businesses Implementation of Solvency II by E.U member

states is anticipated at the beginning of 2015 Implementing those measures necessary for compliance with the

requirements of Solvency II may require us to utilize significant amount of resources to ensure compliance In

addition the capital and solvency margin requirements of Solvency II may lead to either an increase or decrease

of the capital required by our E.U domiciled insurers in order that they comply with Solvency II Solvency II

provides for the supervision of insurers and reinsurers on both solo entity level and
group basis In

respect of

our non-E.U subsidiaries engaging in E.U insurance or reinsurance business should the regulatory regime in

which they are operating not be deemed equivalent to that established within the E.U pursuant to Solvency II

additional capital requirements may be imposed in order that such companies may continue to insure or reinsure

EU domiciled risklcedents

We are unable to predict the future impact on our operations of changes in the laws and regulations to which

we are or may become subject Moreover our exposure to potential regulatory initiatives could be heightened by

the fact that our principal insurance subsidiary is domiciled in and operates exclusively from Bermuda For

example Bermuda small jurisdiction may be disadvantaged in participating in global or cross-border

regulatory matters as compared with larger jurisdictions such as the United States or the leading E.U countries

In addition Bermuda which is currently an overseas territory of the United Kingdom may consider changes to

its relationship with the United Kingdom in the future These changes could adversely affect Bermudas position

with respect to its regulatory initiatives which could adversely impact us commercially
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Changes in currezt accounting practices and future pronouncements may materially impact our reported

financial results

Developments in accounting practices for example convergence of U.S GAAP with International

Financial Reporting Standards or IFRS may require considerable additional expense to comply with

particularly if we are required to prepare information relating to prior periods for comparison purposes or to

apply the new requirements retroactively The impact of changes in current accounting practices and future

pronouncements cannot be predicted but may affect the results of our operations including among other things

the calculation of net income

We are subject to the U.S Foreign Corrupt Practices Act the U.K Bribery Act 2010 and simikir worldwide

anti-bribery laws which impose restrictions and may carry
substantial penalties

The U.S Foreign Corrupt Practices Act the U.K Bribery Act 2010 and anti-bribery laws in other

jurisdictions generally prohibit companies and their intermediaries from making improper payments for the

purpose of obtaining or retaining business or other commercial advantage Our corporate policies mandate

compliance with these anti-bribery laws which often carry substantial penalties We cannot assure you that our

internal control policies and procedures will protect us from reckless or other inappropriate acts committed by

our directors otficers employees affiliates or agents Violations of these laws or allegations of such violations

could havc material adverse effect on our business financial position and results of operations and could cause

the niarket value of our common shares to decline

Risks Related to Ownership of Our Common Shares

Future sales of our common shares may adversely affect the market price

As of February II 2013 we had 34541409 common shares outstanding Up to an additional 1822775

common shares may be issuable upon the vesting and exercise of outstanding stock options restricted stock units

and performance-based equity awards We have filed registration statements on Form S-8 under the Securities

Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act to register common shares issued or reserved for issuance under

the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2001 Employee Stock Option

Plan the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive

Plan the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive

Plan the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG 2012 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan and the

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Amended and Restated 2008 Employee Share Purchase Plan

Subject to the exercise of issued and outstanding stock options shares registered under the registration statements

on Form S-S will be available for sale to the public We cannot predict what effect if any future sales of our

common shares or the availability of common shares for future sale will have on the market price of our

common shares Sales of substantial amounts of our common shares in the public market or the perception that

sales of this type could occur could depress the market price of our common shares and may make it more

difficult for you to sell your common shares at time and price that you deem appropriate

Our Articles of Association contain restrictions on voting ownership and transfers of our common shares

Our Articles of Association generally provide that shareholders have one vote for each common share held

by them and are entitled to vote at all meetings of shareholders 1-lowever the voting rights exercisable by

shareholder may be limited so that certain persons or groups are not deemed to hold 10% or more of the voting

power conferred by our common shares Moreover these provisions could have the effect of reducing the voting

power of some shareholders who would not otherwise be subject to the limitation by virtue of their direct share

ownership Our Board of Directors may refuse to register holders of shares as shareholders with voting rights

based on certain grounds including if the holder would directly or indirectly formally constructively or

beneficially own as described in Articles and 14 of our Articles of Association or otherwise control voting

rights with respect to 10% or more of our registered share capital recorded in the Swiss Commercial Register In

addition our Board of Directors shall reject entry of holders of voting shares as shareholders with voting rights in
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the share register or shall decide on their deregistration when the acquirer or shareholder upon request does not

expressly state that it has acquired or holds the voting shares for its own account and benefit Furthermore our

Board of Directors may cancel with retroactive application the registration of shareholder with voting rights if

the initial registration was on the basis of false information in the shareholders application Shareholders

registered without voting rights may not participate in or vote at our shareholders meetings but will be entitled to

dividends preemptive rights and liquidation proceeds Only shareholders that are registered as shareholders with

voting rights on the relevant record date are permitted to participate in and vote at shareholders meeting

Anti-takeover provisions in our Articles of Association could impede an attempt to replace or remove our

directors which could diminish the value of our common shares

Our Articles of Association contain provisions that may entrench directors and make it more difficult for

shareholders to replace directors even if the shareholders consider it beneficial to do so In addition these

provisions could delay or prevent change of control that shareholder might consider favorable For example

these provisions may prevent shareholder from receiving the benefit from any premium over the market price

of our shares offered by bidder in potential takeover Even in the absence of an attempt to effect change in

management or takeover attempt these provisions may adversely affect the prevailing market price of our

common shares if they are viewed as discouraging changes in management and takeover attempts in the future

For example the following provisions in our Articles of Association could have such an effect

the election of our directors is staggered meaning that members of only one of three classes of our

directors are elected each year thus limiting shareholders ability to replace directors

shareholders whose shares
represent 10% or more of our total voting shares will be reduced to less than

10% of the total voting power Conversely shareholders owning less than 10% of the total voting power

may gain increased voting power as result of these cutbacks

our directors may decline the registration of shareholder as shareholder with voting rights in the share

register if and to the extent such shareholder owns or otherwise controls alone or together with others 10%

of our total voting rights or if such shareholder refuses to confirm to us that it has acquired the voting

shares for its own account and benefit and

at any
time until May 2014 our Board of Directors has the power to issue number of voting shares up

to 20% of our share capital registered in the Swiss Commercial Register and to limit or withdraw the

preemptive rights of the existing shareholders in various circumstances

As shareholder of our company you may have greater difficulties in protecting your interests than as

shareholder of U.S corporation

Swiss law differs in material
respects from laws generally applicable to U.S corporations and their

shareholders Taken together with the provisions of our Articles of Association some of these differences may
result in your having greater difficulties in protecting your interests as shareholder of our company than you

would have as shareholder of U.S corporation This affects among other things the circumstances under

which transactions involving an interested director are voidable whether an interested director can be held

accountable for
any

benefit realized in transaction with our company what approvals are required for business

combinations by our company with large shareholder or wholly-owned subsidiary what rights you may have

as shareholder to enforce specified provisions of Swiss corporate law or our Articles of Association the rights

of shareholders to bring class action and derivative lawsuits and the circumstances under which we may
indemnify our directors and officers

It may be difficult to enforce service ofprocess and enforcement ofjudgments against us and our officers

and directors

Holdings is incorporated pursuant to the laws of Switzerland In addition certain of our directors and

officers reside outside the United States and all or substantial portion of our assets and the assets of such

persons are located in jurisdictions outside the United States As such it may be difficult or impossible to effect
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service of process within the United States upon us or those persons or to recover against us or them on

judgments of U.S courts including judgments predicated upon civil liability provisions of the U.S federal

securities laws

We have been advised by Swiss counsel that there is doubt as to whether the courts in Switzerland would

enforce judgments of U.S courts obtained in actions against us or our directors and officers predicated upon the

civil liability provisions of the U.S federal securities laws or original actions brought in Switzerland against us

or such persons predicated solely upon U.S federal securities laws Further we have been advised by Swiss

counsel that there is no treaty in effect between the United States and Switzerland providing for the enforcement

of judgments of U.S courts Some remedies available under the laws of U.S jurisdictions including some

remedies available under the U.S federal securities laws may not be allowed in Swiss courts as contrary to that

jurisdictions public policy Because judgments of U.S courts are not automatically enforceable in Switzerland

it may be difficult for investors to recover against us based upon such judgments

There are regulatory limitations on the ownership and transfer of our common shares

The BMA must approve
all issuances and transfers of securities of our Bermuda exempted companies

Before any shareholder acquires 10% or more of the voting shares either directly or indirectly of
any

of our U.S

insurance subsidiaries that shareholder must file an acquisition statement with and obtain prior approval from the

domiciliary insurance commissioner of the respective company Similar provisions apply to our Lloyds

corporate member Any company or individual that together with its or his associates directly or indirectly

acquires 10% or more of the shares in Lloyds corporate member or its parent company or is entitled to

exercise or control the exercise of 10% or more of the voting power in such Lloyds corporate member or its

parent company wculd be considered to have acquired control for the purposes of the relevant legislation as

would person who had significant influence over the management of such Lloyds corporate member or its

parent company by virtue of his shareholding or voting power in either In such case the controlling entity

would be required to provide notice to Lloyds

Risks Related to Taxation

U.S taxation of our non-U.S companies could materially adversely affect our financial condition and

results of operations

We believe thai our non-U.S companies including our Swiss Bermuda and Irish companies have operated

and will operate their respective businesses in manner that will not cause them to be subject to U.S tax other

than U.S federal excise tax on insurance and reinsurance premiums and withholding tax on specified investment

income from U.S sources on the basis that none of them are engaged in U.S trade or business However there

are no definitive standards under current law as to those activities that constitute U.S trade or business and the

determination of wiether non-U.S company is engaged in U.S trade or business is inherently factual

Therefore we cannot assure you that the U.S Internal Revenue Service the IRS will not contend that non-

U.S company is engaged in U.S trade or business If any of the non-U.S companies are engaged in U.S

trade or business and does not qualify for benefits under the applicable income tax treaty such company may be

subject to U.S federal income taxation at regular corporate rates on its premium income from U.S sources and

investment income that is effectively connected with its U.S trade or business In addition U.S federal branch

profits tax at the rate of 30% may be imposed on the earnings and profits attributable to such income All of the

premium income from U.S sources and significant portion of investment income of such company as

computed under Section 842 of the U.S Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended requiring that foreign

company carrying on U.S insurance or reinsurance business have certain minimum amount of effectively

connected net investment income determined in accordance with formula that depends in part on the amount

of U.S risks insurel or reinsured by such company may be subject to U.S federal income and branch profits

taxes

If Allied World Assurance Company Ltd our Bermuda insurance subsidiary or any Bermuda insurance

subsidiary we form or acquire in the future is engaged in U.S trade or business and qualifies for benefits under

the United States-Bermuda tax treaty U.S federal income taxation of such subsidiary will depend on whether

it maintains U.S permanent establishment and ii the relief from taxation under the treaty generally applies

to non-premium income We believe that our Bermuda insurance subsidiary has operated and will continue to

44



operate its business in manner that will not cause it to maintain U.S permanent establishment However the

determination of whether an insurance company maintains U.S permanent establishment is inherently factual

Therefore we cannot assure you that the IRS will not successfully assert that our Bermuda insurance subsidiary

maintains U.S permanent establishment In such case our Bermuda insurance subsidiary will be subject to

U.S federal income tax at regular corporate rates and branch profit tax at the rate of 30% with respect to its

income attributable to the permanent establishment Furthermore although the provisions of the treaty clearly

apply to premium income it is uncertain whether they generally apply to other income of Bermuda insurance

company Therefore if Bermuda insurance subsidiary of our company qualifies for benefits under the treaty

and does not maintain U.S permanent establishment but is engaged in U.S trade or business and the treaty is

interpreted not to apply to income other than premium income such subsidiary will be subject to U.S federal

income and branch profits taxes on its investment and other non-premium income as described in the preceding

paragraph In addition Bermuda subsidiary will qualify for benefits under the treaty only if more than 50% of

its shares are beneficially owned directly or indirectly by individuals who are Bermuda residents or U.S

citizens or residents Our Bermuda subsidiaries may not be able to continually satisfy such beneficial ownership

test or be able to establish it to the satisfaction of the IRS

If any of our Swiss or Irish companies are engaged in U.S trade or business and qualify for benefits under

the relevant income tax treaty with the United States U.S federal income taxation of such company will depend

on whether it maintains U.S permanent establishment We believe that each such company has operated and

will continue to operate its business in manner that will not cause it to maintain U.S permanent

establishment However the determination of whether non-U.S company maintains U.S permanent

establishment is inherently factual Therefore we cannot assure you that the IRS will not successfully assert that

any of such companies maintains U.S permanent establishment In such case the company will be subject to

U.S federal income tax at regular corporate rates and branch profits tax at the rate of 5% with respect to its

income attributable to the permanent establishment

U.S federal income tax if imposed will be based on effectively connected or attributable income of non

U.S company computed in manner generally analogous to that applied to the income of U.S corporation

except that all deductions and credits claimed by non-U.S company in taxable
year can be disallowed if the

company does not file U.S federal income tax return for such year Penalties may be assessed for failure to file

such return None of our non-U.S companies filed U.S federal income tax returns for the 2002 and 2001 taxable

years However we have filed protective U.S federal income tax returns on timely basis for each non-U.S

company for subsequent years in order to preserve our right to claim tax deductions and credits in such years if

any of such companies is determined to be subject to U.S federal income tax

If any of our non-U.S companies is subject to such U.S federal taxation our financial condition and results

of operations could be materially adversely affected

Our U.S subsidiaries may be subject to additional U.S taxes in connection with our interaffihiate

arrangements

Our U.S subsidiaries reinsure significant portion of their insurance policies with Allied World Assurance

Company Ltd While we believe that the terms of these reinsurance arrangements are arms length we cannot

assure you that the IRS will not successfully asst that the payments made by the U.S subsidiaries with respect

to such arrangements exceed arms length amounts In such case our U.S subsidiaries will be treated as realizing

additional income that may be subject to additional U.S income tax possibly with interest and penalties Such

excess amount may also be deemed to have been distributed as dividends to the indirect parent of the U.S

subsidiaries Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd in which case this deemed dividend will also be

subject to U.S federal withholding tax of 5% assuming that the parent is eligible for benefits under the United

States-Ireland income tax treaty or withholding tax of 30% if the parent is not so eligible If any of these U.S

taxes are imposed our financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected In

addition if legislation is enacted in the U.S that limits or eliminates our ability to enter into interaffiliate

arrangements our financial condition or results of operations could be materially adversely affected
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We may not be able to make distributions or repurchase shares without subjecting you to Swiss withholding

tax

If we are not successful in our efforts to make distributions if any through reduction of par value or pay

dividends out of reserves from capital contributions then any dividends paid by us will generally be subject to

Swiss federal withholding tax at rate of 35% The withholding tax must be withheld from the
gross

distribution

and paid to the Swiss Federal Tax Administration U.S holder that qualifies for benefits under the Convention

between the United States of America and the Swiss Confederation for the Avoidance of Double Taxation with

Respect to Taxes oi Income may apply for refund of the tax withheld in excess of the 15% treaty rate or in

excess of the 5% reduced treaty rate for qualifying corporate shareholders with at least 10% participation in our

voting shares or for full refund in case of qualified pension funds Payment of capital distribution in the

form of par value reduction or out of reserves from capital contributions is not subject to Swiss withholding tax

However there can be no assurance that our shareholders will approve such dividends that we will be able to

meet the other applicable legal requirements or that Swiss withholding rules will not be changed in the future In

addition over the long term the amount of par value available for us to use for par value reductions or available

funds out of reserves from capital contributions will be limited If we are unable to make distribution through

reduction in par value or pay dividend out of reserves from capital contributions we may not be able to make

distributions without subjecting you to Swiss withholding taxes

The repurchase of our shares to be held in treasury will generally not be subject to Swiss withholding tax

However under iss law we are generally prohibited from holding in treasury an aggregate amount of voting

shares and non-voting shares in excess of 10% of our aggregate share capital which could limit our ability to

repurchase our shares in the fulure

You may be subjict to U.S income taxation with respect to income of our non-U.S companies and ordinary

income characterization of gains on disposition of our shares under the controlled foreign corporation

CFCrules

Generally each United States shareholder of CFC will be subject to U.S federal income taxation on

its ratable share of the CFCs subpart income even if the earnings attributable to such income are not

distributed provided that such United States shareholder holds directly or through non-U.S entities shares of

the CFC and ii potential ordinary income characterization of gains from the sale or exchange of the directly

owned shares of the non-U.S corporation For these purposes any U.S person who owns directly through non

U.S entities or under applicable constructive ownership rules 10% or more of the total combined voting power

of all classes of stock of any non-U.S company will be considered to be United States shareholder An

insurance company is classified as CFC only if its United States shareholders own 25% or more of the vote

or value of its stock Although our non-U.S companies may be or become CFCs for the following reasons we

believe it is unlikely that any U.S person holding our shares directly or through non-U.S entities would be

subject to tax as United States shareholder

First although certain of our principal U.S shareholders previously owned 10% or more of our common

shares no such shareholder currently owns more than 10% We will be classified as CFC only if United States

shareholders own 25% or more of our stock one United States shareholder alone will not be subject to tax on

subpart income unless that shareholder owns 25% or more of our stock or there is at least one other United

States shareholder that in combination with the first United States shareholder owns 25% or more of our common

stock Second our Articles of Association provide that no individual or legal entity may directly or through

Constructive Ownership as defined in Article 14 of our Articles of Association or otherwise control voting

rights with respect to 10% or more of our registered share capital recorded in the Swiss Commercial Register and

authorize our Board of Directors to refuse to register holders of shares as shareholders with voting rights under

certain circumstances We cannot assure you however that the provisions of the Articles of Association

referenced in this paragraph will operate as intended or that we will be otherwise successful in preventing U.S

person from exceeding or being deemed to exceed these voting limitations Accordingly U.S persons who hold

our shares directly or through non-U.S entities should consider the possible application of the CFC rules
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You may be subject to U.S income taxation under the related person insurance income RPII rules

Our non-U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries may currently insure and reinsure and may continue to

insure and reinsure directly or indirectly certain of our U.S shareholders and
persons

related to such

shareholders We believe that U.S persons that hold our shares directly or through non-U.S entities will not be

subject to U.S federal income taxation with respect to the income realized in connection with such insurance and

reinsurance prior to distribution of earnings attributable to such income either on the basis that RPII

determined on gross basis realized by each non-U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiary will be less than

20% of its gross insurance income in each taxable year or ii that at all times during the
year

U.S insureds hold

less than 20% of the combined voting power of all classes of our shares entitled to vote and hold less than 20% of

the total value of our shares However the identity of all of our shareholders as well as some of the factors that

determine the extent of RPII in any period may be beyond our knowledge or control For example we may be

considered to insure indirectly the risk of our shareholder if an unrelated company that insured such risk in the

first instance reinsures such risk with us Therefore we cannot assure you that we will be successful in keeping

the RPII realized by the non-U.S insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries or the ownership of us by U.S insureds

below the 20% limit in each taxable year Furthermore even if we are successful in keeping the RPH or the

ownership of us by U.S insureds below the 20% limit we cannot assure you that we will be able to establish that

fact to the satisfaction of the U.S tax authorities If we are unable to establish that the RPII of
any

non-U.S

insurance or reinsurance subsidiary is less than 20% of that subsidiarys gross insurance income in any taxable

year and no other exception from the RPII rules applies each U.S person who owns our shares directly or

through non-U.S entities on the last day of the taxable year will be generally required to include in its income

for U.S federal income tax purposes that persons ratable share of that subsidiarys RPII for the taxable year

determined as if that RPII were distributed proportionately to U.S holders at that date regardless of whether that

income was actually distributed

The RPII rules provide that if holder who is U.S
person disposes of shares in foreign insurance

corporation that has RPII even if the amount of RPII is less than 20% of the corporations gross insurance

income and the ownership of us by U.S insureds is below 20% and in which U.S persons own 25% or more of

the shares any gain from the disposition will generally be treated as dividend to the extent of the holders share

of the corporations undistributed earnings and profits that were accumulated during the period that the holder

owned the shares whether or not those earnings and profits are attributable to RPII In addition such

shareholder will be required to comply with specified reporting requirements regardless of the amount of shares

owned These rules should not apply to dispositions of our shares because Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG is not itself directly engaged in the insurance business and these rules appear to apply only in the

case of shares of corporations that are directly engaged in the insurance business We cannot assure you

however that the IRS will interpret these rules in this manner or that the proposed regulations addressing the

RPII rules will not be promulgated in final form in manner that would cause these rules to apply to dispositions

of our shares

U.S tax-exempt entities may recognize unrelated business taxable income UBTI
U.S tax-exempt entity holding our shares generally will not be subject to U.S federal income tax with

respect to dividends and gains on our shares provided that such entity does not purchase our shares with

borrowed funds However if U.S tax-exempt entity realizes income with respect to our shares under the CFC

or RPII rules as discussed above such entity will be generally subject to U.S federal income tax with respect to

such income as UBTI Accordingly U.S tax-exempt entities that are potential investors in our shares should

consider the possible application of the CFC and RPII rules

You may be subject to additional U.S federal income taxation with respect to distributions on and gains on

dispositions of our shares under the passive foreign investment company PFICrules

We believe that U.S persons holding our shares should not be subject to additional U.S federal income

taxation with respect to distributions on and gains on dispositions of shares under the PHC rules We expect that

our insurance subsidiaries will be predominantly engaged in and derive their income from the active conduct of

an insurance business and will not hold reserves in excess of reasonable needs of their business and therefore
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qualify for the insurance exception from the PFIC rules However the determination of the nature of such

business and the reasonableness of such reserves is inherently factual Furthermore we cannot assure you as to

what positions the IRS or court might take in the future regarding the application of the PFIC rules to us

Therefore we cannot assure you that we will not be considered to be PFIC If we are considered to be PFIC

U.S persons holding our shares could be subject to additional U.S federal income taxation on distributions on

and gains on dispositions of shares Accordingly each U.S person
who is considering an investment in our

shares should consult his or her tax advisor as to the effects of the PFIC rules

Application of published IRS Revenue Ruling with respect to our insurance or reinsurance arrangements

can materially adversely affect us

The IRS published Revenue Ruling 2005-40 the Ruling addressing the requirement of adequate risk

distribution among insureds in order for primary insurance arrangement to constitute insurance for U.S federal

income tax purposes If the IRS successfully contends that our insurance or reinsurance arrangements including

such arrangements with affiliates of our principal shareholders and with our U.S subsidiaries do not provide for

adequate risk distribution under the principles set forth in the Ruling we could be subject to material adverse

U.S federal income tax consequences

Our non-U.K companies may be subject to U.K tax which may have material adverse effect on our

results of operations

Two of our subsidiaries Allied World Capital Europe Limited and 2232 Services Limited are

incorporated in the United Kingdom and are therefore subject to tax in the United Kingdom None of our other

companies are incorporated in the United Kingdom Accordingly none of our other companies should be treated

as being resident in the United Kingdom for corporation tax purposes unless the central management and control

of any such company is exercised in the United Kingdom The concept of central management and control is

indicative of the highest level of control of company which is wholly question of fact Each of our companies

currently intend to manage our affairs so that none of our other companies are resident in the United Kingdom

for tax purposes

The rules governing the taxation of foreign companies operating in the United Kingdom through branch or

agency were amended by the Finance Act 2003 The current rules apply to the accounting periods of non-U.K

resident companies which start on or after January 2003 Accordingly non-U.K resident company will only

be subject to U.K corporation tax if it carries on trade in the United Kingdom through permanent

establishment in the United Kingdom In that case the company is in broad terms taxable on the profits and

gains attributable to the permanent establishment in the United Kingdom Broadly company will have

permanent establishment if it has fixed place of business in the United Kingdom through which the business of

the company is wholly or partly carried on or if an agent acting Ofl behalf of the company has and habitually

exercises authority in the United Kingdom to do business on behalf of the company Each of our companies

other than Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited and Allied World Assurance Company

Europe Limited which have established branches in the United Kingdom currently intend to operate in such

manner so that none of our companies other than Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance Limited and

Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited carry on trade through permanent establishment in the

United Kingdom

If any of our U.S subsidiaries were trading in the United Kingdom through branch or agency and the U.S

subsidiaries were to qualify for benefits under the applicable income tax treaty between the United Kingdom and

the United States only those profits which were attributable to permanent establishment in the United Kingdom

would he subject to U.K corporation tax

If Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd was trading in the United Kingdom through branch or

agency and it was entitled to the benefits of the tax treaty between Ireland and the United Kingdom it would only

be subject to U.K taxation on its profits which were attributable to permanent establishment in the United

Kingdom The branches established in the United Kingdom by Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance

Limited and Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited constitute permanent establishment of those

companies and the profits attributable to those permanent establishments are subject to U.K corporation tax
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The United Kingdom has no income tax treaty with Bermuda

There are circumstances in which companies that are neither resident in the United Kingdom nor entitled to

the protection afforded by double tax treaty between the United Kingdom and the jurisdiction in which they are

resident may be exposed to income tax in the United Kingdom other than by deduction or withholding on

income arising in the United Kingdom including the profits of trade carried on there even if that trade is not

carried on through branch agency or permanent establishment but each of our companies currently operates in

such manner that none of our companies will fall within the charge to income tax in the United Kingdom other

than by deduction or withholding in this respect

If any of our non-U.K companies were treated as being resident in the United Kingdom for U.K

corporation tax purposes or if any of our companies other than Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance

Limited and Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited were to be treated as carrying on trade in the

United Kingdom through branch agency or of having permanent establishment in the United Kingdom our

results of operations and your investment could be materially adversely affected

We may be subject to Irish tax which may have material adverse effect on our results of operations

Companies resident in Ireland are generally subject to Irish corporation tax on their worldwide income and

capital gains None of our companies other than our Irish companies and Allied World Assurance Holdings

Ireland Ltd which resides in Ireland should be treated as being resident in Ireland unless the central

management and control of any such company is exercised in Ireland The concept of central management and

control is indicative of the highest level of control of company and is wholly question of fact Each of our

companies other than Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd and our Irish companies currently intend

to operate in such manner so that the central management and control of each of our companies other than

Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd and our Irish companies is exercised outside of Ireland

Nevertheless because central management and control is question of fact to be determined based on number

of different factors the Irish Revenue Commissioners might contend successfully that the central management

and control of
any

of our companies other than Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd or our Irish

companies is exercised in Ireland Should this occur such company will be subject to Irish corporation tax on

their worldwide income and capital gains

The trading income of company not resident in Ireland for Irish tax purposes can also be subject to Irish

corporation tax if it carries on trade through branch or agency in Ireland Each of our companies currently

intend to operate in such manner so that none of our companies carry on trade through branch or agency in

Ireland Nevertheless because neither case law nor Irish legislation definitively defines the activities that

constitute trading in Ireland through branch or agency the Irish Revenue Commissioners might contend

successfully that any of our companies other than Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd and our Irish

companies is trading through branch or agency in Ireland Should this occur such companies will be subject to

Irish corporation tax on profits attributable to that branch or agency

If any of our companies other than Allied World Assurance Holdings Ireland Ltd and our Irish companies

were treated as resident in Ireland for Irish corporation tax purposes or as carrying on trade in Ireland through

branch or agency our results of operations and your investment could be materially adversely affected

If corporate tax rates in Ireland increase our business and financial results could be adversely affected

Trading income derived from the insurance and reinsurance businesses carried on in Ireland by our Irish

companies is generally taxed in Ireland at rate of 12.5% Over the past number of years various E.U Member

States have from time to time called for harmonization of corporate tax rates within the E.U Ireland along with

other member states has consistently resisted any movement towards standardized corporate tax rates in the E.U
The Government of Ireland has also made clear its commitment to retain the 12.5% rate of corporation tax until

at least the
year 2025 Should however tax laws in Ireland change so as to increase the general corporation tax

rate in Ireland our results of operations could be materially adversely affected
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If investments held by our Irish companies are determined not to be integral to the insurance and

reinsurance businesses carried on by those companies additional Irish tax could be imposed and our

business and financial results could be adversely affected

Based on administrative practice taxable income derived from investments made by our Irish companies is

generally taxed in Ireland at the rate of 12.5% on the grounds that such investments either form part of the

permanent capital required by regulatory authorities or are otherwise integral to the insurance and reinsurance

businesses carried on by those companies Our Irish companies intend to operate in such manner so that the

level of investments held by such companies does not exceed the amount that is integral to the insurance and

reinsurance businesses carried on by our Irish companies If however investment income earned by our Irish

companies exceeds these thresholds or if the administrative practice of the Irish Revenue Commissioners

changes Irish corporation tax could apply to such investment income at higher rate currently 25% instead of

the general 12.5% rate and our results of operations could be materially adversely affected

We may become subject to taxes in Bermuda after March 31 2035 which may have material adverse

effect on our results of operations and our investment

The Bermuda Minister of Finance under the Exempted Undertakings Tax Protection Act 1966 of Bermuda

has given our Bermuda subsidiaries an assurance that if any legislation is enacted in Bermuda that would impose

tax computed on profits or income or computed on any capital asset gain or appreciation or any tax in the

nature of estate duty or inheritance tax then the imposition of any such tax will not be applicable to such entities

or their operations shares debentures or other obligations until March 31 2035 Given the limited duration of

the Minister of Finances assurance we cannot be certain that we will not be subject to any
Bermuda tax after

March 31 2035

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None
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GLOSSARY OF SELECTED INSURANCE AND OTHER TERMS

Admitted insurer An insurer that is licensed or authorized to write insurance in

particular state to be distinguished from an insurer eligible to write

excess and surplus lines insurance on risks located within

jurisdiction

Assumed reinsurance That portion of risk that reinsurer accepts from an insurer in return

for stated premium

Attachment point The loss point of which an insurance or reinsurance policy becomes

operative and below which any losses are retained by either the

insured or other insurers or reinsurers as the case may be

Acquisition costs Comprised of commissions brokerage fees and insurance taxes

Commissions and brokerage fees are usually calculated as

percentage of premiums and depend on the market and line of

business Acquisition costs are reported after deducting

commissions received on ceded reinsurance deducting the part of

acquisition costs relating to unearned premiums and including the

amortization of previously deferred acquisition costs

Acquisition cost ratio Calculated by dividing acquisition costs by net premiums earned

Capacity The maximum percentage of surplus or the dollar amount of

exposure that an insurer or reinsurer is willing or able to place at risk

Capacity may apply to single risk program line of business or

an entire portfolio of business Capacity may be constrained by legal

restrictions corporate restrictions or indirect restrictions

Case reserves Loss reserves established with respect to specific individual reported

claims

Casualty lines Insurance that is primarily concerned with losses due to injuries to

persons and liability imposed on the insured for such injury or for

damage to the property of others

Catastrophe exposure or event severe loss typically involving multiple claimants Common perils

include earthquakes hurricanes tsunamis hailstorms severe winter

weather floods fires tornadoes explosions and other natural or man
made disasters Catastrophe losses may also arise from acts of war
acts of terrorism and political instability

Catastrophe reinsurance form of excess-of-loss reinsurance that subject to specified limit

indemnifies the ceding company for the amount of loss in excess of

specified retention with respect to an accumulation of losses resulting

from catastrophic event The actual reinsurance document is called

catastrophe cover These reinsurance contracts are typically

designed to cover property insurance losses but can be written to

cover other types of insurance losses such as workers compensation

policies

Cede cedent ceding company When an insurer transfers some or all of its risk to reinsurer it

cedes business and is referred to as the ceding company or

cedent

Combined ratio Calculated as the sum of the loss and loss expense ratio the

acquisition cost ratio and the general and administrative
expense

ratio
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Commercial coverage Insurance products that are sold to entities and individuals in their

business or professional capacity and which are intended for other

than the insureds personal or household use

Deductible The amount of exposure an insured retains on any one risk or group

of risks The term may apply to an insurance policy where the

insured is an individual or business or reinsurance contract where

the insured is an insurance company See Retention

Direct insurance Insurance sold by an insurer that contracts directly with the insured

as distinguished from reinsurance

Directors and officers liability Insurance that covers liability for corporate directors and officers for

wrongful acts subject to applicable exclusions terms and conditions

of the policy

Earned premiums or Premiums

earned That portion of premiums written that applies to the expired portion

of the policy term Earned premiums are recognized as revenues

under both statutory accounting practice and U.S GAAP

Employment practices liability

insurance Insurance that primarily provides liability coverage to organizations

and their employees for losses arising from acts of discrimination

harassment and retaliation against current and prospective employees

of the organization

Errors and omissions insurance Insurance that provides liability coverage for claims arising from

professional negligence or malpractice subject to applicable

exclusions terms and conditions of the policy

Excess and surplus lines risk or part of risk for which there is no insurance market

available among admitted insurers or insurance written by non-

admitted insurance companies to cover such risks

Excess layer Insurance to cover losses in one or more layers above certain

amount with losses below that amount usually covered by the

insureds primary policy and its self-insured retention

Excess-of-loss reinsurance Reinsurance that indemnifies the insured against all or specified

portion of losses over specified amount or retention

Exclusions Provisions in an insurance or reinsurance policy excluding certain

risks or otherwise limiting the scope
of coverage

Expense ratio Calculated by adding the acquisition cost ratio and the general and

administrative cost ratio

Exposure The possibility of loss unit of measure of the amount of risk

company assumes

Facultative reinsurance The reinsurance of all or portion of the insurance provided by

single policy Each policy reinsured is separately negotiated

Fiduciary liability insurance Insurance that primarily provides liability coverage to fiduciaries of

employee benefit and welfare plans for losses arising from the breach

of any fiduciary duty owed to plan beneficiaries

Frequency The number of claims occurring during specified period of time

General and administrative expense

ratio Calculated by dividing general and administrative expenses by net

premiums earned
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General casualty Insurance that is primarily concerned with losses due to injuries to

persons and liability imposed on the insured for such injury or for

damage to the property of others

Gross premiums written Total premiums for insurance and reinsurance written during given

period

Healthcare liability or Healthcare

lines Insurance coverage often referred to as medical malpractice

insurance which addresses liability risks of doctors surgeons nurses

other healthcare professionals and the institutions hospitals clinics

in which they practice

Incurred but not reported IBNR
reserves Reserves established by us for claims that have occurred but have not

yet been reported to us as well as for changes in the values of claims

that have been reported to us but are not yet settled

In-force Policies that have not expired or been terminated and for which the

insurer remains on risk as of given date

Limits or gross maximum limits The maximum amount that an insurer or reinsurer will insure or

reinsure for specified risk portfolio of risks or on single insured

entity The term also refers to the maximum amount of benefit

payable for given claim or occurrence

Loss development The difference between the original loss as initially reserved by an

insurer or reinsurer and its subsequent evaluation at later date or at

the time of its closure Loss development occurs because of inflation

and time lags between the occurrence of claims and the time they are

actually reported to an insurer or reinsurer To account for these

increases loss development factor or multiplier is usually applied

to claim or group of claims in an effort to more accurately project

the ultimate amount that will be paid

Losses incurred The total losses and loss adjustment expenses paid plus the change in

loss and loss adjustment expense reserves including IBNR sustained

by an insurance or reinsurance company under its insurance policies

or other insurance or reinsurance contracts

Losses and loss expense ratio Calculated by dividing net losses and loss expenses by net

premiums earned

Losses and loss expenses Losses are an occurrence that is the basis for submission or

payment of claim Losses may be covered limited or excluded from

coverage depending on the terms of the insurance policy or other

insurance or reinsurance contracts Loss expenses are the expenses

incurred by an insurance or reinsurance company in settling loss

Loss reserves Liabilities established by insurers and reinsurers to reflect the

estimated cost of claims incurred that the insurer or reinsurer will

ultimately be required to pay Reserves are established for losses and

for loss expenses and consist of case reserves and IBNR reserves As

the term is used in this Form 10-K loss reserves is meant to include

reserves for both losses and for loss expenses

Loss year The year to which claim is attributed based upon the terms in the

underlying policy or contract All years referred to are years ending

December 31

53



Net premiums earned The portion of net premiums written during or prior to given period

that was recognized as income during such period

Net premiums written Gross premiums written less premiums ceded to reinsurers

Paid losses Claim amounts paid to insureds or ceding companies

Per occurrence limitations The maximum amount recoverable under an insurance or reinsurance

policy as result of
any one event regardless of the number of

claims

Primary insurance primary layer Insurance that absorbs the losses immediately above the insureds

retention layer primary insurer will pay up to certain dollar

amount of losses over the insureds retention at which point higher

layer excess insurer will be liable for additional losses The coverage

terms of primary insurance layer typically assume an element of

regular loss frequency

Probable maximum loss PML An estimate of the loss on any given insurance policy or group of

policies at some pre-defined probability of occurrence The

probability of occurrence is usually expressed in terms of the number

of years between loss events of that size e.g in 100 years or in

200 years

Producer licensed professional often referred to as an insurance agent

insurance broker or intermediary who acts as intermediary between

the insurance carrier and the insured or reinsured as the case may

be

Product liability Insurance that provides coverage to manufacturer and/or distributors

of tangible goods against liability for personal injury caused if such

products are unsafe or defective

Professional liability Insurance that provides liability coverage to directors and officers

attorneys doctors accountants and other professionals who offer

services to the general lublic and claim expertise in particular area

greater than the ordinary layperson for their negligence or

malfeasance

Property catastrophe coverage In reinsurance coverage that protects the ceding company against

accumulated losses in excess of stipulated sum that arise from

catastrophic event such as an earthquake fire or windstorm

Catastrophe loss generally refers to the total loss of an insurer

arising out of single catastrophic event

Quota share reinsurance proportional reinsurance treaty in which the ceding company cedes

an agreed-on percentage
of

every
risk it insures that falls within

class or classes of business subject to the treaty

Reinsurance The practice whereby one insurer called the reinsurer in

consideration of premium paid to that reinsurer agrees to indemnify

another insurer called the ceding company for part or all of the

liability of the ceding company under one or more policies or

contracts of insurance that it has issued

Reserves Liabilities established by insurers and reinsurers to reflect the

estimated cost of claims incurred that the insurer or reinsurer will

ultimately be required to pay Reserves are established for losses and

for loss expenses and consist of case reserves and IBNR reserves As

the term is used in this report reserves are meant to include

reserves for both losses and for loss expenses
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Retention The amount of
exposure an insured retains on any one risk or group

of risks The term may apply to an insurance policy where the

insured is an individual or business or reinsurance contract where

the insured is an insurance company See Deductible

Retrocessional coverage transaction whereby reinsurer cedes to another reinsurer the

retrocessionaire all or part of the reinsurance that the first reinsurer

has assumed Retrocessional reinsurance does not legally discharge

the ceding reinsurer from its liability with respect to its obligations to

the reinsured Reinsurance companies cede risks to retrocessionaires

for reasons similar to those that cause insurers to purchase

reinsurance to reduce net liability on individual risks to protect

against catastrophic losses to stabilize financial ratios and to obtain

additional underwriting capacity

Run-off Liability of an insurance or reinsurance company for existing claims

that it expects to pay in the future and for which loss reserve has

been established

Self-insured term which describes risk or part of risk retained by the

insured in lieu of transferring the risk to an insurer policy

deductible or retention feature allows policyholder to self-insure

portion of an exposure and thereby reduce its risk-transfer costs

Specialty lines term used in the insurance and reinsurance industry to describe

types of insurance or classes of business that require specialized

expertise to underwrite Insurance and reinsurance for these classes of

business is not widely available and is typically purchased from the

specialty lines divisions of larger insurance companies or from small

specialty lines insurers

Subpart income Insurance and reinsurance income including underwriting and

investment income and foreign personal holding company income

including interest dividends and other passive investment income

Surplus or statutory surplus As determined under statutory accounting principles the amount

remaining after all liabilities including loss reserves are subtracted

from all of the admitted assets i.e those permitted by regulation to

be recognized on the statutory balance sheet Surplus is also referred

to as statutory surplus or surplus as regards policyholders for

statutory accounting purposes

Surplus lines risk or part of risk for which there is no insurance market

available among admitted insurers or insurance written by non-

admitted insurance companies to cover such risks

Swing-rated reinsurance

contract reinsurance contract that links the ultimate amount of ceded

premium to the ultimate loss ratio on the reinsured business This type

of reinsurance contract enables the cedent to retain greater portion

of premium if the ultimate loss ratio develops at level below the

initial loss threshold set by the reinsurers but requires higher

amount of ceded premium if the ultimate loss ratio develops above

the initial threshold

Treaties Reinsurance contracts under which the ceding company agrees to

cede and the reinsurer agrees to assume risks of particular class or

classes of business
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Treaty year The year in which the contract incepts Exposure from contracts

incepting during the current treaty year will potentially affect both the

current loss year as well future loss years

Ultimate loss Total of all expected settlement amounts whether paid or reserved

together with any associated loss adjustment expenses and is the

estimated total amount of loss at the measurement date For purposes

of this Form 10-K ultimate loss is the sum of paid losses case

reserves and IBNR

Underwriter An employee of an insurance or reinsurance company who examines

accepts or rejects risks and classifies accepted risks in order to charge

an appropriate premium for each accepted risk The underwriter is

expected to select business that will produce an average risk of loss

no greater
than that anticipated for the class of business

Underwriting results The pre-tax profit or loss experienced by an insurance company that

is calculated by deducting net losses and loss expenses net

acquisition costs and general and administration expenses
from net

premiums earned This profit or loss calculation includes reinsurance

assumed and ceded but excludes investment income

Unearned premium The portion of premiums written that is allocable to the unexpired

portion of the policy term or underlying risk

Working layer Primary insurance that absorbs the losses immediately above the

insureds retention layer working layer insurer will pay up to

certain dollar amount of losses over the insureds retention at which

point higher layer excess insurer will be liable for additional losses

The coverage terms of working layer typically assume an element of

loss frequency
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Item Properties

Our corporate headquarters are located in offices we lease in Switzerland We also lease space in Bermuda

England Hong Kong Ireland Singapore and the United States for the operation of our U.S insurance

international insurance and reinsurance segments Our leases have remaining terms ranging from nine months to

approximately nine
years

in length We renew and enter into new leases in the ordinary course of business as

needed While we believe that the office space from these leased properties is sufficient for us to conduct our

operations for the foreseeable future we may need to expand into additional facilities to accommodate future

growth For more information on our leasing arrangements please see Note 14 of the notes to the consolidated

financial statements in this Form 10-K

Item Legal Proceedings

New Cingular Wireless

In April 2006 complaint was filed in the U.S District Court for the Northern District of Georgia Atlanta

Division entitled New Cingular Wireless Headquarters LLC et at Marsh McLennan Companies Inc et

at Our Bermuda insurance subsidiary Allied World Assurance Company Ltd was among the 78 insurers named

as defendants Plaintiffs alleged that the broker defendants used variety of illegal schemes and anti-competitive

practices that resulted in the plaintiffs either paying more for insurance products or receiving less beneficial

terms than the competitive market would have produced The parties entered into settlement and release

agreement as of December 2012 the terms of which are confidential The settlement did not have material

adverse effect on the Companys results of operations financial position or cash flow

Litigation Related to the Terminated Merger Agreement with Transatlantic

In connection with our proposed merger with Transatlantic Holdings Inc Transatlantic which was

mutually terminated by the parties on September 15 2011 two putative stockholder class action lawsuits filed

against Holdings and the members of the Transatlantic board of directors challenging the merger remained

outstanding as of December 31 2012 Ivers Transatlantic Holdings Inc et at filed June 17 2011 in the

Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware and Kramer Transatlantic Holdings Inc et at filed June 30
2011 in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware collectively the Lawsuits Each of the Lawsuits was

filed against Transatlantic the members of the Transatlantic board of directors and Holdings and/or its

subsidiaries Alleghany Corporation and Shoreline Merger Sub LLC were later added as defendants Plaintiffs in

each Lawsuit asserted that the members of the Transatlantic board of directors breached their fiduciary duties and

that Holdings and/or its subsidiaries or Alleghany Corporation and/or its subsidiaries aided and abetted the

alleged breaches of fiduciary duties On October 12 2012 the parties entered into stipulation and agreement of

compromise and settlement which is currently pending approval by the Court of Chancery of the State of

Delaware There can be no assurance that the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware will approve the

settlement

The company in common with the insurance industry in general is subject to litigation and arbitration in

the normal course of its business These legal proceedings generally relate to claims asserted by or against the

company in the ordinary course of insurance or reinsurance operations Estimated amounts payable under these

proceedings are included in the reserve for losses and loss expenses in the companys consolidated balance

sheets As of December 31 2012 the company was not party to any material legal proceedings arising outside

the ordinary course of business that management believes will have material adverse effect on the companys
results of operations financial position or cash flow

Item Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Our common shares are publicly traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol AWH The

following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low sales prices per
share of our common shares

as reported on the New York Stock Exchange Composite Tape

High Low

2012

First quarter
$71 .34 $60.80

Second quarter
$79.55 $67.84

Third quarter
$80.10 $74.32

Fourth quarter
$84.17 $76.12

2011

First quarter
$63.95 $57.67

Second quarter
$65.70 $53.70

Third quarter
$59.00 $49.00

Fourth quartet
$63.33 $51.00

On February 11 2013 the last reported sale price for our common shares was $87.21 per share At

February Il 2013 there were 32 holders of record of our common shares

The following dividends were paid during 2012 and 2011

Partial Par

Value Dividend

Reduction Per Per

Dividend Paid Share Share

December 18 2012 CHF 0.34 $0375

September 25 2012 CHF 0.35 $0.375

August 2012 CHF 0.36 $0375

April 2012 CHF 0.34 $0.375

January 2012 CHE 0.35 $0375

October 2011 CHF 0.32 $0375

August 2011 CHF 0.30 $0.375

At the Annual Shareholder Meeting in May 2011 our shareholders approved the payment of cash dividend

to shareholders in four quarterly installments in the form of distributions through par value reductions each of

which were $0.375 per share

At the Annual Shareholder Meeting in May 2012 our shareholders approved the payment of cash dividend

to shareholders in four quarterly installments in the form of distributions through par value reductions each of

which were $0.37 per
share The fourth installment of the dividend is anticipated to be paid in March 2013

The continued declaration and payment of dividends to holders of common shares is expected but will be at

the discretion of our Board of Directors and subject to legal regulatory financial and other restrictions

Specifically any
future declaration and payment of any cash dividends by the company will

depend upon its results of operations financial condition cash requirements and other relevant factors

be subject to shareholder approval

be subject to restrictions contained in our credit facilities and other debt covenants and

be subject to other restrictions on dividends imposed by Swiss law
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Under Swiss law our shareholders have the power to declare dividends without the agreement of the Board

of Directors Consequently dividends may be declared by resolution of the shareholders even if our Board of

Directors and management do not believe it is in the best interest of the company or the shareholders As

holding company our principal source of income is dividends or other statutorily permissible payments from our

subsidiaries The ability of our subsidiaries to pay dividends is limited by the applicable laws and regulations of

the various countries in which we operate including Bermuda the United States and Ireland See Item

Business Regulatory Matters Item 1A Risk Factors Our holding company structure and regulatory and

other constraints affect our ability to pay dividends and make other payments Item Managements
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations Liquidity and Capital Resources

Pledged Assets and Note 15 of the notes to consolidated financial statements included in this Form 10-K

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table summarizes our repurchases of our common shares during the three months ended

December 31 2012

Maximum Dollar Value
Total Number of or Approximate

Shares Purchased as Dollar Value of

Total Number of Average Price Part of Publicly Shares that May Yet

Shares Paid Announced Plans or be Purchased Under
Period Purchased per Share Programs the Plans or Programs

October 31 2012 209924 $80.52 209924 $450223890

November 30 2012 253991 78.72 253991 430230664

December 31 2012 249959 80.01 249959 410230733

Total 713874 $79.70 713874 $410230733

At the 2012 Annual Shareholder Meeting on May 2012 Holdings shareholders approved new two-year

$500 million share repurchase program Share repurchases may be effected from time to time through open

market purchases privately negotiated transactions tender offers or otherwise

59



PERFORMANCE GRAPH

The following information is not deemed to be soliciting material or to be filed with the SEC or subject

to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Exchange Act and the report shall not be deemed to be incorporated by

reference into any prior or subsequent filing by the company under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act

The following graph shows the cumulative total return including reinvestment of dividends on the common

shares compared to such return for Standard Poors 500 Composite Stock Price Index SP 500 and

Standard Poors Property Casualty lnsurance Index for the five year period beginning on December

2007 and ending on December 31 2012 assuming $100 was invested on December 31 2007 The measurement

point on the graph represents the cumulative shareholder return as measured by the last reported sale price on

such date during the relevant period

TOTAL RETURN TO SHAREHOLDERS

INCLUDES REINVESTMENT OF DIVIDENDS

COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE FIVE YEAR TOTAL RETURN
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Item Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth our summary historical statement of operations data and summary balance

sheet data as of and for the
years ended December 31 2012 2011 2010 2009 and 2008 Statement of operations

data and balance sheet data are derived from our audited consolidated financial statements which have been

prepared in accordance with U.S GAAP These historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be

expected from
any future period For further discussion of this risk see Item IA Risk Factors in this Form 10-

You should read the following selected financial data in conjunction with the other information contained in

this Form 10-K including Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations and Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 20102 2009 20083

in millions except per share amounts

Summary Statement of Operations Data

Gross premiums written 2329.3 1939.5 1758.4 1696.3 1445.6

Netpremiums written 1837.8 1533.8 1392.4 1321.1 1107.2

Netpremiumsearned 1748.9 1457.0 1359.5 1316.9 1117.0

Net investment income 167.1 195.9 244.1 300.7 308.8

Net realized investment gains losses 306.4 10.1 285.6 126.4 60.0
Net impairment charges recognized in earnings 0.2 49.6 212.9
Other income

_______
101.7 0.9 1.5 0.7

Total revenues 2222.4 1764.7 1889.9 1695.9 1153.6

Net losses and loss expenses 1139.3 959.2 707.9 604.1 641.1

Total expenses 1711.0 1459.2 1198.0 1052.4 977.6

Income before income taxes 511.4 305.5 691.9 643.5 176.0

Income tax expense benefit 18.4 31.0 26.9 36.6 7.6

Net income 493.0 274.5 665.0 606.9 183.6

Per Share Data

Basicearningspershare 13.67 7.21 14.30 12.26 3.75

Diluted earnings per share 13.30 6.92 13.32 11.67 3.59

Dividends paid per share 1.875 0.750 1.050 0.740 0.720

61



Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

Selected Ratios

Loss and loss expense
ratio 65.1% 65.8% 52.1% 45.9% 57.4%

Acquisition costratio 11.8% 11.5% 11.7% 11.3% 10.1%

General and administrative expense
ratio 17.6% 18.6% 21.1% 18.9% 16.6%

Expense ratio 29.4% 30.1% 32.8% 30.2% 26.7%

Combined ratio 94.5% 95.9% 84.9% 76.1% 84.1%

As of December 31

2012 2011 20102 2009 20083

in millions

Summary Balance Sheet Data

Cash and cash equivalents
681.9 634.0 757.0 292.2 655.8

Investments 7933.9 7406.6 7183.6 7156.3 6157.1

Reinsurance recoveirable 1141.1 1002.9 927.6 920.0 888.3

Total assets 12029.9 11122.2 10427.6 9653.2 9022.5

Reserve for losses and loss expenses 5645.5 5225.1 4879.2 4761.8 4576.8

Unearned premiums 1218.0 1078.4 962.2 928.6 930.4

Total debt 798.2 797.9 797.7 498.9 742.5

Total shareholders equity 3326.3 3149.0 3075.8 $3213.3 $2416.9

Other income for the year ended December 31 2011 includes termination fees net of expenses of $101.7

million related to the termination of the previously announced merger agreement with Transatlantic

Effective July 2010 the Company elected the fair value option for any investment in beneficial interest

in securitized asset As result the Company elected the fair value option for all of its mortgage-backed

and asset-backed securities held as of June 30 2010 On July 2010 the Company reclassified net

unrealized gains of $41.9 million from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings

As result of the fair value election any change in fair value of the mortgage-hacked and asset-backed

securities is recognized in net realized investment gains on the consolidated income statement

Darwin is included in the Companys consolidated results only for the three months ended December 31

2008 and subsequent fiscal year ends
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Some of the statements in this Form 10-K include forward-looking statements within the meaning of The

Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 that involve inherent risks and uncertainties These statements

include in genera/forward-looking statements both with respect to us and the insurance industry Statements ihat

are not historical facts including statements that use terms such as anticipates believes expects
intends plans projects seeks and will and that relate to our plans and objectives for future

operations are forward-looking statements In light of the risks and uncertainties inherent in all forward-looking

statements the inclusion of such statements in this Form 10-K should not be considered as representation by us

or any other person that our objectives or plans will be achieved These statements are based on current plans

estimates and expectations Actual results may differ materially from those projected in such forward-looking

statements and therefore you should not place undue reliance on them Important factors that could cause actual

results to differ materially from those in such forward-looking statements are set forth in Item JA Risk

Factors in this Form 10-K We undertake no obligation to release publicly the results of any future revisions we

make to the forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the

occurrence of unanticipated events

Overview

Our Business

We write diversified portfolio of property and casualty insurance and reinsurance internationally through

our subsidiaries and branches based in Bermuda Europe Hong Kong Singapore and the United States as well as

our Lloyds Syndicate 2232 We manage our business through three operating segments U.S insurance

international insurance and reinsurance As of December 31 2012 we had approximately $12.0 billion of total

assets $3.3 billion of total shareholders equity and $4.1 billion of total capital which includes shareholders

equity and senior notes

During the year ended December 31 2012 we continued to experience rate increases on property lines that

had experienced significant loss activity in the prior year We also continued to see rate improvement during the

year on some of our casualty lines of business in certain jurisdictions We believe that there are opportunities

where certain products have attractive premium rates and that the expanded breadth of our operations allows us

to target those classes of business Given these trends we continue to be selective in the insurance policies and

reinsurance contracts we underwrite Our consolidated gross premiums written increased by $389.8 million or

20.1% for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 Our net income

increased by $218.5 million to $493.0 million compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The increase

resulted from the improvement in underwriting results as catastrophe losses were $112.6 million lower

combined with $296.3 million increase in our realized investment gains as markets and economic conditions

rebounded during the year partially offset by the $101.7 million reduction in other income

Recent Developments

We reported net loss of $41.1 million for the three months ended December 31 2012 compared to net

income of $183.1 million for the three months ended December 31 2011 decrease of $224.2 million

The decrease in net income was due to the following

For the three months ended December 31 2012 we incurred $166.1 million of pre-tax catastrophe-related

losses from Superstorm Sandy net of estimated reinstatement premiums compared to $59.1 million of

pre-tax catastrophe-related losses for the three months ended December 31 2011 related to the flooding in

Thailand that occurred in the fourth quarter of 2011 and from other catastrophes that occurred earlier in

2011 an increase of $107.0 million

Net favorable reserve development related to prior years decreased $59.6 million to $32.8 million for the

three months ended December 31 2012 from $92.4 million for the same period in 2011
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The three months ended December 31 2011 included non-recurring termination fee income of $66.7

million from our previously-announced merger agreement with Transatlantic

Net realized investment gains decreased by $17.2 million

Income tax expense
decreased by $12.2 million as result of the items described above

During the three months ended December 31 2012 we completed four strategic investments through

AWFS in Cunningham Lindsey MatlinPatterson Aeolus Capital Management and Crescent Capital Group Our

goal with AWFS i5 to invest in strategic business opportunities that we believe will complement our core

insurance and reinsurance operations and diversify our revenues

Financial Highlights

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions except share per share and percentage data

Gross premiums written 2329.3 1939.5 1758.4

Net income 493.0 274.5 665.0

Operating income 202.7 183.7 397.8

Basic earnings per share

Net income 13.67 7.21 14.30

Operating income 5.62 4.82 8.56

Diluted earnings per share

Net income 13.30 6.92 13.32

Operating income 5.47 4.63 7.97

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Basic 36057145 38093351 46491279

Diluted 37069885 39667905 49913317

Basic book value per common share 95.59 83.44 80.75

Diluted book alue per common share 92.59 80.11 74.29

Annualized return on average equity ROAE net

income 15.3% 8.9% 21.9%

Annualized ROAE operating income 6.3% 6.0% 13.1%

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In presenting he companys results management has included and discussed certain non-GAAP financial

measures as such term is defined in Item 10e of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC Management

believes that these non-GAAP measures which may be defined differently by other companies better explain the

Companys results of operaticns in manner that allows for more complete understanding of the underlying

trends in the Companys business However these measures should not be viewed as substitute for those

determined in accordance with U.S GAAP

Operating income operating income per share

Operating income is an internal performance measure used in the management of our operations and

represents after-tax operational results excluding as applicable net realized investment gains or losses net

impairment charges recognized in earnings net foreign exchange gain or loss and other non-recurring items We

exclude net realized investment gains or losses net impairment charges recognized in earnings net foreign

exchange gain or oss and other non-recurring items from our calculation of operating income because these

amounts are heavily influenced by and fluctuate in part according to the availability of market opportunities and

other factors We have excluded from our operating income the aggregate $101.7 million termination fee we
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received from Transatlantic in 2011 as this is non-recurring item In addition to presenting net income

determined in accordance with U.S GAAP we believe that showing operating income enables investors

analysts rating agencies and other users of our financial information to more easily analyze our results of

operations and our underlying business performance Operating income should not be viewed as substitute for

U.S GAAP net income The following is reconciliation of operating income to its most closely related U.S
GAAP measure net income

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions except per share data

Net income 493.0 $274.5 665.0

Add after tax effect of

Net realized investment gains 291.1 0.2 267.7

Net impairment charges recognized in earnings 0.1

Other income termination fee 93.7

Foreign exchange loss 0.8 3.1 0.4

Operating income 202.7 $183.7 397.8

Basic per share data

Net income 13.67 7.21 14.30

Add after tax effect of

Net realized investment gains 8.07 0.01 5.75
Other income termination fee 2.46

Foreign exchange loss 0.02 0.08 0.01

Operating income 5.62 4.82 8.56

Diluted per share data

Net income 13.30 6.92 13.32

Add after tax effect of

Net realized investment gains 7.85 0.01 5.36

Other income termination fee 2.36

Foreign exchange loss 0.02 0.08 0.01

Operating income 5.47 4.63 7.97
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Diluted book value per share

We have included diluted book value
per

share because it takes into account the effect of dilutive securities

therefore we believe it is an important measure of calculating shareholder returns

As of December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions except share and per share data

Price per share at period end 78.80 62.93 59.44

Total shareholders equity 3326.3 3149.0 3075.8

Basic common shares outstanding 34797781 37742131 38089226

Add

Unvested restricted share units 135123 249251 571178

Performance based equity awards 485973 889939 1440017

Employee share purchase plan 10750 11053 10576

Dilutive options/warrants outstanding 1224607 1525853 3272739

Weighted average
exercise price per share 47.02 45.72 35.98

Deduct

Options bought back via treasury method 730652 1108615 1980884

Common shares and common share equivalents outstanding 35923582 39309612 41402852

Basic book value per common share 95.59 83.44 80.75

Diluted book value ler common share 92.59 80.11 74.29

Annualized return on average equity

Annualized return on average shareholders equity ROAE is calculated using average
shareholders

equity excluding th average after tax unrealized gains or losses on investments We present ROAE as measure

that is commonly recognized standard of performance by investors analysts rating agencies and other users

of our financial information

Annualized operating return on average
shareholders equity is calculated using operating income and

average shareholders equity excluding the average after tax unrealized gains or losses on investments

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Opening shareholders equity $3149.0 $3075.8 $3213.3

Deduct accumulated other coniprehensive income 14.5 57.1 149.8

Adjusted opening shareholders equity $3134.5 $3018.7 $3063.5

Closing shareholders equity
$3326.3 $3149.0 $3075.8

Deduct accumulated other comprehensive income 14.5 57.1

Adjusted closing shareholders equity
$3326.3 $3134.5 $3018.7

Average shareholders equity
$3230.4 $3076.6 $3041.1

Net income availabEe to shareholders 493.0 274.5 665.0

Annualized return on average
shareholders equity net income available to

shareholders
15.3% 8.9% 21.9%

Operating income available to shareholders 202.7 183.7 397.8

Annualized return on average
shareholders equity operating income

available to shareholders 6.3% 6.0% 13.1%
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Relevant Factors

Revenues

We derive our revenues primarily from premiums on our insurance policies and reinsurance contracts net of

any
reinsurance or retrocessional coverage purchased Insurance and reinsurance premiums are function of the

amounts and types of policies and contracts we write as well as prevailing market prices Our prices are

determined before our ultimate costs which may extend far into the future are known In addition our revenues

include income generated from our investment portfolio consisting of net investment income and net realized

investment gains or losses Investment income is principally derived from interest and dividends earned on

investments partially offset by investment management and custodial expenses and fees paid to our custodian

bank Net realized investment gains or losses include gains or losses from the sale of investments as well as the

change in the fair value of investments that we mark-to-market through net income

Expenses

Our expenses consist largely of net losses and loss expenses acquisition costs and general and

administrative expenses Net losses and loss expenses incurred are comprised of three main components

losses paid which are actual cash payments to insureds and reinsureds net of recoveries from reinsurers

outstanding loss or case reserves which represent managements best estimate of the likely settlement

amount for known claims less the portion that can be recovered from reinsurers and

reserves for losses incurred but not reported or IBNR which are reserves in addition to case reserves

established by us that we believe are needed for the future settlement of claims The portion recoverable

from reinsurers is deducted from the gross estimated loss

General and administrative expenses include personnel expenses including stock-based compensation

expense rent expense professional fees information technology costs and other general operating expenses

Ratios

Management measures results for each segment on the basis of the loss and loss
expense ratio

acquisition cost ratio general and administrative expense ratio expense ratio and the combined ratio

Because we do not manage our assets by segment investment income interest expense and total assets are not

allocated to individual reportable segments General and administrative expenses are allocated to segments based

on various factors including staff count and each segments proportional share of
gross premiums written

Critical Accounting Policies

It is important to understand our accounting policies in order to understand our financial position and results

of operations Our consolidated financial statements reflect determinations that are inherently subjective in nature

and require management to make assumptions and best estimates to determine the reported values If events or

other factors cause actual results to differ materially from managements underlying assumptions or estimates

there could be material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations The following are the

accounting estimates that in managements judgment are critical due to the judgments assumptions and

uncertainties underlying the application of those estimates and the potential for results to differ from

managements assumptions
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Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses

Reserves for losses and loss
expenses by segment as of December 31 2012 and 2011 were comprised of the

following

International

U.S Insurance Insurance Reinsurance Total

December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

in millions

Case reserves 508.8 387.6 550.5 522.6 479.8 456.2 $1539.1 1366.4

IBNR 1389.5 1274.8 1716.1 1726.4 1000.8 857.5 4106.4 3858.7

Reserve for losses and loss expenses 1898.3 1662.4 2266.6 2249.0 1480.6 1313.7 5645.5 5225.1

Reinsurance recoverables 517.3 438.3 620.6 564.3 3.2 0.3 1141.1 1002.9

Net reserve for losses and loss expenses $1381.0 $1224.1 $1646.0 $1684.7 $1477.4 $1.31 3.4 4504.4 4222.2

The reserve for losses and loss expenses is comprised of two main elements outstanding loss reserves also

known as case reserves and reserves for IBNR Outstanding loss reserves relate to known claims and represent

managements best estimate of the likely loss settlement IBNR reserves relate primarily to unreported events

that based on industry information managements experience and actuarial evaluation can reasonably be

expected to have occurred and are reasonably likely to result in loss to our company IBNR reserves also relate

to estimated development of reported events that based on industry information managements experience and

actuarial evaluation can reasonably be expected to reach our attachment point and are reasonably likely to result

in loss to our company We also include IBNR changes in the values of claims that have been reported to us but

are not yet settled Each claim is settled individually based upon its merits and it is not unusual for claim to take

years after being reported to settle especially if legal action is involved As result reserves for losses and loss

expenses include significant estimates for IBNR reserves

The reserve for IBNR is estimated by management for each line of business based on various factors

including underwriters expectations about loss experience actuarial analysis comparisons with the results of

industry benchmarks and loss experience to date The reserve for IBNR is calculated as the ultimate amount of

losses and loss expenses less cumulative paid losses and loss expenses
and case reserves Our actuaries employ

generally accepted actuarial methodologies to determine estimated ultimate loss reserves

While management believes that our case reserves and IBNR are sufficient to cover losses assumed by us

there can be no assurance that losses will not deviate from our reserves possibly by material amounts The

methodology of estimating loss reserves is periodically reviewed to ensure that the assumptions made continue to

be appropriate To the extent actual reported losses exceed estimated losses the carried estimate of the ultimate

losses will be increased i.e unfavorable reserve development and to the extent actual reported losses are less

than estimated losses the carried estimate of ultimate losses will be reduced i.e favorable reserve

development We record any changes in our loss reserve estimates and the related reinsurance recoverables in

the periods in which they are determined

In certain lines of business claims are generally reported and paid within relatively short period of time

shorter tail lines during and following the policy coverage period This generally enables us to determine

with greater certainty our estimate of ultimate losses and loss expenses The estimate of reserves for our shorter

tail lines of business and products including property crop aviation marine personal accident and workers

compensation catastrophe relies primarily on traditional loss reserving methodologies utilizing selected paid and

reported loss development factors

Our casualty insurance and casualty reinsurance lines of business include general liability risks healthcare

and professional liability risks Claims may be reported or settled several years after the coverage period has

terminated for these lines of business longer tail lines which increases uncertainties of our reserve estimates

in such lines In addition our attachment points for these longer tail lines are often relatively high making

reserving tr these of business more difficult than shorter tail lines due to having to estimate whether the
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severity of the estimated losses will exceed our attachment point We establish case reserve when sufficient

information is gathered to make reasonable estimate of the liability which often requires significant amount

of information and time Due to the lengthy reporting pattern of these casualty lines reliance is placed on

industry benchmarks supplemented by our own experience For expected loss ratio selections we are giving

increasing consideration to our existing experience supplemented with analysis of loss trends rate changes and

experience of peer companies

Our reinsurance treaties are reviewed individually based upon individual characteristics and loss experience

emergence Loss reserves on assumed reinsurance have unique features that make them more difficult to estimate

than direct insurance We establish loss reserves upon receipt of advice from cedent that reserve is merited

Our claims staff may establish additional loss reserves where in their judgment the amount reported by cedent

is potentially inadequate The following are the most significant features that make estimating loss reserves on

assumed reinsurance difficult

Reinsurers have to rely upon the cedents and reinsurance intermediaries to report losses in timely

fashion

Reinsurers must rely upon cedents to price the underlying business appropriately

Reinsurers have less predictable loss emergence patterns than direct insurers particularly when writing

excess-of-loss reinsurance

For excess-of-loss reinsurance cedents generally are required to report losses that either exceed 50% of the

retention have reasonable probability of exceeding the retention or meet serious injury reporting criteria All

reinsurance claims that are reserved are reviewed at least
every

six months For quota share reinsurance treaties

cedents are required to give periodic statement of account generally monthly or quarterly These periodic

statements typically include information regarding written premiums earned premiums unearned premiums

ceding commissions brokerage amounts applicable taxes paid losses and outstanding losses They can be

submitted 60 to 90 days after the close of the reporting period Some quota share reinsurance treaties have

specific language regarding earlier notice of serious claims

Reinsurance generally has greater time lag than direct insurance in the reporting of claims The time lag is

caused by the claim first being reported to the cedent then the intermediary such as broker and finally the

reinsurer This lag can be up to six months or longer in certain cases There is also time lag because the insurer

may not be required to report claims to the reinsurer until certain reporting criteria are met In some instances this

could be several years while claim is being litigated We use reporting factors based on data from the

Reinsurance Association of America to adjust for time lags We also use historical treaty-specific reporting

factors when applicable Loss and premium information are entered into our reinsurance system by our claims

department and our accounting department on timely basis

We record the individual case reserves sent to us by the cedents through the reinsurance intermediaries

Individual claims are reviewed by our reinsurance claims department and adjusted as deemed appropriate The

loss data received from the intermediaries is checked for reasonableness and for known events Details of the loss

listings are reviewed during routine claim audits

The expected loss ratios that we assign to each treaty are based upon analysis and modeling performed by

team of actuaries The historical data reviewed by the team of pricing actuaries is considered in setting the

reserves for each cedent The historical data in the submissions is matched against our carried reserves for our

historical treaty years

Loss reserves do not represent an exact calculation of liability Rather loss reserves are estimates of what

we expect the ultimate resolution and administration of claims will cost These estimates are based on actuarial

and statistical projections and on our assessment of currently available data as well as estimates of future trends

in claims severity and frequency judicial theories of liability and other factors Loss reserve estimates are refined
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as experience develops and as claims are reported and resolved In addition the relatively long periods between

when loss occurs and when it may be reported to our claims department for our casualty insurance and casualty

reinsurance lines of business increase the uncertainties of our reserve estimates in such lines

We utilize variety of standard actuarial methods in our analysis The selections from these various

methods are based on the loss development characteristics of the specific line of business For lines of business

with long reporting periods such as casualty reinsurance we may rely more on an expected loss ratio method as

described below until losses begin to develop For lines of business with short reporting periods such as property

insurance we may rely more on paid loss development method as described below as losses are reported

relatively quickly The actuarial methods we utilize include

Paid Loss Development Method We estimate ultimate losses by calculating past paid loss

development factors and applying them to exposure periods with further expected paid loss development

The paid loss development method assumes that losses are paid at consistent rate The paid loss

development method provides an objective test of reported loss projections because paid losses contain no

reserve estimates In some circumstances paid losses for recent periods may be too varied for accurate

predictions For many coverages especially casualty coverages claim payments are made slowly and it may

take years
for claims to be fully reported and settled These payments may be unreliable for determining

future loss projections because of shifts in settlement patterns or because of large settlements in the early

stages of development Choosing an appropriate tail factor to determine the amount of payments from the

latest development period to the ultimate development period may also require considerable judgment

especially for coverages that have long payment patterns As we have limited payment history we have had

to supplement our paid loss development patterns with appropriate benchmarks

Reported Loss Development Method We estimate ultimate losses by calculating past reported loss

development factors and applying them to exposure periods with further expected reported loss

development Since reported losses include payments and case reserves changes in both of these amounts

are incorporatel in this method This approach provides larger volume of data to estimate ultimate losses

than the paid loss development method Thus reported loss patterns may be less varied than paid loss

patterns especially for coverages that have historically been paid out over long period of time but for

which claims are reported relatively early and have case loss reserve estimates established This method

assumes that reserves have been established using consistent practices over the historical period that is

reviewed Changes in claims handling procedures large claims or significant numbers of claims of an

unusual nature may cause results to he too varied for accurate forecasting Also choosing an appropriate

tail factor to determine the change in reported loss from the latest development period to the ultimate

development period may require considerable judgment As we have limited reported history we have had

to supplement cur reported loss development patterns with appropriate benchmarks

Expected Loss Ratio Method To estimate ultimate losses under the expected loss ratio method we

multiply earned premiums by an expected loss ratio The expected loss ratio is selected utilizing industry

data historical company data and professional judgment This method is particularly useful for new lines of

business where there are no historical losses or where past loss experience is not credible

Born huetter-Ferguson Paid Loss Method The Bornhuetter-Ferguson paid loss method is

combination of the paid loss development method and the expected loss ratio method The amount of losses

yet to be paid is based upon the expected loss ratios and the expected percentage of losses unpaid These

expected loss ratios are modified to the extent paid losses to date differ from what would have been

expected to have been paid based upon the selected paid loss development pattern This method avoids some

of the distortions that could result from large development factor being applied to small base of paid

losses to calculate ultimate losses This method will react slowly if actual loss ratios develop differently

because of major changes in rate levels retentions or deductibles the forms and conditions of reinsurance

coverage the types of risks covered or variety of other changes

Bornhuetter-Ferguson Reported Loss Method The Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method is

similar to the l3ornhuetter-Ferguson paid loss method with the exception that it uses reported losses and

reported loss development factors
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During 2012 2011 and 2010 we adjusted our reliance on actuarial methods utilized for certain casualty

lines of business and loss
years

within our U.S insurance and international insurance segments from using

blend of the Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method and the expected loss ratio method to using only the

Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method We also began adjusting our reliance on actuarial methods utilized

for certain other casualty lines of business and loss years within all of our operating segments including the

reinsurance segment by placing greater reliance on the Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method than on the

expected loss ratio method Placing greater reliance on more responsive actuarial methods for certain casualty

lines of business and loss years within each of our operating segments is natural progression as we mature as

company and gain sufficient historical experience of our own that allows us to further refine our estimate of the

reserve for losses and loss expenses We believe utilizing only the Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method

for older loss years will more accurately reflect the reported loss activity we have had thus far in our ultimate loss

ratio selections and will better reflect how the ultimate losses will develop over time We will continue to utilize

the expected loss ratio method for the most recent loss
years

until we have sufficient experience to utilize other

acceptable actuarial methodologies

We expect that the trend of placing greater reliance on more responsive actuarial methods for example from

the expected loss ratio method to the Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method to continue as both our loss

years mature and become more statistically reliable and as we build databases of our internal loss

development patterns The expected loss ratio remains key assumption as the Bornhuetter-Ferguson methods

rely upon an expected loss ratio selection and loss development pattern selection

The key assumptions used to arrive at our best estimate of loss reserves are the expected loss ratios rate of

loss cost inflation selection of benchmarks and reported and paid loss emergence patterns Our reporting factors

and expected loss ratios are based on blend of our own experience and industry benchmarks for longer tailed

business and primarily our own experience for shorter tail business The benchmarks selected were those that we

believe are most similar to our underwriting business

Our expected loss ratios for shorter tail lines change from
year to year As our losses from shorter tail lines

of business are reported relatively quickly we select our expected loss ratios for the most recent years based

upon our actual loss ratios for our older years adjusted for rate changes inflation cost of reinsurance and average

storm activity For the shorter tail lines we initially used benchmarks for reported and paid loss emergence

patterns As we mature as company we have begun supplementing those benchmark patterns with our actual

patterns as appropriate For the longer tail lines we continue to use benchmark patterns although we update the

benchmark patterns as additional information is published regarding the benchmark data

For shorter tail lines the primary assumption that changed during both 2012 as compared to 2011 and 2011

as compared to 2010 as it relates to prior year
losses was actual paid and reported loss emergence patterns were

generally less severe than estimated for each year due to lower frequency and severity of reported losses As

result of this change we recognized net favorable prior year reserve development in both 2012 and 2011

However we did experience significant losses on certain of our shorter tail lines related to the current loss year

During the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 we incurred $179.6 million $292.2 million and

$98.3 million of catastrophe-related losses In addition during the year ended December 31 2012 we recognized

$36.0 million related to drought losses on the U.S Crop reinsurance book

We will continue to evaluate and monitor the development of these losses and the impact it has on our

current and future assumptions We believe recognition of the reserve changes in the period they were recorded

was appropriate since pattern of reported losses had not emerged and the loss years were previously too

immature to deviate from the expected loss ratio method in prior periods

The selection of the expected loss ratios for the longer tail lines is our most significant assumption Due to

the lengthy reporting pattern of longer tail lines we supplement our own experience with industry benchmarks of

expected loss ratios and reporting patterns in addition to our own experience For our longer tail lines the

primary assumption that changed during both 2012 as compared to 2011 and 2011 as compared to 2010 as it
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relates to prior year
losses was using the Bornhuetter-Ferguson loss development method for certain casualty

lines of business and loss years as discussed above This method calculated lower projected loss ratio based on

loss emergence patterns to date As result of the change in the expected loss ratio we recognized net favorable

prior year reserve development in 2012 2011 and 2010 We believe that recognition of the reserve changes in the

period they were recorded was appropriate since pattern
of reported losses had not emerged and the loss years

were previously too immature to deviate from the expected loss ratio method in prior periods

Our overall change in the loss reserve estimates related to prior years
decreased as percentage of total

carried reserves during 2012 uring 2012 we had net decrease of $170.3 million or 4.0% on an opening

carried reserve base of $4222.2 million net of reinsurance recoverable During 2011 we had net decrease of

$253.5 million or 64% on an opening carried reserve base of $3951.6 million net of reinsurance recoverables

We believe that these changes are reasonable given the long-tail nature of our business

There is potential for significant variation in the development of loss reserves particularly for the casualty

lines of business due to their long tail nature and high attachment points The maturing of our casualty insurance

and reinsurance loss reserves have caused us to reduce what we believe is the reasonably possible variance in the

expected loss ratios for older loss years As of December 31 2012 and 2011 we believe the reasonably possible

variances in our expected loss ratio in percentage points for our loss years are as follows

As of December 31

Loss Year 2012 2011

2004 0.0% 2.0%

2005 2.0% 4.0%

2006 4.0% 6.0%

2007 6.0% 8.0%

2008 8.0% 10.0%

2009 10.0% 10.0%

2010 10.0% 10.0%

2011 10.0% 10.0%

2012 10.0% N/A

The change in the reasonably possible variance for the 2005 through 2008 loss years in 2012 compared to

2011 is due to giving greater weight to the Bornhuetter-Ferguson loss development method for additional lines of

business during 2011 and additional development of losses The total reasonably possible variance of our

expected loss ratio fOr all loss years for our casualty insurance and casualty reinsurance lines of business was six

percentage points as of December 31 2012 Because we expect small volume of large claims it is more

difficult to estimate the ultimate loss ratios so we believe the variance of our loss ratio selection could be

relatively wide

If our final casualty insurance and reinsurance loss ratios vary by six percentage points from the expected

loss ratios in aggregate our required net reserves after reinsurance recoverable would increase or decrease by

approximately $610.6 million Excluding the impact of income taxes this would result in either an increase or

decrease to net income and total shareholders equity of approximately $610.6 million As of December 31

2012 this represented approximately 18% of total shareholders equity

In terms of liquidity our contractual obligations for reserves for losses and loss expenses
would also

increase or decrease by approximately $610.6 million after reinsurance recoverable If our obligations were to

increase we believe we currently have sufficient cash and investments to meet those obligations
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The following tables provide our ranges of loss and loss expense reserve estimates by business segment as

of December 31 2012

Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses
Gross of Reinsurance Recoverable

Carried Low High
Reserves Estimate Estimate

in millions

$1898.3 $1450.8 $2154.2

2266.6 1736.6 2559.2

1480.6 1164.0 1714.1

5645.5 4472.2 6306.6

Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses
Net of Reinsurance Recoverable

Carried Low High
Reserves Estimate Estimate

in millions

U.S insurance

International insurance

Reinsurance

Con solidated

U.S insurance

International insurance

$1380.9 $1062.7 $1576.9

1646.1 1247.1 1865.5

Reinsurance 1477.4 1161.0 1710.7

Consolidated1 4504.4 3574.0 5049.9

For statistical reasons it is not appropriate to add together the ranges of each business segment in an effort

to determine the low and high range around the consolidated loss reserves

Our range for each business segment was determined by utilizing multiple actuarial loss reserving methods

along with various assumptions of reporting patterns and expected loss ratios by loss year The various outcomes

of these techniques were combined to determine reasonable
range of required loss and loss expense reserves

While we believe our approach to determine the range of loss and loss expense is reasonable there are no

assurances that actual loss experience will be within the ranges of loss and loss expense noted above

Our selection of the actual carried reserves has typically been above the midpoint of the range As of

December 31 2012 we were 4.5% above the midpoint of the consolidated net loss reserve range We believe

that we should be prudent in our reserving practices due to the lengthy reporting patterns and relatively large

limits of net liability for any one risk of our direct excess casualty business and of our casualty reinsurance

business Thus due to this uncertainty regarding estimates for reserve for losses and loss expenses we have

carried our consolidated reserve for losses and loss expenses net of reinsurance recoverable above the midpoint

of the low and high estimates for the consolidated net losses and loss expenses We believe that relying on the

more prudent actuarial indications is appropriate for these lines of business

Ceded Reinsurance

We cede insurance to reinsurers in order to limit our maximum loss to protect against concentration of risk

within our portfolio and to manage our exposure to catastrophic events Because the ceding of insurance does not

discharge us from our primary obligation to the insureds we remain liable to the extent that our reinsurers do not

meet their obligations under the reinsurance agreements Therefore we regularly evaluate the financial condition

of our reinsurers and monitor concentration of credit risk No material provision has been made for

unrecoverable reinsurance as of December 31 2012 and 2011 as we believe that all reinsurance balances will be

recovered
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When we reinsure portion of our exposures we pay reinsurers portion of premiums received on the

reinsured policies The following table illustrates our gross premiums written ceded premiums written and net

premiums written

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Gross premiums written $2329.3 $1939.5 $1758.4

Premiums ceded 491.5 405.7 365.9

Net premiums written $1837.8 $1533.8 $1392.5

Ceded as percentage of gross
21.1% 20.9% 20.8%

The following table illustrates the effect of our reinsurance ceded strategies on our results of operations

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Ceded premiums written 491.5 405.8 365.9

Ceded premiums earned 440.8 366.3 365.3

Losses and loss expenses ceded 252.6 214.6 165.8

Acquisition costs ceded 97.3 92.6 81.5

We had net cash outflows relating to ceded reinsurance activities premiums paid less losses recovered and

net ceding commissions received of approximately $247.5 million $148.3 million and $128.5 million for the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively The net cash outflows in all years are reflective of

fewer losses that were recoverable under our reinsurance coverages

Our reinsurance treaties are generally purchased on an annual basis and are therefore subject to yearly

renegotiation The treaties typically specify ceding commissions and include provisions for required reporting to

the reinsurers responsibility for taxes arbitration of disputes and the posting of security for the reinsurance

recoverable under certain circumstances such as downgrade in the reinsurers financial strength rating The

amount of risk ceded by us to reinsurers is subject to maximum limits which vary by line of business and by type

of coverage We also purchase limited amount of facultative reinsurance which provides cover for specified

policies rather than for whole classes of business

The examples below illustrate the types
of treaty reinsurance arrangements in force at December 31 2012

General Property We purchased both quota share reinsurance for our general property business written

in our U.S insurance and international insurance segments as well as excess-of-loss cover providing

protection for specified classes of catastrophe We have also purchased limited amount of facultative

reinsurance which provides cover for specified general property policies

General Casiultv We have purchased variable quota share reinsurance for our general casualty business

since December 2002 At year-end 2012 the percentage ceded varied by both location of writing office

and by limits reinsured with significantly larger cession being effective for policies above $25 million

in limits We also have excess-of-loss cover in place for general casualty business written in our Asian

branch offices

Professional Liability For professional liability policies our reinsurance varied by writing office and by

policy type Professional liability policies written in our Bermuda European and U.S offices were quota

share reinsured with cession percentages dependent upon location Additionally the professional liability

policies writlen in the United States were reinsured on an excess-of-loss basis

Healthcare We purchased quota share and excess-of-loss reinsurance protection for our healthcare line

of business written by our Bermuda and U.S offices respectively As is the case with general casualty

our healthcare business originating in Asia is under an excess-of-loss reinsurance arrangement
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The following table illustrates our reinsurance recoverable as of December 31 2012 and 2011

As of December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Ceded case reserves 234.2 196.5

Ceded IBNR reserves 906.9 806.4

Reinsurance recoverable $1141.1 $1002.9

As noted above we remain obligated for amounts ceded in the event our reinsurers do not meet their

obligations Accordingly we have evaluated the reinsurers that are providing reinsurance protection to us and

will continue to monitor their credit ratings and financial stability We generally have the right to terminate our

treaty reinsurance contracts at any time upon prior written notice to the reinsurer under specified circumstances

including the assignment to the reinsurer by A.M Best of financial strength rating of less than A-
As of December 31 2012 approximately 99% of ceded case reserves and ceded IBNR were recoverable

from reinsurers who had an A.M Best rating of A- or higher The following table shows breakdown of our

reinsurance recoverables by credit rating as of December 31 2012

As of December 312012

Reinsurance

Ceded Ceded Reinsurance Recoverable

A.M Best Rating OSLR IBNR Recoverable on Paid

in millions

38.0 40.1 78.1

83.2 356.8 440.0 33.6

110.1 502.6 612.7 22.0

A- 0.7 0.7 0.9

0.7 4.5 5.2 0.3

NR 2.2 2.2 4.4 0.1

Total $234.2 $906.9 $1141.1 $56.9

We determine what portion of the losses will be recoverable under our reinsurance policies by reference to

the terms of the reinsurance protection purchased This determination is necessarily based on the underlying loss

estimates and accordingly is subject to the same uncertainties as the estimate of case reserves and IBNR

reserves

The following table shows our reinsurance recoverables by operating segment as of December 31 2012 and

2011

As of December 31

2012 2011

in millions

U.S insurance 517.3 438.3

International insurance 620.6 564.3

Reinsurance 3.2 0.3

Total $1141.1 $1002.9

Historically our reinsurance recoverables related primarily to our property lines of business which being

short tail in nature are not subject to the same variations as our casualty lines of business However during 2012

and 2011 we have increased the amount of reinsurance we utilize for our casualty lines of business in the

U.S insurance and international insurance segments and as such the reinsurance recoverables from our casualty

lines of business have increased over the past several years
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Our reinsurance recoverables are subject to the same uncertainties as the estimate of case reserves and IBNR

reserves The reasonably possible variance of our expected ceded loss ratio for all loss years for our casualty

insurance and casualty reinsurance lines of business was eight percentage points as of December 31 2012

If our final casualty insurance ceded loss ratios vary by eight percentage points from the expected loss ratios

in aggregate our required reinsurance recoverable would increase or decrease by approximately $152.2 million

Excluding the impact of income taxes this would result in either an increase or decrease to net income and

shareholders equitY of approrimately $152.2 million As of December 31 2012 this amount represented

approximately 5% of total shareholders equity

Premiums and Acç uisition Costs

Premiums are recognized as written on the inception date of policy For certain types of business written

by us notably reinsurance premium income may not be known at the contract inception date In the case of

quota share reinsurance assumed by us the underwriter makes an estimate of premium income at inception as the

premium income is typically derived as percentage
of the underlying policies written by the cedents The

underwriter estimate is based on statistical data provided by reinsureds and the underwriters judgment and

experience Such estimations are refined over the reporting period of each treaty as actual written premium

information is reported by ceding companies and intermediaries Management reviews estimated premiums at

least quarterly and any adjustments are recorded in the period in which they become known

As of December 31 2012 our changes in quota share premium estimates have been adjustments of 10%

0% and 7% for the 2011 2010 and 2009 treaty years respectively For the 2012 treaty year 5% change in our

premium estimate would cause gross premiums written in our reinsurance segment to increase or decrease by

$13.8 million over the next three years There would also be related increase or decrease in loss and loss

expenses and acquisition costs due to the increase or decrease in
gross premiums written

Total premiuni estimated on quota share reinsurance contracts for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 represented approximately 13% 11% and 13% respectively
of total

gross premiums written

Other insurance and reinsurance policies can require that the premium be adjusted at the expiry of policy

to reflect the risk assumed by us Premiums resulting from such adjustments are estimated and accrued based on

available information

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In accordance with U.S GAAP we are required to recognize certain assets at their fair value in our

consolidated balance sheets This includes our fixed maturity investments and other invested assets Fair value is

defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date There is three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of

fair value measurements The valuation hierarchy is based upon whether the inputs to the valuation of an asset or

liability are observable or unobservable in the market at the measurement date with quoted market prices being

the highest level Ievel and unobservable inputs being the lowest level Level fair value measurement

will fall within the level of the hierarchy based on the input that is significant to determining such measurement

The three levels are defined as follows

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology that are quoted prices unadjusted for

identical assets or liabilities in active markets

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology other than quoted market prices

unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in active markets Level inputs include quoted

prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical assets in

markets that are not active and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or

liability either directly or indirectly for substantially the full term of the asset or liability

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology which are unobservable for the asset or liability
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At each measurement date we estimate the fair value of the financial instruments using various valuation

techniques We utilize to the extent available quoted market prices in active markets or observable market

inputs in estimating the fair value of our financial instruments When quoted market prices or observable market

inputs are not available we utilize valuation techniques that rely on unobservable inputs to estimate the fair value

of financial instruments The following describes the valuation techniques we used to determine the fair value of

financial instruments held as of December 31 2012 and what level within the U.S GAAP fair value hierarchy

the valuation technique resides

U.S government and U.S government agencies Comprised primarily of bonds issued by the

U.S Treasury the Federal Home Loan Bank the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and the Federal

National Mortgage Association The fair values of U.S government securities are based on quoted market prices

in active markets and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy We believe the market for U.S Treasury

securities is an actively traded market given the high level of daily trading volume The fair values of

U.S government agency securities are priced using the spread above the risk-free yield curve As the yields for

the risk-free yield curve and the spreads for these securities are observable market inputs the fair values of

U.S government agency securities are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Non-U.S government and government agencies Comprised of fixed income obligations of non-

U.S governmental entities The fair values of these securities are based on prices obtained from international

indices and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

States municipalities and political subdivisions Comprised of fixed income obligations of U.S domiciled

state and municipality entities The fair values of these securities are based on prices obtained from the new issue

market and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Corporate debt Comprised of bonds issued by corporations that are diversified across wide range of

issuers and industries The fair values of corporate bonds that pay floating rate coupon are priced using the

spread above the London Interbank Offered Rate yield curve and the fair values of corporate bonds that are long

term are priced using the spread above the risk-free yield curve The spreads are sourced from broker-dealers

trade prices and the new issue market As the significant inputs used to price corporate bonds are observable

market inputs the fair values of corporate bonds are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Mortgage-backed Principally comprised of residential and commercial mortgages originated by both

U.S government agencies such as the Federal National Mortgage Association and non-U.S government agency

originators The fair values of mortgage-backed securities originated by U.S government agencies and non-

U.S government agencies are based on pricing model that incorporates prepayment speeds and spreads to

determine the appropriate average life of mortgage-backed securities The spreads are sourced from broker-

dealers trade prices and the new issue market As the significant inputs used to price the mortgage-backed

securities are observable market inputs the fair values of these securities are included in the Level fair value

hierarchy unless the significant inputs used to price the mortgage-backed securities are broker-dealer quotes and

we are not able to determine if those quotes are based on observable market inputs in which case the fair value is

included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Asset-backed Principally comprised of bonds backed by pools of automobile loan receivables home

equity loans credit card receivables and collateralized loan obligations originated by variety of financial

institutions The fair values of asset-backed securities are priced using prepayment speed and spread inputs that

are sourced from the new issue market or broker-dealer quotes As the significant inputs used to price the asset

backed securities are observable market inputs the fair values of these securities are included in the Level fair

value hierarchy unless the significant inputs used to price the asset-backed securities are broker-dealer quotes

and we are not able to determine if those quotes are based on observable market inputs in which case the fair

value is included in the Level fair value hierarchy
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Equity securities Comprised of U.S and foreign common and preferred stocks and mutual funds Equities

are generally included in the Level fair value hierarchy as prices are obtained from market exchanges in active

markets Foreign mutual funds where the net asset value is not provided on daily basis are included in the Level

fair value hierarchy

Other invested assets Comprised of funds invested in range of diversified strategies In accordance with

U.S GAAP the fair values of the funds are based on the net asset value of the funds as reported by the fund

manager that the Company believes is an unobservable input and as such the fair values of those funds are

included in the Level fair value hierarchy The Company does not measure its investments that are accounted

for using the equity method of accounting at fair value

Derivative instruments The fair value of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate futures are priced

from quoted market prices for similar exchange-traded derivatives and pricing valuation models that utilize

independent market data inputs The fair value of derivatives are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Senior notes The fair value of the senior notes is based on trades as reported in Bloomberg The fair value

of the senior notes is included in the Level fair value hierarchy

The following table shows the pricing sources of our fixed maturity investments held as of December 31

2012 and 2011

As of December 31 2012 As of December 31 2011

Fair Value Fair Value

Percentage Hierarchy Percentage Hierarchy

Fair Value of Total Level Fair Value of Total Level

in millions in millions

Barclays indices $4001.6 60.4% and $4044.1 62.2% and

Reuters pricing service 821.5 12.4% 458.8 7.1%

Interactive Data Pricing 622.6 9.4% 996.5 15.3%

Merrill Lynch indices 272.5 4.1% 160.0 2.5%

Broker-dealer quotes 230.1 3.5% 343.9 5.3%

International indices 122.4 1.8% 115.4 1.8%

Other sources 555.8 8.4% 380.0 5.8%

$6626.5 100.0% $6498.7 100.0%

Barclays indices We use Barclays indices to price our U.S government U.S government agencies

corporate debt agency and non-agency mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities There are several

observable inputs that the Barclays indices use in determining its prices which include among others treasury

yields new issuance and secondary trades information provided by broker-dealers security cash flows and

structures sector and issuer level spreads credit rating underlying collateral and prepayment speeds For U.S

government securities traders that act as market makers are the primary source of pricing as such for

U.S government securities we believe the Barclays indices reflect quoted prices unadjusted for identical

securities in active markets

Interactive Data Pricing We use Interactive Data Pricing to price our U.S government agencies

municipalities non-agency mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities There are several observable inputs

that Interactive Data Pricing uses in determining its prices which include among others benchmark yields

reported trades and issuer spreads

Reuters pricing service We use the Reuters pricing service to price our U.S government agencies

corporate debt agency and non-agency mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities There are several

observable inputs that the Reuters pricing service uses in determining its prices which include among others

option-adjusted spieads treasury yields new issuance and secondary trades sector and issuer level spreads

underlying collateral and prepayment speeds
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Broker-dealer quotes We also utilize broker-dealers to price our agency and non-agency mortgage-backed

and asset-backed securities The pricing sources include JP Morgan Securities Inc Bank of America Securities

LLC Deutsche Bank Securities Inc and other broker-dealers When broker-dealer quotes are utilized it is

primarily due to the fact that the particular broker-dealer was involved in the initial pricing of the security

Merrill Lynch Index We use the Merrill Lynch indices to price our non-U.S government and government

agencies securities corporate debt municipalities and asset-backed securities There are several observable

inputs that the Merrill Lynch indices use in determining its prices which include reported trades and other

sources

Standard Poors Securities Evaluation We use Standard Poors to price our U.S government

agencies corporate debt municipalities mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities There are several

observable inputs that Standard Poors uses in determining its prices which include among others benchmark

yields reported trades and issuer spreads

International indices We use international indices which include the FTSE Deutsche Teleborse and the

Scotia Index to price our non-U.S government and government agencies securities The observable inputs used

by international indices to determine its prices are based on new issuance and secondary trades and information

provided by broker-dealers

Other sources We utilize other indices and pricing services to price various securities These sources use

observable inputs consistent with indices and pricing services discussed above

We utilize independent pricing sources to obtain market quotations for securities that have quoted prices in

active markets In general the independent pricing sources use observable market inputs including but not

limited to investment yields credit risks and spreads benchmarking of like securities non-binding broker-dealer

quotes reported trades and sector groupings to determine the fair value For majority of the portfolio we
obtained two or more prices per security as of December 31 2012 When multiple prices are obtained price

source hierarchy is utilized to determine which price source is the best estimate of the fair value of the security

The price source hierarchy emphasizes more weighting to significant observable inputs such as index pricing and

less weighting towards non-binding broker quotes In addition to validate all prices obtained from these pricing

sources including non-binding broker quotes we also obtain prices from our investment portfolio managers and

other sources e.g another pricing vendor and compare the prices obtained from the independent pricing

sources to those obtained from our investment portfolio managers and other sources We investigate any material

differences between the multiple sources and determine which price best reflects the fair value of the individual

security There were no material differences between the prices from the independent pricing sources and the

prices obtained from our investment portfolio managers and other sources as of December 31 2012

There have been no material changes to any of our valuation techniques from those used as of December 31
2011 Based on all reasonably available information received we believe the prices that were obtained from

inactive markets were orderly transactions and therefore reflected the current price market participant would

pay for the asset Since fair valuing financial instrument is an estimate of what willing buyer would pay for

our asset if we sold it we will not know the ultimate value of our financial instruments until they are sold We
believe the valuation techniques utilized provide us with the best estimate of the price that would be received to

sell our assets in an orderly transaction between participants at the measurement date
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Asset Impairment Valuation

We classify iitangible assets into three categories intangible assets with finite lives subject to

amortization intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization and goodwill Intangible

assets other than goodwill consist of renewal rights internally generated software non-compete covenants and

insurance licenses held by subsidiaries domiciled in the United States The following is summary of our

goodwill and other ntangible assets as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Carrying Value

Year Finite or Estimated Useful As of December 31

Source of Goodwill or Intangible Asset Acquired Indefinite Life 2012 2011

in millions

Goodwill 2008 indefinite N/A 3.9 3.9

Goodwill2 2008 indefinite N/A 264.5 264.5

Total goodwill
$268.4 $268.4

Insurance licenses3 2002 Indefinite N/A 3.9 3.9

Insurance licensesL 2008 Indefinite N/A 12.0 12.0

Insurance licenses2 2008 Indefinite N/A 8.0 8.0

Distribution network2 2008 Finite 15 years
27.5 30.0

Total intangible assets 51.4 53.9

Related to the acquisition of Finial Insurance Company

Related to the acquisition of Darwin

Related to the acquisition of Allied World National Assurance Company and Allied World Assurance

Company U.S Inc

For intangible assets with finite lives the value is amortized over their useful lives We also test intangible

assets with finite lives for impairment if conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

Such factors includ but are not limited to

significant decrease in the market price of the intangible asset

significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which the intangible asset is being used or in its

physical condition

significant adverse change in legal factors or in the business climate that could affect the value of the

intangible asset including an adverse action or assessment by regulator

An accumulation of costs significantly in excess of the amount originally expected for the acquisition or

construction of the intangible asset

current-period operating or cash flow loss combined with history of operating or cash flow losses or

projection or forecast that demonstrates continuing losses associated with the use of the intangible

asset and

current expectation that more likely than not the intangible asset will be sold or otherwise disposed of

significantly before the end of its previously estimated useful life

As result of our evaluation we determined that there was no impairment to the carrying value of our

intangible assets with finite lives for the year
ended December 31 2012

For indefinite lived intangible assets we do not amortize the intangible asset but test these intangible assets

for impairment by comparing the fair value of the assets to their carrying values on an annual basis or more

frequently if circumstances warrant The factors we consider to determine if an impairment exists are similar to

factors noted above As result of our evaluation we determined that there was no impairment to the carrying

value of our indefinite lived intangible assets for the year ended December 31 2012
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Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisitions over the fair value of net assets acquired and is not

amortized Goodwill is assigned at acquisition to the applicable reporting units based on the expected benefit to

be received by the reporting units from the business combination We determine the expected benefit based on

several factors including the purpose of the business combination the strategy of the company subsequent to the

business combination and structure of the acquired company subsequent to the business combination reporting

unit is component of our business that has discrete financial information which is reviewed by management In

determining the reporting unit we analyze the inputs processes outputs and overall operating performance of

the reporting unit

We have determined that the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Darwin should be allocated to the

U.S insurance segment reporting unit as the assets employed and the liabilities relate to the U.S insurance

operations All the insurance operations of Darwin are included into the U.S insurance segment

For goodwill we perform an impairment test annually or more frequently if circumstances warrant We
may first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of

reporting unit is less than its carrying amount The results of the qualitative assessment will determine if an entity

needs to proceed with the two-step goodwill impairment test

The first step of the goodwill impairment test is to compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its

carrying value including goodwill If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value then the

second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed In determining the fair value of the reporting units

discounted cash flow models and market multiple models are utilized The discounted cash flow models apply

discount to projected cash flows including terminal value calculation The market multiple models apply

earnings and book value multiples of similarpublicly-traded companies to the reporting units projected earnings

or book value We select the weighting of the models utilized to determine the fair value of the reporting units

based on judgment considering such factors as the reliability of the cash flow projections and the entities

included in the market multiples

The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting units

goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill in order to determine the amount of impairment to be

recognized The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by deducting the fair value of reporting units

identifiable assets and liabilities from the fair value of the reporting unit as whole The excess of the carrying

value of goodwill above the implied goodwill if any would be recognized as an impairment charge in

amortization and impairment of intangible assets in the consolidated income statements

During 2012 we elected to bypass the qualitative assessment and performed the first step of the goodwill

impairment testing on the goodwill

While we believe that the U.S insurance segment reporting unit is not at risk of failing step one of the

goodwill impairment test the process of determining whether or not an asset such as goodwill is impaired or

recoverable relies on projections of future cash flows operating results and market conditions Such projections

are inherently uncertain and accordingly actual future cash flows may differ materially from projected cash

flows In evaluating the recoverability of goodwill we perform discounted cash flow analysis The discounted

cash value may be different from the fair value that would result from an actual transaction between willing

buyer and willing seller Such analyses are particularly sensitive to changes in discount rates and investment

rates Changes to these rates might result in material changes in the valuation and determination of the

recoverability of goodwill For example an increase in the rate used to discount cash flows will decrease the

discounted cash value There is likely to be similar but not necessarily as large as increase in the investment

rate used to project the cash flows resulting from investment income earned on our investments Accordingly an

increase in the investment rate would increase the discounted cash value

Based on our analysis the point estimate fair value of the U.S insurance segment reporting unit was in

excess of its carrying value by approximately 30% as of the September 30 2012 measurement date As result

we concluded there was no implied goodwill impairment and therefore no step two goodwill impairment testing

was required
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our selected consolidated statement of operations data for each of the periods

indicated

Year Ended Decemher 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Revenues

Gross premiums written $2329.3 $1939.5 $1758.4

Net premiums written $1837.8 $1533.8 $1392.4

Net premiums earned $1748.9 $1457.0 $1359.5

Net investment income 167.1 195.9 244.1

Net realized investment gains 306.4 10.1 285.6

Net impairmeilt charges recognized in earnings 0.2

Other income 101.7 0.9

$2222.4 $1764.7 $1889.9

Expenses

Net losses and loss expenses $1139.3 959.2 707.9

Acquisition costs 205.7 167.3 159.5

General and administrative expenses
307.3 271.6 286.5

Amortization of intangible assets 2.5 3.0 3.5

Interest expense
55.4 550 40.2

Foreign exchange loss 0.8 3.1 0.4

$1711.0 $1459.2 $1198.0

Income before income taKes 511.4 305.5 691.9

Income tax expense
18.4 31.0 26.9

Net income 493.0 274.5 665.0

Ratios

Loss and loss expense ratio 65.1% 65.8% 52.1%

Acquisition cost ratio 11.8% 11.5% 11.7%

General and administrative expense ratio 17.6% 18.6% 21.1%

Expense ratio 29.4% 30.1% 32.8%

Combined ratio 94.5% 95.9% 84.9%
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Premiums

Gross premiums written increased by $389.8 million or 20.1% for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The overall increase in gross premiums written was primarily

the result of the following

Gross premiums written in our U.S insurance segment increased by $155.3 million or 18.5% The

increase in
gross premiums written was primarily due to increased new business across most lines growth

from new products introduced since 2010 and rate increases in all lines of business This growth was

partially offset by non-recurring business the non-renewal of business that did not meet our underwriting

requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions and continued competition

Gross premiums written in our international insurance segment increased by $44.7 million or 8.4%

primarily as result of increased premiums from new products and rate increases in select lines of

business This growth was partially offset by non-recurring business the non-renewal of business that did

not meet our underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions

and continued competition and

Gross premiums written in our reinsurance segment increased by $189.8 million or 33.3% The increase

in
gross premiums written was primarily due to new business both from new products and new regions

as well as increased participations on renewing business combined with rate increases in select regions

and lines of business This growth was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not meet

our underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions and

continued competition

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by geographic location for each of the years

indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2012 2011 Change Change

in millions

United States $1360.2 $1080.1 $280.1 25.9%

Bermuda 611.4 565.8 45.6 8.1%

Europe 228.8 210.4 18.4 8.7%

Singapore 111.7 68.4 43.3 63.3%

Hong Kong 17.2 14.8 2.4 16.2%

$2329.3 $1939.5 $389.8 20.1%

Net premiums written increased by $304.0 million or 19.8% for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the
year ended December 31 2011 The increase in net premiums written was due to the increase in

gross premiums written The difference between gross and net premiums written is the cost to us of purchasing

reinsurance coverage including the cost of property catastrophe reinsurance coverage We ceded 21.1% of gross

premiums written for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to 20.9% in 2011

Net premiums earned increased by $291.9 million or 20.0% for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 consistent with the higher net premiums written in 2012
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We evaluate our business by segment distinguishing between U.S insurance international insurance and

reinsurance The following table illustrates the mix of our business on both gross premiums written and net

premiums earned basis

Gross Premiums Written Net Premiums Earned

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2012 2011

U.S insurance 42.7% 43.2% 38.4% 40.1%

International insurance 24.7% 27.3% 19.3% 1.8%

Reinsurance 32.6% 29.5% 42.3% 38.1%

Total 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%

Net Investment Income

Net investment income decreased by $28.8 million or 14.7% for the year
ended December 2012

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The decrease was due to lower yields on our fixed maturity

investments as well as an increased allocation to other invested assets which contribute to our total return but

carry little or no current yield As of December 31 2012 we held 8.9% of our total investments and cash

equivalents in other invested assets compared to 6.7% as of December 31 2011 The book yield of the

investment portfolio for the
years

ended December 31 2012 and 2011 was 2.1% and 2.5% respectively

The decrease in the book yield was due to the reinvestment of cash at lower rates and an increased allocation

to lower risk asset classes combined with lower market yields As of December 31 2012 we held 1.2% of our

total investments and cash equivalents in U.S government or government agency securities compared to 16.1%

as of December 2011 Cash and cash equivalents also increased to 9.8% of total investments and cash

equivalents as compared to 8.8% as of December 31 2011 Our average duration increased from 1.9 years as of

December 31 2011 to 2.1 years as of December 31 2012

Investment management expenses of $16.5 million and $14.2 million were incurred during the
years

ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The increase in investment management expenses was primarily due

to the increase in the size of cur investment portfolio as well as expenses
from higher expense asset classes

Realized Investment Gains

Net realized investment gains were comprised of the following

Year Ended

December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Gross realized gains on sale of invested assets 183.6 154.9

Gross realized losses on sale of invested assets 51.7 62.1

Net realized gains on sale of invested assets 131.9 92.8

Net realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 3.6 70.1

Mark-to-market changes

Debt securities trading
106.3 8.1

Other invested assets and equity securities 71.8 4.5

Total mark-to-market changes 178.1 12.6

Net realized investment gains 306.4 10.1

During the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 we did not recognize any net impairment charges

The total return of our investment portfolio was 5.5% and 2.0% for the years
ended December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively
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The investment portfolio return for the
year ended December 31 2012 benefited from the favorable

financial economic and business environment during the year and the absence of significant market events

Equity markets performed well with the SP 500 up over 13% during the year Fixed income securities also

benefited from the U.S Federal Reserves continued quantitative easing resulting in spreads tightening during

the year

The investment portfolio return for the year ended December 31 2011 was negatively impacted by the

credit downgrade of the U.S Treasury and related securities in early August 2011 and the economic and political

turmoil surrounding European sovereign and bank credit risk The combination of these and other events caused

investors to seek safe havens in specific sovereign risks such as the U.S Switzerland Germany and Japan

while selling riskier asset classes such as equities corporate bonds and mortgage bonds and driving down

prices As result U.S and European risk-free interest rates decreased and credit spreads widened Equity

markets were relatively flat over the full
year

of 2011 despite volatility during the year

Other Income

There was no other income for the year ended December 31 2012 The other income of $101.7 million for

the
year ended December 31 2011 represented termination fee from our previously announced merger

agreement with Transatlantic

Net Losses and Loss Expenses

Net losses and loss expenses increased by $180.1 million or 18.8% for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The loss and loss expense ratio decreased by 0.7 percentage

points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss expenses was due to the growth in net premiums

earned and lower prior year net favorable reserve development This was partially offset by lower
property

catastrophe losses in 2012 compared to 2011

During the year ended December 31 2012 we incurred $179.6 million of catastrophe-related losses of

which $175.7 million related to Superstorm Sandy and $3.9 million related to Hurricane Isaac During the
year

ended December 31 2011 we incurred $292.2 million of catastrophe-related losses of which $96.5 million

related to the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami $58.6 million related to the New Zealand earthquake $53.7

million related to the Midwestern U.S storms $43.0 million related to the Thailand floods $23.7 million related

to Hurricane Irene and $16.7 million related to the Australian storms

Excluding the prior year reserve development property catastrophe losses and the impact of the

commutation the loss and loss expense ratios would have been 64.5% and 62.9% for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The increase was primarily due to the $36.4 million in
crop

reinsurance losses for the year ended December 31 2012 that increased the loss and loss expense ratio by 2.1

percentage points

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 31 2012 December 31 2011 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE Amount of NPE 12 Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe $1130.0 64.5 909.0 62.9 221.0 1.6 Pts

Property catastrophe 179.6 10.3 292.2 20.2 112.6 9.9

Current year 1309.6 74.8 1201.2 83.1 108.4 8.3
Prior year 170.3 9.7 253.5 17.5 83.2 7.8

Impact of commutation 11.5 0.2 11.5 0.2

Net losses and loss expenses $1139.3 65.1% 959.2 65.8% $180.1 0.7Pts

NPE means net premiums earned

Current year and prior year losses as of NPE are calculated excluding the effect of the commutation on

net premiums earned
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U.S insurance $0.6

International insurance 5.2

Reinsurance 0.3
______ ______ ______

The net favorable reserve development is result of actual loss emergence being lower than anticipated The

unfavorable reserv development in our U.S insurance segment for the 2010 and 2011 loss
years was primarily

due to adverse development of $25.1 million on program that commenced writing in 2008 and was terminated

during 201 We also experienced adverse development for the 2011 loss year for certain errors and omissions

products The unfavorable reserve development in our international insurance segment for the 2011 loss year was

due to adverse development on an individual claim estimated to reach our full limit of $20.0 million net of

reinsurance

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

$20.5 19.1 7.6 4.7 7.2 5.6

33.3 45.3 40.5 14.6 10.1 27.1

_____
35.6 16.0 20.7 2.3 10.8 12.6

______

_____
$89.4 $42.2 $68.8 $21.6 $28.l 20.1

______

The unfavorable reserve development of $19.1 million in our U.S insurance segment for the 2006 loss year

was primarily due to directors and officers claims within our professional liability line of business related to

class action suit filed against number of private equity firms alleging collusion The unfavorable reserve

development in our international insurance segment for the 2010 loss year was primarily due to casualty claim

emanating from an oil field services risk

The following table shows the components of net losses and loss expenses for the years ended December 31

2012 and 2011

Net losses paid
861.0

Net change in reported case reserves

Net change in IBNR
_________ _________ ______

147.3

Net losses and loss expenses 1139.3

Reflects the impact of the commutation of prior year contracts in the year
ended December 31 2011 which

increased prior year net losses and loss expenses by $11.5 million and increased net premiums earned by

$12.4 million

We recorded net favorable reserve development related to prior years of $170.3 million during the year

ended December 31 2012 compared to net favorable reserve development of $253.5 million for the year ended

December 31 2011 as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total

in millions

0.5 $2.2 5.4 $l9.3 $28.6 6.0 $3.0 $12.5 $35.2 16.9

4.0 6.3 3.8 54.4 42.3 21.7 4.9 6.9 16.1 123.0

0.1 0.5 2.0 8.0 19.9 7.2 0.0 5.5 2.1 30.4

4.3 $3.6 $9.0 $l 1.2 $8l.7 $90.8 $34.9 $7.9 $1 1.1 $53.4 $170.3

U.S insurance

International insurance

Reinsurance

$0.4 $2.9 4.6

0.8 4.1 6.7

0.4 2.5 10.9

$1.3 $22.2

23.2

118.5

111.8

$253.5

Year Ended

December 31

2012 2011

in millions

684.8

213.3131.0

Dollar

Change

$176.2

82.3

86.2

$180.1

61

959.2
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The table below is reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserves for losses and loss expenses Losses

incurred and paid are reflected net of reinsurance recoverables

Year Ended

December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Net reserves for losses and loss expenses January $4222.2 $3951.6

Incurred related to

Commutation of variable rated reinsurance contracts 11.5

Current year non-catastrophe 1130.0 909.0

Current year property catastrophe 179.6 292.2

Prior
year 170.3 253.5

Total incurred 1139.3 959.2

Paid related to

Current year non-catastrophe 99.1 72.1

Current year property catastrophe 18.1 70.1

Prior year 743.8 542.6

Total paid 861.0 684.8

Foreign exchange revaluation 3.9 3.8

Net reserve for losses and loss expenses December31 4504.4 4222.2

Losses and loss expenses recoverable 1141.1 1002.9

Reserve for losses and loss expenses December31 $5645.5 $5225.1

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs increased by $38.4 million or 23.0% for the
year ended December 31 2012 compared to

the year ended December 31 2011 The increase in acquisition costs was primarily due to the increase in net

premiums earned Acquisition costs as percentage of net premiums earned were 11.8% for the year ended

December 31 2012 compared to 11.5% for 2011 The increase is due to the growth in our reinsurance segment

which has higher acquisition cost ratio

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative
expenses increased by $35.7 million or 13.1% for the year ended December 31

2012 compared to the
year ended December 31 2011 The increase in general and administrative

expenses was

primarily due to increased salary and related costs as average headcount increased by 9.6% to support our

continued growth combined with increased stock compensation expense resulting from the 25.2% increase in

our share price during the year and higher performance-based compensation expense as profitability exceeded

target levels

Our general and administrative expense ratio was 17.6% for the
year

ended December 31 2012 compared to

18.6% for the year ended December 31 2011 The decrease was due to the growth in net premiums earned being

greater than the increase in expenses primarily due to the growth in our reinsurance segment which has lower

general and administrative expense ratio

The expense ratio is the sum of the acquisition cost ratio and the general and administrative
expense ratio

Our expense ratio was 29.4% for the
year ended December 31 2012 compared to 30.1% for the

year
ended

December 31 2011
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Amortization of Intangible 4ssets

The amortization of intangible assets decreased by $0.5 million or 16.7% for the year ended December 31

2012 compared to the year ended December 2011 The decrease is due to certain intangible assets that were

fully amortized during 2011

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased by $0.4 million or 0.7% for the year
ended December 2012 compared to the

year
ended December 2011 The increase was due to fees associated with the termination of our $400 million

unsecured credit facility on June 2012

Income Tax Expense

Corporate income tax expense or benefit is generated through our operations in Bermuda Europe Hong

Kong Singapore and the United States Our income tax expense or benefit may fluctuate significantly from

period to period depending on the geographic distribution of pre-tax net income or loss in any given period

between different jurisdictions with different tax rates The geographic distribution of pre-tax net income or loss

can vary significantly between periods principally due to the geographic location of the business written the mix

of business and the profitability of such business the geographic location of investment income the geographic

location of net losses and loss expenses incurred and the amount of inter-company reinsurance utilized for rating

agency purposes

Income tax expense decreased by $12.6 million for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year

ended December 31 2011 The decrease is due to the lower income before income taxes in the United States due

to the losses from Superstorm Sandy and the drought in the United States En addition the year ended

December 31 2011 also included higher taxable income from our holding company in Switzerland of

approximately $90.6 million due to the merger termination fee income received

Net Income

Net income for the year ended December 31 2012 was $493.0 million compared to $274.5 million for the

year ended December 31 2011 The $218.5 million increase was primarily the result of lower catastrophe losses

of $112.6 million combined with the $296.3 million increase in our realized investment gains as markets and

economic conditions rebounded during the year

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Premiums

Gross premiums written increased by $181.1 million or 10.3% for the year
ended December 31 2011

compared to the year ended lecember 31 2010 The overall increase in gross premiums written was primarily

the result of the following

Gross premiums written in our U.S insurance segment increased by $109.3 million or 15.0% The

increase in gross premiums written was primarily due to increased new business including from new

products for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year
ended December 2010 This

growth was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not meet our underwriting

requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions and increased competition

88



Gross premiums written in our international insurance segment increased by $25.5 million or 5.1% due

to increased premiums in our general property and healthcare lines and new business including new

products This growth was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not meet our

underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions and increased

competition

Gross premiums written in our reinsurance segment increased by $46.3 million or 8.8% The increase in

gross premiums written was primarily due to increased new business including gross premiums written

by our new global marine and specialty division and the continued build-out of our international platform

particularly in Asia This growth was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not meet our

underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by geographic location for each of the
years

indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2011 2010 Change Change

in millions

United States $1080.1 993.5 86.6 8.7%

Bermuda 565.8 545.6 20.2 3.7%

Europe 210.4 193.0 17.4 9.0%

Singapore 68.4 17.0 51.4 302.4%

Hong Kong 14.8 9.3 5.5 59.1%

$1939.5 $1758.4 $181.1 10.3%

Net premiums written increased by $141.4 million or 10.2% for the year ended December 31 2011

compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The increase in net premiums written was primarily due to the

increase in gross premiums written During the year ended December 31 2011 premiums ceded were reduced by

$12.4 million due to the commutation of certain variable-rated reinsurance contracts that have swing-rated

provisions

swing-rated reinsurance contract links the ultimate amount of ceded premium to the ultimate loss ratio

on the reinsured business It enables the cedent to retain greater portion of premium if the ultimate loss ratio

develops at level below the initial loss threshold set by the reinsurers but requires higher amount of ceded

premium if the ultimate loss ratio develops above the initial threshold In commuting these swing-rated

reinsurance contracts we reduced certain premiums previously ceded and also reduced ceded IBNR by $11 .5

million in accordance with the terms of the contracts During the year ended December 31 2010 net premiums

written included $9.3 million reduction in premiums ceded for the commutation of certain variable-rated

reinsurance contracts

The difference between gross and net premiums written is the cost to us of purchasing reinsurance coverage

including the cost of property catastrophe reinsurance coverage We ceded 20.9% of gross premiums written for

the year ended December 31 2011 compared to 20.8% for the year ended December 31 2010

Net premiums earned increased by $97.5 million or 7.2% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared

to the year ended December 31 2010 as result of higher net premiums earned for the U.S insurance and

reinsurance segments This is driven by increased net premiums written in the current and prior periods as well

as the impact of the commutation of the swing-rated reinsurance contracts which are fully earned
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The following chart illustrates the mix of our business on both gross premiums written and net premiums

earned basis

Gross Premiums Net Premiums

Written Earned

Year Ended December 31 Year Ended December 31

2011 2010 2011 2010

U.S insurance 43.3% 41.5% 40.1% 38.1%

International insurance 27.3% 28.7% 21.8% 24.9%

Reinsurance 29A% 38.1% 37.0%

Total 1010% 100.0% 1010% 100.0%

Net Investment income

Net investment income decreased by $48.2 million or 19.7% for the year ended December 31 2011

compared to the
year

ended 1ecember 31 2010 The decrease was due to lower yields on our fixed maturity

investments as well as an increased allocation to equity securities and other invested assets which contribute to

our total return but carry
little or no current yield We increased our equity and other invested assets by $385.3

million between December 31 2011 and December 31 2010 The book yield of the investment portfolio for the

years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 was 2.5% and 3.3% respectively Investment management expenses

of $14.2 million and $11.7 million were incurred during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010

respectively The increase in investment management expenses was due to the increase in the size of our

investment portfolio as well as expenses from higher expense asset classes equities

As of December 31 2011 approximately 92.6% of our fixed income investments consisted of investment

grade securities The average credit rating of our fixed income portfolio was AA as rated by Standard

Poors and Aa3 as rated by Moodys with an average
duration of approximately 1.9 years as of December 31

2011 The average duration of the investment portfolio was 2.7 years as of December 31 2010

Net Realized investment Gains and Net Impairment Charges Recognized in Earnings

Net realized investment gains were comprised of the following

Year Ended

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Gross realized gains on sale of invested assets $154.9 $242.4

Gross realized losses on sale of invested assets 62.1 26.6

Net realized gains on sale of invested assets 92.8 215.8

Net realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 70.1 4.0

Mark-to-market changes

Debt securities trading 8.1 42.2

Other invested assets and equity securities 4.5 297

Total mark-to-market changes 12.6 71.9

Gain on sale of Program Administrator 1.9

Net realized investment gains
10.1 $285.6

During the year
ended December 31 2011 we did not recognize any net impairment charges compared to

$0.2 million in net impairment charges recognized in earnings during the year ended December 31 2010 In July

2010 the Company sold its program administrator and wholesale brokerage operations for $2.4 million in cash

The total return of our investment portfolio was 2.0% and 6.1% for the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 respectively
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Other Income

The other income of $101.7 million for the year ended December 31 2011 represented termination fee

from our previously announced merger agreement with Transatlantic

The other income of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31 2010
represents fee income from our

program administrator operations and wholesale brokerage operations We sold these operations during the
year

ended December 31 2010

Net Losses and Loss Expenses

Net losses and loss expenses increased by $251.3 million or 35.5% for the year ended December 31 2011

compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The loss and loss
expense ratio increased by 13.7

percentage

points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss
expenses was due to lower prior year net favorable

reserve development and higher property catastrophe losses in 2011 compared to 2010

During the year ended December 31 2011 we incurred $292.2 million of catastrophe-related losses of

which $96.5 million related to the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami $58.6 million related to the New Zealand

earthquake $53.7 million related to the Midwestern U.S storms $43.0 million related to the Thailand floods

$23.7 million related to Hurricane Irene and $16.7 million related to the Australian storms During the year ended

December 31 2010 we incurred $98.4 million of catastrophe-related losses of which $66.8 million was from the

Chilean earthquake $17.0 million from the New Zealand earthquake and $14.6 million from the Australian

floods

Excluding the prior year reserve development property catastrophe losses and the impact of the

commutations the loss and loss expense ratios would have been 62.9% and 67.7% for the years ended
December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 31 2011 December 312010 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE2 Amount of NPE2 Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe 909.0 62.9 913.9 67.7 4.9 4.8Pts

Property catastrophe 292.2 2ft2 98.4 7.3 193.8 12.9

Current year 1201.2 83.1 1012.3 75.0 188.9 8.1

Prior year 253.5 17.5 313.3 23.2 59.8 5.7

Impactofcommutationl 11.5 0.2 8.9 0.3 2.6 0.1

Net losses and loss
expenses 959.2 65.8% 707.9 52.1% $251.3 13.7Pts

Reflects the impact of the commutation of prior year contracts in the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 which increased prior year net losses and loss expenses by $11.5 million and $8.9 million and

increased net premiums earned by $12.4 million and $9.3 million respectively

Current
year and prior year losses as of NPE are calculated excluding the effect of the commutation on

net premiums earned
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We recorded net favorable reserve development related to prior years
of $253.5 million and $313.3 million

during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

U.S insurance $0.4 $2.9 4.6 $20.5 19.1 7.6 4.7 7.2 5.6 23.2

International insurance 0.8 4.1 6.7 33.3 45.3 40.5 14.6 10.1 27.1 118.5

Reinsurance 0.4 2.5 10.9 35.6 16.0 20.7 2.3 10.8 12.6 111.8

$l.3 $22.2 $89.4 $42.2 $68.8 $21.6 $28.l 20 $253.5

The net favorable reserve development is result of actual loss emergence being lower than anticipated The

unfavorable reserve development in our U.S insurance segment for the 2006 loss year was primarily due to

directors and officers claims within our professional liability line of business related to class action suit filed

against number of private equity firms alleging collusion The unfavorable reserve development in our

international insurance segment for the 2010 loss year was primarily due to casualty claim emanating from an

oil field service risk

U.S insurance

International insurance

Reinsurance

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

$l.6 3.2 $25.6 26.2 5.3 1.7 2.5 $2.4 68.5

6.8 6.7 21.6 87.5 36.7 19.3 23.1 7.5 180.6

ft9 1.0 9.8 33.0 12.4 3.8 3.0 6.3 64.2

$4.3 $l0.9 $57.0 $146.7 $54.4 $24.8 $22.6 $l.2 $313.3

The following table shows the components of net losses and loss expenses for the years
ended December

2011 and 2010

Net losses paid
$684.8

Net change in reported case reserves

Net change in IBNR 61.1
_____ _____

Net losses and loss expenses
$959.2

______ ______

The increase in net losses paid for the year
ended December 31 2011 was due to higher paid losses in our

U.S insurance and reinsurance segments as result of continued growth in these segments combined with

higher current period property catastrophe paid losses The increase in reported case reserves was primarily due

to higher case reserves in each of our operating segments The increase in IBNR was due to higher IBNR in our

international insurance segment as result of lower net favorable reserve development

Year Ended

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Dollar

Change

88.1

137.1

26.1

$251.3

$596.7

213.3 76.2

35.0

______
$707.9
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The table below is reconciliation of the beginning and ending reserves for losses and loss expenses Losses

incurred and paid are reflected net of reinsurance recoverables

Year Ended

December 31

2011 2010

in millions

Net reserves for losses and loss expenses January $3951.6 $3841.8

Incurred related to

Commutation of variable rated reinsurance contracts 11.5 8.9

Current year non-catastrophe 909.0 913.9

Current year property catastrophe 292.2 98.4

Prior
year 253.5 313.3

Total incurred 959.2 707.9

Paid related to

Current year non-catastrophe 72.1 61.0

Current
year property catastrophe 70.1 37.6

Prior
year 542.6 498.1

Total paid 684.8 596.7

Foreign exchange revaluation 3.8 1.4

Net reserve for losses and loss expenses December 31 4222.2 3951.6

Losses and loss
expenses

recoverable 1002.9 927.6

Reserve for losses and loss expenses December31 $5225.1 $4879.2

Acquisition Costs

Acquisition costs increased by $7.8 million or 4.9% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to

the year ended December 31 2010 The increase in acquisition costs was primarily due to the increase in net

premiums earned in our U.S insurance segment and reinsurance segment Acquisition costs as percentage of

net premiums earned were 11.5% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to 11.7% in 2010

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative
expenses

decreased by $14.9 million or 5.2% for the year ended December 31
2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease in general and administrative expenses was

primarily due to the following

decrease of $5.9 million in incentive-based compensation due to higher loss activity during the year

ended December 31 2011

decrease of $7.0 million in stock related compensation due to decrease in overall awards granted

during the year ended December 31 2011 in addition to one-time increase of $4.3 million during the

year ended December 31 2010 to recognize expected performance above the target level for our

performance-based awards granted in 2009

During the year ended December 31 2010 we incurred one-time 1% capital stamp duty of $1.6 million

related to capital contribution of $160.0 million from Allied World Bermuda to Allied World

Switzerland

Our general and administrative expense ratio was 18.6% for the year ended December 31 2011 which was

lower than the 21.1% for the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease was primarily due to the factors

discussed above in addition to the increase in net premiums earned
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Our expense ratio was 30.1% for the
year

ended December 31 2011 compared to 32.8% for the year ended

December 31 2010 primarily due to decrease in the general and administrative expense ratio

Amortization of Intangible Assets

The amorlization of intangible assets decreased $0.5 million or 14.3% for the year ended December 31

201 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease was due to the non-compete covenants

related to the acquisition of Darwin being fully amortized during 2010 No impairments were recognized during

the year ended December 31 2011

Interest Expense

Interest expense increased $14.8 million or 36.8% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the

year ended December 31 2010 primarily as result of additional interest
expense on our 5.5% senior notes that

were issued by Allied World Bermuda in November 2010

Income Tax Expense

Tax expense increased $4.1 million or 15.2% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year

ended December 31 2010 The increase in tax expense is primarily due to higher taxable income for our Swiss

holding company of approximately $90.6 million partially offset by lower taxable income for our U.S operations

of approximately $12.9 million In addition 2010 included $5.0 million loss for tax purposes on the sale of our

program administrator and wholesale brokerage operation which caused reduction in tax expense in 2010 of

$1.7 million Our consolidated effective tax rates for the
years

ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were 10.1%

and 3.9% respectively

Net Income

Net income for the year ended December 31 2011 was $274.5 million compared to $665.0 million for the

year ended December 31 2010 The decrease was primarily the result of lower net realized investment gains

higher net loss and loss expenses and lower net investment income Net income for the year ended December 31

2011 included net foreign exchange loss of $3.1 million compared to $0.4 million for the year ended

December 31 2010

Underwriting Results by Operating Segments

Our company is organized into three operating segments

U.S Insurance Segment The U.S insurance segment includes our direct specialty insurance

operations in the United States This segment provides both direct property and specialty casualty insurance

primarily to non-Fortune 1000 North American domiciled accounts

International Insurance Segment The international insurance segment includes our direct insurance

operations in Bermuda Europe Singapore and Hong Kong This segment provides both direct property and

casualty insurance primarily to Fortune 1000 North American domiciled accounts from our Bermuda office

and non-North American domiciled accounts from our European Singapore and Hong Kong offices

Reinsurance Segment Our reinsurance segment has operations in Bermuda Europe Singapore and

the United States This segment includes the reinsurance of
property general casualty professional liability

specialty lines and property catastrophe coverages written by insurance companies We presently write

reinsurance on both treaty and facultative basis targeting several niche reinsurance markets
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U.S Insurance Segment

The following table summarizes the underwriting results and associated ratios for the U.S insurance

segment for each of the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Revenues

Gross premiums written $993.9 $838.6 $729.3

Net premiums written 743.4 639.2 551.1

Net premiums earned 671.6 584.3 518.4

Other income 0.9

Expenses

Net losses and loss expenses $465.2 $387.1 $297.5

Acquisition costs 86.7 75.0 67.8

General and administrative
expenses 141.7 124.4 128.5

Underwriting loss income 22.0 2.2 25.5

Ratios

Loss and loss
expense

ratio 69.3% 66.2% 57.4%

Acquisition cost ratio 12.9% 12.8% 13.1%

General and administrative expense ratio 21.1% 21.3% 24.8%

Expense ratio 34.0% 34.1% 37.9%

Combined ratio 103.3% 100.3% 95.3%

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Premiums Gross premiums written increased by $155.3 million or 18.5% for the year ended

December 31 2012 compared to 2011 The increase in gross premiums written was primarily due to new

business across most lines that added $320.7 million during the year combined with premium rate increases in

all lines of business Growth from new products introduced in 2012 such as mergers and acquisitions and

primary construction contributed further $7.6 million for the year This growth was partially offset by the non-

renewal of business that did not meet our underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or

terms and conditions and continued competition

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by line of business for each of the periods indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2012 2011 Change Change

in millions

General casualty $269.6 $205.3 64.3 1.3%

Professional liability 260.8 235.4 25.4 10.8%

Healthcare 207.3 201.7 5.6 2.8%

Programs 105.3 87.1 18.2 20.9%

General property 94.3 78.5 15.8 20.1%

Other1 56.6 30.6 26.0 85.0%

$993.9 $838.6 $155.3 18.5%

Includes our inland marine environmental and mergers and acquisitions lines of business
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Net premiums written increased by $104.2 million or 16.3% for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The increase in net premiums written was primarily due to

higher gross premiums written partially offset by the impact of the commutation of prior year contracts in 2011

The year ended December 31 2011 included $12.4 million reduction in premiums ceded due to the

commutation of cerlain variable-rated reinsurance contracts that had swing-rated provisions We ceded 25.2% of

gross premiums written for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to 23.8% for 2011 The increase in the

cession percentage was due to the impact of the commutation on the prior year which decreased the 2011 cession

percentage by .5 percentage points

Net premiums earned increased by $87.3 million or 14.9% for the year ended December 31 2012

compared to 2011 The increase was primarily due to the growth of our U.S insurance operations during 2012

and 2011 partially offset by the $12.4 million impact of the commutation of prior year contracts in 2011 which

was fully earned

Net losses and loss expenses Net losses and loss expenses increased by $78.1 million or 20.2% for the

year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The loss and loss expense ratio

increased by 3.1 percentage points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss expenses was

primarily due to growth in net premiums earned increased property catastrophe losses and lower favorable prior

year reserve development in 2012 compared to 2011 This was partially offset by the $11 .5 million impact of the

commutatiOil of prior year contracts in 2011

During the year ended December 31 2012 we incurred $23.0 million of catastrophe-related losses of which

$21.0 million related to Superstorm Sandy and $2.0 million related to Hurricane Isaac During the year ended

December 31 2011 we incurred $8.3 million of catastrophe-related losses of which $3.8 million related to the

Midwestern U.S storms and $4.5 million related to Hurricane Irene

Excluding the prior year reserve development property catastrophe losses and the impact of the

commutation the loss and loss expense
ratios would have been 68.4% and 68.3% for the years

ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 31 2012 December 31 201 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE Amount of NPE2 Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe
$459.1 68.4% $390.5 68.3 68.6 0.lPts

Property catastrophe
23.0 3.4 8.3 1.5 14.7 1.9

Current year
482.1 71.8 398.8 69.8 83.3 2.0

Prior year
16.9 2.5 23.2 4.1 6.3 1.6

Impact otcommutationl 11.5 ftS 11.5

Net losses and loss expenses
$465.2 693% $387.1 6f2% 78.1 3.lPts

Reflects the impact of the commutation of prior year contracts in the year
ended 1ecember 31 2011 which

increased prior year net losses and loss expenses by $11.5 million and increased net premiums earned by

$12.4 million

Current year aiid prior year
losses as of NPE are calculated excluding the effect of the commutation on

net premiums earned
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Overall our U.S insurance segment recorded net favorable reserve development of $16.9 million during the

year ended December 31 2012 compared to net favorable reserve development of $23.2 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total

in millions

General casualty $0.1 $0.7 $0.2 $l.2 $12.3 3.3 $3.4 $0.6 $0.1 $2l.9

Professional liability 0.5 0.5 2.0 0.9 1.0 20.5 3.8 5.1 4.7 24.7 14.3

Healthcare 1.7 1.0 3.1 5.1 4.6 0.1 2.2 2.3 12.1

Other 1.7 1.7

General property 1.0 0.2 0.1 0.2 1.3 1.0 1.1 1.0 4.9

Programs 0.8 3.9 13.9 7.8 24.8

$0.6 0.5 $2.2 $5.4 $19.3 $28.6 $6.0 $3.0 $12.5 $35.2 $16.9

The unfavorable reserve development for the 2010 and 2011 loss years was primarily due to adverse

development of $25.1 million on program that commenced writing in 2008 and was terminated during 2011

This was partially offset by favorable development on our active programs We also experienced adverse

development for the 2011 loss year for certain professional liability products

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

General casualty $0.9 $l.5 $17.4 $2.9 2.5 $1.9 $0.9 0.5 $22.5

Professional liability 0.2 0.3 2.5 23.4 7.0 0.8 6.4 7.1 13.3

Healthcare 0.4 1.8 2.7 1.4 0.1 0.9 0.3 2.6 9.4

Other

General property 0.1 0.4 0.1 1.1 0.3 1.0 1.2 4.0

Programs 0.2 0.1 2.1 0.8 0.8 1.8 0.6

$0.4 $2.9 $4.6 $20.5 $19.1 $7.6 $4.7 $7.2 5.6 $23.2

The unfavorable reserve development of $23.4 million for the 2006 loss year was primarily due to directors

and officers claims within our professional liability line of business related to class action suit filed against

number of private equity firms alleging collusion

Acquisition costs Acquisition costs increased by $11.7 million or 15.6% for the year ended December 31

2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The increase was primarily caused by increased net

premiums earned The acquisition cost ratio increased to 12.9% for the year ended December 31 2012 from

12.8% for 2011

General and administrative expenses General and administrative expenses increased by $17.3 million or

13.9% for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 due to the

continued growth of our U.S insurance operations The increase in general and administrative expenses was

primarily due to increased salary and related costs as average headcount increased to support our continued

growth combined with increased stock compensation expense resulting from the 25.2% increase in our share

price during the year and an increase in performance-based compensation expense as results have exceeded target

levels The general and administrative expense ratio decreased to 21.1% for the year ended December 31 2012

from 21.3% in 2011 as result of our increased net premiums earned
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Premiums Gross premiums written increased by $109.3 million or 15.0% for the year
ended December 31

2011 compared to 2010 The increase in
gross premiums written was primarily due to new business from existing

products $55.1 milhon in premiums from new products specifically in our general casualty environmental and

inland marine lines of business and rate increases in our general property and general casualty lines of business

This growth was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not meet our underwriting requirements

which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions rate reductions in our other lines of business

and increased competition

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by line of business for each of the periods
indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2011 2010 Change Change

in millions

Professional liability
$235.4 $211.1 24.3 11.5%

General casualty
205.3 145.7 59.6 40.9%

Healthcare
201.7 179.8 21.9 12.2%

Programs
87.1 105.6 18.5 17.5%

General property
78.5 73.7 4.8 6.5%

Other 30.6 13.4 17.2 128.4%

$838.6 $729.3 $109.3 15.0%

Includes our inland marine environmental and mergers and acquisitions lines of business

Net premiums written increased by $88.1 million or 16.0% for the year ended December 31 2011

compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The increase in net premiums written was primarily due to

higher gross premiums written and the commutation of certain variable-rated reinsurance contracts that have

swing-rated provisions which reduced premiums ceded by $12.4 million In commuting these swing-rated

reinsurance contracts we reduced certain premiums previously ceded and also reduced ceded losses by $11.5

million in accordance with the terms of the contracts The net impact of the commutation was net gain of $0.9

million For the year
ended December 31 2010 the commutation of certain variable-rated reinsurance contracts

reduced premiums ceded by $9.3 million Overall we ceded 23.8% of gross premiums written for the year
ended

December 2011 compared to 24.4% for the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease in the cession

percentage was primarily due Lo the reduction of premiums ceded related to the commutation of the swing-rated

reinsurance contracts Excluding the impact of the commutation we ceded 25.3% and 25.7% of gross premiums

written during the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Net premiums earned increased $65.9 million or 12.7% resulting from the growth of our U.S insurance

operations during 2010 and 2011 Additionally the commutation of swing-rated reinsurance contracts during the

year ended December 31 2011 added $12.4 million to net premiums earned compared to $9.3 million during the

year ended December 31 2010

Net losses and loss expenses Net losses and loss expenses
increased by $89.6 million or 30.1% for the

year
ended December 31 2011 compared to the year

ended December 31 2010 The loss and loss expense ratio

increased 8.8 percentage points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss expenses was primarily

due to the growth in net premiums earned increased property catastrophe losses and lower prior year
net

favorable reserve developmenl

During the year
ended December 31 2011 we incurred $8.3 million of catastrophe-related losses of which

$3.8 million related to the Midwestern U.S storms and $4.5 million related to Hurricane Irene During the year

ended lecemher 2010 there were no property catastrophe-related losses

98



Excluding the prior year reserve development property catastrophe losses and the impact of the

commutations the loss and loss expense ratios would have been 68.3% and 70.1% for the years ended

December 31 201 land 2010 respectively The year ended December 31 2010 included $12.0 million net loss

on Connecticut power plant explosion which increased the loss and loss expense ratio by 2.4 percentage points

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE2 Amount of NPE2 Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe $390.5 68.3 $357.1 70.1 $33.4 l.8Pts

Property catastrophe 8.3 1.5 8.3 1.5

Current year 398.8 69.8 357.1 70.1 41.7 0.3
Prior year 23.2 4.1 68.5 13.5 45.3 9.4

Impact of commutation1 11.5 0.5 8.9 0.8 2.6 0.3

Net losses and loss
expenses $387.1 62% $297.5 57A% $86 8Pts

Reflects the impact of the commutation of prior year contracts in the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 which increased prior year net losses and loss expenses by $11.5 million and $8.9 million and

increased net premiums earned by $12.4 million and $9.3 million respectively

Current year and prior year losses as of NPE are calculated excluding the effect of the commutation on

net premiums earned

Overall our U.S insurance segment recorded net favorable reserve development of $23.2 million during the

year ended December 31 2011 compared to net favorable reserve development of $68.5 million for the year

ended December 31 2010 as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 312011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

General casualty $0.9 $l.5 $l7.4 $2.9 $2.5 $l.9 $0.9 $0.5 $22.5
Professional liability 0.2 0.3 2.5 23.4 7.0 0.8 6.4 7.1 13.3

Healthcare 0.4 1.8 2.7 1.4 0.1 0.9 0.3 2.6 9.4
General property 0.1 0.4 0.1 1.1 0.3 1.0 1.2 4.0

Programs 0.2 0.1 2.1 0.8 0.8 1.8 0.6

$0.4 $2.9 $4.6 $20.5 $19.1 $7.6 $4.7 $7.2 5.6 $23.2

The unfavorable reserve development of $23.4 million for the 2006 loss year was primarily due to directors

and officers claims within our professional liability line of business related to class action suit filed against

number of private equity firms alleging collusion

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 312010

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total

in millions

General casualty $l.4 $l.4 2.6 6.6 $1.4 $1.7 $l.5 $3.2 $19.8
Professional liability 0.2 0.3 1.8 0.2 0.9 2.3 3.7 7.6
Healthcare 0.2 1.6 21.9 7.3 0.6 3.2 28.4

Generalproperty 0.8 10.5 3.6 1.8 1.9 5.6 13.0

Programs 0.1 0.1 1.6 1.1 0.3

$l.6 $3.2 $25.6 $26.3 $5.3 $l.6 $2.5 $2.4 $68.5
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Acquisition costs Acquisition costs increased by $7.2 million or 10.6% for the year ended December

2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The increase was primarily caused by increased net

premiums earned Tie acquisition cost ratio decreased slightly to 12.8% for the year ended December 31 2011

from 13.1% in 2010

General and administrative expenses General and administrative expenses decreased by $4.1 million or

3.2% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease in

general and administrative expenses was primarily due to decrease in performance
based incentive

compensation expenses The decrease in the general and administrative expense ratio from 24.8% for the year

ended December 31 2010 to 21.3% in 2011 was primarily caused by increased net premiums earned and the

decrease in
expenses as discussed above

International Insurance Segment

The following table summarizes the underwriting results and associated ratios for the international insurance

segment for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Revenues

Gross premiums written $575.1 $530.4 $504.9

Net premiums written 346.3 325.1 319.1

Net premiums earned 336.8 317.0 338.8

Expenses

Net losses and loss expenses
$163.1 $206.6 $160.2

Acquisition costs 0.5 2.8 0.5

General and administrative expenses
91.9 84.3 94.2

Underwriting income 82.3 28.9 84.9

Ratios

Loss and loss expense ratio 48.4% 65.2% 47.3%

Acquisition cost ratio 0.1% 0.9% 0.1%

General and administrative expense ratio 27.3% 26.6% 27.8%

Expense ratio 27.2% 25.7% 27.7%

Combined ratio 75.6% 90.9% 75.0%

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Premiums Gross premiums written increased by $44.7 million or 8.4% for the
year

ended December 31

2012 compared to 2011 The increase was primarily result of new business including $19.8 million from trade

credit as result of expansion into new regions combined with rate increases in select lines of business

Professional liability increased $17.6 million primarily due to new business including $7.9 million from new

product initiatives and strong premium retention However this increase was partially offset by the non-renewal

of business that did not meet our underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and

conditions continued competition and reduction in limits deployed for the international general property line

of business
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The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by line of business for each of the periods indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2012 2011 Change Change

in millions

Professional liability $182.0 $164.4 $17.6 10.7%

General property 157.2 159.4 2.2 1.4%
General casualty 131.6 127.2 4.4 3.5%

Healthcare 73.2 68.1 5.1 7.5%

Other1 31.1 11.3 19.8 175.2%

$575.1 $530.4 $44.7 8.4%

Includes our trade credit line of business

Net premiums written increased by $21.2 million or 6.5% for the year ended December 31 2012 compared

to the year ended December 31 2011 We ceded to reinsurers 39.8% of gross premiums written for the year

ended December 31 2012 compared to 8.7% for the year ended December 31 2011

Net premiums earned increased by $19.8 million or 6.2% primarily due to higher net premiums written in

the latter half of 2011 and for the
year

ended December 31 2012

Net losses and loss expenses Net losses and loss expenses decreased by $43.5 million or 21.1% for the

year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The loss and loss
expense ratio

decreased by 16.8 percentage points for the same period The decrease in net losses and loss expenses was

primarily due to significantly lower catastrophe losses in 2012 compared to 2011 combined with higher net

favorable prior year reserve development in 2012 compared to 2011

During the year ended December 31 2012 we incurred $75.6 million of catastrophe-related losses of which

$73.7 million related to Superstorm Sandy and $1.9 million related to Hurricane Isaac During the year ended

December 31 2011 we incurred $107.6 million of catastrophe-related losses of which $45.0 million related to

the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami $17.7 million related to the storms in the Midwestern United States $12.7

million related to the New Zealand earthquake $22.8 million related to the Thailand floods $8.0 million related

to Hurricane Irene and $1.4 million related to the Australian storms

Excluding the prior year reserve development and property catastrophe losses the loss and loss expense

ratios would have been 62.5% and 68.7% for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The

decrease was due to lower attritional property losses in 2012 compared to 2011

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 312012 December 312011 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE Amount of NPE Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe 210.5 62.5 217.5 68.7 7.0 6.2Pts

Property catastrophe 75.6 22.4 107.6 33.9 32.0 11.5

Current year 286.1 84.9 325.1 102.6 39.0 17.7

Prior year 123.0 36.5 118.5 37.4 4.5 0.9

Net losses and loss expenses 163.1 48.4% 206.6 65.2 $43.5 16.8Pts
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Overall our international insurance segment recorded net favorable reserve development of $123.0 million

during the year
endeJ December 31 2012 compared to net favorable reserve development of $118.5 million for

the year ended leceiiiber 31 2011 as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total

in millions

$0.4 $0.3 $3.0 $6.l $34.6 $10.4 2.9 51.9

5.7 2.8 3.1 6.6 18.5 23.2 10.6 4.7 1.8 20.0 28.8

0.1 0.9 .9 2.5 2.1 9.4 10.3 2.6 23.6

0.7 1.8 0.8 0.7 3.7 2.8 8.7 3.9 18.7

5.2 $4.0 $6.3 $3.8 $54.4 $42.3 $2l.7 $4.9 $6.9 $16.1 $123.0

The net favorable reserve development for loss years
2003 to 2010 is result of actual loss emergence being

lower than anticipated The unfavorable reserve development in our general casualty line for loss year
2011 was

due to adverse development on an individual claim estimated to reach our full limit of $20.0 million net of

rei nsu ran cc

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 312011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

$l4.8 21.6

14.1 7.3 7.2 22.5

10.5 0.2

____ ____
1.1 28.9 17.5 4.6

_____

_____
$40.5 $l4.6 $lO.1 $27.1

______

The unfavorable reserve development for the 2010 loss year was primarily due to casualty claim

emanating Irom an cil field services risk

/%cquisiiolI costs Acquisition costs increased by $2.3 million or 82.1% for the year ended December 31

2012 compared to the year
ended lecember 31 2011 The negative cost represents ceding commissions received

on ceded premiums in excess of the brokerage fees and commissions paid on gross premiums written The

acquisition cost ratio was negalLive 0.1% for the year ended December 31 2012 and negative 0.9% for the year

ended lecember 31 2011 The increase was due to growth in lines of business with higher acquisition costs

such as trade credit

GeneiiI and adninistraihe expenses General and administrative expenses increased by $7.6 million or

9.0% for the
year

ended December 31 2012 compared to the
year

ended December 31 2011 The increase in

general and admini1rative expenses was primarily due to increased salary and related costs incurred as we

continue to expand internationally combined with higher incentive compensation due to increased profitability

and the higher stock price The general and administrative expense ratios for the years
ended December 31 2012

and 2011 were 27.3% and 26.6% respectively The increase was primarily due to increased incentive

compensation as prcfitahility improved

Professional liability

General casualty

Healthcare

General property

Professional liability

General casualty

Healthcare

General property

$2.0 $8.5

1.0 4.2

0.2 0.1

0.1

$0.8 $4.1

$6.1 $12.6

2.8 16.0

1.8 2.0

1.6 2.7

$6.7 $33.3

$l8.9

16.0

9.7

0.7

$45.3

20.3

26.1

24.1

48.0

$118.5
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Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Premiums Gross premiums written increased by $25.5 million or 5.1% for the year ended December 31
2011 compared to 2010 The increase in gross premiums written was primarily result of new business

including $12.5 million from new products specifically related to our trade credit line of business and small to

mid-sized enterprise insurance products In addition we increased premiums in our healthcare line of business

and experienced rate increases within our general property line of business This growth was partially offset by

the continued trend of the non-renewal of business that did not meet our underwriting requirements which
included inadequate pricing andlor terms and conditions including the non-renewal of one general property

policy that was previously written during the year ended December 31 2010 for $5.1 million and the non-

renewal of several policies totaling $15.7 million in our general casualty line of business

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by line of business for each of the periods indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2011 2010 Change Change

in millions

Professional liability $164.4 $160.7 3.7 2.3%

General
property 159.4 150.7 8.7 5.8%

General casualty 127.2 132.3 5.1 3.9%

Healthcare 68.1 59.3 8.8 14.8%

Other1 11.3 1.9 9.4 nlm

$530.4 $504.9 $25.5 5.1%

Includes our trade credit line of business

Net premiums written increased $6.0 million or 1.9% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to

the year ended December 31 2010 Net premiums written increased at lower
percentage than gross premiums

written due to an increase in ceded premiums written on our professional lines treaty as well as the establishment

of trade credit treaty We ceded to reinsurers 38.7% of
gross premiums written for the year ended December 31

2011 compared to 36.8% for the
year

ended December 31 2010 The increase is primarily due to increased

cessions on our general casualty and professional liability lines of business

Net premiums earned decreased $21.8 million or 6.4% primarily due to lower net premiums written during

2010

Net losses and loss expenses Net losses and loss expenses increased by $46.4 million or 29.0% for the

year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The loss and loss
expense

ratio

increased by 17.9 percentage points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss
expenses was

primarily due to higher loss activity in the current period and lower net favorable reserve development

recognized

During the year ended December 31 2011 we incurred $107.6 million of catastrophe-related losses of

which $45.0 million related to the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami $17.7 million related to the storms in the

Midwestern United States $12.7 million related to the New Zealand earthquake $22.8 million related to the

Thailand floods $8.0 million related to Hurricane Irene and $1.4 million related to the Australian storms
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Excluding the prior year reserve development and property catastrophe losses the loss and loss expense

ratios would have been 68.7% and 81.7% for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 31 2011 December 31 2010 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE Amount of NPE Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe 217.5 68.7% 276.7 81.7% $59.2 13.0Pts

Property catastrophe 107.6 319 64.1 18.9 43.5 l5

Current year
325.1 102.6 340.8 100.6 15.7 2.0

Prior year 118.5 37.4 180.6 53.3 62.1 15.9

Net losses and loss expenses 206.6 65.2% 160.2 47.3 46.4 l7.9Pts

Overall our inLernational insurance segment recorded net favorable reserve development of $1 18.5 million

during the year
ended December 31 2011 compared to net favorable reserve development of $180.6 million for

the year ended December 31 2110 as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

Professional liability 2.0 8.5 $6.l $l2.6 $18.9 $14.8 21.6 20.3

General casualty 1.0 4.2 2.8 16.0 16.0 14.1 7.3 7.2 22.5 26.1

Healthcare 0.2 0.1 1.8 2.0 9.7 10.5 0.2 24.1

General property 0.1 1.6 2.7 ft7 1.1 28.9 17.5 4.6 48.0

$0.8 $4.1 $6.7 $33.3 $45.3 $40.5 $14.6 $lO.l $27.1 $118.5

The unfavorable reserve development in our professional liability segment for the 2008 loss
year

related

primarily to greater reliance on the Bornhuetter-Ferguson reported loss method than on the expected loss ratio

method The unfavorable reserve development for the 2010 loss year was primarily due to casualty claim

emanating from an oil field service risk

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total

in millions

Professional liability 2.0 $2.8 4.1 $41.8 0.2 46.9

General casualty 5.1 2.3 15.3 29.8 7.6 6.5 11.3 7.8 37.3

Healthcare 0.3 1.5 2.2 9.9 22.5 36.4

General property 0.1
_____

6.0 6.4 12.8 34.4 0.3 60.0

6.8 $6.7 $21.6 $87.5 $36.7 $19.3 $23.I 7.5 $l80.6

Acquisition iStS Acquisition costs decreased $2.3 million for the year ended December 2011

compared to the year
ended December 31 2010 The negative cost represents ceding commissions received on

ceded premiums in excess of the brokerage fees and commissions paid on gross premiums written The

acquisition cost ratio decreased from negative 0.1% for the year ended December 31 2010 to negative 0.9% for

the year ended December 2011

General and administrative expenses General and administrative
expenses

decreased $9.9 million or

10.5 U/ for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease in

general and administrative expenses was primarily due to decrease in incentive-based compensation due to

higher loss activity as well as decrease in staffing and related salaries and benefits The
year

ended

December 31 2010 included one-time expenses
in professional fees related to the establishment of Syndicate
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2232 and our efforts to effect our redomestication to Switzerland These decreases were offset by an increase in

fees for full year of operating our Lloyds Syndicate 2232 of $4.4 million in 2011 versus six months of

operation in 2010 The general and administrative expense ratios for the years ended December 31 2011 and

2010 were 26.6% and 27.8% respectively due to lower general and administrative expenses

Reinsurance Segment

The following table summarizes the underwriting results and associated ratios for the reinsurance segment
for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Revenues

Gross premiums written $760.3 $570.5 $524.2

Net premiums written 748.1 569.5 522.3

Net premiums earned 740.5 555.7 502.3

Expenses

Net losses and loss expenses $511.0 $365.5 $250.2

Acquisition costs 119.5 95.1 92.1

General and administrative expenses 73.7 62.9 63.8

Underwriting income 36.3 32.2 96.2

Ratios

Loss and loss expense ratio 69.0% 65.8% 49.8%

Acquisition cost ratio 16.1% 17.1% 18.3%

General and administrative expense ratio 10.0% 11.3% 12.7%

Expense ratio 26.1% 28.4% 31.0%

Combined ratio 95.1% 94.2% 80.8%

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2012 and 2011

Premiums Gross premiums written increased by $189.8 million or 33.3% for the year ended December 31
2012 compared to 2011 The increase in gross premiums written was primarily due to new business from both

new products and new regions as well as increased participations on renewing business combined with rate

increases Within our specialty unit crop reinsurance premiums increased by $48.1 million while marine

contributed further $21.7 million Gross premiums written in our property reinsurance business also increased

by $87.7 million Gross premiums written in our North American property reinsurance grew $42.0 million as

result of new business and increased participations and our continued expansion into Asia and Latin America

contributed further $41.0 million Casualty premiums increased $19.9 million primarily due to the renewal of

$13.5 million expiring two year contract This was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not

meet our underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions and

continued competition

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by underwriter geographic location for our

reinsurance operations

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2012 2011 Change Change

in millions

United States $366.3 $241.6 $124.7 1.6%

Bermuda 210.1 204.7 5.4 2.6%

Singapore 106.5 66.6 39.9 59.9%

Europe 77.4 57.6 19.8 34.4%

$760.3 $570.5 $189.8 33.3%
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The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by line of business for each of the periods indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2012 2011 Change Change

in millions

Property
$354.6 $266.9 87.7 32.9%

Casualty
254.3 234.4 19.9 8.5%

Specialty
151.4 69.2 82.2 118.8%

$760.3 $570.5 $189.8 33.3%

Net premiums written increased by $178.6 million or 31.4% consistent with the increase in
gross

premiums written

Net premiums earned increased by $184.8 million or 33.3% as result of the increase in net premiums

written during the years
ended December 31 2012 and 2011 Premiums related to our reinsurance business earn

at slower rate than those related to our direct insurance business Direct insurance premiums typically earn

ratably over the term of policy Reinsurance premiums under quota share reinsurance contract are typically

earned over the same period as the underlying policies or risks covered by the contract As result the earning

pattern of quota share reinsurance contract may extend up to 24 months reflecting the inception dates of the

underlying policies Property catastrophe premiums and premiums for other treaties written on losses occurring

basis generally earn ratably over the term of the reinsurance contract

Net losses and loss expenses Net losses and loss expenses increased by $145.5 million or 39.8% for the

year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The loss and loss expense ratio

increased by 3.2 percentage points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss expenses was due to

growth in net premiums earned lower prior year net favorable reserve development for the year
ended

December 2012 compared to 2011 and $36.4 million of crop reinsurance-related losses recorded in 2012

This was partially offset by the lower property catastrophe losses in 2012 compared to 2011

During the year
ended December 31 2012 we incurred $81.0 million of catastrophe-related losses for

Superstorm Sandy During the year ended December 31 2011 we incurred $176.3 million of which $51.5

million related to the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami $45.9 million from the New Zealand earthquake $32.2

million related to the Midwestern U.S storms $20.2 million related to the Thailand floods $11.2 million related

to Hurricane Irene and $15.3 million related to the Australian storms

Excluding the prior year reserve development and property catastrophe losses the loss and loss expense

ratios would have been 62.2% and 54.2% for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 respectively The

increase was primarily due to the $36.4 million in crop reinsurance losses and $15.3 million in other U.S

weather related losses for the year ended December 31 2012 that increased the loss and loss expense ratio by 7.0

percentage points

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 31 2012 December 31 2011 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE Amount of NPE Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe $460.4 62.2 301.0 54.2 $159.4 8.OPts

Property catastrophe
81.0 l0 176.3 31.7 95.3 20.8

Current year
541.4 73.1 477.3 85.9 64.1 12.8

Prior year 30.4 4.1 111.8 20.1 81.4 16.0

Net losses and loss expenses
$511.0 60% 365.5 65.8% $145.5 3.2Pts
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Overall our reinsurance segment recorded net favorable reserve development of $30.4 million during the

year ended December 31 2012 compared to net favorable reserve development of $111.8 million for the year

ended December 31 2011 as shown in the tables below

Specialty

Property

Casualty

Specialty

Property

Casualty

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2012

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 Total

in millions

$0.2 $0.4 $3.4 $5.5 $2.7 4.8 $1.9 0.3 1.6 $3.5 $20.5

0.1 0.7 1.5 2.5 1.8 0.4 2.3 3.8 10.1

0.1 0.4 3.6 2.0 5.3 12.6 3.5 0.1 6.2 9.4 0.2

$0.3 $0.1 $0.5 $2.0 $8.0 $19.9 $7.2 5.5 2.1 $30.4

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

$0.l 2.8 1.9 0.9 $0.2 5.7 4.0 15.6

0.2 0.9 1.1 2.7 1.2 4.2 0.3 4.8 11.3 26.7

0.2 1.5 7.0 31.0 14.8 15.6 1.8 0.3 2.7 69.5

$0.4 $2.5 $10.9 $35.6 $16.0 $20.7 $2.3 $10.8 $12.6 $1l1.8

Acquisition costs Acquisition costs increased by $24.4 million or 25.7% for the year ended December 31
2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 primarily due to the increase in net premiums earned The

acquisition cost ratio was 16.1% for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to 17.1% for the
year

ended

December 31 2011 primarily due to the change in mix of business

General and administrative expenses General and administrative
expenses

increased by $10.8 million or

17.2% for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to the year ended December 31 2011 The increase was

due to higher salary and related costs due to higher headcount to support our growing operations combined with

higher incentive compensation due to increased profitability and our higher stock price The general and

administrative expense ratios for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011 were 10.0% and 11.3%

respectively reflecting the higher growth in net premiums earned relative to expenses in 2012

Comparison of Years Ended December 31 2011 and 2010

Premiums Gross premiums written increased by $46.3 million or 8.8% for the year ended December 31
2011 compared to 2010 The increase in gross premiums written was primarily due to increased writings in our

international reinsurance lines of business with the continuing build out of our London and Singapore offices

including business written through Syndicate 2232 as well as $25.4 million of new business from our new global

marine and specialty division This growth was partially offset by the non-renewal of business that did not meet

our underwriting requirements which included inadequate pricing and/or terms and conditions In addition the

increase in
gross premiums written was partially offset by two year treaty we wrote in our general casualty

reinsurance line of business for $31.4 million in the year ended December 31 2010
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The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by underwriter geographic location for our

reinsurance operations

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2011 2010 Change Change

in millions

United States $241.6 $264.2 $22.6 8.6%

Bermuda 204.7 210.1 5.4 2.6%

Singapore
66.6 16.6 50.0 301.2%

Europe 57.6 33.3 24.3 73.0%

$570.5 $524.2 46.3 8.8%

The table below illustrates our gross premiums written by line of business for each of the periods indicated

Year Ended

December 31 Dollar Percentage

2011 2010 Change Change

in millions

Property
$266.9 $181.0 85.9 47.5%

Casualty
234.4 301.3 66.9 22.2%

Specialty
69.2 41.9 27.3 65.2%

$570.5 $524.2 46.3 8.8%

Net premiums written increased by $47.2 million or 9.0% and net premiums earned increased $53.4

million or 10.6% consistent with the increase in gross premiums written

Net losses and loss expenses Net losses and loss
expenses

increased by $115.3 million or 46.1% for the

year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year
ended December 31 2010 The loss and loss expense ratio

increased by 16.0 percentage points for the same period The increase in net losses and loss expenses was due to

growth in net premiums earned and increased property catastrophe losses partially offset by higher favorable net

prior year reserve development in 2011 compared to 2010

During the year
ended December 31 2011 we incurred $176.3 million of catastrophe-related losses of

which 51 .5 milliort related to the Tohoku earthquake and tsunami $45.9 million from the New Zealand

earthquake $32.2 million related to the Midwestern U.S storms $20.2 million related to the Thailand floods

$1 1.2 million related to Hurricane Irene and $15.3 million related to the Australian storms During the year ended

December 31 2010 we incurred $34.3 million of catastrophe-related losses from number of earthquakes and

other weather related events

Excluding the prior year reserve development and property catastrophe losses the loss and loss expense

ratios would have been 54.2% and 55.8% for the years
ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively

Year Ended Year Ended Change in

December 312011 December 312010 Dollar Percentage

Amount of NPE Amount of NPE Change Points

in millions

Non-catastrophe
301.0 54.2 $280.1 55.8 20.9 1.6 Pts

Property catastrophe
176.3 31.7 34.3 6.8 142.0 24.9

Current year
477.3 85.9 314.4 62.6 162.9 23.3

Prioryear 111.8 20.1 64.2 12.8 47.6 7.3

Net losses and loss expenses
365.5 68% $250.2 48% $115.3 l6J Pts
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Overall our reinsurance segment recorded net favorable reserve development of $111.8 million and

$64.2 million during the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 respectively as shown in the tables below

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2011

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total

in millions

Specialty $0.1 2.8 1.9 0.9 $0.2 5.7 4.0 15.6

Property 0.2 0.9 1.1 2.7 1.2 4.2 0.3 4.8 11.3 26.7

Casualty 0.2 1.5 7.0 31.0 14.8 15.6 1.8 0.3 2.7 69.5

$0.4 $2.5 $10.9 $35.6 $16.0 $20.7 $2.3 $10.8 $l2.6 $111.8

Favorable and Unfavorable Loss Reserve Development by Loss Year

For the Year Ended December 31 2010

2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Total

in millions

Specialty $0.4 $l.l 0.5 $1.2 $2.6 5.8

Property 0.3 0.7 1.0 3.6 0.7 3.5 0.8 7.7 16.7

Casualty 0.5 7.8 28.9 11.7 0.9 4.9 1.4 41.7

$0.8 $1.1 $9.9 $33.0 $12.4 $3.8 3.1 $6.3 $64.2

Acquisition costs Acquisition costs increased by $3.0 million or 3.3% for the year ended December 31
2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The increase was primarily result of higher net

premiums earned partially offset by decrease in profit commissions due to loss activity The acquisition cost

ratio was 17.1% for the year ended December 31 2011 slightly lower than the 18.3% for the year ended

December 31 2010 The decrease in the acquisition cost ratio is due to more business written on an excess-of-

loss basis which typically carries lower acquisition cost ratio than quota share business

General and administrative expenses General and administrative
expenses decreased $0.9 million or

1.4% for the year ended December 31 2011 compared to the year ended December 31 2010 The decrease in

general and administrative expenses was primarily due to decrease in performance based incentive

compensation expenses partially offset by additional professional fees related to the operation of the Lloyds

Syndicate which was operational for only six months in the prior year The general and administrative expense

ratios for the years ended December 31 2011 and 2010 were 11.3% and 12.7% respectively due to lower

general and administrative
expenses and higher net premiums earned

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Liquidity

Liquidity is measure of our ability to access sufficient cash flows to meet the short-term and long-term

cash requirements of our business operations The Company believes that its cash flows from operations and

investments will provide sufficient liquidity for the foreseeable future

Holdings is holding company and transacts no business of its own Cash flows to Holdings may comprise

dividends advances and loans from its subsidiary companies Holdings is therefore reliant on receiving dividends

and other permitted distributions from its subsidiaries to make dividend payments on its common shares

Our operating subsidiaries depend upon cash inflows from premium receipts net of commissions

investment income and proceeds from sales and redemptions of investments Cash outflows for our operating

subsidiaries are in the form of claims payments reinsurance premium payments purchase of investments

operating expenses and income tax payments as well as dividend payments to the holding company

Historically our operating subsidiaries have generated sufficient cash flows to meet all of their obligations

Because of the inherent volatility of our business the seasonality in the timing of payments by insureds and
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cedents the irregular timing of loss payments and the impact of change in interest rates and credit spreads on

the investment income as well as seasonality in coupon payment dates for fixed income securities cash flows

from operating actiities may vary between periods In the unlikely event that paid losses exceed operating cash

flows in any given period we would use our cash balances available liquidate portion of our investment

portfolio or borrow under our revolving loan facility see Credit Facility below in order to meet our short-term

liquidity needs

Our total invesl and cash totaled $8.g billion as of December 31 2012 the main components of which

were investment grade fixed income securities and cash and cash equivalents As of December 31 2012 we held

$681.9 million of cosh and cash equivalents and $573.9 million of fixed income securities with maturity of less

than one year to meet short-term liquidity needs Our remaining fixed income securities equity securities and

other invested assets are available to meet our long-term liquidity needs

As of December 2012 we had $150 million available under our revolving loan facility

Dividend Restriciions

Allied World Assurance Company AG is subject to Swiss financial and regulatory restrictions limiting its

ability to declare and pay dividends In addition the jurisdictions in which our operating subsidiaries are licensed

to write business also impose regulations requiring companies to maintain or meet various defined statutory

ratios including solvency and liquidity requirements Some jurisdictions also place restrictions on the declaration

and payment of dividends and other distributions

The payment of dividends from Holdings Bermuda domiciled operating subsidiary is under certain

circumstances limited under Bermuda law which requires our Bermuda operating subsidiary to maintain certain

measures of solvency and liquidity

Holdings U.S domiciled operating subsidiaries are subject to significant regulatory restrictions limiting their

ability to declare and pay dividends In particular payments of dividends by Allied World Assurance Company

U.S Inc. Allied World National Assurance Company Allied World Insurance Company Darwin National

Assurance Company Darwin Select Insurance Company and Vantapro Specialty Insurance Company are subject to

restrictions on statutory surplus pursuant to the respective states in which these insurance companies are domiciled

Each state requires prior regulatory approval of any payment of extraordinary dividends

Allied World Assurance Company Europe Limited and Allied World Assurance Company Reinsurance

Limited are subject to regulatory restrictions limiting their ability to declare and pay any dividends without the

consent of the Central Bank of Ireland We also have branch operations in Canada Hong Kong Lahuan and

Singapore which have regulatory restrictions limiting the ability to declare and pay dividends

We also have insurance subsidiaries that are the parent company for other insurance subsidiaries which

means that dividends and other distributions will be subject to multiple layers of regulations in order to dividend

funds to Holdings The inability of the subsidiaries of Holdings to pay dividends and other permitted

distributions could have material adverse effect on Holdings cash requirements and our ability to make

principal interest and dividend payments Ofl the senior notes and common shares

Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

in millions

Cash flows provided by operating activities 629.4 548.1 451.3

Cash flows used in investing activities 259.7 509.1 500.0

Cash flows used in financing activities 321.2 162.1 486.1

Effect of exchange rate changes on foreign currency cash 0.6 0.1 0.4

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents 47.9 123.0 464.8

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year
634.0 757.0 292.2

Cash and cash equivalents end of year 681.9 634.0 757.0

110



The primary sources of cash inflows from operating activities are premiums received loss payments from

reinsurers and investment income The primary sources of cash outflows from operating activities are ceded

premiums paid to reinsurers claims paid commissions paid operating expenses interest expense and income

taxes The primary factor in our ability to generate positive operating cash flow is underwriting profitability We

have generated positive operating cash flow for more than 10 consecutive years

The $81.3 million increase in cash flows from operations was due to the higher premiums collected net of

reinsurance as net premiums written increased by $304.0 million This was partially offset by the $176.2 million

increase in net paid losses as result of the growth in operations the settlement of 2011 catastrophe losses and

the maturation of our inforce business

In our casualty lines of business claims may be reported and settled several years after the coverage period

has terminated As result we expect that we will generate significant operating cash flow as we accumulate

casualty loss reserves on our balance sheet In our property lines of business claims are generally reported and

paid within relatively short period of time and we expect volatility in our operating cash flows as losses are

incurred Our net paid losses may increase in the short-term due to the recent natural catastrophe activity We

expect increases in the amount of expected loss payments in future periods with resulting decrease in operating

cash flow however we do not expect loss payments to exceed the premiums generated Actual premiums written

and collected and losses and loss expenses paid in any period could vary materially from our expectations and

could have significant and adverse effect on operating cash flow

Cash flows used in investing activities consist primarily of payments for investments acquired proceeds on

the sale of investments and changes in restricted cash Cash flows used in investing activities decreased $249.4

million from $509.1 million for the year ended December 31 2011 to $259.7 million for the
year

ended

December 31 2012 The decrease was to finance our increased share repurchases and dividend payments in

2012

Cash flows used in financing activities consist primarily of capital raising activities which include the

issuance of common shares or debt the repurchase of our shares the payment of dividends and the repayment of

debt The $159.1 million increase in cash flows used in financing activities was due to the $177.2 million

increase in share repurchases No shares were repurchased in the nine months ended September 30 2011 because

of the merger negotiations with Transatlantic This was partially offset by the $53.6 million in founder warrants

repurchased in February 2011 The increase in cash flows used in financing activities was also due to the $39.2

million increase in dividends paid for the year ended December 31 2012 compared to 2011 Under Swiss Law
we were not able to pay our quarterly dividend until two months after our annual general meeting resulting in

fewer dividend payments in 2011

In vestments

Our funds are primarily invested in liquid high-grade fixed income securities As of December 31 2012 and

2011 89.2% and 92.6% respectively of our fixed income portfolio consisted of investment grade securities The

maturity distribution of our fixed income portfolio on fair value basis as of December 31 2012 and 2011 was

as follows

As of December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Due in one year or less 573.9 661.6

Due after one year through five years 2835.9 2686.1

Due after five years through ten years 774.4 725.5

Due after ten years 73.0 94.2

Mortgage-backed 1958.4 1818.1

Asset-backed 410.9 513.2

Total $6626.5 $6498.7
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We have investments in other invested assets comprising interests in hedge funds and private equity funds

the market value of which was $783.5 million as of December 31 2012 Some of these funds have redemption

notice requirements For each of our funds liquidity is allowed after certain defined periods based on the terms

of each fund See Note 3c Investments Other Invested Assets to our consolidated financial statements for

additional details oa our other invested assets

We do not believe that inflation has had material effect on our consolidated results of operations The

potential exists after catastrophe loss fhr the development of inflationary pressures in local economy The

effects of inflation are considered implicitly in pricing Loss reserves are established to recognize likely loss

settlements at the date payment is made Those reserves inherently recognize the effects of inflation The actual

effects of inflation on our results cannot be accurately known however until claims are ultimately resolved

Pledged Assets

Allied World ssurance Company Ltd uses trust accounts primarily to meet security requirements for inter

company and certain reinsurance transactions We also have cash and cash equivalents and investments on

deposit with various state or government insurance departments or pledged in favor of ceding companies in order

to comply with reinsurance contract provisions and relevant insurance regulations In addition Allied World

Assurance Company Ltd currently has access to up to $1.45 billion in letters of credit under two letter of credit

facilities $1 billion uncommitted facility with Citibank Europe plc and $450 million committed Amended

Secured Credit Facility These facilities are used to provide security to reinsureds and are collateralized by us at

least to the extent cf letters of credit outstanding at any given time

Security arrargements with ceding insurers may subject our assets to security interests or require that

portion of our assets be pledged to or otherwise held by third parties Both of our letter of credit facilities are

fully collateralized by assets held in custodial accounts at the Bank of New York Mellon held for the benefit of

the banks Although the investment income derived from our assets while held in trust accrues to our benefit the

investment of these assets is governed by the terms of the letter of credit facilities or the investment regulations

of the state or territory of domicile of the ceding insurer which may be more restrictive than the investment

regulations otherwise applicable to us The restrictions may result in lower investment yields on these assets

which may adversely affect our profitability

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 $2141.2 million and $2029.1 million respectively of cash and cash

equivalents and investments were deposited pledged or held in escrow accounts in favor of ceding companies

and other counterparties or government authorities to comply with reinsurance contract provisions and insurance

laws

In addition as of December 31 2012 and 2011 further $1225.2 million and $1044.2 million

respectively of cash and cash equivalents and investments were pledged as collateral for our credit facilities

We do not currently anticipate that the restrictions on liquidity resulting from restrictions on the payment of

dividends by our subsidiary companies or from assets committed in trust accounts or to collateralize the letter of

credit facilities will have material impact on our ability to carry out our normal business activities including

interest and dividend payments respectively on our senior notes described below and common shares

Financial Strength Ratings

Financial strength ratings represent the opinions of rating agencies on our capacity to meet our obligations

In the event of significant downgrade in ratings our ability to write business and to access the capital markets

could be impacted For additional information on our financial strength ratings refer to Our Financial Strength

Ratings in Item Business
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Capital Resources

The table below sets forth the capital structure of the Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011

As of December 31

2012 2011

in millions

Senior notes 798.2 798.0

Shareholders equity 3326.3 3149.0

Total capitalization $4124.5 $3947.0

Debt to total capitalization 19.4% 20.2%

On September 10 2012 we filed shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the U.S Securities and

Exchange Commission in which we may offer from time to time common shares of Allied World Switzerland

senior or subordinated debt securities of Allied World Bermuda guarantees of debt securities of Allied World

Bermuda warrants to purchase common shares of Allied World Switzerland warrants to purchase debt securities

of Allied World Bermuda units which may consist of any combination of the securities listed above The

registration statement is intended to provide us with additional flexibility to access capital markets for general

corporate purposes subject to market conditions and our capital needs

Share Repurchases

In May 2012 we established new $500 million share repurchase program Under the terms of this new
share repurchase program common shares repurchased shall be designated for cancellation and shall be

cancelled upon prior shareholder approval

During the year ended December 31 2012 our share repurchases were as follows

Year Ended

December 31
2012

Common shares repurchased 3655959

Total cost of shares repurchased 263942

Average price per share 72.20

Shares repurchased by the Company and not designated for cancellation are classified as Treasury shares

at cost on the consolidated balance sheets The Company will issue shares out of treasury principally related to

the Companys employee benefit plans Shares repurchased and designated for cancellation are constructively

retired and recorded as share cancellation

Long-Term Debt

In July 2006 Allied World Bermuda issued $500 million aggregate principal amount of 7.50% senior notes

due August 2016 with interest payable August and February each year Allied World Bermuda can redeem

the senior notes prior to maturity subject to payment of make-whole premium however Allied World

Bermuda currently has no intention of redeeming the notes

In November 2010 Allied World Bermuda issued $300 million aggregate principal amount of 5.50% senior

notes due November 2020 with interest payable May 15 and November 15 each year commencing May 15

2011 Allied World Bermuda can redeem the senior notes prior to maturity subject to payment of make
whole premium however Allied World Bermuda currently has no intention of redeeming the notes

The senior notes issued in 2006 and 2010 have been unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed for the

payment of the principal and interest by Holdings

Credit Facility

In the normal course of our operations we enter into agreements with financial institutions to obtain secured

and unsecured credit facilities
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On June 2012 Allied World Bermuda amended its existing secured credit facility The amended $450

million four-year secured credit facility the Amended Secured Credit Facility is with syndication
of lenders

and is primarily for the issuance of standby letters of credit to support obligations in connection with the

insurance and reinsurance business of Allied World Bermuda and its subsidiaries portion of the facility may

also be used for revolving loans for general corporate and working capital purposes up to maximum of $150

million Allied World Bermuda may request that existing lenders under the Amended Secured Credit Facility

make additional commitments from time to time up to $150 million subject to approval by the lenders The

Amended Secured Credit Facility contains representations warranties and covenants customary for similar bank

loan facilities including certain covenants that among other things require us to maintain certain leverage

ratio and financial strength rating We are in compliance with all covenants under the Amended Secured Credit

Facility as of December 31 2012

On June 2012 upon entering into the Amended Secured Credit Facility Allied World Bermuda

terminated its $400 million unsecured credit facility

As of December 31 2012 we also have access to $1 billion uncommitted letter of credit facility with

Citibank Europe plc This facility was increased from $900 million as of December 31 2011 The letters of credit

issued under the credit facility with Citibank Europe plc are deemed to be automatically extended without

amendment for twelve months from the expiry date or any future expiration date unless at least 30 days prior to

any expiration date Citibank Europe plc notifies us that they elect not to consider the letters of credit renewed for

any such additional period

As of Decemer 31 2012 we had combined unused letters of credit capacity of $433.6 million from the

Amended Secured Credit Facility and Citibank Europe plc We believe that this remaining capacity is sufficient

to meet our future fatter of credit needs

Aggregate Contractual Obligations

The following table shows our aggregate contractual obligations by time period remaining until due date as

of December 31 2012

Payment Due by Period

Less Than More Than

Total Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years Years

in millions

Contractual Obligations

Senior notes including interest $1119.5 54.0 108.0 608.0 349.5

Operating lease obligations
65.9 11.2 19.2 15.4 20.1

Investment commitments outstanding
266.4 1.1 35.6 229.7

Real estate purchase commitment 42.0 5.5 36.5

Reinsurance collateral 700.0 300.0 400.0

Gross reserve for losses and loss expensesl 5645.5 1206.6 1572.4 869.8 1996.7

Total $7839.3 $1578.4 $2136.1 $1528.8 $2596.0

Our unpaid losses and loss expenses represent our best estimate of the cost to settle the ultimate liabilities

based on information available as of December 31 2012 and are not fixed amounts payable pursuant to

contractual commitments The timing and amounts of actual loss payments related to these reserves might

vary significantly from our current estimate of the expected timing and amounts of loss payments based on

many factors including large individual losses as well as general market conditions

The investment commitments outstanding represent unfunded commitments related to our other invested

assets

The amounts included for reserve for losses and loss expenses
reflect the estimated timing of expected loss

payments on known claims and anticipated future claims as of December 31 2012 and do not take reinsurance

recoverables into account Both the amount and timing of cash flows are uncertain and do not have contractual
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payout terms For discussion of these uncertainties refer to Critical Accounting Policies Reserve for

Losses and Loss Expenses Due to the inherent uncertainty in the process of estimating the timing of these

payments there is risk that the amounts paid in
any period will differ significantly from those disclosed Total

estimated obligations will be funded by existing cash and investments

OfT-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31 2012 we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements

Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We believe that we are principally exposed to three types of market risk interest rate risk credit risk and

currency risk

The fixed income securities in our investment portfolio are subject to interest rate risk and credit risk Any
changes in interest rates and credit spreads have direct effect on the market values of fixed income securities

As interest rates rise the market values fall and vice versa As credit spreads widen the market values fall and

vice versa

In the table below changes in market values as result of changes in interest rates is determined by

calculating hypothetical December 31 2012 ending prices based on yields adjusted to reflect the hypothetical

changes in interest rates comparing such hypothetical ending prices to actual ending prices and multiplying the

difference by the principal amount of the security The sensitivity analysis is based on estimates The estimated

changes of our fixed maturity investments and cash and cash equivalents are presented below and actual changes

for interest rate shifts could differ significantly

Interest Rate Shift in Basis Points

-200 -100 -50 50 100 200

in millions

Total market value $7653.6 $7595.3 $7553.4 $7491.8 $7419.2 $7340.9 $7173.4

Market value change from base 161.8 103.5 61.6 72.6 150.9 318.4

Change in unrealized appreciationl

depreciation 2.2% 1.4% 0.8% 0% 1.0% 2.0% 4.3%

In the table below changes in market values as result of changes in credit spreads are determined by

calculating hypothetical December 31 2012 ending prices adjusted to reflect the hypothetical changes in credit

spreads comparing such hypothetical ending prices to actual ending prices and multiplying the difference by the

principal amount of the security The sensitivity analysis is based on estimates The estimated changes of our

non-cash non-U.S Treasury fixed maturity investments are presented below and actual changes in credit spreads

could differ significantly

Credit Spread Shift in Basis Points

-200 -100 -50 50 100 200

in millions

Total market value $5352.9 $5225.1 $5161.2 $5097.3 $5033.4 $4969.5 $4841.6

Market value change from base 255.6 127.8 63.9 63.9 127.8 255.7

Change in unrealized appreciation

depreciation 5.0% 2.5% 1.3% 0% 1.3% 2.5% 5.0%

In addition to credit spread risk our portfolio is also exposed to the risk of securities being downgraded or

of issuers defaulting In an effort to minimize this risk our investment guidelines have been defined to ensure

that the assets held are well diversified and are primarily high-quality securities

115



The following table shows the types
of securities in our portfolio their fair market values average rating

and portfolio percentage as of December 31 2012

Fair Value

December 31 Average Portfolio

2012 Rating Percentage

in millions

Cash and cash equivalents
865.4 AAA 9.8%

U.S government securities 1529.2 AA 17.3%

U.S government agencies
336.8 AA 3.8%

Non-U.S government and government agencies 261.6 AA 3.0%

State municipalities and political subdivisions 40.4 AA- 0.5%

Mortgage-backed securities MBS Agency MBS 1400.9 AA 15.9%

Non-agency Residential MBS 90.3 BBB 1.0%

Non-agency MBS Non investment grade
176.8 CCC 2.0%

Commercial MBS 290.4 AA 3.4%

Total mortgage-backed securities 1958.4 22.3%

Corporate securities

Financials 8661 9.8%

Industrials 1153.9 BBB- 13.1%

Utilities 69.2 BBB- 0.8%

Total corporate securities 20892 237%

Asset-backed securities

Credit cards 24.9 AAA 0.3%

Auto receivables 31.3 AAA 0.4%

Student Loans 133.0 AA 1.5%

Collateralized loan obligations
190.2 AA 2.2%

Other 315 AAA

Total asset-backed securities 410.9 4.7%

Other invested assets

Private equity
151.0 N/A 1.7%

Hedge funds 504.9 N/A 5.7%

Other private securities 127.6 N/A 1.5%

Total other invested assets 783.5 8.9%

Equities
523.9 N/A 6.0%

Total investment portfolio $8799.3 100.0%

As of December 2012 we held $6.6 billion of fixed income securities Of those assets approximately

89.2% were rated investment grade Baa3IBBBor higher with the remaining 10.8% rated in the below

investment grade category The average credit quality of the fixed maturity portfolios was AAby Standard

Poors

Our agency pass-through mortgage-backed securities are exposed to prepayment risk which occurs when

holders of individual mortgages increase the frequency with which they prepay
the outstanding principal before
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the maturity date to refinance at lower interest rate cost Given the proportion that these securities comprise of

the overall portfolio and the current interest rate environment and condition of the credit market prepayment

risk is not considered significant at this time

Our non-agency commercial mortgage-backed securities are subject to the risk of non-payment due to

increased levels of delinquencies defaults and losses on commercial loans that cumulatively create shortfalls

beyond the level of subordination in our specific securities As of December 31 2012 34.5% of our non-agency
commercial mortgage-backed securities were rated below Aaa/AAA

As of December 31 2012 we held investments in other invested assets with fair value of $783.5 million

Other invested assets consist primarily of investments in hedge funds and private equity funds Investments in

these funds involve certain risks related to among other things the illiquid nature of the fund shares the limited

operating history of the fund as well as risks associated with the strategies employed by the managers of the

funds The funds objectives are generally to seek attractive long-term returns with lower volatility by investing

in
range of diversified investment strategies As our reserves and capital continue to build we may consider

additional investments in these or other alternative investments In addition we invest in various strategic

business opportunities that diversify our earnings stream including asset management and claims servicing

During 2011 concerns about sovereign and corporate credits throughout the European Economic Area

became elevated As of December 31 2012 our direct
exposure to European credit across all of Europe was

$662.2 million and is included within fixed maturity investments trading at fair value and equity securities

trading at fair value in the consolidated balance sheets Of that approximately $216.2 million was invested in

debt issued or guaranteed by European nations $29.0 million was invested in structured products and $417.0

million was invested in debt and equity securities of European corporations not guaranteed by sovereign

nation as outlined in the table below As of December 31 2012 we had no direct sovereign exposure to Greece

Ireland Italy Portugal or Spain

December 31 2012

Sovereign and Corporate

Sovereign Structured Bonds and Total

Guaranteed Products Equities Exposure

in millions

Belgium 22.0 19.1 41.1

Denmark 34.7 34.7

France 5.6 54.3 59.9

Germany 71.5 2.7 17.8 92.0

Ireland 1.7 2.8 4.5

Italy 3.1 3.1

Luxembourg 19.3 19.3

Netherlands 38.8 49.8 88.6

Norway 6.9 31.4 38.3

Russia 12.2 12.2

Spain 24.9 24.9

Sweden 32.0 32.0

Switzerland 10.9 42.2 53.1

United Kingdom 31.4 19.0 108.1 158.5

Total exposure $216.2 $29.0 $417.0 $662.2

The U.S dollar is our reporting currency and the functional
currency of all of our operating subsidiaries

However we enter into insurance and reinsurance contracts where the premiums receivable and losses payable

are denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar In addition we maintain portion of our investments

and liabilities in currencies other than the U.S dollar primarily Euro British Sterling Swiss Franc and the

Canadian dollar Receivables in non-U.S currencies are generally converted into U.S dollars at the time of

receipt When we incur liability in non-U.S currency we carry such liability on our books in the original
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currency These liabilities are converted from the non-U.S currency to U.S dollars at the time of payment As

result we have an exposure to foreign currency risk resulting from fluctuations in exchange rates We utilize

hedging strategy to minimize the potential loss of value caused by currency fluctuations by using foreign

currency forward contract deriLvatives that expire in 90 days from purchase

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 less than 3.4% and 3.1% respectively of our total investments and

cash and cash equivalents were denominated in currencies other than the U.S dollar Of our business written

during the years erded December 31 2012 and 2011 approximately 12% was written in currencies other than the

U.S dollar

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and required financial statement schedules

commencing on pages F-i through F-58 and S-i through S-2 below

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Disclosure Con frols and Procedures

In conneetior with the preparation
of this report our management has performed an evaluation with the

participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of our disclosure

controls and procedures as defined in Rule 13a-l5e under the Exchange Act as of December 31 2012

Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in reports

filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time

periods specified by SEC rules and forms and that such information is accumulated and communicated to

management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to allow fir timely decisions

regarding required disclosures Based on their evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer concluded that as of December 31 2012 our companys disclosure controls and procedures were

effective to ensure that information required to he disclosed in our reports filed under the Exchange Act is

recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified by SEC rules and forms and

accumulatel and communicated to management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial

Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure

Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control over financial reporting as

such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule l3a-l5f Our management with the participation of our Chief

Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal

control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on the framework in Internal Control

Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

COSO Based on an evaluation under the framework in internal Control Integrated Framework issued by

COSO otir management concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was effective as of

December 31 2012

Our management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer does not expect that

our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent
all error and

all fraud control system no matter how well conceived and operated can provide only reasonable not

absolute assurance that the objectives of the control system are met Further the design of control system must

reflect the fact that there are resource constraints and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their

costs Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems no evaluation of controls can provide an absolute

assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud if any within our company have been detected
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The effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 has been audited by

Deloitte Touche Ltd an independent registered public accounting firm as stated in their report which is

included below

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

No changes were made in our internal controls over financial reporting as such term is defined in Exchange

Act Rule 13a-l5f during the fourth quarter ended December 31 2012 that has materially affected or is

reasonably likely to materially affect our internal control over financial reporting
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG

Zug Switzerland

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2012 based on criteria established in

internal Control integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control

over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Managements Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our

audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our

audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that

material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based

on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We

believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of

the companys principal executive and principal financial officers or persons performing similar functions and

effected by the companys board of directors management and other personnel to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes
in

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting

includes those policies and procedures that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable

assurance that transactions arc recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made

only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company and provide reasonable

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the

companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal control over financial reporting including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls material misstatements due to error or fraud may not he

prevented or detected on timely basis Also projections of any evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal

control over financial reportirtg to future periods are subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may

deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial

reporting as of December 2012 based on the criteria established in Internal Control Integrated Framework

issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States he consolidated balance sheets and related consolidated statements of operations and

comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows and financial statement schedules as of and for the

year ended December 31 2012 of the Company and our report dated February 25 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion on those financial staiements and financial statement schedules

Is Deloitte Touche Ltd

Hamilton Bermuda

February 25 2013
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Item 9B Other Information

None

PART LII

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from definitive proxy statement that

will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended December 31 2012

pursuant to Regulation l4A

We have adopted Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers that applies

specifically to such persons The Code of Ethics for the Chief Executive Officer and Senior Financial Officers is

available free of charge on our website at www.awac.com and is available in print to any shareholder who

requests it We intend to disclose any amendments to this code by posting such information on our website as

well as disclosing any waivers of this code applicable to our principal executive officer principal financial

officer principal accounting officer or controller and other executive officers who perform similar functions

through such means or by filing Form 8-K

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from definitive
proxy statement that

will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended December 31 2012

pursuant to Regulation 4A

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder

Matters

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from definitive proxy statement that

will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal year ended December 31 2012

pursuant to Regulation l4A

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from definitive
proxy statement that

will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal
year ended December 31 2012

pursuant to Regulation 14A

Item 14 Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item is incorporated by reference from definitive proxy statement that

will be filed with the SEC not later than 120 days after the close of the fiscal
year ended December 31 2012

pursuant to Regulation 14A

PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

Financial statement schedules listed in the accompanying index to our consolidated financial statements

starting on page F-i are filed as part of this Form 10-K and are included in Item

The exhibits listed in the accompanying exhibit index starting on page E- are filed as part of this

Form 10-K
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 the registrant

has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized in Zug

Switzerland on February 25 2013

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

By
Is Scott Carnni

Name Scott Carmilani

Title President and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed below by

the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated

Signature
Title

Is Scott Carmilani

Scott Carmilani

Is Thomas Bradley

Thomas Bradley

Is Barbara Alexander

Barbara Alexander

Is James Duffy

James Duffy

Is Bail Friedman

Bail Friedman

Is Scott Hunter

Scott Hunter

/s Patrick de Saint-Aignan

Patrick de Saint-Aignan

Is Samuel Weinhoff

Samuel Weinhoff

President Chief Executive Officer and February 25 2013

Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

Principal Financial and

Accounting Officer

Director

Director

Vice Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director

February 25 2013

February 25 2013

February 25 2013

February 25 2013

February 25 2013

February 25 2013

February 25 2013

Date
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit

Number Description

3.11 Articles of Association of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG as amended and

restated

3.22 Organizational Regulations of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG as amended and

restated

4.13 Specimen Common Share Certificate

4.24 Indenture dated as of July 26 2006 by and between Allied World Assurance Company Holdings

Ltd as issuer and The Bank of New York as trustee with regard to Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings Ltds outstanding 7.50% Senior Notes due 2016

4.34 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of July 26 2006 by and between Allied World Assurance

Company Ltd as issuer and The Bank of New York as trustee with regard to Allied World

Assurance Company Holdings Ltds outstanding 7.50% Senior Notes due 2016

4.45 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 30 2010 by and among Allied World

Assurance Company Holdings AG Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd and The

Bank of New York Mellon as trustee with regard to Allied World Assurance Company Holdings

Ltds outstanding 7.50% Senior Notes due 2016

4.54 Form of 7.50% Senior Note Included as part of Exhibit 4.3

4.66 Senior Indenture dated November 15 2010 by and between Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings Ltd and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee with regard to Allied World

Assurance Company Holdings Ltds outstanding 5.50% Senior Notes due 2020

4.76 First Supplemental Indenture dated November 15 2010 by and between Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings Ltd and The Bank of New York Mellon as trustee with regard to Allied

World Assurance Company Holdings Ltds outstanding 5.50% Senior Notes due 2020

4.85 Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 30 2010 by and among Allied World

Assurance Company Holdings AG Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd and The

Bank of New York Mellon as Trustee with regard to Allied World Assurance Company Holdings

Ltds outstanding 5.50% Senior Notes due 2020

4.96 Form of 5.50% Senior Note Included as part of Exhibit 4.7

10.17 Insurance Letters of Credit-Master Agreement dated February 28 2007 by and among Allied

World Assurance Company Ltd Citibank NA and Citibank Europe plc

10.27 Pledge Agreement dated as of February 28 2007 by and between Allied World Assurance

Company Ltd and Citibank Europe plc

10.37 Account Control Agreement dated March 2007 by and among Citibank Europe plc as secured

party Allied World Assurance Company Ltd as pledgor and Mellon Bank N.A

10.48 Letter Agreement dated December 30 2008 by and among Allied World Assurance Company

Ltd Citibank Europe plc and The Bank of New York Mellon with respect to the types of securities

that may he pledged under the letter of credit facility with Citibank Europe plc

10.5 Letter and Summary of Terms dated December 2012 from Citibank Europe plc to Allied World

Assurance Company Ltd with respect to the letter of credit facility with Citibank Europe plc

10.69 Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dated as of June 2012 by and among Allied World

Assurance Company Holdings AG Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd Allied

World Assurance Company Ltd the lenders party thereto Citibank NA as syndication agent

and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as administrative agent fronting bank and letter of

credit agent
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Exhibit

Number Description

10.79 Amended and Restated Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of June 2012 by and between

Allied World Assurance Company Ltd as pledgor and Wells Fargo Bank National Association

as administrative agent

10.89 Pledge and Security Agreement dated as of June 2012 by and between Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings Ltd as pledgor and Wells Fargo Bank National Association as

administrative agent

10.99 Amended and Restated Account Control Agreemeni dated June 2012 by and among Allied

World Assurance Company Ltd as pledgor The Bank of New York Mellon as custodian and

Wells Fargo Bank National Association as administrative agent

10.109 Account Control Agreement dated June 2012 by and among Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings Ltd as pledgor The Bank of New York Mellon as custodian and Wells Fargo Bank

National Association as administrative agent

10.1110 Contribution-in-Kind Agreement dated November 30 2010

10 1210 Benefit Plan Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated as of December 2010 by and

among Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd Allied World Assurance Company Ltd

Newinarket Administrative Services Inc n/k/a AWAC Services Company and Allied World

Assurance Company Holdings AG

10 31 0t Form of Indemnification Agreement for directors and executive officers of Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG

10.141 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement Form for Certain Executive Officers

lO.1512t Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of October 2008 by and between

Allied World National Assurance Company and Gordon Knight

lO.16 13t Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of October 2008 by and between

Allied World Reinsurance Agreement n/k/a Allied World Insurance Company and John Bender

10.1713 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of October 2008 by and between

Allied World National Assurance Company and John McElroy

10.181 Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of March 2009 by and

between Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd and Scott Carmilani

10.1915 Emp oyment Agreement dated as of July 2010 by and between Newmarket Administrative

Services Inc n/k/a AWAC Services Company and John Gauthier

0.203t Form of Employment Agreement Amendment with regard to Swiss requirements for certain

officers of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG

10.2 l3y Empoyment Agreement Amendment with regard to Swiss requirements for John Gauthier

l0.2216t Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated Long-Term

Incentive Plan

10.2317 Form of Participation Agreement under the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third

Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan

l0.2416t Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2001 Employee

Stock Option Plan

10.251 8t Form of Option Grant Notice and Option Agreement under Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2001 Employee Stock Option Plan

lO.26 19t Form of Option Grant Notice and Option Agreement under Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2001 Employee Stock Option Plan as amended in

August 2011
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Exhibit

Number
Description

10.27161- Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock

Incentive Plan

10.28181- Form of RSU Award Agreement for employees under the Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan

10.29171- Form of RSU Award Agreement for non-employee directors under the Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan

10.3020t Form of RSU Award Agreement for employees under the Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended in May 2009

10.31211- Form of RSU Award Agreement for employees under the Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended in November
2009

10.32191- Form of RSU Award Agreement for employees under the Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended in August
2011

10.3319t Form of RSU Award Agreement for non-employee directors under the Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended in

August 2011

10.34221- Form of Performance-Based RSU Award Agreement under the Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan

10.351 9t Form of Performance-Based RSU Award Agreement under the Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock Incentive Plan as amended in August
2011

10.36231- Form of Performance-Based Equity Award Agreement

10.37131- Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG 2012 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan

10.38131- Form of RSU Award Agreement under the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG 2012

Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan

10.39131- Form of Performance-Based Compensation Award Agreement under the Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG 2012 Omnibus Incentive Compensation Plan

10.40241- Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Amended and Restated 2008 Employee Share

Purchase Plan

10.41211- Allied World Assurance Company U.S Inc Second Amended and Restated Supplemental
Executive Retirement Plan

10.4221 Amended and Restated Accounting Services Agreement dated as of April 2009 by and
between Allied World Assurance Company Ltd and BlackRock Financial Management Inc

10.4325 Investment Management Agreement dated as of September 27 2011 by and between Allied

World Assurance Company Ltd and BlackRock Financial Management Inc

21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant

23.1 Consent of Deloitte Touche Ltd an independent registered public accounting firm

31.1 Certification by Chief Executive Officer as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

31.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer as required by Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002
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Exhibit

Number Description

32 Certification by Chief Executive Officer as required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

32.2 Certification by Chief Financial Officer as required by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of

2002

l0l.l Interactive data files pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T the Consolidated Balance Sheets

as of December 31 2012 and 2011 ii the Consolidated Statements of Operations and

Comprehensive Income for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 iii the

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders Equity for the years ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 iv the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements and vi Schedules III and

lv

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on December 21 2012

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on August 2012

Incorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on March 2011

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on August 2006

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on January 2011

Incorporated
herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on November 15 2010

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on March 2007

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on January 2009

Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on June 13 2012

10 Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on December 2010

11 Incorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on February 27 2009 Other than with respect to title base salary and

housing allowance the amended and restated employment agreements dated as of October 2008 for

Frank DOrazio Wesley Dupont and Marshall Grossack are identical to the form filed as Exhibit 10.41

thereto

12 Incorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on February 27 2009

13 Incorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report on Form l0-Q of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on May 2012

14 Incorporated herein by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG filed with the SEC on March 2009

15lncorporated herein by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form lO-Q of Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG filed with the SEC on November 2010
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16 Incorporated herein by reference to the Post-Effective Amendment No to the Registration Statement on

Form S-8 Registration No 333-136420 of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG filed with the

SEC on December 2010

l7Incorporated herein by reference to the Registration Statement on Form S-i Registration No 333-132507
of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG filed with the SEC on March 17 2006 as amended and

declared effective by the SEC on July 11 2006

18Incorporated herein by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q of Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG filed with the SEC on May 2008

l9Incorporated herein by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q of Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG filed with the SEC on August 2011

20 Incorporated by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form 0-Q of Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG filed with the SEC on May 2009

2lIncorporated herein by reference to the Annual Report on Form 10-K of Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG filed with the SEC on March 2010

22lncorporated herein by reference to the Quarterly Report on Form l0-Q of Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG filed with the SEC on May 2010

23 Incorporated by reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K of Allied World Assurance Company
holdings AG filed with the SEC on September 18 2009

24 Incorporated herein by reference to the Post-Effective Amendment No to the Registration Statement on

Form S-8 Registration NC 333-151298 of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG filed with the

SEC on December 2010

25 Incorporated herein by reference to Annual Report on Form 10- of Allied World Assurance Company
Holdings AG filed with the SEC on February 29 2012

Management contract or compensatory plan contract or airangement

These certifications are being furnished solely pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

subsections and of Section 1350 chapter 63 of title 18 United States Code and are not being filed as

part of this report

In accordance with Rule 406T of Regulation S-I the information in Exhibit 101.1 to this Annual Report on
Form 10-K is deemed not filed or part of registration statement or prospectus for

purposes of Sections II

or 12 of the Securities Act is deemed not filed for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act and

otherwise is not subject to liability under these sections
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG

Zug Switzerland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG and subsidiaries the Company as of December 31 2012 and 2011 and the related consolidated

statements of operations and comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three

years in the period ended December 31 2012 Our audits also included the financial statement schedules listed in

the Index at Item 15 These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the

Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial

statement schedules based on our audits

We conducted cur audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test

basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes

assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our

opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements present fairly in all material respects the financial

position of Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG and subsidiaries as of December 2012 and 2011

and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2012. in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America Also in ojr opinion such financial statement schedules when considered in relation to the basic

consolidated financial statements taken as whole present fairly in all material respects the information set

forth therein

We have also audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board

United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2012 based on

criteria established fl Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 25 2013 expressed an unqualified

opinion on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Is Deloitte Touche Ltd

Hamilton Bermuda

February 25 2013
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share and per share amounts

Asol Asof
December 31 December 31

2012 2011

ASSETS

Fixed maturity investments available for sale at fair value amortized cost 2012 $0 2011

$226397 244016

Fixed maturity investments trading at fair value amortized cost 2012 $6473429 2011
$6207991 6626454 6254686

Equity securities trading at fair value cost 2012 $480312 2011 $356370 523949 367483

Other invested assets 783534 540409

Total investments 7933937 7406594

Cash and cash equivalents 681879 633996

Restricted cash
183485 82608

Insurance balances receivable 846900 652158

Prepaid reinsurance 277406 226721

Reinsurance recoverable 1141110 1002919

Accrued investment income 29135 38263

Net deferred acquisition costs 108010 100334

Goodwill
268376 268376

Intangible assets 51365 53898

Balances receivable on sale of investments 418879 580443

Net deferred tax assets 25580 22646

Other assets 63884 53202

Total assets $12029946 $11122158

LIABILITIES

Reserve for losses and loss expenses 5645549 5225143

Unearned premiums 1218021 1078412

Reinsurance balances payable 136264 124539

Balances due on purchases of investments 759934 616728

Senior notes 798215 797949

Dividends payable 14302

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 145628 116063

Total liabilities 8703611 7973136

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Common shares 2012 par value CHF 12.64 per share and 2011 par value CHF 14.03 per share

2012 36369868 2011 40003642 shares issued and 2012 34797781 2011 37742131
shares outstanding 454980 557153

Additional paid-in capital 78225

Treasury shares at cost 2012 1572087 2011 2261511 113818 136590
Retained earnings 2985173 2635750

Accumulated other comprehensive income net unrealized gains on investments net of tax 14484

Total shareholders equity 3326335 3149022

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $12029946 $11122158

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ALLiED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for the years
ended December31 2012 2011 and 2010

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share and per
share amounts

2012 2011 2010

REVENUES

Gross premiums wntten 2329271 193952 1758397

Premiums ceded 491448 405755 365942

Net preiniullis
written 1837823 l533766 1392.455

Change in unearned premiums
88.925 76774 32.907

Net premiums earned 1748898 1456992 1359548

Net investment income 167141 195.948 244.143

Net realized investment gains
306436 10077 285612

Net impairment charges recognized in earnings
168

Other income 101.744 913

2222475 1764.761 1890.048

EXPENSES

Net losses and loss expenses
1139264 959.156 707.883

Acquisition costs
205722 167.295 159489

General and administrative expenses
307321 271656 286557

Aniortitation of intangible assets 2533 2978 3483

Interest expense
55405 54989 40242

Foreign exchange loss 783 3159 444

1711028 1459233 1.198098

Income hebre income taxes 511447 305528 691950

Income tax expense
18440 30980 26945

NET INCOME 493007 274548 665.005

Other ci onprehensi ye loss

Unrealized losses gains on investments arising during the year net of

applicable deferred inconie tax benefit expense 2012 $265 2011

$3035 2010 $10209 493 5.243 162.653

Reclassification adjustment for net realized investment gains included in net

income net of applicable income tax 13991 47894 213478

Other comprehensive loss 14484 42651 50825

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 478523 231897 614180

PER SHARE IAIA

Basic earniligs per share 13.67 7.21 14.30

Diluted earnings per share
13.30 6.92 13.32

Weighted average comnrnoml shares outstanding
36057145 38093351 46491279

Weighted average common shares and common share equivalents outstanding 37069885 39667905 49913317

Dividends paid per share 1.875 0.750 1.050

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

December 31 2009

Cumulative effect

adjustmentl

Net income

Dividends

Other comprehensive loss

Stock compensation

Share repurchases

Shares cancelled

Recapitalization2

Repurchase of founder

warrants

December 31 2010

December3l2010

Net income

Dividends par value

reduction

Other comprehensive loss

Stock compensation

Share repurchases

Repurchase of founder

warrants

December3l2011

December3l2011

Net income

Dividends par value

reduction

Other comprehensive loss

Stock compensation

Share repurchases

Shares cancelled

December 31 2012

41889 41889

665005

47712

50825

674662

561851

665005

47712

50825

40735

674662

70016

3075820

3075820

274548

42902

42651

24527

86700

53620

3149022

3149022

493007

53523

14484

16255

263942

$3326335

Cumulative effect adjustment reflects adoption of ASU 2010-11 as of July 2010

As result of the redomestication share capital was increased on net basis For additional details refer to

Note 11b

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
for the

years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars

Retained

Earnings

1702020

Total

3213295

Additional Accumulated Other

Share Paid-in Treasury Comprehensive

Capital Capital Shares Income

1492 $1359934 $149849

38 40697

561851

598525 598525

70016

600055 170239 112811 57135 2361202

600055 170239 112811 57135 2361202

274548

42902

42651

38394 62921

86700

53620

557153 78225 136590 14484 2635750

557153 78225 136590 14484 2635750

493007

53523

14484

27099 43354

263942

48650 51126 243360 143584

$454980 $113818 $2985173
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

for the years
ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars

2012 2011 2010

CASH FLOWS PROS tIED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income 493007 274.548 665.005

Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by operating activtties

Net rcaliied gains losses on sales of investments 55805 82764 217661

Mark to market adjustments
180380 22654 71909

Stock compensation expense
17642 22294 34243

Net
inipait

went charpes recognized in earnings
--- 168

Changes in

Reserve for losses and loss expenses net of reinsutance recoverables 282215 270624 1198 19

Unearned premiums net of
prepatLi

reinsurance 88924 76.775 32907

Insurance halances rsccivahle 194742 122231 134.306

Reinsutanse balances payable
11725 24807 3105

Net deft rred acquisition costs 7676 3531 8982

Net defcircd tax assets
200 129 12364

Accounts payable and acci ued liabilities 27.815 10.053 13.969

Other items net 34843 54750 18752

Net cash provided by operating activities 629438 548.108 451.264

CASH FLOWS LJSEI IN PROVIIE1 BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of available for sale securities 727 133079

Purchases of trading securities 8006237 7854053 12816343

Purchases of other invested assets 333.031 281.957 165505

Sales of available for sale sceurities 236978 609833 2687129

Sales of tiading securities 7892.907 6.942.291 10936501

Sales of other invested assets 53741 71543 9746

Purchases of fixed assets 3.214 9819 9576

Change iii restricted caTh 100877 13.765 8810

Net cash used in provided by investing activities 259733 509124 500063

CASH FLoWS USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid -par -value reduction 67.825 28.600

Dividends paid
47712

Proceeds front the exercise of stock options 10527 6.837 9598

Share repurehases
263.942 86.700 674662

Repurchase if fonttder wart ants 53620 70.016

Proceeds from senior notes 296682

Net cash used in financing activities 321240 162083 486.110

Effect of exchange rate chattgcs ott foreign currency cash 582 100 410

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 47883 122999 464807

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BEOF YEAR 63396 756995 292188

CASH ANI CASH EQUIVALENTS END OF YEAR 681879 633996 $756995

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information

Cash paid for income taxes 23.957 14.132 22.556

Cash paid for interest expense 5410 54000 37500

See accompanying notes to the consolidated financial statements
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

GENERAL

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Swiss holding company Allied World Switzerland

through its wholly-owned subsidiaries collectively the Company provides property and casualty insurance

and reinsurance on worldwide basis through operations in Bermuda the United States Europe Hong Kong
Labuan and Singapore

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States U.S GAAP The preparation of financial statements in conformity

with U.S GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of

assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and

the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period Actual results could differ from those

estimates The significant estimates reflected in the Companys financial statements include but are not limited

to

The premium estimates for certain reinsurance agreements

Recoverability of deferred acquisition costs

The reserve for outstanding losses and loss expenses

Valuation of ceded reinsurance recoverables

Determination of impairment of goodwill and other intangible assets and

Valuation of financial instruments

Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated on consolidation and all entities meeting

consolidation requirements have been included in the consolidation Certain immaterial reclassifications in the

consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income consolidated income statements
consolidated statements of cash flows and notes to the consolidated financial statements have been made to prior

years amounts to conform to the current years presentation

The significant accounting policies are as follows

Premiums and Acquisition Costs

Premiums are recorded as written on the inception date of the policy For certain types of business written

by the Company notably reinsurance premium income may not be known at the policy inception date In the

case of quota share reinsurance treaties assumed by the Company the underwriter makes an estimate of premium
income at inception The underwriters estimate is based on statistical data provided by reinsureds and the

underwriters judgment and experience Such estimations are refined over the reporting period of each treaty as

actual written premium information is reported by ceding companies and intermediaries Premiums resulting

from such adjustments are estimated and accrued based on available information Certain insurance and

reinsurance contracts may require that the premium be adjusted at the expiry of the contract to reflect the change
in exposure or loss experience of the insured or reinsured

Premiums are recognized as earned over the period of policy coverage in proportion to the risks to which

they relate Premiums relating to the unexpired periods of coverage are recorded on the balance sheets as

unearned premiums Reinsurance premiums under quota share reinsurance contract are typically earned over

the same period as the underlying policies or risks covered by the contract

Acquisition costs comprised of commissions brokerage fees and insurance taxes are costs that are directly

related to the successful acquisition of new and renewal business While permitted under U.S GAAP to defer
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ALLIEI WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

certain internal costs that are directly related to the successful acquisition of new and renewal business the

Company does not defer such costs Acquisition costs that are deferred are expensed as the premiums to which

they relate are earnd Acquisition costs relating to the reserve for unearned premiums are deferred and carried

on the balance sheets as an asset and are amortized over the period of coverage Expected losses and loss

expenses other costs and anticipated investment income related to these unearned premiums are considered in

determining the recoverability or deficiency of deferred acquisition costs If it is determined that deferred

acquisition costs are not recoverable they are expensed Further analysis is performed to determine if liability

is required to provide for losses which may exceed the related unearned premiums

Reserve for Losses and Loss Expenses

The reserve for losses and loss expenses is comprised of two main elements outstanding loss reserves

OSLR also known as case reserves and reserves for losses incurred but not reported IBNR OSLR relate

to known claims and represent managements best estimate of the likely loss payment IBNR relates to reserves

established by the Company for claims that have occurred but have not yet been reported to us as well as for

changes in the values of claims that have been reported to us but are not yet settled

The reserve for IBNR is estimated by management for each line of business based on various factors

including underwriters expectations about loss experience actuarial analysis comparisons
with the results of

industry benchmarks and loss experience to date The Companys actuaries employ generally accepted actuarial

methodologies to determine estimated ultimate loss reserves The adequacy of the reserves is re-evaluated

quarterly by the Companys actuaries At the completion of each quarterly review of the reserves reserve

analysis is prepared and reviewed with the Companys loss reserve committee This committee determines

managements best estimate for loss and loss expense reserves based upon the reserve analysis

While management believes that the reserves for OSLR and IBNR are sufficient to cover losses assumed by

the Company there can be nc assurance that losses will not deviate from the Companys reserves possibly by

material amounts The methodology of estimating loss reserves is periodically reviewed to ensure that the

assumptions made continue to be appropriate The Company recognizes any changes in its loss reserve estimates

and the related reirisurance recoverables in the consolidated income statements in the periods in which they are

determined These are recorded in net losses and loss expenses

Ceded Reinsurance

In the ordinary course of business the Company uses both treaty and facultative reinsurance to minimize its

net loss exposure to any one catastrophic loss event or to an accumulation of losses from number of smaller

events Reinsurance premiums ceded are expensed and any commissions recorded thereon are earned over the

period the reinsurarice coverage is provided in proportion to the risks to which they relate Any unearned ceding

commission is included in net deferred acquisitions costs on the consolidated balance sheets and is recorded as

reduction to the overall rtet deferred acquisition cost balance Prepaid reinsurance represents
unearned

premiums ceded to reinsurance companies Reinsurance recoverable includes the balances due from those

reinsurance companies under the terms of the Companys reinsurance agreements for unpaid losses and loss

reserves including IBNR Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are estimated in manner consistent with the

estimated claim liability associated with the reinsured policy

The Company determines the portion of the IBNR liability that will be recoverable under its reinsurance

contracts by reference to the terms of the reinsurance protection purchased This determination is necessarily

based on the estimate of IBNR and accordingly is subject to the same uncertainties as the estimate of IBNR

The Company remains liable to the extent that its reinsurers do not meet their obligations under the

reinsurance contracts therefore the Company regularly evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and

monitors concentration of credit risk
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Investments

Investments in fixed-maturity securities are classified as either trading or available for sale Investments in

equity securities are classified as trading Trading securities are carried at fair value with any change in

unrealized gains or losses recognized in the consolidated income statements and included in net realized

investment gains Available for sale securities are carried at fair value with any change in unrealized gains or

losses included as separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income on the consolidated

balance sheets

As permitted under the transitional provisions of Accounting Standards Update ASU 20 10-1

Derivatives and Hedging Scope Exception Related to Embedded Credit Derivatives ASU 20 10-1

effective July 2010 the Company elected the fair value option for any investment in beneficial interest in

securitized asset As result the Company elected the fair value option for all of its mortgage-backed and asset-

backed securities held as of June 30 2010 On July 2010 the Company reclassified net unrealized gains of

$41889 from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings As result of the fair value

election any change in fair value of the mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities is recognized in net
realized investment gains on the consolidated income statement

Also included in the Companys trading securities are to-be-announced mortgage-backed securities fixed

maturity investments that the Company accounts for as derivatives in accordance with U.S GAAP As result

these securities are included in fixed maturity investments trading at fair value on the consolidated balance

sheets and
any change in unrealized gains or losses is recognized in the consolidated income statements and

included in net realized investment gains

Other invested assets consist primarily of investments in hedge funds and private equity funds which have

been accounted for as trading securities In addition included in the Companys other invested assets are various

investments which are accounted for using the equity method of accounting Generally the Company uses the

equity method where it does not have controlling interest and is not the primary beneficiary Equity method

investments are recorded at cost and adjusted for the Companys proportionate share of earnings or losses Other

investments are recorded based on valuation techniques depending on the nature of the individual assets The

Companys share of distributed and undistributed net income from equity method investments is included in net

investment income

At each measurement date the Company estimates the fair value of the financial instruments using various

valuation techniques The Company utilizes to the extent available quoted market prices in active markets or

observable market inputs in estimating the fair value of financial instruments When quoted market prices or

observable market inputs are not available the Company may utilize valuation techniques that rely on

unobservable inputs to estimate the fair value of financial instruments The Company bases its determination of

whether market is active or inactive on the spread between what seller is asking for security and what

buyer is bidding for that security Spreads that are significantly above historical spreads are considered inactive

markets The Company also considers the volume of trading activity in the determination of whether market is

active or inactive

The Company utilizes independent pricing sources to obtain market quotations for securities that have

quoted prices in active markets In general the independent pricing sources use observable market inputs

including but not limited to investment yields credit risks and spreads benchmarking of like securities reported

trades and sector groupings to determine the fair value For majority of the portfolio the Company obtained

two or more prices per security as of December 2012 When multiple prices are obtained price source

hierarchy is utilized to determine which price source is the best estimate of the fair value of the security The

price source hierarchy emphasizes more weighting to significant observable inputs such as index pricing and less

weighting towards non-binding broker-dealer quotes In addition to validate all prices obtained from these

pricing sources including non-binding broker-dealer quotes the Company also obtains prices from its investment
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCiAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

portfolio managers and other sources e.g. another pricing vendor and compares the prices obtained from the

independent pricing sources to those obtained from the Companys investment portfolio managers and other

sources The Company investigates any material differences between the multiple sources and determines which

price best reflects the fair value of the individual security There were no material differences between the prices

obtained from the independeni pricing sources and the prices obtained from the Companys investment portfolio

managers and other sources as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Investments are recorded on trade date basis Investment income is recognized when earned and includes

the accrual of discount or amortization of premium on fixed maturity investments using the effective yield

method and is net of related expenses Interest income for debt securities where the Company has elected the fair

value option is accrued and recognized based on the contractual terms of the debt securities and is included in

net investment income in the consolidated income statements Realized gains and losses on the disposition of

investments which are based upon the first-in first-out method of identification are included in net realized

investment gains in the consolidated income statements For mortgage-backed and asset-backed securities and

any other holdings for which there is prepayment risk prepayment assumptions are evaluated and revised on

regular basis Revised prepayment assumptions are applied to securities on retrospective basis to the date of

acquisition The cumulative adjustments to amortized cost required due to these changes in effective yields and

maturities are recognized in net investment income in the same period as the revision of the assumptions

Variable Interest Entities

The Company is involved in the normal course of business with variable interest entities VIEs as

passive investor in certain asset-backed securities issued by third party VIEs and affiliated VIEs The Company

performs qualitative assessment at the date when it becomes initially involved in the VIE followed by ongoing

reassessments relaied to its involvement in VIEs The Companys maximum exposure to loss with respect to

these investments is limited to the investment carrying amounts reported in the Companys consolidated balance

sheets and any unftinded commitments

Other-Than-lenzporary impairments on Available for Sale Securities

The Company recognizes other-than-temporary impairments OTTI in the consolidated income

statements if the Company intends to sell the available for sale fixed maturity security or if it is more likely than

not that the Company will be required to sell the security before the recovery
of its amortized cost basis In

addition OTTI is recognized if the present value of the expected cash flows of an available for sale fixed

maturity security is less than the amortized cost basis of the security credit loss The amount of the credit loss

is recognized in the consolidated income statements and is included in net impairment charges recognized in

earnings

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into U.S dollars at the

exchange rates in effect on the balance sheet date Foreign currency revenues and expenses are translated at the

average exchange rates prevailing during the period Exchange gains and losses including those arising from

forward exchange contracts are included in the consolidated income statements The Companys functional

currency and that of its operating subsidiaries is the U.S dollar as it is the single largest currency in which the

Company and its subsidiaries transact business and hold invested assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include amounts held in banks time deposits commercial paper discount notes

and U.S Treasury Bills with maturities of less than three months from the date of purchase
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Income Taxes

Allied World Switzerland and certain of its subsidiaries operate in jurisdictions where they are subject to

income taxation Current and deferred income taxes are charged or credited to operations or to accumulated

other comprehensive income in certain cases based upon enacted tax laws and rates applicable in the relevant

jurisdiction in the period in which the tax becomes payable Deferred income taxes are provided for all temporary

differences between the bases of assets and liabilities used in the financial statements and those used in the

various jurisdictional tax returns

It is the Companys policy to recognize interest accrued related to unrecognized tax benefits in interest

expense and penalties in general and administrative expenses in the consolidated income statements The

Company has not recorded any interest or penalties during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

and the Company has not accrued any payment of interest and penalties as of December 31 2012 and 2011

Employee Stock Option Compensation Plan

The Company has an employee stock option plan in which the amount of Company shares received as

compensation through the issuance of stock options is determined by reference to the value of the shares

Compensation expense for stock options granted to employees is recorded on straight-line basis over the option

vesting period and is based on the fair value of the stock options on the grant date The fair value of each stock

option on the grant date is determined by using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model

Restricted Stock Units

The Company has granted restricted stock units RSUs to certain employees The compensation expense
for the RSUs is based on the market value of Allied World Switzerlands common shares on the grant date and is

recognized on straight-line basis over the applicable vesting period

The Company has also granted cash-equivalent RSUs to certain employees that vest on straight-line basis

over the applicable vesting period The amount payable per unit awarded will be equal to the price per share of

Allied World Switzerlands common shares and as such the Company measures the value of the award each

reporting period based on the period ending share price The effects of changes in the share price at each period

end during the service period are recognized as increases or decreases in compensation expense ratably over the

service period

Performance-Based Equity Awards

The Company has granted long-term incentive plan LTIP awards to certain key employees in order to

promote the long-term growth and profitability of the Company Each award represents the right to receive

number of common shares in the future based upon the achievement of established performance criteria during

the applicable performance period The compensation expense for these awards is based on the market value of

Allied World Switzerlands common shares on the grant date and is recognized on straight-line basis over the

applicable performance and vesting period

In addition the Company has granted performance-based RSUs that provide performance-based equity

awards to key employees in order to promote the long-term growth and profitability of the Company Each award

represents the right to receive number of common shares in the future based upon the achievement of

established performance criteria during the applicable performance period The compensation expense for these

awards is based on the market value of Allied World Switzerlands common shares on the grant date and is

recognized on straight-line basis over the applicable performance and vesting period

The Company has also granted cash-equivalent performance-based awards to certain employees that vest

based upon the achievement of established performance criteria during the applicable performance period These

cash-equivalent performance-based awards vest after three-year performance period The amount payable per
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unit awarded will equal to the price per share of Allied World Switzerlands common shares and as such the

Company measures the value of the award each reporting period based on the period ending share price The

effects of changes in the share price at each period end during the service period are recognized as changes in

compensation expense ratably over the service period

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

The Company classifies its intangible assets into three categories intangible assets with finite lives

subject to amortizalion intangible assets with indefinite lives not subject to amortization and goodwill

Intangible assets other than goodwill generally consist of trademarks renewal rights internally generated

software non-compete covenants and insurance licenses held by subsidiaries domiciled in the United States

For intangible assets with finite lives the value of the assets is amortized over their expected useful lives

and the expense is included in amortization of intangible assets in the consolidated income statements The

Company tests assets for impairment if conditions exist that indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable

if as result of the evaluation the Company determines that the value of the intangible assets is impaired then

the value of the assets will be written-down in the period in which the determination of the impairment is made

For indefinite lived intangible assets the Company does not amortize the intangible asset but evaluates and

compares the fair value of the assets to their carrying values on an annual basis or more frequently if

circumstances warrant If as result of the evaluation the Company determines that the value of the intangible

assets is impaired then the value of the assets will be written-down in the period in which the determination of

the impairment is made

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisitions over the fair value of net assets acquired and is not

amortized Goodwill is assigned at acquisition to the applicable reporting units based on the expected benefit to

be received by the reporting units from the business combination The Company determines the expected benefit

based on several ractors including the purpose of the business combination the strategy of the Company

subsequent to the business combination and structure of the acquired company subsequent to the business

combination reporting unit is component of the Companys business that has discrete financial information

that is reviewed by management In determining the reporting unit the Company analyzes the inputs processes

outputs and overall operating performance of the reporting unit The Company has determined that for purposes

of the acquisition of Darwin Professional Underwriters Inc Darwin the U.S insurance segment is the

reporting unit that is expected to receive the benefit of the business combination and as such all of the goodwill

has been allocated to this reporting unit

For goodwill the Company performs an annual impairment test or more frequently if circumstances are

warranted The Company may first assess qualitative factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that

the fair value of reporting unit is less than its carrying amount The results of the qualitative assessment will

determine if an entity needs to proceed with the two-step goodwill impairment test For the year ended

December 2012 the Company elected to bypass the qualitative assessment and performed the first step of the

goodwill inipairment test

The first step of the goodwill impairment test is to compare the fair value of the reporting unit with its

carrying value including goodwill If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value then the

second step of the goodwill impairment test is performed

The second step of the goodwill impairment test compares the implied fair value of the reporting units

goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill in order to determine the amount of impairment to be

recognized The implied fair value of goodwill is determined by deducting the fair value of reporting units

identifiable assets and liabilities from the fair value of the reporting unit as whole The excess of the carrying

value of goodwill above the implied goodwill if any would be recognized as an impairment charge in the

consolidated income statements
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Derivative Instruments

The Company utilizes derivative financial instruments as part of its overall risk management strategy The

Company recognizes all derivative financial instruments at fair value as either assets or liabilities on the

consolidated balance sheets The accounting for gains and losses associated with changes in the fair value of

derivative and the effect on the consolidated financial statements depends on its hedge designation and whether

the hedge is highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in the fair value of the asset or liability hedged

The Company uses currency forward contracts and foreign currency swaps to manage currency exposure

The Company also utilizes various derivative instruments such as interest rate futures and index options for the

purpose of managing market exposures interest rate volatility portfolio duration hedging certain investments or

enhancing investment performance These derivatives are not designated as hedges and accordingly are carried at

fair value on the consolidated balance sheets with realized and unrealized gains and losses included in the

consolidated income statements Refer to Note for the Companys related disclosure

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is defined as net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding for the period giving no effect to dilutive securities Diluted

earnings per share is defined as net income available to common shareholders divided by the weighted average

number of common and common share equivalents outstanding calculated using the treasury stock method for all

potentially dilutive securities including share warrants employee stock options employee share repurchase plan

RSUs and LTIP awards When the effect of dilutive securities would be anti-dilutive these securities are

excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share

New Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2010 the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB issued Accounting Standards Update

ASU 2010-26 Accounting for Costs Associated with Acquiring or Renewing Insurance Contracts ASU
2010-26 ASU 2010-26 clarifies what costs associated with acquiring or renewing insurance contracts can be

deferred and amortized over the coverage period Under the revised guidance of ASU 2010-26 incremental

direct costs that result directly from and are essential to the insurance contract and would not have been incurred

had the insurance contract not been written are costs that may be capitalized including costs relating to activities

specifically performed by the Company such as underwriting policy issuance and processing The Company

adopted ASU 2010-26 retrospectively on January 2012 The adoption of ASU 2010-26 did not have an impact

on consolidated shareholders equity or net income as the Company had not previously capitalized costs that did

not meet the requirement for capitalization of the revised standard

In May 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-04 Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement

and Disclosure Requirements in U.S GAAP and IFRSs ASU 2011-04 ASU 2011-04 provides consistent

meaning for the term fair value between the FASB and International Accounting Standards Board and

establishes common requirements for measuring and disclosing information related thereto The Company

adopted ASU 2011-04 prospectively on January 2012 The adoption of ASU 2011-04 did not have an impact

on consolidated shareholders equity or net income or the Companys fair value measurements Refer to Note

for the Companys related disclosures

In June 2011 the FASB issued ASU 201 1-05 Presentation of Comprehensive Income ASU 2011-05
ASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to present the components of other comprehensive income as part of the

statement of changes in shareholders equity requires consecutive presentation of the statement of net income

and other comprehensive income and requires the presentation of reclassification adjustments on the face of the

financial statements from other comprehensive income to net income In December 2011 ASU 2011-05 was

updated by ASU 2011-12 Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of
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Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income in Accounting Standards Update

No 2011 -05 ASU 2011-12 to defer the presentation requirements of reclassification adjustments required

by ASU 2011-05 The Company adopted ASU 2011-05 on January 2012 The adoption of ASU 2011-05 and

the related updates from ASU 2011-12 did not have an impact on the presentation of the financial statements

In September 2011 the FASB issued ASU 2011-08 Testing Goodwill for Impairment ASU 2011-08

ASU 2011-08 simplifies how goodwill is tested for impairment by permitting entities to assess qualitative factors

to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of reporting
unit is less than its carrying

amount The results of the qualitative assessment will determine if an entity needs to proceed with the two-step

goodwill impairment test AS1J 2011-08 is effective for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed

for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2011 The Company adopted ASU 2011-08 on January 2012

The adoption of ASU 2011-08 did not have an impact on consolidated shareholders equity or net income

In July 2012 the FASB issued ASU 2012-02 Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets for Impairment

ASU 2012-02 ASU 20 12-02 modifies both annual and interim impairment testing and allows the inclusion

of qualitative factors in the assessment of whether quantitative impairment test is necessary
When an entitys

qualitative assessment reveals that indefinite-lived intangible asset impairment is more likely than not the entity

must perform the quantitative impairment test The amendments did not change the existing accounting guidance

on how this impairment test is performed ASU 20 12-02 is effective for annual and interim impairment tests

performed for fiscal years beginning after September 15 2012 and early adoption is permitted The Company has

not elected early adoption The Company does not expect the adoption of this guidance to have an impact on its

consolidated shareholders equity or net income

INVESTMENTS

Available for Sale Securities

The amortized cost gross unrealized gains gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Companys

available for sale investments by category are as follows

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains Losses Value

December 31 2011

U.S Government and Government agencies 31309 2321 33630

States municipalities arid political subdivisions 29128 4351 33479

Corporate debi

Financial intittitions 17431 348 292 17487

Industrials 73539 4268 77807

Utilities 74990 6623 81613

Total fixed maturity investments available for sale .. $226397 $17911 $292 $244016
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Trading Securities

Securities accounted for at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in the consolidated income

statements by category are as follows

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost

U.S Government and Government

agencies $1865913 $1854198 $1278265 $1263948

Non-U.S Government and

Government agencies 261627 253657 256756 251784

States municipalities and political

subdivisions 40444 39342 133902 128633

Corporate debt

Financial institutions 866140 835587 1161904 1174308

Industrials 1153909 1139706 987006 974731

Utilities 69153 67463 105564 103262

Mortgage-backed 1958373 1877854 1818091 1797687

Asset-backed 410895 405622 513198 513638

Total fixed maturity investments

trading $6626454 $6473429 $6254686 $6207991

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Fair Value Cost Fair Value Cost

Equity securities 523949 480312 367483 356370
Other invested assets1 655888 606521 540409 529851

$1179837 $1086833 907892 886221

Includes investments in both hedge funds and private equity funds but excludes other private securities that

are accounted for using the equity method of accounting at December 31 2012

Other Invested Assets

Included in other invested assets are the Companys hedge fund and private equity investments As of the

balance sheet date the Company held interests in 25 funds with total fair value of $655888 The fair values of

these assets have been estimated using the net asset value
per share of the funds

In general the Company has invested in hedge funds that require at least 30 days notice of redemption and

may be redeemed on monthly quarterly semi-annual annual or longer basis depending on the fund Certain

hedge funds have lock-up periods ranging from one to three
years from initial investment lock-up period refers to

the initial amount of time an investor is contractually required to invest before having the ability to redeem Funds

that provide for periodic redemptions may depending on the funds governing documents have the ability to deny

or delay redemption request called gate The fund may implement this restriction because the aggregate

amount of redemption requests as of particular date exceeds specified level generally ranging from 15% to 25%
of the funds net assets The gate is method for executing an orderly redemption process to reduce the possibility

of adversely affecting investors in the fund Typically the imposition of gate delays portion of the requested

redemption with the remaining portion settled in cash sometime after the redemption date Certain funds may
impose redemption fee on early redemptions Interests in private equity funds cannot be redeemed because the

investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until termination of the fund
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Details regarding the carrying value redemption characteristics and unfunded investment commitments of

the other invested assets portfolio as of December 31 2012 were as follows

Carrying Investments Estimated Investments

Value as of with Remaining without Redemption

December 31 Redemption Restriction Redemption Redemption Notice Unfunded

Fund Type 2012 Restrictions Period Restrictions Frequency1 Period1 Commitments

Private equity prirniry

and secondary $111879 $111879 10 Years $174772

Mezzanine debt 29834 29834 Years 85850

Distressed 9296 9296 Years 5.794

Total private equity 151009 151009 266.416

Disnessed 138213 102088 -2 Years 36125 Quarterly 45-65 Days

Equity long/short 169845 169845 Quarterly 30 -60 Days

Multi-strategy 131713 131713 Quarterly 45 -90 Days

Global macro 19117 19117 Monthly Days

Event driven 45991
________

45.991 Quarterly 60 Days

Total hedge Funds 504879 102088 402791

Other private

securities 127646 127646

Fotal other invested

assets $783534 $253097 $530437 $266416

The redemption frequency and notice periods only apply to the investments without redemption restrictions

Private equity funds Primary funds may invest in companies and general partnership interests

Secondary funds buy limited partnership interests from existing limited partners of primary private equity

funds As owners of private equity funds seek liquidity they can sell their existing investments plus any

remaining commitment to secondary market participants These funds cannot be redeemed because the

investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until termination of the fund

Meizanine debt funds Mezzanine debt funds primarily focus on providing capital to upper
middle market

and middle market companies and private equity sponsors
in connection with leveraged buyouts mergers

and acquisitions recapitalizations growth financings and other corporate transactions The most common

position in the capital structure will be between the senior secured debt holder and the equity however the

funds will utilize flexible approach when structuring investments which may include secured debt

subordinated debt preferred stock and/or private equity These funds cannot be redeemed because the

investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until termination of the fund

Distressed funds In distressed debt investing managers take positions in the debt of companies

experiencing significant financial difficulties including bankruptcy or in certain positions of the capital

structure of structured securities The manager relies on the fundamental analysis of these securities

including the claims on the assets and the likely return to bondholders Certain funds cannot be redeemed

because the investments include restrictions that do not allow for redemption until termination of the fund

Equity long/short funds In equity long/short funds managers take long positions in companies they

deem to be undervalued and short positions in companies they deem to be overvalued Long/short

managers may invest in countries regions or sectors and vary by their use of leverage and by their

targeted nei long position
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Multi-strategy funds These funds may utilize many strategies employed by specialized funds including
distressed investing equity long/short merger arbitrage convertible arbitrage fixed income arbitrage and

macro trading

Global macro funds These funds focus on top-down analysis of global markets as influenced by major

political and economic trends or events Global macro managers develop investment strategies that aim to

forecast movements in interest rates fund flows political changes and other wide-ranging systematic
factors The portfolios of these funds can include long or short positions in equities fixed-income

securities currencies and commodities in the form of cash or derivatives instruments

Event driven funds Event driven strategies seek to deploy capital into specific securities whose returns

are affected by specific event that affects the value of one or more securities of company Returns for

such securities are linked primarily to the specific outcome of the events and not by the overall direction

of the bond or stock markets Examples could include
mergers and acquisitions arbitrage corporate

restructurings and spin-offs and capital structure arbitrage

Other private securities These securities include strategic non-controlling minority investments in

private asset management companies claims handling companies and other service companies related to

the insurance industry

Net In vestment Income

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Fixed maturity investments $157437 $194093 245407

Equity securities and other invested assets 23852 15088 9800

Cash and cash equivalents 2319 963 671

Expenses 16467 14196 11735

Net investment income
$167141 $195948 $244143

Includes the distributed and undistributed net income from investments accounted for using the equity

method of accounting

Components of Realized Gains and Losses

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Gross realized gains on sale of invested assets $183592 $154941 242421

Gross realized losses on sale of invested assets 51702 62169 26621
Net realized and unrealized losses on derivatives 3608 70090 3958
Mark-to-market changes

Debt securities trading 106328 8078 42172

Equity securities and other invested assets 71826 4527 29738

Gain on sale of program administrator 1860

Net realized investment gains $306436 10077 285612

Proceeds from sale of available for sale securities $236336 $646479 2703695
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Pledged Assets

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 $2141249 and $2029138 respectively of cash and cash equivalents

and investments were deposited pledged or held in trust accounts in favor of ceding companies and other

counterparties or government authorities to comply with reinsurance contract provisions and insurance laws

In addition as of December 31 2012 and 2011 further $1225155 and $1044236 respectively of cash

and cash equivalents and investments were pledged as collateral for the Companys letter of credit facilities See

Note 8d for details on the Company credit facilities

Analysis of Unrealized Losses

The following table summarizes the market value of those available for sale investments in an unrealized

loss position for periods less than and greater than 12 months

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Gross Fair Unrealized Gross Fair Unrealized

Value Loss Value Loss

Less than 12 months

Corporate debt

Financial institutions $9440 $292

Total fixed maturity investments available for sale $9440 $292

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 there were nil and three securities respectively in an unrealized loss

position

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment Charges

Following the Companys review of the securities in the investment portfolio during the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011 no securities were considered to be other-than-temporarily impaired For the year

ended December 31 2010 one mortgage-backed security was considered to be other than temporarily impaired

as the present value of the expected cash flows was lower than the amortized cost The $168 of OTT during the

year ended December 31 2010 was recognized through earnings as they were credit related losses
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DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

As of December 31 2012 and 2011 none of the Companys derivatives were designated as hedges The

following table summarizes information on the location and amounts of derivative fair values on the consolidated

balance sheets

December 31 2012 December 31 2011

Asset Asset
Liability Liability Asset Asset Liability Liability

Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative Derivative

Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair Notional Fair

Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value Amount Value

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

Put optionsl 5152 532 4461 336

Foreign exchange contracts2 127712 1713 194566 2656 91162 2030 339533 8934

Interest rate futures2 680650 977 292000 3467

Total derivatives $132864 $2245 $194566 $2656 $776273 $3343 $631533 $12401

Asset and liability derivatives relating to the put options are classified within equity securities trading at fair

value on the consolidated balance sheets

All other asset and liability derivatives are classified within other assets or accounts payable and accrued

liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets

The following table provides the net realized and unrealized losses on derivatives not designated as hedges

recorded on the consolidated income statements

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Foreign exchange contracts 749 6005 3403

Total included in foreign exchange loss 749 6005 3403

Put options 2222 4125
Foreign exchange contracts 1024 6242
Interest rate futures 362 59723

Treasury yield hedge
_______

3958

Total included in net realized investment gains 3608 70090 3958

Total realized and unrealized losses on derivatives $4357 $76095 555

Derivative Instruments Not Designated as Hedging Instruments

The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk in its investment portfolio Accordingly the fair values of

the Companys investment portfolio are partially influenced by the change in foreign exchange rates The

Company entered into foreign currency forward contracts to manage the effect of this foreign currency risk

These foreign currency hedging activities have not been designated as specific hedges for financial reporting

purposes

The Companys insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries and branches operate in various foreign countries

and consequently the Companys underwriting portfolio is exposed to foreign currency
risk The Company
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manages foreign currency risk by seeking to match liabilities under the insurance policies and reinsurance

contracts that it writes and that are payable in foreign currencies with cash and investments that are denominated

in such currencies When necessary the Company may also use derivatives to economically hedge un-matched

foreign currency exposures specifically forward contracts and currency options

The Company also purchases and sells interest rate future contracts to actively manage the duration and

yield curve positioning of its fixed income portfolio Interest rate futures can efficiently increase or decrease the

overall duration of the portfolio Additionally interest rate future contracts can be utilized to obtain the desired

position along the yield curve in order to protect against certain future yield curve shapes

The Company also purchases options to actively manage the Companys equity portfolio

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

In accordance with U.S GAAP fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date There is

three-level valuation hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements The valuation hierarchy is based

upon whether the inputs to the valuation of an asset or liability are observable or unobservable in the market at

the measurement date with quoted market prices being the highest level Level and unobservable inputs being

the lowest level Level fair value measurement will fall within the level of the hierarchy based on the input

that is significant to determining such measurement The three levels are defined as follows

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology that are quoted prices unadjusted for

identical assets or liabillities in active markets

Level Observable inputs to the valuation methodology other than quoted market prices unadjusted

for identical assets or liabilities in active markets Level inputs include quoted prices for similar assets

and liabilities in active markets quoted prices for identical assets in markets that are not active and inputs

other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability either directly or indirectly for

suhstantiall the full term of the asset or liability

Level Inputs to the valuation methodology that are unobservable for the asset or liability
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The following table shows the fair value of the Companys financial instruments and where in the fair value

hierarchy the fair value measurements are included as of the dates indicated below

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices

in active Significant other Significant

markets for observable unobservable

Carrying Total fair identical assets inputs inputs
December 31 2012 amount value Level Level Level

Trading securities

U.S Government and Government

agencies $1865913 $1865913 $1529158 336755

Non-U.S Government and

Government agencies 261627 261627 261627

States municipalities and political

subdivisions 40444 40444 40444

Corporate debt 2089202 2089202 2089202

Mortgage-backed 1958373 1958373 1790548 167825

Asset-backed 410895 410895 348649 62246

Total trading fixed maturity

investments 6626454 6626454

Total fixed maturity investments 6626454 6626454

Equity securities 523949 523949 469269 54680
Other invested assets 655888 655888

__________ __________
655888

Total investments $7806291 $7806291 $1998427 $4867225 $940639

Derivative assets

Foreign exchange contracts 1713 1713 1713

Interest rate futures

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange contracts 2656 2656 2656

Interest rate futures

Senior notes 798215 918627 918627

Excludes assets that the Company did not measure at fair value related to the Companys investments that are

accounted for using the equity method of accounting

Asset and liability derivatives relating to foreign exchange contracts and interest rate futures are classified

within other assets or accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets
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Fair value measurement using

lecember 31 2011
_____________ _____________ _______________

Available for sale securities

U.S Government and Government

agencies

States municipalities and political

subdivisions

Corporate debt

Total available for sale fixed maturity

investments
___________

Trading securities

U.S Government and Government

agencies

Non-U.S Government and

Government agencies

States municipalities and political

subdivisions

Corporate debt

Mortgage-hacked

Asset-backed

Total trading fixed maturity

investments
__________ __________

Total fixed maturity investments

Equity securities

Other invested assets
__________ __________ ________

Total investments
__________ __________ _________

Derivative assets

Foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate futures
___________

Derivative liabilities

Foreign exchange contracts

Interest rate futures
__________ _________

Senior notes
___________ ___________ _________

Asset and liabillLty derivatives relating to foreign exchange contracts and interest rate futures are classified

within other assets or accounts payable and accrued liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets

The following describes the valuation techniques used by the Company to determine the fair value of

financial instruments held as of the balance sheet date

33479 33479 33479

176907 176907 176907

Quoted prices

in active Significant other Significant

markets for observable unobservable

Carrying Total fair identical assets inputs inputs

amount value Level Level Level

33630 33630 33630

244016 244016

$1278265 $1278265 $1054003 224262

256756 256756 256756

133902 133902 133902

2254474 2254474 2254.474

1818091 1818091 1568887 249204

513198 513198 418.453 94745

6254686 6254686

6498702 6498702

367483 367483 367483

540409 540409 540409

$7406594 $7406594 $1455 16 $5067120 $884358

2030 2030 2030

977 977 977

8934 8934 8934

3467 3467 3467

797949 872731 872731
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Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

U.S Government and Government agencies Comprised primarily of bonds issued by the U.S Treasury
the Federal Home Loan Bank the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation and the Federal National Mortgage
Association The fair values of the Companys U.S government securities are based on quoted market prices in

active markets and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy The Company believes the market for U.S

Treasury securities is an actively traded market given the high level of daily trading volume The fair values of

lJ.S government agency securities are priced using the spread above the risk-free yield curve As the yields for

the risk-free yield curve and the spreads for these securities are observable market inputs the fair values of U.S

government agency securities are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Non-U.S Government and Government agencies Comprised of fixed income obligations of non-U.S

governmental entities The fair values of these securities are based on prices obtained from international indices

and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

States municipalities and political subdivisions Comprised of fixed income obligations of U.S
domiciled state and municipality entities The fair values of these securities are based on prices obtained from the

new issue market and are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Corporate debt Comprised of bonds issued by corporations that are diversified across wide range of

issuers and industries The fair values of
corporate bonds that are short-term are priced using spread above the

London Interbank Offered Rate yield curve and the fair value of corporate bonds that are long-term are priced

using the spread above the risk-free yield curve The spreads are sourced from broker-dealers trade prices and

the new issue market As the significant inputs used to price corporate bonds are observable market inputs the

fair values of corporate bonds are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Mortgage-backed Primarily comprised of residential and commercial mortgages originated by both U.S

government agencies such as the Federal National Mortgage Association and non-U.S government agencies

The fair values of mortgage-backed securities originated by U.S government agencies and non-U.S government

agencies are based on pricing model that incorporates prepayment speeds and spreads to determine appropriate

average life of mortgage-backed securities The spreads are sourced from broker-dealers trade prices and the

new issue market As the significant inputs used to price the mortgage-backed securities are observable market

inputs the fair values of these securities are included in the Level fair value hierarchy unless the significant

inputs used to price the mortgage-backed securities are broker-dealer quotes and the Company is not able to

determine if those quotes are based on observable market inputs in which case the fair value is included in the

Level hierarchy

Asset-backed Principally comprised of bonds backed by pools of automobile loan receivables home

equity loans credit card receivables and collateralized loan obligations originated by variety of financial

institutions The fair values of asset-backed securities are priced using prepayment speed and spread inputs that

are sourced from the new issue market or broker-dealer quotes As the significant inputs used to price the asset-

backed securities are observable market inputs the fair values of these securities are included in the Level fair

value hierarchy unless the significant inputs used to price the asset-backed securities are broker-dealer quotes

and the Company is not able to determine if those quotes are based on observable market inputs in which case

the fair value is included in the Level hierarchy

Equity securities Comprised of U.S and foreign common and preferred stocks and mutual funds Equities

are generally included in the Level fair value hierarchy as prices are obtained from market exchanges in active

markets Foreign mutual funds where the net asset value is not provided on daily basis are included in the Level

fair value hierarchy
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Other invested assets Comprised of funds invested in range of diversified strategies In accordance with

U.S GAAP the fair values of the funds are based on the net asset value of the funds as reported by the fund

manager that the Company believes is an unobservable input and as such the fair values of those funds are

included in the Level fair value hierarchy The Company does not measure its investments that are accounted

for using the equity method of accounting at fair value

Derivative instruments The fair value of foreign exchange contracts and interest rate futures are priced

from quoted market prices for similar exchange-traded derivatives and pricing valuation models that utilize

independent market data inputs The fair value of derivatives are included in the Level fair value hierarchy

Senior notes The fair value of the senior notes is based on reported trades The fair value of the senior

notes is included in te Level fair value hierarchy

The Company measures the fair value of certain assets on non-recurring basis generally quarterly

annually or when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be

recoverable These assets include investments accounted for using the equity method goodwill and intangible

assets The Company uses variety of techniques to measure the fair value of these assets when appropriate as

described below

Investments accounted for using the equity method When the Company determines that the carrying

value of these asseLs may not be recoverable the Company records the assets at fair value with the loss

recognized in income In such cases the Company measures the fair value of these assets using the techniques

discussed above

Goodwill and Intangible Assets The Company tests goodwill and intangible assets for impairment

whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable but at

least annually for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles When the Company determines that goodwill and

indefinite-lived intangible assets may be impaired the Company uses techniques including discounted expected

future cash flows and market multiple models to measure fair value

F-24



ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

The following is reconciliation of the beginning and ending balance of financial instruments using

significant unobservable inputs Level

Fair value measurement using significant

unobservable inputs Level

Other invested Mortgage-
assets backed Asset-backed Equities

Year Ended December 31 2012

Opening balance 540409 249204 94745

Realized and unrealized gains included in net

income 37109 11027 1897 4680

Purchases 207509 106322 26885 50000

Sales 129139 174664 75774

Transfers into Level from Level 11716 22950

Transfers out of Level into Level 21 35780 8457

Ending balance 655888 167825 62246 $54680

Year Ended December 31 2011

Opening balance 347632 $172559 $48707

Realized and unrealized losses included in net

income 3620 2131 362
Purchases 311185 101302 24056

Sales 114788 44549 3204
Transfers into Level from Level 63717 30536

Transfers out of Level into Level 41694 4988

Ending balance 540409 249204 94745

Transfers out of Level are primarily attributable to the availability of market observable information

Of the total realized and unrealized gains included in net income for the year ended December 31 2012

$42788 $1010 $2400 and $4680 related to other invested assets asset-backed securities mortgage-backed

securities and equities respectively for securities still held as of December 31 2012 Of the total realized and

unrealized losses included in net income for the year ended December 31 2011 $5302 $353 and $2902 related

to other invested assets asset-backed securities and mortgage-backed securities respectively for securities still

held as of December 31 2011

The Company attempts to verify the significant inputs used by broker-dealers in determining the fair value

of the securities priced by them If the Company could not obtain sufficient information to determine if the

broker-dealers were using significant observable inputs such securities have been transferred to the Level fair

value hierarchy The Company believes the prices obtained from the broker-dealers are the best estimate of fair

value of the securities being priced as the broker-dealers are typically involved in the initial pricing of the

security and the Company has compared the price per the broker-dealer to other pricing sources and noted no

material differences The Company recognizes transfers between levels at the end of the reporting period There

were no transfers between Level and Level during the period
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The Companys external investment accounting service provider receives prices from internationally

recognized iridependcnt pricing services to measure the fair values of its fixed maturity investments Pricing

sources are evaluated and selecled in manner to ensure that the most reliable sources are used The independent

pricing sources obtain market quotations and actual transaction prices for securities that have quoted prices in

active markets Each pricing service has its own proprietary method for determining the fair value of securities

that are not actively traded general these methods involve the use of matrix pricing in which the

independent pricing service uses observable market inputs including but not limited to reported trades

benchmark yields broker-dealer quotes interest rates prepayment speeds default rates and such other inputs as

are available from market sources to determine reasonable fair value

All of the Companys securities classified as Level other than investments in other invested assets are

valued based on unadjusted broker-dealer quotes This includes less liquid securities such as lower quality asset-

backed securities commercial mortgage-backed securities and residential mortgage-backed securities The

primary valuation inputs include monthly payment information the probability of default loss severity rates and

estimated prepaymeit rates Significant changes in these inputs in isolation would result in significantly lower

or higher fair value measurenient In general change in the assumption of the probability of default is

accompanied by dLrectionally similar change in the assumption used for the loss severity in an event of default

and prepayment rates

The Company records the unadjusted price provided and validates this price through process that includes

but is not limited to monthly and/or quarterly comparison of prices between two independent sources with

significant differences requiring additional price sources ii quantitative analysis e.g comparing the quarterly

return for each managed portfolio to their target benchmark with significant differences identified and

investigated iiievaluation ol methodologies used by external parties to calculate fair value including review

of the inputs used for pricing iv comparing the price to the Companys knowledge of the current investment

market and back-testing which includes randomly selecting purchased or sold securities and comparing the

executed prices to the fair value estimates from the pricing service In addition to internal controls management

relies on the effectiveness of the valuation controls in place at the Companys external investment accounting

service provider supported by Statement on Standards for Attestation Engagements No 16 report in

conj unction with regular discussion and analysis of the investment portfolios structure and performance

RESERVE FOR LOSSES AND LOSS EXPENSES

The reserve for losses and loss expenses consists of the following

1ecember 31

2012 2011

Outstanding loss reserves $1539.1 14 $l366.466

Reserves for losses incurred but not reported 4106.435 3858677

Reserve for losses and loss expenses $5645549 $5225143
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The table below is reconciliation of the beginning and ending liability for unpaid losses and loss expenses

Losses incurred and paid are reflected net of reinsurance recoverables

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Gross liability at beginning of year 5225143 $4879188 $4761772

Reinsurance recoverable at beginning of year 1002919 927588 919991

Net liability at beginning of year 4222224 3951600 3841781

Net losses incurred related to

Commutation of variable-rated reinsurance contracts 11529 8864

Current year 1309613 1201155 1012374

Prior
years 170349 253528 313355

Total incurred 1139264 959156 707883

Net paid losses related to

Currentyear 117123 142162 98646

Prior years 743844 542649 498084

Total paid 860967 684811 596730

Foreign exchange revaluation 3918 3721 1334

Net liability at end of year 4504439 4222224 3951600
Reinsurance recoverable at end of year 1141110 1002919 927588

Gross liability at end of year 5645549 $5225143 $4879188

The commutation of variable-rated reinsurance contracts represents the reduction of ceded IBNR on

commutation

For the
year ended December 31 2012 the Company had net favorable reserve development in each of its

segments due to actual loss emergence being lower than initially expected The majority of the net favorable

reserve development was recognized in the international insurance segment in the 2006 through 2008 loss years

related to the general casualty professional liability and healthcare lines of business

For the year ended December 31 2011 the Company had net favorable reserve development in each of its

segments due to actual loss emergence being lower than initially expected The majority of the net favorable

reserve development was recognized in the international insurance and reinsurance segments in the 2005 through

2007 loss years related to the general casualty and professional liability insurance and reinsurance lines of

business and the healthcare insurance line of business

For the year ended December 31 2010 the Company had net favorable reserve development in each of its

segments due to actual loss emergence being lower than initially expected The majority of the net favorable

reserve development was recognized in the international insurance segment in the 2004 through 2006 loss years

related to the general casualty healthcare and professional liability lines of business

While the Company has experienced favorable development in its insurance and reinsurance lines there is

no assurance that conditions and trends that have affected the development of liabilities in the past will continue

It is not appropriate to extrapolate future redundancies based on prior years development The methodology of

estimating loss reserves is periodically reviewed to ensure that the key assumptions used in the actuarial models

continue to be appropriate
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CEDED REINSURANCE

The Company purchases reinsurance to reduce its net exposure to losses Reinsurance provides for recovery

of portion of gross losses and loss expenses
from its reinsurers The Company remains liable to the extent that

its reinsurers do not meet their obligations under these agreements The Company therefore regularly evaluates

the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentration of credit risk The Company believes that as

of December 31 20 its reinsurers are able to meet and will meet all of their obligations under the agreements

No material provision has been made for unrecoverable reinsurance as of December 31 2012 and 2011 The

amount of reinsurance recoverable is as follows

2012 2011

OSLR Recoverable 234236 196484

IBNR Recoverable 906874 806435

Reinsurance recoverable $1141110 $1002919

Reinsurance recoverable on paid losses 56894 42266

For treaty reinsurance the right of offset between losses and premiums generally exists within the treaties

As result the net balance of reinsurance recoverable from or payable to the reinsurer has been included in

insurance balances receivable or reinsurance balances payable respectively on the consolidated balance

sheets

Direct assumed and ceded premiums written and earned and losses and loss expenses
incurred are as

follows

Losses and

Premiums Premiums Loss

Written Earned Expenses

Year Ended December 31 2012

Direct $1569021 $1446086 877961

Assumed 760250 743.575 513871

Ceded 491448 440763 252568

$1837823 $1748898 $1139264

Year Ended December 31 2011

Direct $1369017 $1266068 807721

Assumed 570504 557244 365990

Ceded1 405755 366320 214555

$1533766 $1456992 959156

Year Ended December 31 2010

Direct $1234204 $1221536 623585

Assumed 524193 503277 250070

Ceded2 365942 365265 165772

$1392455 $1359548 707883

Includes the impact of the commutation of prior year variable-rated excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts

which decreased ceded premiums written and earned by $12393 and increased prior year
ceded losses and

loss expenses by $1 1529
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Includes the impact of the commutation of prior year variable-rated excess-of-loss reinsurance contracts

which decreased ceded premiums written and earned by $9296 and increased prior year ceded losses and loss

expenses by $8864

Of the premiums ceded during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 approximately 48%
54% and 56% were ceded to four reinsurers respectively

The Company actively manages its reinsurance
exposures by generally selecting reinsurers having credit

rating of or higher and monitoring the overall credit quality of its reinsurers to ensure the recoverables will

be collected

December 31 2012 December 312011

A.M Best Reinsurance Percentage A.M Best Reinsurance Percentage

Rating Recoverable of Total Rating Recoverable of Total

Munich Re 165036 14.5% 114220 11.4%

Arch Re 148553 13.0% 153381 15.3%

Axis Capital 137459 12.0% 115854 11.6%

Platinum Underwriters 104536 9.2% 98993 9.9%

Odyssey Reinsurance Company 86854 7.6% 93373 9.3%

Top five reinsurers 642438 56.3% 575821 57.5%

Other reinsurers balances 498672 43.7% 427098 42.5%

Total reinsurance recoverable $1141110 100.0% $1002919 100.0%

Approximately 99% of ceded reserves were recoverable from reinsurers who had an A.M Best rating of

A- or higher as of December 31 2012 and 2011

DEBT AND FINANCING ARRANGEMENTS

Financing Structure

The following table shows the Companys financing structure

Outstanding1 Balance2

December 31 2012

2006 Senior notes due 2016 500000 $499347

2010 Senior notes due 2020 300000 298868

$1000000 Secured letter of credit facility uncommitted 907592

$450000 Secured letter of credit facility committed 108853

$1816445 $798215

December 31 2011

2006 Senior notes due 2016 500000 $499194

2010 Senior notes due 2020 300000 298755

$900000 Secured letter of credit facility uncommitted 675636

$400000 Secured letter of credit facility committed 141351

$400000 Unsecured letter of credit facility committed

$1616987 $797949

Indicates utilization of commitment amount not drawn borrowings

Represents the principal amount borrowed net of unamortized discount
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2006 Senior Notes Due 2016

In 2006 Allied World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd Allied World Bermuda issued $500000

aggregate principal amount of 7.50% Senior Notes due August 2016 the 2006 Senior Notes with interest

payable semi-annually commencing on February 2007 The 2006 Senior Notes are Allied World Bermudas

unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all existing and future

unsecured and unsuhordinated indebtedness The 2006 Senior Notes can be redeemed by Allied World Bermuda

prior to maturity subject to payment of make-whole premium Allied World Bermuda has no current

expectations of redeeming the notes prior to maturity The 2006 Senior Notes include covenants and events of

default that are usual and customary but do not contain any
financial covenants

2010 Senior Notes Due 2020

In November 2010 Allied World Bermuda issued $300000 aggregate principal amount of 5.50% Senior

Notes due November 15 2020 the 2010 Senior Notes with interest on the notes payable semi-annually

commencing on May 15 2011 The 2010 Senior Notes are Allied World Bermudas unsecured and

unsubordinated obligations and rank equally in right of payment with all existing and future unsecured and

unsubordinated indebtedness Allied World Bermuda may redeem the 2010 Senior Notes at any time or from

time to time in whole or in part at redemption price equal to the greater of the principal amount of the

2010 Senior Notes to be redeemed or make-whole price plus accrued and unpaid interest Allied World

Bermuda has no current expectations of redeeming the notes prior to maturity The 2010 Senior Notes include

covenants and events of default that are usual and customary but do not contain any
financial covenants

Credit Facilities

In the normal course of its operations the Company enters into agreements with financial institutions to

obtain secured and unsecured credit facilities

Allied World Bermuda has collateralized amended letter of credit facility with Citibank Europe plc that

has been and will continue to be used to issue standby letters of credit The maximum aggregate amount

available under this credit facility as of December 31 2012 is $1000000 2011 $900000 on an uncommitted

basis

On November 27 2007 Allied World Bermuda entered into an $800000 five-year senior credit facility the

Credit Facility with syndication of lenders The Credit Facility consisted of $400000 secured letter of

credit facility for the issuance of standby letters of credit the Secured Facility and $400000 unsecured

facility for the making of revolving loans and for the issuance of standby letters of credit the Unsecured

Facility

On June 2012 Allied World Bermuda amended the Secured Facility The amended $450000 four-year

secured credit facility the Amended Secured Credit Facility is primarily used for the issuance of standby

letters of credit to support obligations in connection with the insurance and reinsurance business of Allied World

Bermuda and its subsidiaries portion of the facility may also be used for revolving loans for general corporate

and working capital purposes up to maximum of $150000 Allied World Bermuda may request that existing

lenders under the Amended Secured Credit Facility make additional commitments from time to time up to

$150000 subject to approval by the lenders The Amended Secured Credit Facility contains representations

warranties and covenants customary for similar bank loan facilities including certain covenants that among

other things require the Company to maintain certain leverage ratio and financial strength rating

On June 2012 upon entering into the Amended Secured Credit Facility Allied World Bermuda

terminated the Unsecured Facility
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Debt Maturities

The following table reflects the Companys debt maturities

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018 and thereafter

Total

Amount

500000

300000

$800000

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table shows the Companys goodwill and intangible assets at December 31 2012 and 2011

Indefinite-Lived

Intangible

Assets

Net Carrying
Value

$23920

23920

________
$23920

_______ ________ _______

Goodwill Finite-Lived Intangible Assets

Net Carrying Gross Carrying Accumulated Net Carrying
Value1

______________
Value2 Amortization Value

Balance at January 2011 $268376 $41334 8378 $32956

Amortization of intangible assets 2978 2978

Balance at December 31 2011 268376 41334 11356 29978

Amortization of intangible assets 2533 2533

Balance at December 31 2012 $268376 ______ $41334 $13889 $27445

Net of accumulated impairment charges of $156 that occurred prior to January 2011

Net of accumulated impairment charges of $6866 that occurred prior to January 2011

Goodwill of $264615 is allocated to the U.S insurance segment while the remainder is allocated to the

reinsurance segment The impairment reviews for goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles did not result in the

recognition of impairment losses for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

The finite-lived intangible assets will be amortized over an expected remaining useful life of 10.8 years The

estimated amortization
expense for each of the five succeeding fiscal

years and thereafter related to the

Companys finite-lived intangible assets is as follows

Amount

2013 2533

2014 2533

2015 2533

2016 2533

2017 2533

2018 and thereafter 14780

lotal $27445
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10 INCOME TAXES

Under Swiss law resident company is subject to income tax at the federal cantonal and communal levels

that is levied on net income Income attributable to permanent establishments or real estate located abroad is

excluded from the Swiss tax base Allied World Switzerland is holding company and therefore is exempt from

cantonal and communal income tax As result Allied World Switzerland is subject to Swiss income tax only at

the federal level Allied World Switzerland is resident of the Canton of Zug and as such is subject to an annual

cantonal and communal capital tax on the taxable equity of Allied World Switzerland in Switzerland Allied

World Switzerland has Swiss operating company resident in the Canton of Zug The operating company is

subject to federal cantonal andL communal income tax and to annual cantonal and communal capital tax

Under current Bermuda law Allied World Bermuda and its Bermuda subsidiaries are not required to pay

taxes in Bermuda on either income or capital gains Allied World Bermuda and Allied World Assurance

Company Ltd have received an assurance from the Bermuda Minister of Finance under the Exempted

Undertakings Tax Protection Act 1966 of Bermuda that in the event of any such taxes being imposed Allied

World Bermuda and Allied World Assurance Company Ltd will be exempted until March 2035

Certain subsidiaries of Allied World Switzerland file U.S federal income tax returns and various U.S state

income tax returns as well as income tax returns in the United Kingdom Ireland Switzerland Hong Kong and

Singapore The Company has open tax years
that are potentially subject to examinations by local tax authorities

in the following major tax jurisdictions the U.S 2009 to 2012 the United Kingdom 2011 and 2012 Ireland

2008 to 2012 Switzerland 2011 and 2012 Hong Kong 2009 to 2012 and Singapore 2010 to 2012 To the best

of the Companys knowledge there are no examinations pending by any tax authority

Management has deemed all material tax positions to have greater than 50% likelihood of being sustained

based on technical merits if challenged The Company does not expect any material unrecognized tax benefits

within 12 months of December 31 2012

The components of income tax expense are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Current income tax expense $18239 $30851 $14560

Deferred income tax expense
201 129 12385

Income tax expense $18440 $30980 $26945

Our income is primarily sourced from our Bermuda U.S and European operations The income before

income taxes for these operations are as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Non-U.S $474412 $242353 $615866

United States 37035 63175 76084

Income before income taxes $511447 $305528 $691950
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Deferred income taxes reflect the tax impact of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities for financial reporting and income tax purposes The significant components of the net

deferred tax assets are as follows

December 31

2012 2011

Deferred tax assets

Reserve for losses and loss expenses 22843 20580

Equity compensation 13012 15920

Unearned premium 12688 11382

Deferred acquisition costs 10843 8506

Other-than-temporary impairments 408 506

Mark-to-market on securities acquired 114 80

Total deferred tax assets 59908 56974

Deferred tax liabilities

Intangible assets 15629 16500

Realized gains 11372 6317

Depreciation 3509 4391
Unrealized appreciation and timing differences on investments 293 3135
Market discount on bonds 727 1032
Other 2798 2953

Total deferred tax liabilities 34328 34328

Net deferred tax assets 25580 22646

Management believes it is more likely than not that the tax benefit of the net deferred tax assets will be

realized

Current tax receivable and payable has been included in other assets and accounts payable and accrued

liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets respectively Current taxes receivable or payable was as follows

December 31

2012 2011

Current tax receivable $14642 $6287

Current tax payable 8731 $8856
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The expected tax provision has been calculated using the pre-tax accounting income in each jurisdiction

multiplied by that jurisdictions applicable statutory tax rate The reconciliation between the Companys effective

tax rate on pretax accounting ncunie and the expected tax rate is as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Expected tax rite 7.8% 7.8% 7.8%

lnconie not subject to income tax 7.3% 3.4% 7.8%

Foreign taxes at local expected tax rates 1% 6.0% 3.7%

Loss on sale of subsidiary 0.0% 0.0% 0.3%

Disallowed expenses and capital allowances 0.7% 0.1% 0.1%

Prior year refunds and adjustments 0.4% 0.6% 0.6%

Other 1% 12% 02%

Effective tax rate 6% 111% 3.9%

11 SHAREHOLDERS EQEJ ITY

Authorized shares

The issued share capital consists of the following

1ecember 31

2012 2011

Common shares issued and fully paid 2012 CHF 12.64 per share

2011 CHF 14.03 per share 36369868 40003642

Share capital in end of
year $454980 557153

2012

Shares issued at beginning of year 40003642

Shares cancelled 3633774

lotal shaies issued at eiìd of year 36369868

Treasury shares issued at beginning of year 2261511

Shares repurchased 3655.959

Shares issued out of treasury 711609

Shares cancelled 3633774

lotal treasury shares at end of year 1572087

Total shares oLttstandi ng at end of year 3479778

As ot lecemher 31 2012 there were issued and outstanding 34797781 voting common shares and nil non

voting coninion shares

Effective July 30 2012 the Company cancelled 2326900 voting shares and 173100 non-voting shares

held iii treasury upon compleLilig required filing with the Swiss Commercial Register in Zug During the
year

ended lcceniber 31 2012 further 1133.774 voting shares repurchased and designated for cancellation were

construct ely retired and cane ci led
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As of December 31 2012 Allied World Switzerlands articles of association authorized its Board of

Directors to increase the share capital by maximum amount of 20% of the share capital registered in the

commercial register up to CHF 94809 or 7500728 voting shares and create conditional capital of 5200000

voting shares

Redomestication

On December 2010 Allied World Switzerland and Allied World Bermuda entered into contribution-in-

kind agreement to effect the redomestication to Switzerland Under the terms of the contribution-in-kind

agreement all issued and outstanding voting and non-voting shares of Allied World Bermuda were cancelled and

issued to Allied World Switzerland as contribution-in-kind in exchange for which the holders of such voting

and non-voting shares immediately prior to the completion of the redomestication received the same number of

voting and non-voting shares of Allied World Switzerland As result of the contribution-in-kind and the

resulting par value changing from $0.03 to CHF 15.00 the share capital balance was increased to CHF 600055

with an equal reduction in additional paid-in capital At the time of contribution-in-kind the exchange rate

between the U.S Dollar and Swiss Franc was one-for-one

As required under Swiss law the Company cannot hold more than 10% of its registered capital in treasury

shares unless it receives shareholder approval to do so As result immediately prior to the redomestication the

Company cancelled 10879106 shares held in treasury with related reduction to additional paid in capital of

$561851

Share Warrants

In conjunction with the private placement offering at the formation of Allied World Bermuda Allied World

Bermuda granted warrant agreements to certain founding shareholders to acquire up to 5500000 common shares

at an exercise price of $34.20 per share These warrants were exercisable in certain limited conditions including

public offering of common shares All warrants granted were repurchased by the Company as follows

GS Capital Partners

and Other American

The Chubb Investment International

Corporation Funds1 Group Inc

Date of repurchase August 2010 November 2010 February 2011

Number of warrants repurchased 2000000 1500000 2000000

Totalcostofwarrantsrepurchased 32819 37197 53620

Affiliates of The Goldman Sachs Group Inc Goldman Sachs

Dividends

As holding company Allied World Switzerlands principal source of income is dividends or other sources

of permitted payments from its subsidiaries These funds provide the cash flow required for dividend payments to

the Companys shareholders The ability of our insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries to make dividend

payments is limited by the applicable laws and regulations of the various states and countries in which they

operate

The Companys primary restrictions on net assets of subsidiaries consist of regulatory requirements placed

upon the regulated insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries to hold minimum amounts of total statutory capital and

surplus and there were no other material restrictions on net assets in place as of December 31 2012

Under Swiss law distributions to shareholders may be paid only if the Company has sufficient distributable

profits from previous fiscal years or if the Company has freely distributable reserves each as presented on the
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audited stand-alone statutory balance sheet Distributions to shareholders out of the share and participation

capital may be made by way of capital reduction in the form of reduction to par value to achieve similar

result as the payment of dividend Under Swiss law if the Companys general capital reserves amount to less

than 209k of the share and participation capital recorded in the Swiss Commercial Register then at least 5% of

the Companys anrual profit must be retained as general reserves

The Company paid the following dividends during the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010

Partial

Par Value Dividend Total

Reduction Per Amount

tividend Paid Per Share Share Paid

December 18 20 121 CHF 0.34 0.375 13010

September 25 20 121 CHF 0.35 0.375 13324

August 620121 CHF 0.36 0.375 13394

April 20122 CHF 0.34 0.375 13795

January 6.20122 CHF 0.35 0.375 14302

October 20112 CHF 0.32 0.375 14305

August 20112 CHF 0.30 0.375 14295

November 26 20103 N/A 0.450 18938

September 201 N/A 0.200 8665

June It 2010 N/A 0.200 10017

April 12010 N/A 0.200 10092

On May 2012 the shareholders approved the Companys proposal to pay cash dividends in the form of

distribution by way of par value reductions The aggregate reduction amount is expected to be paid to

shareholders in four installments of $0375 per share with the final installment to be paid in March 2013

On May 2011 the shareholders approved the Companys proposal to pay cash dividends in the form of

distribution by way of par value reductions The aggregate reduction amount was paid to shareholders in

quarterly installments of $0375 per share with the last of such quarterly dividend payments being made on

April 2012

Includes special dividend of $0.25 per common share related to our redomestication to Switzerland

Share Repurchases

In May 2012 the Company established new share repurchase program in order to repurchase up to

$500000 of its common shares Repurchases may be effected from time to time through open market purchases

privately negotiated transactions tender offers or otherwise The timing form and amount of the share

repurchases under the program
will depend on variety of factors including market conditions the Companys

capital position legal requirements and other factors Under the terms of this new share repurchase program

common shares repurchased shall be designated for cancellation at acquisition and shall be cancelled upon

shareholder approval

Shares repurchased by the Company and not designated for cancellation are classified as Treasury shares

at costS on the consolidated balance sheets The Company will issue shares out of treasury principally related to

the Companys employee benefit plans Shares repurchased and designated for cancellation are constructively

retired and recorded as share cancellation
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The Companys share repurchases were as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Common shares repurchased 3655959 1419163 4651279

Total cost of shares repurchased 263942 86700 239127

Average price per share 72.20 61.09 51.41

In August 2010 the Company repurchased 5000000 of its common shares from Goldman Sachs for

$250000 or $50.00 per share in privately negotiated transaction In November 2010 the Company
repurchased the remaining 3159793 common shares from Goldman Sachs for $185448 or $58.69 per share

The repurchase price per common share is based on and reflects 0.5% discount from the volume-weighted

average trading price of the Companys common shares on November 2010 These repurchases were executed

separately from the Companys share repurchase program discussed above The shares repurchased were

classified as Treasury shares at cost on the consolidated balance sheets

12 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

The Company implemented the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG 2012 Omnibus Incentive

Compensation Plan the 2012 Omnibus Plan Under the 2012 Omnibus Plan up to 1500000 common shares

may be issued subject to adjustment The 2012 Omnibus Plan provides for the grant of options intended to

qualify as incentive stock options under the Code nonqualified stock options stock appreciation rights restricted

shares RSUs deferred share units cash incentive awards performance-based compensation awards and other

equity-based and equity-related awards These awards generally vest pro rata over four years from the date of

grant except for the performance-based awards that will generally vest over three-year period based on the

achievement of certain performance conditions The exercise price of options issued are recommended by the

Compensation Committee to the Board of Directors for approval but shall not be less than the fair market value

of the common shares of Allied World Switzerland on the date the option award is granted

The Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2001 Employee Stock

Option Plan the Plan Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third Amended and Restated 2004

Stock Incentive Plan the Stock Incentive Plan and the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Third

Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan the LTIP were automatically terminated replaced and

superseded by the 2012 Omnibus Plan on May 2012 except that any outstanding awards granted under such

plans remain in effect pursuant to their terms

Employee option plan

Options under the Plan are exercisable in certain limited conditions expire after 10 years and generally vest

pro-rata over four years from the date of grant The exercise price of options issued are recommended by the

Compensation Committee to the Board of Directors for approval but shall not be less than the fair market value

of the common shares of Allied World Switzerland on the date the option award is granted

The Company values share options issued with Black-Scholes valuation model and used the following

assumptions

Year Ended December 31

2011 2010

Expected term of option 5.5 years 5.5 years

Weighted average risk-free interest rate 2.33% 2.65%

Weighted average expected volatility 1.51% 42.35%

Dividend yield 1.00% 1.25%
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Company specific information is used to determine the expected term of the option and the expected

volatility As result the expected term of the option is based on the historical terms of options granted since the

inception of the Company and the expected volatility is based on the volatility of the fair market value of Allied

World Switierlands common shares The Company estimates expected forfeitures of option awards at the date

of grant and recognizes compensation expense only for those awards that the Company expects to vest The

forfeiture assumptian is ultimately adjusted to the actual forfeiture rate

The following table sumrriarizes the activity related to options granted and exercised

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Options granted 494885 311610

Weighted average grant date fair value 18.27 17.34

Options exercised 267270 179807 304315

Total intrinsic value of options exercised 9650 4070 5888

Proceeds from option exercises 10527 6837 9598

The activity related to the Companys share options is as follows

Year Ended December 312012

Weighted

Weighted Average Aggregate

Average Contractual Intrinsic

Options Exercise Price Term Value

Outstanding at beginning of
year 1525853 45.72

Granted

Exercised 267270 $38.66

Forfeited 33315 $54.79

Expired 661 $49.82

Outstanding at end of year 1224607 47.02 6.2 years $38924

Exercisable al end of year 725903 $41.38 5.1 years $27162

As of DecemiDer 2012 there was remaining $6041 of total unrecognized compensation expense related

to unvested options granted under the Plan This expense is expected to be recognized over weighted-average

period of .3 years

Stock incentive plan

The Company has granted RSUs under the Stock Incentive Plan These RSUs vest pro-rata over four years

from the date of grant or in the fourth or fifth year
from the date of grant

Beginning in 2010 the Company granted performance-based RSUs in lieu of utilizing the LTIP The

performance-based RSUs are structured in exactly the same form as shares issued under the LTIP in terms of

vesting restrictions and achievement of established performance criteria and are accounted for consistent with the

accounting policy described in Note 21 For the performance-based RSUs granted in 2012 2011 and 2010 the

Company anticipates that the performance goals are likely to be achieved Based on the performance goals the

performance-based RSUs granted in 2012 2011 and 2010 are expensed at 100% of the fair market value of

Allied World Switzerlands common shares on the date of grant The
expense

is recognized over the performance

period
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The compensation expense for the RSUs is based on the fair market value of Allied World Switzerlands

common shares at the date of grant The Company estimates expected forfeitures of RSUs at the date of grant and

recognizes compensation expense only for those awards that the Company expects to vest The forfeiture

assumption is ultimately adjusted to the actual forfeiture rate

The activity related to the Companys RSUs and performance-based equity awards is as follows

Year Ended December 31 2012

RSUs and Weighted
Performance- Average Aggregate

based Grant Date Intrinsic

Equity Awards Fair Value Value

Outstanding at beginning of year 653136 47.23

RSUs granted 37201 63.04

RSUs forfeited 3463 55.65

RSUs fully vested 147866 40.54

Performance-based equity awards granted 94169 66.88

Performance-based equity awards forfeited 11388 12.13

Performance-based equity awards fully vested 44027 31.38

Outstanding at end of year 577762 52.56 $45528

The RSUs and performance-based equity awards vested in 2012 2011 and 2010 had aggregate intrinsic

values of $13947 $19732 and $17302 at the time of vesting respectively

As of December 31 2012 there was remaining $3565 of total unrecognized compensation expense related

to 135123 unvested RSUs awarded This
expense

is expected to be recognized over weighted-average period

of 1.5 years As of December 31 2012 there was remaining $6334 of total unrecognized compensation expense

related to 442639 unvested performance-based equity awarded This expense is expected to be recognized over

weighted-average period of 1.6 years

Long-term incentive plan

Each award under the LTIP represents the right to receive number of common shares in the future based

upon the achievement of established performance criteria during an applicable performance period The awards

granted in 2008 generally vested after the fiscal
year ended December 31 2010 however portion of this award

vest after the fourth or fifth year from the original grant date subject to the achievement of the performance

conditions and terms of the LTIP

The compensation expense for the LTIP is based on the fair market value of the Companys conimon shares

at the time of grant In calculating the compensation expense and in the determination of share equivalents for the

purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share it is estimated for the LTIP awards granted in 2009 and 2008

that the maximum performance goals as set by the LTIP are likely to be achieved over the performance period

Based on the performance goals the LTIP awards granted in 2009 and 2008 are expensed at 150% of the fair

market value of Allied World Switzerlands common shares on the date of grant The
expense is recognized over

the performance period

As part of the acquisition of Darwin the Company assumed Darwins Long-Term Incentive Plan Darwin
LTIP that it had implemented for certain of its key employees The Darwin LTIP was intended to produce

payouts consistent with long-term profitability Accordingly the right of offset exists where in the event that any

year produces negative underwriting result this negative amount would be offset against credits available under

F-39



ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

the profit pool established for another year This offset can be applied against any of the unpaid year
balances

whether prior or subsequent to the year in question Interests in the Darwin LTIP vest over four-year period

The payments due are made in increments over the fourth fifth and sixth years
The Darwin LTIP is in run-off

and any awards after 2008 to former participants
in the Darwin LTIP are being granted under Allied World

Switzerlands stock plans

The activity related to the Companys LTIP awards is as follows

Year Ended December 31 2012

Weighted

Average
Grant Aggregate

Date Fair Intrinsic

LTIP Value Value

Outstanding ILTIP awards at beginning of year
324036 39.78

Additional LTIP awards granted due to achievement of

performance
criteria 147574 39.44

fully vested 442721 39.44

Outstanding ILTIP at end of year
28889 43.27 $2276

As of December 31 2012 there was remaining $0 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to

unvested LTIP aards

Cash-equivalent stock awards

Since 2009 as part of the Companys annual year-end compensation awards the Company granted both

stock-based awards and cash-equivalent stock awards The cash-equivalent awards were granted to employees

who received RSU and performance-based awards and were granted in lieu of granting the full award as stock-

based award The cash-equivalent RSU awards vest pro-rata over four years from the date of grant The cash-

equivalent performance-based awards vest after three-year performance period As the cash-equivalent awards

are settled in cash the Company establishes liability equal to the product of the fair market value of Allied

World Switzerlands common shares as of the end of the reporting period and the total awards outstanding At

December 31 2012 the liability was $36454 The liability is included in accounts payable and accrued

expenses in the balance sheets and changes in the liability are recorded in general and administrative expenses

in the consolidated income statements

Total Stock Related Compensation Expense

The following table shows the total stock related compensation expense relating to the stock options RSUs

LTIP and cash equivalent awards

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Stock Options
4256 4098 2953

RSUs and performance-based equity awards 13010 13140 13473

LTIPl 376 5056 17817

Cash-equivalent stock awards 32760 20295 15132

Total $50402 $42589 $49375

Includes $2194 $3219 and $932 related to the Darwin LTIP for the
years

ended December 31 2012 2011

and 2010 respectively
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Employee Share Purchase Plan

Under the Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Amended and Restated 2008 Employee Share

Purchase Plan ESPP eligible employees of the Company may purchase common shares of the Company at

15% discount from the fair market value of one common share on the last trading day of each offering period

Employees purchase variable number of common shares through payroll deductions elected as of the beginning

of the offering period The Company may sell up to 1000000 common shares to eligible employees under the

ESPP

13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the comparison of basic and diluted earnings per share

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Basic earnings per share

Net income 493007 274548 665005

Weighted average common shares outstanding 36057145 38093351 46491279

Basic earnings per share 13.67 7.21 14.30

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Diluted earnings per share

Net income 493007 274548 665005

Weighted average common shares outstanding 36057145 38093351 46491279

Share equivalents

Warrants and options 435334 387549 1668262

RSU and LTIP awards 575755 1185764 1753395

Employee share purchase plan 1651 1241 381

Weighted average common shares and common
share equivalents outstanding diluted 37069885 39667905 49913317

Diluted earnings per share 13.30 6.92 13.32

For the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 weighted average of 226104 698672 and

452354 employee stock options and RSUs were considered anti-dilutive and were therefore excluded from the

calculation of the diluted earnings per share respectively
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14 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Concentrations of credit Risk

Credit risk arises out of the failure of counterparty to perform according to the terms of the contract

The Companys investment portfolio is managed pursuant to guidelines that follow prudent standards of

diversification The guidelines limit the allowable holdings of single issue and issuers The Company believes

that there are no significant concentrations of credit risk associated with its investment portfolio As of

December 2012 and 2011 substantially all of the Companys cash and investments were held with one

ctistodian

Insurance balances receivable primarily consist of net premiums due from insureds and reinsureds and

reinsurance funds held balances The Company believes that the counterparties to these receivables are able to

meet and will meet all of their obligations The Companys credit risk is further reduced by the contractual right

to offset loss obligations or unearned premiums against premiums receivable Consequently the Company has

not included any material allowance for doubtful accounts against the receivable balance At December 31 2012

insurance balances receivable included $322153 receivable from single counterparty for net premiums and

funds held balances

Operating Leases

The Company leases office space under operating leases expiring in various years through 2022 The

following are future minimum rental payments as of December 31 2012

Amount

2013 $11163

2014 10541

2015 8711

2016 7986

2017 7402

2018 through 2022 20078

$65881

Total rent expense
for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was $11929 $12807 and

$13750 respectively During the year ended December 31 2010 the Company terminated one of its office

leases and recognized termination fee of $1128

Producers

The three largest individual producers as percentage of gross premiums written arc as follows

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Marsh McLennan Companies Inc 25% 23% 24%

Aon Corporation including Benfield Group Ltd 19% 21% 20%

Willis Group Holdings 11% 11% 9%
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Legal Proceedings

The Company in common with the insurance industry in general is subject to litigation and arbitration in

the normal course of its business These legal proceedings generally relate to claims asserted by or against the

Company in the ordinary course of insurance or reinsurance operations Estimated amounts payable under these

proceedings are included in the reserve for losses and loss expenses in the Companys consolidated balance

sheets As of December 31 2012 the Company was not party to any material legal proceedings arising outside

the ordinary course of business that management believes will have material adverse effect on the Companys
results of operations financial position or cash flow

15 STATUTORY CAPITAL AND SURPLUS

Allied World Switzerlands ability to pay dividends is subject to certain regulatory restrictions on the

payment of dividends by its subsidiaries The payment of such dividends is limited by applicable laws and

statutory requirements of the jurisdictions in which Allied World Switzerland and its subsidiaries operate The

total amount of restricted net assets for the Companys consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31 2012 was

$2499863

The minimum required statutory capital and surplus is the amount of statutory capital and surplus necessary

to satisfy regulatory requirements based on the Companys current operations The statutory capital and surplus

and minimum required statutory capital and surplus for the Companys most significant regulatory jurisdictions

at December 31 2012 and 2011 were as follows

2012 2011

Minimum Minimum
Required Required

Statutory Statutory Statutory Statutory

Capital and Capital and Capital and Capital and

Surplus Surplus Surplus Surplus

Bermuda $3272786 $718344 $3184294 $591050

United States 1110468 173078 1054441 146284

Ireland 412480 19513 403156 22057

Switzerland 174259 19945 57195 19949

United Kingdom 224854 224531 91000 90500

There were no state-prescribed or permitted regulatory accounting practices for any of our insurance entities

that resulted in reported statutory surplus that differed from that which would have been reported under the

prescribed practices of the respective regulatory authorities including the National Association of Insurance

Commissioners Statutory accounting under the prescribed practices of the respective regulatory authorities

differs from U.S GAAP accounting in the treatment of various items including reporting of investments

acquisition costs and deferred income taxes

The statutory net income loss for the Companys most significant regulatory jurisdictions for

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 was as follows

2012 2011 2010

Bermuda $528712 $197624 $666372

United States 25390 44974 63304

Ireland 9325 14590 9378

Switzerland 10657 637 N/A

United Kingdom 1800 10320 290
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At lecemher 31 2012 the maximum amount of ordinary dividends or distributions that can be paid

without prior regulatory approval for the Companys most significant regulatory jurisdictions were as follows

2012

Bermuda $818196

United States 86849

Ireland 31260

Switzerland 8276

United Kingdom

Bermuda

The Companys Bermuda subsidiary Allied World Assurance Company Ltd is registered under the

Bermuda Insurance Act 1978 and Related Regulations as amended As Class insurer Allied World Assurance

Company Ltd is required to maintain minimum solvency standards and to hold available statutory capital and

surplus equal to or exceeding the enhanced capital requirements as determined by the Bermuda Monetary

Authority under the Bermuda Solvency Capital Requirement model BSCR model The BSCR model is risk-

based capital modl that provides method for determining an insurers minimum required capital taking into

account the risk characteristics of different aspects of the companys business In addition this subsidiary is

required to maintain minimum liquidity ratio As of December 31 2012 and 2011 this subsidiary met the

requirements

United States

The Companys U.S insurance subsidiaries are subject to the insurance laws and regulations of the states in

which they are domiciled and also states in which they are licensed or authorized to transact business These

laws also restrict the amount of dividends the subsidiaries can pay to the Company The restrictions are generally

based on statutory net income and/or certain levels of statutory surplus as determined in accordance with the

relevant statutory accounting requirements of the individual domiciliary states The U.S subsidiaries are required

to file annual statements with insurance regulatory authorities prepared on an accounting basis prescribed or

permitted by such authorities The U.S subsidiaries are also required to maintain minimum levels of solvency

and liquidity as determined by law and comply with capital requirements and licensing rules As of

December 31 2012 and 2011 the actual levels of solvency liquidity and capital of each U.S subsidiary were in

excess of the minimum levels required

Ireland

The Companys Irish insurance and reinsurance subsidiaries are regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland

pursuant to the Insurance Acts 1909 to 2000 the Central Bank and Financial Services Authority of Ireland Acts

2003 and 2004 and all statutory instruments relating to insurance made or adopted under the European

Communities Acts 1972 to 2009 the Irish Insurance Acts and Regulations These subsidiaries are required to

maintain minimum level of capital As of December 31 2012 and 2011 these subsidiaries met the

requirements The amount of dividends that these subsidiaries are permitted to distribute is restricted to

accumulated realized profits that have not been capitalized or distributed less accumulated realized losses that

have not been wrilten off The solvency and capital requirements must still be met following any distribution

Switzerland

The Companys Swiss insurance subsidiary Allied World Assurance Company AG is regulated by the

Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority FINMA pursuant to the Insurance Supervisory Law 2004 to
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2006 This subsidiarys accounts are prepared in accordance with the Swiss Code of Obligation 1911 to 2012 and

the Insurance Supervisory Law 2004 to 2006 This subsidiary is obligated to maintain minimum level of capital

based on the Swiss Code of Obligation minimum of tied assets based on the Insurance Supervisory Law and

minimum solvency margin based on the Solvency and Swiss Solvency Test regulations as stipulated by the

Insurance Supervisory Law As of December 31 2012 and 2011 this subsidiary met the requirements The

amount of dividends that this subsidiary is permitted to distribute is restricted to freely distributable reserves

which consist of retained earnings the current year profit and legal reserves to certain extent Any dividend

requires approval of the shareholders and in case of the dividend exceeding the current year profit approval is

also required from FINMA The solvency and capital requirements must still be met following any
distribution

United Kingdom

Allied World Capital Europe Limited is the sole corporate member of Syndicate 2232 Syndicate 2232 is

managed by Capita Managing Agency Limited an unaffiliated entity Capita As member of Lloyds Allied

World Capital Europe Limited is obliged to comply with Lloyds bye laws and regulations made pursuant to

the Lloyds Acts 1871 to 1982 and applicable provisions of the Financial and Services and Markets Act 2000

the FSMA The Council of Lloyds has wide discretionary powers to regulate members underwriting at

Lloyds and its exercise of these powers might affect the return on an investment of the corporate member in

given underwriting year The capital required to support Syndicates underwriting capacity referred to as

funds at Lloyds is assessed annually and is determined by Lloyds in accordance with the capital adequacy
rules established by the FSA If member of Lloyds is unable to pay its debts to policyholders such debts may
be payable from the Lloyds Central Fund which in many respects acts as an equivalent to state guaranty fund

in the United States The Company has provided capital to support the underwriting of Syndicate 2232 in the

form of letter of credit The amount which the Company provides as funds at Lloyds is not available for

distribution to the Company for the payment of dividends Lloyds is authorized by the FSA and required to

implement certain rules prescribed by the FSA under the Lloyds Act of 1982 regarding the operation of the

Lloyds market With respect to managing agents and corporate members Lloyds prescribes certain minimum

standards relating to management and control solvency and other requirements and monitors managing agents

compliance with such standards

Branch Offices

The Companys insurance subsidiaries maintain branch offices in Bermuda England Switzerland Hong

Kong Canada Singapore and Labuan As branch offices are not considered separate legal entities the required

and actual statutory capital and surplus amounts for each jurisdiction in the table above include amounts related

to the branch offices These branch offices are subject to additional minimum capital or asset requirements in

their countries of domicile At December 31 2012 and 2011 the actual capital and surplus for each of these

branches exceeded the relevant local regulatory requirements

16 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The determination of reportable segments is based on how senior management monitors the Companys

underwriting operations Management monitors the performance of its direct underwriting operations based on

the geographic location of the Companys offices the markets and customers served and the type of accounts

written The Company is currently organized into three operating segments U.S insurance international

insurance and reinsurance All product lines fall within these classifications

The U.S insurance segment includes the Companys direct specialty insurance operations in the United

States This segment provides both direct property and specialty casualty insurance primarily to non-Fortune

1000 North American domiciled accounts The international insurance segment includes the Companys direct
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insurance operations in Bermuda Europe Singapore and Hong Kong This segment provides both direct property

and casualty insurance primarily to Fortune 1000 North American domiciled accounts from the Bermuda office

and non-North American domiciled accounts from the European Singapore and Hong Kong offices The

reinsurance segment includes the Companys reinsurance operations in the U.S Bermuda Europe and Asia This

segment provides reinsurance of property general casualty professional liability specialty lines and property

catastrophe coverages
written by insurance companies The Company presently writes reinsurance on both

treaty and facultative basis targeting several niche reinsurance markets

Responsibility and accountability for the results of underwriting operations are assigned by major line of

business within each segment Because the Company does not manage its assets by segment investment income

interest expense artd total assets are not allocated to individual reportable segments General and administrative

expenses are allocated to segments based on various factors including staff count and each segments

proportional share of gross premiums written

Management measures results for each segment on the basis of the loss and loss expense ratio

acquisition cost ratio general and administrative expense ratio and the combined ratio The loss and loss

expense ratio is derived by dividing net losses and loss expenses by net premiums earned The acquisition cost

ratio is derived by dividing acquisition costs by net premiums earned The general and administrative expense

ratio is derived by dividing general and administrative expenses by net premiums earned The combined ratio

is the sum of the loss and loss expense ratio the acquisition cost ratio and the general and administrative

expense
ratio

The Illowing tables provide summary of the segment results

International

Year Ended December 31 2012 U.s Insurance Insurance Reinsurance Total

Gross premiums written 993918 575103 760250 2329271

Net premiums written 743428 346348 748047 1837823

Net premiums earned 671594 336787 740517 1748898

Net losses and loss expenses 465168 163130 510966 1139264

Acquisition costs 86670 486 119538 205722

General and administrative expenses 141729 91867 73725 307321

Underwriting loss income 21973 82276 36288 96591

Net investment income 167141

Net realized investment gains 306436

Amortization of intangible assets 2533

Interest expense
55405

Foreign exchange loss 783

Income before income taxes 11447

Loss and loss expense ratio 69.3% 48.4% 69.0% 65.1%

Acquisition cost ratio 12.9% 0.1% 16.1% 11.8%

General and administrative expense

ratio 21.1% 27.3% 10.0% 17.6%

Combined ratio 103.3% 75.6% 95.1% 94.5%
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

International

Year Ended December 31 2011 U.S insurance insurance Reinsurance Total

Gross premiums written 838567 53045 570504 $1939521

Net premiums written 639196 325094 569476 1533766

Net premiums earned 584303 317006 555683 1456992

Net losses and loss expenses 387099 206.593 365464 959156

Acquisition costs 74976 2781 95100 167295
General and administrative

expenses 124434 84290 62.932 271656

Underwriting loss income 2206 28904 32187 58885

Net investment income 195948

Net realized investment gains 10077

Other incometermination fee 101 .744

Amortization of intangible assets 2978
Interest expense 54989

Foreign exchange loss 3159

Income before income taxes 305528

Loss and loss expense ratio 66.2% 65.2% 65.8% 65.8%

Acquisition cost ratio 12.8% 0.9% 17.1% 11.5%

General and administrative expense ratio 1.3% 26.6% 11.3% 18.6%

Combined ratio 100.3% 90.9% 94.2% 95.9%

International

Year Ended December 31 2010 U.S Insurance Insurance Reinsurance Total

Gross premiums written 729267 504937 524193 $1758397

Net premiums written 551063 319083 522309 1392455

Net premiums earned 518444 338791 502313 1359548

Other income 913 913

Net losses and loss expenses 297517 160153 250213 707883

Acquisition costs 67797 460 92152 159489

General and administrative expenses 128556 9426 63775 286557

Underwriting income 25487 84872 96173 206532

Net investment income 244143

Net realized investment gains 285612

Net impairment charges recognized in earnings 168
Amortization of intangible assets 3483
Interest expense 40242

Foreign exchange loss 444

Income before income taxes 691950

Loss and loss expense ratio 57.4% 47.3% 49.8% 52.1%

Acquisition cost ratio 13.1% 0.1% 18.3% II .7%

General and administrative
expense

ratio 24.8% 27.8% 12.7% 21.1%

Combined ratio 95.3% 75.0% 80.8% 84.9%
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

The following table shows an analysis of the Companys gross premiums written by geographic location of

the Companys subsidiaries All intercompany premiums have been eliminated

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

United States $1360190 $1080134 993486

Bermuda 611382 565801 545560

Europe 228791 210435 193000

Singapore 111694 68382 17059

Hong Kong 17214 14769 9292

Total gross premiums written $2329271 $1939521 $1758397

Gross premiums written attributable to Switzerland were $43664 $37990 and $27597 for the years ended

December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

17 OTHER INCOME

In late 2011 the Company reached mutual agreement with Transatlantic Holdings Inc to terminate the

previously announced merger agreement Under the terms of the termination agreement the Company received

termination fees net of expenses of $101744 which have been included within Other income on the

consolidated income statements

18 CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED PARENT COMPANY AND GUARANTOR FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The following tables present condensed consolidating financial information as of December 31 2012 and

2011 and for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 for Allied World Switzerland the Parent

Guarantor and Allied World Bermuda the Subsidiary Issuer The Subsidiary Issuer is direct 100%-owned

subsidiary of the Parent Guarantor Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the Parent Guarantor under

the equity method for purposes of the supplemental consolidating presentation Earnings of subsidiaries are

reflected in the Parent Guarantors investment accounts and earnings The Parent Guarantor fully and

unconditionally guarantees the senior notes issued by the Subsidiary Issuer
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Insurance balances receivable

Reinsurance recoverable

Net deferred acquisition costs

Goodwill and intangible assets

Balances receivable on sale of

investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Due to from subsidiaries

Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Reserve for losses and loss expenses

Unearned premiums

Reinsurance balances payable

Balances due on purchases of

investments

Senior notes

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders

equity

7933937

681879

846900

1141110

108010

319741

418879 418879

4768769

7173

6081
_________ _________ _________

$4779001
__________ __________ __________

As of December 31 2012

ASSETS

Allied World

Bermuda

Subsidiary
Issuer

Other Allied

World

Subsidiaries

Consolidating

Adjustments

Allied World

Switzerland

Consolidated

7933937

11324 650558

846900

1141110

108010

319741

Allied World

Switzerland

Parent

Guarantor

19997

3337446

23864

1499

$3335078

31037

571910

$12022082

5645549

1218021

136264

759934

8106215

579490

$8106215 $12029946

5645549

1218021

136264

759934

798215

145628

8703611

8106215 3326335

8743

8743

3326335

798215

17727

815942

3963059

119158

7878926

4143156

$3335078 $4779001 $12022082 $8106215 $12029946

F-49



Investments

Cash and cash equivalents

Insurance balances receivable

Reinsurance recoverable

Net deferred acquisition costs

Goodwill and intangible assets

Balances receivable on sale of

investments

Investments in subsidiaries

Due to from subsidiaries

LIABILITIES

Reserve for losses and loss expenses

Unearned premiums

Reinsurance balances payable

Balances due on purchases of

investments

Senior notes

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders

equity

7406594

8886 512438

652158

1002919

100334

322274

580443

11622

415569

$11004351

5225143

1078412

124539

616728

7406594

633996

652158

1002919

100334

322274

580443

5225143

1078412

124539

616728

797949

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

As of December 31 2011

ASSETS

Allied World

Bermuda

Subsidiary

Issuer

Other Allied

World

Subsidiaries

Consolidating

Adjustments

Allied World

Switzerland

Consolidated

Other assets

Total assets

Allied World

Switzerland

Parent

Guarantor

112672

3064066

4853

1504

$3173389

24367

24367

3149022

3964585

6769

6367

$3973069

7028651

423440

$7028651 $11122158

797949

17688

815637

3157432

88310

7133132

3871219 7028651

130365

7973136

3149022

$3173389 $3973069 $11004351 $702865l $11122158
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Condensed Consolidating Income Statement

Year Ended December 312012

Allied World Allied World

Switzerland Bermuda Other Allied Allied World
Parent Subsidiary World Consolidating Switzerland

Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

1748898 1748898

26 20 167095 167141

306436 306436

1139264 1139264

205722 205722

35258 2973 269090 307321

2533 2533

55405 55405

159 319 623 783
358 18798 18440

527722 573256 1100978

$493007 $514579 586399 $1l00978 493007

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net realized investment gains

Net losses and loss expenses

Acquisition costs

General and administrative expenses

Amortization of intangible assets

Interest expense

Foreign exchange gain loss

Income tax expense benefit

Equity in earnings of consolidated

subsidiaries

NET INCOME LOSS

Unrealized gains on investments arising

during the year net of applicable

deferred income tax benefit of $265

Reclassification adjustment for net

realized investment gains included in

net income net of applicable income

tax

Other comprehensive loss

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LOSS

493 493 493 493

13991 13991 13991 13991

14484 14484 14484 14484

$478523 $514579 571915 $l086494 478523
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Year Ended December 31 2011

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net realized investment gains

Other income

Net losses and loss expenses

Acquisition costs

General and administrative expenses

Amortization of intangible assets

Interest expense

Foreign exchange gain loss

Income tax expense benefit

Equity in earnings of consolidated

subsidiaries

NET INCOME LOSS

Unrealized gains on investments arising

during the year net of applicable deferred

income tax expense of $3035

Reclassification adjUstment for net realized

investment gains included in net income

net of applicable income tax

Other comprehensive loss

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LOSS

64 26

53620

101744101744

959156

167295

271656

2978

54989

3159

30980

194025 309920 503945

$274548 $194536 255789 $450325 274548

5243 5243 5243 5243

47894 47894 47894 47894

42651 42651 42651 42651

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Allied World

Switzerland

Parent

Guarantor

Allied World

Bermuda

Subsidiary

Issuer

Other Allied

World

Subsidiaries

$1456992

195858

10077

Allied World

Consolidating Switzerland

Adjustments Consolidated

1456.992

195948

53620 10077

959156

167295

5823 252479

2978

13354

7940

54989

978 2190

23040

$231897 $194536 213138 $407674 231897
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Year Ended December 31 2010

Net premiums earned

Net investment income

Net realized investment gains loss

Net impairment charges recognized in

earnings

Other income

Net losses and loss expenses

Acquisition costs

General and administrative expenses

Amortization of intangible assets

Interest expense

Foreign exchange gain loss

Income tax expense benefit

Equity in earnings of consolidated

subsidiaries

NET INCOME LOSS

Unrealized gains on investments arising

during the year net of applicable deferred

income tax expense of $10209

Reclassification adjustment for net realized

investment gains included in net income

net of applicable income tax

Other comprehensive loss

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
LOSS

168 168
913 913

707883

159489

286557

3483

40242

444

26945

Allied World

Switzerland

Parent

Guarantor

16

Allied World

Bermuda

Subsidiary

Issuer

Other Allied

World

Subsidiaries

$1359548

244050

289570

77

3958

Allied World

Consolidating Switzerland

Adjustments Consolidated

$1359548

244143

285612

707883

159489

2175 15031 269351

3483

40242

524 975

26945

725787

$667157 725787

1392944

$l392944

667157

665005

162653

213478

50825

665005

162653 162653 162653

_______ 213478

________ 50825

213478

50825

213478

50825

$614180 $667157 674962 $1342119 614180
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31 2012

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY USED
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY USED
IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases trading securities

Purchases of other invested assets

Sales of available for sale securities

Sales of trading securities

Sales of other invested assets

Capital contribution to subsidiary

Other

Net cash provided by used in investing

activities

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY USED

IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Partial par value reduction

Proceeds from the exercise of stock

options

Share repurchases

Capital contribution from parent

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH ANI CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
END OF YEAR

8006237

333031

236978

7892907

53741

104091

8006237

333031

236978

7892907

53741

104091

Allied World

Switzerland

Parent

Guarantor

Allied World

Bermuda

Subsidiary

Issuer

Other Allied

World

Subsidiaries

Allied World

Consolidating Switzerland

Adjustments Consolidated

338565 2438 287853 628856

110000 110000

110000
_______

259733 110000 259733

67825 67825

10527 10527

263942 263942

110000 110000

321240 110000 110000 321240

92675 2438 138120 47883

112672 8886 512438 633996

19997 $11324 650558 681879
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Year Ended December 31 2011

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY USED
IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY USED
IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchases of available for sale

securities

Purchases of trading securities

Purchases of other invested assets

Sales of available for sale securities

Sales of trading securities

Sales of other invested assets

Other

Net cash provided by used in investing

activities

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY USED
IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Partial par value reduction

Proceeds from the exercise of stock

options

Share repurchases

Repurchase of founder warrants

Other

Net cash provided by used in financing

activities

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
END OF YEAR

727

7854053

281957

609833

6942291

71543

8442

4496 504628

727

7854053

281957

609833

6942291

71543

3946

509124

28600

6837

86700

53620

Allied World

Switzerland

Parent

Guarantor

Allied World

Bermuda

Subsidiary

Issuer

Other Allied

World Consolidating

Subsidiaries Adjustments

87592 62404 523020

Allied World

Switzerland

Consolidated

548208

4496

28600

6837

86700

53620

449 753 1202

108912 54373 1202

25816 116777 19594

138488 125663 492844

$112672 8886 512438

162083

122999

756995

ii 633996
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Year Ended December 31 201

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY

USEI IN OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY

USED IN INVESTING

ACTIVITIES

Purchases of available for sale

securities

Purchases of trading securities

Purchases of other invested assets

Sales of available for sale securities

Sales of trading securities

Sales of other invested assets

Other

Net cash provided by used in investing

activities

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY

USED IN FINANCING

ACTIVITIES

Dividends paid

Proceeds from the exercise of stock

options

Proceeds from senior notes

Share repurchases

Repurchase of founder warrants

Capital contribution

Other

Net cash provided hy used in

financing activities

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN

CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASII EQUIVALENTS
END OF YEAR

133079

12816343

165505

2687129

10936501

9746

2004 16382

2004 502067

47712 750000 750000

9598

296682

647615

70016

160000

_______
2781

___________

132953 616282 752781
_________

133079

12816343

165505

2687129

10936501

9746

18386

47712

9598

296682

674662

70016

ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Allied World Allied World

Switzerland Bermuda Other Allied Allied World

Parent Subsidiary World Consolidating Switzerland

Guarantor Issuer Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

5535 690100 505219 $750000 450854

500063

27047

160000

2781

138488 71814 254505

750000 486110

464807

292188

_________
756995

53849 238339

$138488 125663 492844
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Notes to Parent Company Condensed Financial Information

Basis of Presentation

In accordance with the requirements of Regulation S-X of the Securities and Exchange Commission

restricted net assets of the Companys subsidiaries exceeded 25% of the Companys total consolidated net assets

Dividends

Allied World Switzerland received cash dividends from its subsidiaries of $355000 $0 and $0 for the years

ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

19 UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA

The following are the unaudited consolidated statements of income by quarter for the years ended

December 31 2012 and 2011

Quarter Ended

December 31 September 30 June 30 March 31
2012 2012 2012 2012

REVENUES
Gross premiums written 497052 504420 646870 680929

Premiums ceded 134429 112883 152160 91976

Net premiums written 362623 391537 494710 588953

Change in unearned premiums 113621 49480 64963 187063

Net premiums earned 476244 441017 429747 401890

Net investment income 38360 39121 42451 47209

Net realized investment gains 14379 149813 8663 133581

528983 629951 480861 582680

EXPENSES

Net losses and loss expenses 414734 258948 240380 225202

Acquisition costs 55910 51086 51588 47138

General and administrative expenses 84404 78572 73979 70366

Amortization of intangible assets 633 633 634 633

Interest expense 13826 13822 14001 13756

Foreign exchange loss gain 860 1023 1019 81

570367 404084 379563 357014

Loss income before income taxes 41384 225867 101298 225666

Income tax benefit expense 237 6220 4947 75 10

NET LOSS INCOME 41147 219647 96351 218156

PER SHARE DATA

Basic loss earnings per share 1.17 6.16 2.66 5.86

Diluted loss earnings per share 1.17 6.00 2.59 5.70

Weighted average common shares outstanding 35097043 35652768 36288596 37205166

Weighted average common shares and common share

equivalents outstanding 35097043 36616734 37189722 38284635
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ALLiED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars except share per share percentage and ratio information

Quarter Ended

December 31 September 30 March 31

2011 2011 June 30 2011 2011

REVENUES

Gross premiums written 416537 442698 519598 560688

Premiums ceded 109705 92438 123795 79817

Net premiums written 306832 350260 395803 480871

Change in unearned premiums 88637 21080 40496 145995

Net premiums earned 395469 371340 355307 334876

Net investment income 45489 47883 52368 50208

Net realized investment gains 31632 130809 58878 50376

Other income termination fee 66744 35000

539334 323414 466553 435460

EXPENSES

Net losses and 10S5 expenses 213345 205546 235813 304452

Acquisition costs 46562 39680 42971 38082

General and administrative expenses 70492 66007 67201 67956

Amortization of intangible assets 678 767 766 767

Interest expense 13754 13748 13745 13742

Foreign exchange gain loss 549 2966 1184 442

344282 328714 361680 424557

Income loss before income taxes 195052 5300 104873 10903

Income tax expense 11952 5672 11073 2283

NET INCOME LOSS 183100 10972 93800 8620

PER SHARE DATA

Basic earnings loss per share 4.80 0.29 2.45 0.23

Diluted earnings loss per share 4.63 0.29 2.36 0.21

Weighted average common shares outstanding 38138558 38110368 38346489 38199867

Weighted average common shares and common share

equivalents outstanding 39524273 38110368 39800753 40383523
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars

Year Ended December 31 2012

Schedule III

Reinsurance

Corporate

Net

Deferred

Acquisition

Costs

43137

Total 108010

Year Ended December 31 2011

U.S insurance

International

insurance

Reinsurance

Corporate

Reserve for

Losses Net

and Loss Unearned Premiums

Expenses Premiums Earned

189824 562302 671594

2395 2249012 304509 317006

60911 l3l3651 306511 555683

Reserve for

Losses Net

and Loss Unearned Premiums

Expenses Premiums Earned

1431707 392787 518444

2279 2226725 277808 338791

61746 1220756 291608 502313

Amortization of

Net Losses and Deferred

Acquisition

Costs

465168 86670

163130

510966

U.S insurance

International

insurance

Investment Loss

Income Expenses

3602 2266660 332571 336787

61271 1480648 323148 740517

Other

Operating
Costs

141729

Net

Premiums

Written

743428

167141

5645549 1218021 1748898 167141 1139264

486 91867 346.348

119538 73725 748047

Reserve for

Net Deferred Losses Net

Acquisition and Loss Unearned Premiums

Costs Expenses Premiums Earned

37028 l662480 467392 584303

30732l l837823205722

Amortization of Other

Deferred Operating

Acquisition Costs Costs

74976 124434

Net

Investment

Income

Losses and

Loss

Expenses

387099

195948

Total 100334 5225143 1078412 1456992 195948 959156

Net

Premiums

Written

639196

206593

365464

Year Ended December 31 2010

2781 84290 325094

95100 62.932 569476

Net Deferred

Acquisition

Costs

U.S insurance 32778

International

insurance

Reinsurance

Corporate

167295 271656

Amortization of Other

Deferred Operating

Acquisition Costs Costs

67797 128556

Net

Investment

Income

Losses and

Loss

Expenses

297517

1533766

Net

Premiums

Written

551063

Total 96803 4879188 962203 1359548

160153

250213

244143

244143 707883

460 94226 319083

92152 63775 522309

159489 286557 1392455
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Schedule IV

ALLIEI WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

SUPPLEMENTARY REINSURANCE INFORMATION

Expressed in thousands of United States dollars

Net Percentage of

Ceded to Assumed from Amount Amount Assumed

Other Other to Net

Property and Casualty Gross Companies Companies

Year ended December 31 2012 $1569021 $491448 $760250 $1837823 41%

Year ended December31 2011 $1369017 $405755 $570504 $1533766 37%

Year ended December 31 2010 $1234204 $365942 $524193 $1392455 38%
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ALLIED WORLD ASSURANCE COMPANY HOLDINGS AG

OTHER DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SWISS LAW

Other selected information as required by Swiss Law

The following disclosures are required by Swiss Law and are included below as Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG

Allied World Switzerland is Swiss domesticated company

Expenses

Total personnel expenses amounted to $243.6 million $199.7 million and $210.0 million for the years ended December 31 2012

2011 and 2010 respectively Amortization expense related to tangible property amounted to $6.7 million $8.6 million and $8.5

million for the years ended December 31 2012 2011 and 2010 respectively

ii Fire insurance values of property and equipment

Total fire insurance values of property and equipment amounted to $52.5 million and $51.8 million at December 31 2012 and

2011 respectively

iii Common share ownership and remuneration of the Board of Directors and Group Executives for 2012

Refer to the disclosures in note to the Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

iv Risk assessment and management

The Board of Directors together with the management of Allied World is responsible for assessing risks related to the financial

reporting process and for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting Internal control over

financial reporting is process designed by or under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Allied World Switzerlands

consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with US GAAP The Board operating through its Audit

Committee composed entirely of directors who are not officers or employees of the Company is responsible for oversight of the

financial reporting process and safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition use or disposition The Audit Committee

meets with management the independent registered public accountants and the internal auditor approves the overall scope of

audit work and related fee arrangements and reviews audit reports and findings In addition the independent registered public

accountants and the internal auditor meet separately with the Audit Committee without management representatives present to

discuss the results of their audits the adequacy of the Companys internal control the quality of its financial reporting and the

safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition use or disposition
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Report of the statutory auditor

To the General Meeting of

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Baar

Report on the consolidated financial statements

As statutory auditor we have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Allied World Assurance

Company Holdings AG which comprise balance sheet statement of operations and comprehensive income statement of

shareholders equity statement of cash flows and notes for the year ended December 31 2012

Board of Directors Responsibility

The Board of Directors responsble for the preparation and fair presentation of the consoldated financial statements in

accordance with accounling principles generally accepted in the United States of America US-GAAP and the requirements

of Swiss law This responsibility includes designing implementing and maintaining an internal control system relevant to the

preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due

to fraud or error The Board of Directors is further responsible for selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and

making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit We conducted

our audit in accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards and the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board of the United States of America Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit

to obtain reasonable assurance whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and dis- closures in the

consolidated financial slatements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment

of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or error In making

those risk assessments the auditor considers the internal control system relevant to the entitys preparation and fair

presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances but not br the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control

system An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements We

believe that the audit esidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinionthe consoldated financial statements for the year ended December 31 2012 present fairly in all

material respects the financial posiition the results of operations and the cash flows in accordance with generally

accepted accounting prnciples in the United States of America US-GAAP and comply with Swiss law

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act AOA and

independence article 728 CO and article 11 AOA and that there are no circumstances incompatible with our

irKiependence

In accordance with article 728a paragraph item CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890 we confirm that an internal

control system exists which has been designed for the preparation of consolidated financial statements according to

the instructions of the Board of Directors

We recommend that the consolidated financial statements submitted to you be approved

Deloitte AG

Is Tobias Pfeiffer
1sf Frank Losert

Licensed Audit Expert
Licensed Audit Expert

Auditor in Charge

Zurich February 25 2013
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Swiss Statutory Balance Sheet unconsolidated

2LS at December 31 2012 and December 2011

Swiss Francs

as at December 31 Notes 2012 2011

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 18267676 105934465

Treasury shares 190822343

Accounts receivable 827345 1721436

Prepayrnents
1370046 1413265

Total current assets 211287410 237491539

Fixed assets

Investment in subsidiary undertakings
2500935311 2369144431

Total fixed assets 2500935311 2369144431

Total assets 2712222721 2606635970

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
._....

Liabilities

Short-term liabilities

Accounts payable
28990859 29490977

Total short term liabilities
28990859 29490977

Shareholders equity ...._.

Share capita
3676441 558412267

Partijption_certifipIta
83883p

gerves
Gen9a lega Te5Yefr9n capita -- QL3183 778240 763

Reserve /br treasury shatts from capital contributions 17570 795 /29 786 968

contribuijons 782840978 .908027731

Reserve for treasury shares 15120552

eLrr_.....___.__________________________ 79796 530 1908027731

Retained earnings

c_..____._..___.._ 07866 65

Result of the year
303.358133 125617687

Total retained earng_ 4118 086664

Tota shareholders equity
268323 862 2577144993

Total liabilities and shareholders equity
2712222721 2606635970
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Swiss Statutory Income Statement unconsolidated

for the year ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011

Swiss Francs

Revenues

Interest income 24029 54239

Profit on sale of treasury shares 7076659 1653859

Profit on par value reductions 3863399 1159323

Intercompany dividends 330329656 50955980dPY ncome
......-

103699296

Foreign exchange gains 147365

Total revenues 341441108 157522697

Expenses

12 38004092 7993260

exchang ose
.._

3333951

Other expenses
....-

Extraordinary expenses 13818147
Total expenses

..
38004092

303437016 132377111

Tax expense 78883 6759424

Net profit after taxation 303358133 125617687
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Corporate information

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Allied World or the Company is the holding company of the Allied World group of

companies with
listing on the New York Stock Exchange Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AGs principal activity is the

holding of subsidiary companies Revenues consist mainly of interest and dividend income Refer to Note for details of the extraordinary

income earned for thc year ended December 31 2011

The Company was incorporated in Switzerland in the Canton of Zug on May 12 2010 On November 18 2010 the shareholders of Allied

World Assurance Company Holdings Ltd the Bermuda company and former parent holding company of the Allied World group of

companies Allied World Bermuda contributed United States Dollars USD or $160 million to the Company

On November 18 2010 the shareholders of Allied World Bermuda approved the proposed scheme of arrangement related to the companys

redomestication to Switzerland Under the terms of the scheme of arrangement each holder of Allied World Bermuda voting common shares

outstanding immediately befbre the transaction was effected received voting shares of the Company with par value of Swiss Francs

CHF15 on one-for-one basis with respect to such Allied World Bermuda voting common shares outstanding immediately before the

transaction and each holder of Allied World Bermuda non-voting common shares outstanding immediately before the transaction was

effected received non-voting participation certificates of the Company par value of CHF15 per share on one-for-one basis with respect to

such Allied World Bermuda non-voting common shares outstanding immediately before the transaction Allied World Bermuda has become

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company

The balance sheet is shown as at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and the income statement reflects the results of operations for

the year of January 2012 through December 31 2012 and January 2011 through December 31 2011 The financial statements present

the financial position of the holding company on stand-alone basis and do not represent the consolidated financial position of the holding

company and its subsidiaries

Significant accounting policies

The Companys financial statements are presented in accordance with the Swiss Code of Obligations The reporting currency for Allied

World is the Swiss Franc CHF All amounts are rounded to the nearest Swiss Franc unless otherwise stated with the consequence that the

rounded amounts may not add up to the rounded total in all cases

Cash and cash equivalents

All cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand deposits and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three

months or less at the time of aurchase

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are equity interests which are held on long-term basis for the purpose of the holding Companys business

activities They are carried at value no higher than their cost less any adjustments for impairment

Investments

Investments including investments in Treasury shares are carried at the lower of cost or market value

Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than Cl-IF are translated at the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date with any

resulting foreign exchange osses recognised in the income statement Any unrealized exchange gains are deferred until realized Non

monetary items which are calTied at cost denominated in foreign currency are translated at historical rates

Guarantees

In November 210 Allied \Vorld Assurance Company Bermuda issued USD300 million senior notes due in 2020 The senior notes bear

interest at an annual rate of 5.50% per year
and were priced to yield 5.56% Interest on the senior notes is payable semi-annually on May 15

and November ot each year commencing on May 15 2011 The net proceeds from the offering of the senior notes will be used for general

corporate purposes including the repurchase of the Companys outstanding common shares dividends to shareholders or potential

acquisitions The senior notes are Allied World Bermudas unsecured and unsubordinated obligations and rank equally in right of payment

with all existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated indebtedness Allied World Bermuda may redeem the senior notes at any time or

from time to time in whole or in part at redemption price equal to the greater of the principal amount of the senior notes to be redeemed or

make-whole price plus accrmed and unpaid interest The senior notes include covenants and events of default that are usual and customary

but do not contain any financial covenants

In addition these senior notes as well as Allied World Bermudas 7.5% senior notes due in 2016 that were issued in 2006 have been

unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed for the payment of the principal and interest by the Company
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Accounts receivable and payable

Current receivables represent amounts due within 12 months

as at December31

2500935311

2012 2011

2369144431

Shareholders equity

At date of incorporation the share capital for the Company amounted to CHFO million On November 18 2010 Allied World Bermuda

contributed USD160 million to the Companys general legal reserve

On November 25 2010 Allied World Bermuda as sole shareholder of the Company resolved to transfer CHF 158.54 million from the

general legal reserve to reserves available for distribution

On November 30 2010 as part of the companys redomestication to Switzerland the company held an Extraordinary General Meeting of

Shareholders of the Company to approve an increase in the Companys share capital The Company issued 39794636 fully paid-in

registered shares with par value of CHF 15 each at an issue price of CHF58.74 each Total share capital after the capital increase amounts to

39794636 fully paid-in registered shares at par value of CHF15 totaling CHF596919530 as shown in the table below At the

Extraordinary General Meeting of shareholders of the Company it was resolved to create participation capital of the Company of up to

CHF3035l00 by issuing 202340 fully paid-in registered participation certificates with par value of CHF15 each at an issue price of

CHF58.74 each at an aggregate issue price ofCHF11885451

On May 2011 the shareholders approved the Companys proposal to pay cash dividends in the form of distribution by way of par value

reductions The aggregate reduction amount will be paid to shareholders in four quarterly installments The Company made dividend

payments of CHF 11436357 USD14295446 on August 2011 CHF 12206578 USD14304584 on October 2011 CHF 13348269

USD14301716 on January 2012 and CHF12507262.78 USD13794775.13 on April 2012 to shareholders of record on July 27

2011 October 2011 December 23 2011 and March 30 2012 respectively The amount of the par value reductions were CHFO.30

CHFO.32 CHFO.35 and CHFO.34 respectively

Amounts receivable from group undertakings 827345 1721436

Total accounts receivable 827345 1721436

Current payables represent amounts owed and payable within 12 months

as at December31 2012 2011

8072799 22289583

Amounts owed to group undertakings 20918060 7201394

Total accounts payable 28990859 29490977

Investment in subsidiary undertakings

2012 2011

Principal Voting Share Share

Name as at December31 Domicile activity rights capital Carrying value capital Carrying value

Allied World Assurance Company Ho1din USD1 USD1

Holdings Ltd ._4cp1 ll0 200 11998581 2314350194

Allied World Assurance Company Insurance CHII CHFIppyJ 0O Q004 149814112 1O00000 50474471

AWAC Services Company Ireland Services

Limited Ireland company 999002 742877

Services USD
AWAC Services Company United States company iOO% USD 3095380

AWAC Services USIY USD
Services Company Bermuda Ltd Bermuda company 00 1200ct 625790 12000 481509
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

May 2012 the shareholders approed further proposal of the Company to pay cash dividends in the form of distribution by way of

par value reductions The aggregate maximum reduction amount of CHF74 199316 will be paid to shareholders in four quarterly

installments The Company distributed installments of CHF 13501311 USD 13415115 on August 2012 CHF 13.126275 1USD

13302.207 on September 25 2012 and Cl-IF 12751238 USD 13104048 on December 26 2012 to shareholders of record on July 30

2012 September 18 2012 ard December 18 2012 respectively The Company expects to distribute the fourth installment on March 12 2013

to shareholders of record on March 52013

Furthermore the shareholder approved share and participation certificate capital reduction of CHF 34225000 by canceling of 2326900

Voting Shares and 173.100 Non-Voting shares

Shares authorized and issued

The fullowing table presents changes in common shares issued All common shares are registered shares under Swiss corporate law

as at Dec.mhtr 31 2012 2011

Opening balance 39801302 39801302

Cancelation of shares 2326900

Ending balance 37474402 39801302

Companys share capital as of December 31 2012 December 31 2011 consisted of 37474402 39801302 common shares with

rIr
value olCi IFI 264 CHF 14.03 each

The Board of Directors the Board is authorized to increase the share capital until May 2014 by an amount not exceeding

CHF94809202 through the issue of up to 7500728 fully paid up registered shares with par value ofCHF 12.64 each

Participation certificates authorized and issued

The following table presents changes in Iarticipation certificates issued

as at December 31
2012 2011

Opening balance 40 202340

Cancelation of shares 173100

Ending balance 29240 202340

The Companys Participation certificates as of December 31 2012 December 31 2011 consisted of 29240 202340 partIcipatIon

certificates with par value of CHF 12.64 CL-1F14.03 each

Conditional share capital

Conditional Share apital /ir Bonds and Similar Debt Instruments

The share capital of the Company may be increased by an amount not exceeding CHF 12640000 through the tssue of maximum of

1.000000 registered shares payable in full each with par value of CHF 12.64 through the exercise of conversion and or option or warrant

rights granted in connection with bonds notes or similar instruments issued or to be issued by the Company or by subsidiaries of the

Company including convertible debt instruments

Conditional Shae ipitaI/ir Emplo tee BenefIt Plans

The share capital of the Company may be increased by an amount not exceeding Cl-lF53088000 through the issue of maximum of

4.200.000 registered shares payable in full each with par value of CL-IF 12.64 in connection with the exercise of options rights granted to

any employee of the Company or subsidiary any consultant director or other person providing services to the Company or subsidiary

Conditional Share Capital/or Existing Shareholder Warrants

On May 2012 the shareholders eliminated the conditional share capital under Article 5a of the Articles of Association Under this Article

the Company was permitted to increase its share capital by an amount not exceeding CHF28060000 through the issue from time to time of

maximum of 2.000000 registered shares payable in full each with par value of CHF 14.03 in connection with the exercise of existing

shareholder warrants
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Treasury shares

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Treasury shares are carried at the lower of cost or market value The following table presents roll forward of treasury shares for the period

from January 12012 to December 31 2012 January 12011 to December 31 2011

In March 2010 the Board of Directors authorized the Company to repurchase up to USD500 million of the Companys common shares

through share repurchase program This authorization was effective through May 2012

In May 2012 the Companys shareholders approved an additional share repurchase program to repurchase again up to USD500 million of the

Companys common shares The authorization is effective through 2014

Repurchases under both authorizations may be effected from time to time through open market purchases privately negotiated transactions

tender offers or otherwise The timing form and amount of the share repurchases under the program depend on variety of factors including

market conditions the companys capital position legal requirements and other factors As of December 31 2012 December 31 2011 the

Company held 2705861 2011 2261511 treasury shares

The following table shows issued and authorized share capital participation certificates reserve from capital contribution and reserve for

treasury shares as at December 31 2012 December 31 2011 and movements during 2012 2011

Legal reserve

Reserve for Capital

Contribution

Reserve of

treasury

shares

as at December 31

Number of

shares

2012

Average cost

per share

USD

Average cost

per share

CHF

Number of

shares

Ending balance

2011

Average cost

per share

USD
Opening balance 2261511 60.4 56.81914416 58.9 55.1

72.2 IL3
Issued to employees under share

compensation 58.7 53.3

Cancelation during the year 25000001 61.41 57.6

Average cost

per share

CHF

2705861 75.2 70.5 2261511 60.4 56.8

in CHF OOOs

Share

capital

Participation General

certificates legal reserve

Retaine4 earnings

Reserve of

treasury Free Carried Result of

shares reserves forward the year Total

Opening balance at

January 2011 597020 303 133524 -17752 2490330

Parvalue reduction 38607 196 -- 38803
Transfer of the result 17752 17752

Change of own share

reserve for treasury shares

held within the Group 22258j 17686 4572

Transfer of free reserves 138096 138096
Profit for the year 125618 125618

Balance at December 31
2011 558413 2839 1778240 1297871 17752 125618 2577145
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Opening balance at

January 12012 -______ ..... ..
_______ 2577145

Cancelation of shares 144291

Par value reduction 52980

Transfer of the result __________

Change of own share

reserve for treasury shares

hdd within the Group _______
________

Transfer from reserve for

capital contribution

Profit for the year ________ ___________

Balance at December 31

2012 1607139 175702

Common share ownership and remuneration of the Board of Directors and Group Executives for 2012

Basis of presentation

The following intbrrnation sets forth the share ownership as at December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 and the compensation for the year

ended December 31 2012 and December 31 2011 of the members of the Board of the Company and Group Executives see note 7c for

members for all of the functions that they have performed for the Company

Remuneration of the Board of Directors

During the year 2012 total compensation ofCHFI31280 has been paid to fonner Board member No compensation has been paid to any

related party of current or former Board members nor had any such persons
received benefits in kind of waivers of claims in 2012 As at

December 2012 December 31 2011 no current or former Board members or any related party of current of former Board members had

outstanding loans or credits from the Company The following table sets forth the Board members compensation Note that Scott

Carmilani our CEO receives no additional compensation for serving as Chairman of the Board Please refer to the management

compensation disclosure for his details

2012

Non-equity

incentive plan

compensation

558412

855

52881

2839

2370

99

1778241 129787

143985i

17752 125618

-____ 20502

15121 15121

125618 125618

473676 370 15121

303358 303358

107866 303358 2683232

All other

compensationIame and principal position Salary Stock awards Total

Barbara Alexander Director 142230 64449 206679

James Duffy Director 114 934 64 449 179383

Bart Friedman Director 1405141 64449 204963

Scott Bunter Eirector 1497061 64449 214155

Patrick de Saint-Aignan Director 152333 64449 216782

Samuel Weinhoff Director
1574401 644491 -1 -1 221890

Total 857157 386694 1243852
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Mark Patterson resigned as member of the Board of Directors on May 25 2012

Remuneration of the Group Executives

Our compensation structure is comprised of cash compensation primarily consisting of base salary and annual cash bonus and long-term

equity-based compensation consisting of restricted stock units granted under the Companys Third Amended and Restated 2004 Stock
Incentive Plan the Stock Incentive Plan performance-based awards granted under the Companys Third Amended and Restated Long-
Term Incentive Plan or Stock Incentive Plan and stock options granted under the Companys Third Amended and Restated 2001 Employee
Stock Option Plan Each of these plans was automatically terminated replaced and superseded by the Companys 2012 Omnibus Incentive

Plan except that
any outstanding awards granted under such plans remain in effect pursuant to their terms

During the year total compensation of CHF 7558998 has been paid to former Group Executives No compensation has been paid to any
related party of current or former Group Executives nor had any such persons received benefits in kind of waivers of claims As at December

31 2012 and December 31 2011 no current or former Group Executives or any related party of current of former Group Executives had

outstanding loans or credits from the Company The following table sets forth the Group Executives compensation

as of December 31 2012

Thomuv Budlev became the new Group Executive Vice President and Ghief Financial OJjicer on September 24 2012

Name and urincipal position

2011

Salary Stock awards

Non-equity

incentive plan All other

comuensation comnensation Total

Total

Barbara Alexander Director 129991 57298 187289

James Duffy Director 140567 57298 197865

Bail Friedman Director 111484 57298 168782

Scott Hunter Director 140567 57298 197865

Mark Patterson Director 114128 57298 171426

Patrick de Saint-Aignan Director 148498 572981 205796

Samuel Weinhoff Director 12365 57298 169663

897599 401088 1298687

Name and principal position

Non-equity

incentive plan All other

Salary Stock awards Option awards compensation compensation Total

Scott Carmilani 929402 5653322 566435 284070 7433229

President Chief Executive 0/JIcer and

chaianoJtheBd
Frank DOrazio 401760 779784 166310 374480 1722334

PresidentBermuda and International

Insurance

Thomas Bradley 16791 186865 92825 396481

Executive Vice President and Chief

Financial Officer

Wesley Dupont 4112821 877264 245260 170937 1704743

Executive Vice President General

Counsel and Cot porate Secretary ..
Gordon Knight 525953 1364606 321408 203034 2415001

President Allied World Assurance

Company US Inc andAllied World

National Assurance Company

Total 2385188 8674976 1486278 11253461 13671788
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

0.5 0/ 31

Name and principal position

Scott Carmilani

Chief E.vecutive 01 leer and

Chairman of the Board

Joan Dillard 21

Eiveeutive Vice President anc Chief

Financial 0//leer

Wesley Dupont

Executive Vice /csident General

Counsel cuid Coipotate Seertari

\V Gordon Knight

President .4 lliecl Ii arid Assurance

Company US tin ancl4lliecI World

National Assurance Compans

John Scnnott Jr ysi

Executive Vice President Chief

Corporate Strategs 0/Jleer

Total

854.856 4485749

362653 651585

Non-equity

incentive plan

compensation

Joan Dil/arcl istiredas the Groiips Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 0//ice on September 24 2012

John t..Sennott fell the mpanl on 4piiI 2012

Common share ownership of the Board of Directors

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of common shares by each of our Directors Although

Scott Carniilani is the Chairman of the Board details of his share ownership are included in the table below along with the Group

Executives Unless otherwise noted the named individual has sole voting and ownership power over the common share listed

Stock Awards 2012

Equity Incentive

Equity Incentive Plan Awards

Plan Awards market or payout

Market value Number of value of unearned

of shares or unearned shares shares units or

units of stock units or other other rights that

that have not rights that have have not vested

vested CHF not vested 1CHF

Salary

2011

Stock awards Option awards

All other

comnensation

721417

419612

534285

751872

Total

120921 271439

104819

228382 6824689

1852121 1749055

231120 359000 1709177

4847l2 10603l8 170512 303165 l69224 2187931

326079 474324 76239 152464 499704 1528811

2447912 7423848 1193908 1492473 1441522 13999664

as of December

Name

Option Awards 2012

Number of Number of

Securities Securities

Underlying Underlying

Unexercised Unexercised Option Option

Options Options Exercise Expiration

Exercisable UnExercisable Price Date

Number of

Shares of

units of

Stock that

have not

vested

Total

Barbara Alexander n/a n/a 1014 72992

James Dully
n/a n/a 1014 72992

Ban Friedman n/a n/a 1014 72992

Scott Hunter n/a n/a 014 72 992

Patrick dc Saint Ai6nan
n/a n/a 014 72 992

Samuel Weinhoff n/a n/a 10141 729921

6084 437952
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Number of

Shares of

Units of

Stock that

have not

vested

Equity Incentive

Plan Awards

Market value Number of

of shares or unearned shares

units of stock units or other

that have not rights that have

vested CHF not vested

Equity Incentive

Plan Awards

market or payout

value of unearned

shares units or

other rights that

have not vested

tCHF

Mark Patterson resigned as member of the Board of Directors on May 25 20/2

Common share ownership of the Group Executives

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of common shares by each of our Group Executives

Unless otherwise noted the named individual has sole voting and ownership power over the common shares listed

as of December 31

Name

Option Awards 2011

Number of Number of

Securites Securites

Underlying Underlying

Unexercised Unexercised Option Option

Options Options Exercise Expiration

Exercisable UnExercisable Price tSl Date

Stock Awards 2011

Total

BarbaraTAlexander n/a n/a 1057 62539

James /a n/a 1O57 62539

Bart Friedman n/a n/a 1057 62539

Scott Hunter n/a n/a 1057 62539

Mark Patterson n/a n/a 1057 62539

PaSaint-Aignan n/a n/a 1057 62539

Samuel Weinhoff n/a n/a 1057 62539

7399 437775

Option Awards 2012

Name

Stock Awards 2012

Equity Incentive

Equity Incentive Plan Awards
Number of Number of Number of Plan Awards market or payout
Securites Securites Shares of Market value Number of value of unearned

Underlying Underlying Units of of shares or unearned shares shares units or

Unexercised Unexercised Option Option Stock that units of stock units or other other rights that

Options Options Exercise Expiration have not that have not rights that have have not vested

Exercisable UnExercisable Price Date vested vested CHF not vested CHF
Scott Carmilani 12501 89980 28889 2079540

6333 30 31-Dec-13 3900 280737 73542 5293833

20000 33 3-Jan-15 4433 319104 35465 2552905

11201 33604 62 22-Feb-21 45241 325655 27141 1953712

WesleyD Dupont 25000 28 1-Dec-15 500 35992 10506 756262

1627 4883 62- 22-Feb-21 i050 75583 5150 370717

645 46430 4212 303196

702 50533

Gordon Knight 16500 43 28-Feb-18 625 44990 13596 978692

2647 7943 62 22-Feb-21 2640 190037 8385 603584

1047 75367 6551 471566

1092 78606

Frank DOrazio 500 35992

1050 75583 8034 578318

529 38079 4235 304851

1338 4017 61.51 22-Feb-21 624 449181 3744 269507

Total 84646 50447 25111 1807586 229450 16516683
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

3Ptb0n
Awards 2011 Stock Awards 2011

Equity Incentive

Equity Incentive Plan Awards

Number of Number of Number of Plan Awards market or payout

Securites Securites Shares of Market value Number of value of unearned

tiaderlying Underlying Units of of shares or unearned shares shares units or

Uriexercised Unexercised Option Option Stock that units of stock units or other other rights that

Options Options Exercise Expiration have not that have not rights that have have not vested

Name Exercisable UnExercisable PriceS Date _vested vested CHF not vested CHF

Scott Carmilani 13333 23.6F 2-Jan-13 4167 246548 57.777 3418479

13333 29.52 31-Dec-13 5000 295834 92.512 5473638

20000 32.711 3-Jan-15 9750 576876 19000 7040848

44805 $61512_22-Feb-21 11820 699351 70930 4196700

Joan Dillard 33333 528.32 1-Dec-15 1250 73958 20000 1183336

7510 61.51 22-Feb-21 2500 147.917 20000- 1183336

4950 292.876 11890 703493

1980 117150

Wesley Dupont 25000 28.32 1-Dec-15 1000 59.167 14000 828335

6510 $61.51 22-Feb-21 2000 118334 17000 1005835

2625 155313 10300 609418

1720 101767

Gordon Knight 12375 4125 43.271 28-Feb-18 2500 147917 20000 1183336

10590 561.511 22-Feb-21 2500 147917 22000 1301669

6600 390501 167701 992227

2790 165075

John Scnnott Jr 4735 $61.51 22-Feb-21 10000 591668 10000 591668

1500 88750 13000 769168

2813 166436 7500 443751

________ ___________________ ________ 1250 73958 ___________-

Total 1173741 78275 78715 4657313 522679 30925237

Joan /1 Dillard retired as the Groups Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 0/fleer on September 24 2012

John Sennolt .1 Icti the Company on April 2012

Significant shareholders

At December 31 2012 there were five groups of shareholders with holding in excess of 5% BlackRock Inc with sole voting and

dispositive power of 6.1% ii Artisan Partners Holdings LP Artisan Investment Corporation Artisan Partners Limited Partnership Artisan

Investments GP LLC ZFIC Inc Andrew Ziegler and Carlene Ziegler with shared voting and dispositive power of 5.8% iii the

Vanguard Group Inc with sole voting and dispositive power of 6.0% iv the FMR LLC with sole voting and dispositive power of 5.3%

and ClearRridge Advisors LLC with sole voting and dispositive power of 5.2%

There were live groups of shareholders with holding in excess of 5% as of December 31 2011 ClearBridge Advisors LLC with sole

voting and dispositive power of 6.7% ii BlackRock Inc with sole voting and dispositive power of 6.5% iii Royce Associates LLC

with sole voting and dispositive power
of 5.8% iv Artisan Partners Holdings LP Artisan Investment Corporation Artisan Partners

Limited Partnership Artisan Investments GP LLC ZFIC Inc Andrew Ziegler and Carlene Ziegler with shared voting and

dispositive power of 5.7% nd The Vanguard Group Inc with sole voting arid dispositive power of 5.3%
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG
Notes to Swiss Statutory Financial Statements

Extraordinary income and expense

On December 15 2011 the Company reached mutual agreement with Transatlantic Holdings Inc to terminate the previously announced

merger agreement Under the terms of the termination agreement the Company received termination payment equivalent to

CHF1O3699296 which has been disclosed as Extraordinary income on the income statement 2011 Extraordinary expenses of CHF
13818147 on the income statement 2011 are expenses incurred relating to this terminated merger The termination payment was received in

USD and has been translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction

10 Subsequent events

There were no adjusting or non-adjusting events between the balance sheet date up to the date of approval of the financial statements

11 Risk assessment

The Board of Directors together with the management of the Company is responsible for assessing risks related to the financial reporting

process and for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting Internal control over financial reporting is

process designed by or under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer to provide reasonable assurance

regarding their
liability

of financial reporting and the preparation of the Companys consolidated financial statements for external purposes in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United Sates of America The Board operating through its Audit Committee

composed entirely of directors who are not officers or employees of the Company is responsible for oversight of the financial reporting

process and safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition use or disposition The Audit Committee meets with management the

independent registered public accountants and the internal auditor approves the overall scope of audit work and related fee arrangements
and reviews audit reports and findings

In addition the independent registered public accountants and the internal auditor meet separately with the Audit Committee without

management representatives present to discuss the results of their audits the adequacy of the Companys internal control the quality of its

financial reporting and the safeguarding of assets against unauthorized acquisition use or disposition

12 Other disclosures required by Swiss law

Expenses

as of December31 2012 2011

Total personnel expenses 9923544 789387

Fire insurance values of property and equipment

Total fire insurance values of property and equipment amounted to CHF nil as of December 31 2012 and December 31 2011
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Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG

Proposed appropriation of available earnings

Swiss Francs

Proposal of the Board of Directors

Registered shares eligible for dividends

at December31 20121

Eligible shares 34797781 37742131

Appropriation of available earnings proposed by Board of Directors

as at December31 2012 2011

Balance brought forward 107866165 17751522

Net profit after taxation 133i25617687

Retained earnings 411224298 107866165

The Board proposes to the annual general meeting to appropriate the net profit to the free reserve in accordance with the table above

2011

Retained earning to be carried forward 411224298 107866165
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Report of the statutory audor

To the General Meeting of

Allied World Assurance Company Holdings AG Baar

Report on the financial statements

As statutory auditor we have audited the accompanying financial statements of Allied World Assurance Company

Holdings AG wtiich comprise the balance sheet income statement and notes for the year ended December31 2012

Board of DirectorsResponsibility

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements
of Swiss law and the companys articles of incorporation This responsibility includes designing implementing and

maintaining an internal control system relevant to the preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement whether due to fraud or error The Board of Drectors is further responsible for selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in

accordance with Swiss law and Swiss Auditing Standards Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and dis- closures in the financial

statements The ocedures sebcted depend on the auditors judgment including the assessment of the risks of material

misstatement of the financial statements whether due to frand or error In making those risk assessments the auditor

considers the internal control system relevant to the entitys preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiveness of the entitys internal control system An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements We believe that tha audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to provide basis for our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements for the year ended December31 2012 comply with Swiss law and the companys
articles of incorporation

Report on other legal requirements

We confirm that we meet the legal requirements on licensing according to the Auditor Oversight Act AOA and

independence article 728 CO and article 11 AOA and that there are no circumstances incompatible 1th our

independence

In accordance with article 728a paragraph item CO and Swiss Auditing Standard 890 we confirm that an internal

control system exists which has been designed for the preparaton of financial statements according to the instnjctons

of the Board of Directors

We further confirm that the proposed appropriation of available earnings complies with Swiss law and the companys
articles of incorporatbn We recommend that the financial statements submitted to you be approved

Deloitte AG

Is Tobias Pfelfer Licensed Is Frank Losert

Audit Expert Auditor in Charge Licensed Audit Expert

Zurich February 25 2013
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